
Tudalen 1

Mark James  LLM, DPA, DCA
Prif Weithredwr,
Chief Executive,
Neuadd y Sir, Caerfyrddin.  SA31 1JP
County Hall, Carmarthen.  SA31 1JP

DYDD MAWRTH, 17 IONAWR 2017

AT:  HOLL AELODAU’R  BWRDD GWEITHREDOL

YR WYF DRWY HYN YN EICH GALW I FYNYCHU CYFARFOD O’R  BWRDD 
GWEITHREDOL A GYNHELIR YN Y SIAMBR, NEUADD Y SIR, 
CAERFYRDDIN AM 10.00 YB AR DDYDD LLUN, 23AIN IONAWR, 2017 ER 
MWYN CYFLAWNI'R MATERION A AMLINELLIR AR YR AGENDA SYDD 
YNGHLWM.

Mark James DYB

PRIF WEITHREDWR

 AILGYLCHWCH OS GWELWCH YN DDA
Swyddog Democrataidd: Catherine Gadd
Ffôn (llinell uniongyrchol): 01267 224088
E-bost: cegadd@sirgar.gov.uk
Cyf: AD016-001

Pecyn Dogfennau



Tudalen 2

Y BWRDD GWEITHREDOL
 AELODAETH: 10  AELOD

Y Cynghorydd Portffolio:
Y Cynghorydd Emlyn 
Dole
 

Yr Arweinydd (Plaid Cymru)
Arweinyddiaeth a Strategaeth Gorfforaethol; Cadeirydd y Bwrdd 
Gweithredol; Cynrychioli'r Cyngor - Cymdeithas Llywodraeth Leol 
Cymru; Eiriolwr Gwleidyddol y Cyngor; Penodi'r Aelodau o'r Bwrdd 
Gweithredol; Penderfynu ar Bortffolios yr Aelodau o'r Bwrdd 
Gweithredol; Cyswllt â'r Prif Weithredwr

Y Cynghorydd David 
Jenkins

Dirprwy Arweinydd  - Adnoddau (Plaid Cymru)
Cyllid a'r Gyllideb; TGCh; Rheoli Eiddo / Asedau; Caffael;  Budd-
daliadau Tai; Refeniw; Hyrwyddwr y Lluoedd Arfog a Chadeirio'r Bwrdd 
Gweithredol yn absenoldeb yr Arweinydd.

Y Cynghorydd Pam 
Palmer

Dirprwy Arweinydd (Annibynnol) 
Rheolwr Busnes y Cyngor; Hyrwyddwr Cymunedol; Ffocws Cwsmeriaid 
a Pholisi; Cyswllt â'r Heddlu; Diogelwch Cymunedol; Cynllunio 
Cymunedol Cyfiawnder Cymdeithasol/Trosedd ac Anhrefn; Hyrwyddwr 
Gwrth-dlodi; Cynaliadwyedd; Bioamrywiaeth; Llysgennad Ieuenctid; 
Materion Gwledig a Chadeirio'r Bwrdd Gweithredol yn absenoldeb yr 
Arweinydd.

Y Cynghorydd Hazel 
Evans

Gwasanaethau Technegol (Plaid Cymru)
Sbwriel; Glanhau Strydoedd; Gwasanaethau Cludiant; Cynnal a Chadw 
Tiroedd; Gwasanaethau Adeiladau;  Gwasanaethau Arlwyo;  
Gwasanaethau Gofalwyr Adeiladau; Glanhau Adeiladau; Cynlluniau 
Argyfwng; Llifogydd.

Y Cynghorydd Meryl 
Gravell 
 

Adfywio a Hamdden (Annibynnol)
Datblygu Economaidd; Canolfan Ewropeaidd Gorllewin Cymru; 
Datblygu Cymunedol; Chwaraeon; Canolfannau Hamdden; 
Amgueddfeydd; Llyfrgelloedd; Parc Gwledig

Y Cynghorydd Gareth 
Jones

Addysg a Phlant (Plaid Cymru)
Ysgolion; Gwasanaethau Plant; Anghenion Addysgol Arbennig; 
Diogelu; Cartrefi Seibiant; Gwasanaeth Gwella Ysgolion Integredig 
Rhanbarthol; Addysg i Oedolion a Dysgu Cymunedol;  Gwasanaethau 
Ieuenctid; yr Aelod Arweiniol dros Blant a Phobl Ifanc; Llysgennad yr 
Eisteddfod

Y Cynghorydd Linda 
Evans

Tai (Plaid Cymru)
Tai (Cyhoeddus a Phreifat); Cydraddoldeb; Materion Pobol Hŷn

Y Cynghorydd Jim 
Jones

Diogelu’r Cyhoedd a'r Amgylchedd (Annibynnol)
Gorfodi Materion Amgylcheddol; Sbwriel; Gwastraff Di-drwydded; Baw 
Cŵn; Gwasanaethau Parcio; Safonau Masnach; Iechyd yr Amgylchedd.

Y Cynghorydd Mair 
Stephens
 

Adnoddau Dynol, Effeithlonrwydd a Chydweithio 
(Annibynnol)
Adnoddau Dynol; Hyfforddiant; Compact Simpson; Cyllidebu ar Sail 
Blaenoriaeth; Y Tîm Effeithlonrwydd Corfforaethol; Hyrwyddwr yr Iaith 
Gymraeg; Llysgennad Cynghorau Tref a Chymuned.

Y Cynghorydd Jane 
Tremlett

Gofal Cymdeithasol ac Iechyd (Annibynnol)
Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol i Oedolion; Gofal Preswyl; Gofal Cartref; 
Anableddau Dysgu; Iechyd Meddwl;Cysylltu/ Cydweithredu/Integreiddio 
â'r GIG; Hyrwyddwr Gofalwyr; Llysgennad Anabledd; Hyrwyddwr Gofal 
Dementia; Hyrwyddwr 50+ a Chynrychiolydd Grwp Llywio



Tudalen 3

 

A G E N D A  

1. YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB 

2. DATGAN BUDDIANNAU PERSONOL 

3. LLOFNODI FEL COFNOD CYWIR COFNODION CYFARFOD Y 
BWRDD GWEITHREDOL A GYNHALWYD AR Y 22AIN RHAGFYR, 
2016 

5 - 26

4. CWESTIYNAU Â RHYBYDD GAN AELODAU 

5. CWESTIYNAU A RHYBYDD GAN Y CYHOEDD 

6. BARGEN DDINESIG BAE ABERTAWE 27 - 52

7. CYNLLUN STRATEGOL Y GYMRAEG MEWN ADDYSG 
(CSYGMA) 2017-2020 

53 - 86

8. MODEL GWEITHDREFN GALLUOGRWYDD AR GYFER 
ATHRAWON A PENAETHIAID 

87 - 140

9. MODEL POLISI CYFLOGAU ATHRAWON 2016/2017 141 - 184

10. FERSIYNAU DIWYGIEDIG O'R POLISI RHEOLI STRAEN, Y 
POLISI YSMYGU A'R POLISI CAMDDEFNYDDIO ALCOHOL A 
SYLWEDDAU 

185 - 226

11. ADRODDIAD MONITRO CYLLIDEB REFENIW Y CYNGOR 227 - 250

12. DIWEDDARU RHAGLEN GYFALAF 2016-17 251 - 260

13. UNRHYW FATER ARALL Y GALL Y CADEIRYDD OHERWYDD 
AMGYLCHIADAU ARBENNIG BENDERFYNU EI YSTYRIED YN 
FATER BRYS YN UNOL AG ADRAN 100B(4)(B) O DDEDDF 
LLYWODRAETH LEOL, 1972. 



Tudalen 4

14. GORCHYMYN I'R CYHOEDD ADAEL Y CYFARFOD 

NI DDYLID CYHOEDDI'R ADRODDIADAU SY'N YMWNEUD Â'R 
MATERION CANLYNOL GAN EU BOD YN CYNNWYS 
GWYBODAETH EITHRIEDIG FEL Y'I DIFFINIWYD YM 
MHARAGRAFFAU 14 & 17 O RAN 4 O ATODLEN 12A I DDEDDF 
LLYWODRAETH LEOL 1972 FEL Y'I DIWYGIWYD GAN 
ORCHYMYN LLYWODRAETH LEOL (MYNEDIAD AT 
WYBODAETH) (AMRYWIO) (CYMRU) 2007. OS BYDD Y BWRDD, 
AR ÔL CYNNAL PRAWF LLES Y CYHOEDD YN PENDERFYNU YN 
UNOL Â'R DDEDDF, I YSTYRIED Y MATERION HYN YN BREIFAT, 
GORCHMYNNIR I'R CYHOEDD ADAEL Y CYFARFOD YN YSTOD 
TRAFODAETH O'R FATH.

15. STRATEGAETH DERBYNIADAU CYFALAF 5 MLYNEDD (2015 - 
2020) - ADRODDIAD CYNNYDD 

261 - 278

16. GWERTHU HEN GARTREF GOFAL PRESWYL TEGFAN, 
RHYDAMAN 

279 - 286



Y BWRDD GWEITHREDOL

DYDD IAU, 22AIN RHAGFYR, 2016

YN BRESENNOL: Y Cynghorydd E. Dole [Cadeirydd]

Y Cynghorwyr: 
H.A.L. Evans, L.D. Evans, D.M. Jenkins, G.O. Jones, T.J. Jones, P.A. Palmer, 
L.M. Stephens a J. Tremlett

Yr oedd y swyddogion canlynol yn gwasanaethu yn y cyfarfod:
Mr M. Mark James - Y Prif Weithredwr
Mr C. Moore - Cyfarwyddwr y Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol
Mr J. Morgan - Cyfarwyddwr y Gwasanaethau Cymunedol
Ms R. Mullen - Cyfarwyddwr yr Amgylchedd
Mr G. Morgans - Cyfarwyddwr Addysg a Gwasanaethau Plant Dros Dro
Mr P. Thomas - Prif Weithredwr Cynorthwyol
Ms W. Walters - Prif Weithredwr Cynorthwyol
Ms L. Rees Jones - Pennaeth Gweinyddiaeth a’r Gyfraith
Mr J. Fearn - Pennaeth Cynnal a Chadw Eiddo ac Adeiladu
Mr S. Davies - Rheolwr Moderneiddio Ysgolion
Mrs D. Williams - Rheolwr Cynorthwyol Marchnata a'r Cyfryngau
Miss S. Griffiths - Hyfforddai Graddedig - Swyddog Prosiectau
Mrs M, Evans Thomas  - Pen-swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd 

Siambr, Neuadd y Sir, Caerfyrddin : 10.00 a.m. - 12.00 p.m.

1. YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB

Cafwyd ymddiheuriad am absenoldeb gan y Cynghorydd. M Gravell.

2. DATGAN BUDDIANNAU PERSONOL

Y Cynghorydd Rhif y Cofnod Y Math o Fuddiant
H.A.L. Evans 10 – Atal, Ymyrraeth 

gynnar a Hyrwyddo 
Byw'n Annibynnol 

Mae ei mam yn derbyn 
gwasanaethau gofal.

3. COFNODION - 21AIN TACHWEDD, 2016

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL lofnodi cofnodion cyfarfod y Bwrdd 
Gweithredol a gynhaliwyd ar 21 Tachwedd, 2016 yn gofnod cywir.

4. CWESTIYNAU Â RHYBYDD GAN AELODAU

Dywedodd y Cadeirydd nad oedd dim cwestiynau â rhybudd wedi cael eu cyflwyno 
gan yr Aelodau.  Fodd bynnag, roedd wedi cael gwybod gan y Cynghorwyr D.M. 
Cundy a J.S. Edmunds, eu bod yn dymuno gofyn cwestiwn ynghylch eitem 6 ar yr 
agenda, a byddai'r rhain yn cael sylw o dan yr eitem briodol yn ddiweddarach yn y 
cyfarfod.

5. CWESTIYNAU A RHYBYDD GAN Y CYHOEDD

Tudalen 5

Eitem Rhif  3



5.1. CWESTIWN GAN MR ROBERT WILLOCK I'R CYNGHORYDD GARETH 
JONES, AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL DROS ADDYSG A 
PHLANT:-

“Yn ein cyfarfod cyntaf gyda chi'r llynedd, dywedoch fod 30% o wersi yn Gymraeg 
yn ormod i'r plant Saesneg. Fel addysgwr, sut ydych wedi dod i'r casgliad y bydd 
trochi plant yn llwyr yn eu hiaith wanaf yn fwy buddiol i'r plant na dysgu Cymraeg 
ail iaith?”

Ymateb gan y Cynghorydd Gareth. Jones, yr Aelod o'r Bwrdd Gweithredol 
dros Addysg a Phlant:-

"Bydd y penderfyniad terfynol yn seiliedig ar sail y rhinweddau addysgol a lles 
pennaf y dysgwyr."

Gofynnodd Mr Willcock y cwestiwn atodol canlynol:-

"Rwyf am dynnu eich sylw at adroddiad Unesco Achub y Plant ar Iaith ac Addysg - 
The Missing Link 2016, sy'n nodi yn gwbl i'r gwrthwyneb o ran y broses drochi. 
Mae iaith y cartref, lle mae 70% o'r cartrefi yn Llangennech yn siarad Saesneg, yn 
cael ei adnabod fel y famiaith. Ac os yw'r iaith bwysicaf yn cael ei disodli gan ail 
iaith mae'n niweidiol i addysg tymor hir y plentyn. Rydym yma heddiw i roi'r addysg 
orau i'n plant. Os nad ydych wedi darllen yr adroddiad hwn, a fyddech cystal ag 
atal y Bwrdd hyd nes i chi fod yn agored i'r wybodaeth a chael barn gytbwys." 

Ymatebodd y Cynghorydd Jones fel a ganlyn:-

"Tynnwyd fy sylw at yr adroddiad yn ystod yr wythnos diwethaf.  Mae’r dystiolaeth 
ryngwladol, fel y dyfynnir gan Lywodraeth Cymru, yn cadarnhau mai’r ffordd fwyaf 
effeithiol i ddatblygu plant dwyieithog yw eu trochi yn yr iaith sy’n llai cyffredin wrth 
ddatblygu hefyd eu sgiliau yn yr iaith sy’n fwy cyffredin.  Hefyd mae Llywodraeth 
Cymru yn hyrwyddo, yn achos plant sydd o deuluoedd di-Gymraeg, fod trochi 
plant yn y Gymraeg yn hynod o bwysig er mwyn gwreiddio’r iaith.”

5.2. CWESTIWN GAN MS NIKKI LLOYD I'R CYNGHORYDD GARETH 
JONES, AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL DROS ADDYSG A 
PHLANT:-

Dywedodd y Cadeirydd nad oedd Ms Lloyd yn gallu bod yn bresennol yn y 
cyfarfod heddiw ond gofynnwyd iddo ofyn y cwestiwn ar ei rhan. 

“Cynhaliwyd cynllun peilot gan yr Ysgol i ymchwilio i drochi disgyblion yn y 
Gymraeg mewn dosbarthiadau derbyn. Rydym wedi gwneud cais am 
ganlyniadau'r cynllun peilot hwn gan yr Ysgol a'r Cyngor Sir o dan Ddeddf Rhyddid 
Gwybodaeth 2000. Fodd bynnag, rydym yn dal i aros am y canlyniadau hyn. Adeg 
y cynllun peilot hwn, dim ond y rhieni oedd yn y cyfarfod yn yr Ysgol gafodd wybod 
amdano, ac ni ddosbarthwyd unrhyw lythyrau dilynol. Dylai'r dystiolaeth a 
ganfuwyd o'r cynllun peilot hwn fod wedi cael ei chasglu a'i chyflwyno gyda'r 
cynnig. Yr unig bryd cawsom wybod am y cynllun peilot oedd pan roddwyd 
gwybodaeth inni drwy Ryddid Gwybodaeth, ac nid yw'r wybodaeth wedi cael ei 
chyhoeddi. Nid yw'r dystiolaeth a'r canlyniadau wedi cael eu cyflwyno gyda'r 
cynnig, ac nid yw'n hysbys a oes galw gwirioneddol am newid. Yn ôl y Côd 
Trefniadaeth Ysgolion, dylid asesu'r galw am ddarpariaeth ychwanegol o unrhyw 

Tudalen 6



fath mewn ardal a dangos tystiolaeth ar ei gyfer. O edrych ar y sefyllfa bresennol 
yn Ysgolion Llangennech, ar hyn o bryd mae 121 o blant o'r tu allan i'r dalgylch yn 
dod i Ysgol Llangennech, ac, ar yr un pryd, mae 111 o blant yn gadael y pentref i 
gael addysg (mae 20 o'r disgyblion hyn wedi gadael yn y misoedd diwethaf o 
ganlyniad i'r cynnig hwn a'r ansicrwydd). Mae'n amlwg bod y ffactorau hyn wedi 
cael eu hanwybyddu. Pam nad oes asesiad digonol o'r galw wedi cael ei gynnal?”

Ymateb gan y Cynghorydd Gareth. Jones, yr Aelod o'r Bwrdd Gweithredol 
dros Addysg a Phlant:-

“Mae'r Ddogfen Ymgynghori a'r broses ymgynghori wedi cael eu cynnal yn unol â'r 
Côd Trefniadaeth Ysgolion statudol.  Mae Rhan 4 o Ddeddf Safonau a 
Threfniadaeth Ysgolion (Cymru) 2013 yn ei gwneud yn ofynnol i awdurdodau lleol 
baratoi Cynllun Strategol Cymraeg mewn Addysg yn nodi sut y byddant yn 
cyflawni eu swyddogaethau addysg gyda golwg benodol ar wella'r modd y mae'r 
ddarpariaeth addysg drwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg yn cael ei chynllunio a chodi'r 
safonau o ran addysg cyfrwng Cymraeg ac addysgu Cymraeg.  Mae Adran 86 o'r 
Ddeddf yn nodi y gallai Gweinidogion Llywodraeth Cymru ofyn i awdurdodau lleol, 
yn unol â'r rheoliadau, gynnal asesiad o'r galw am addysg cyfrwng Cymraeg 
ymhlith rhieni'r ardal ar gyfer eu plant.  Mae'r Cynlluniau Strategol Cymraeg mewn 
Addysg a Rheoliadau Asesu'r Galw am Addysg drwy Gyfrwng y Gymraeg (Cymru) 
2013 yn nodi sut y dylai awdurdod lleol fynd ati i gynnal asesiad addysg cyfrwng 
Cymraeg, petai hyn yn ofynnol gan Weinidogion Llywodraeth Cymru.  Hyd yn hyn, 
nid yw Llywodraeth Cymru wedi gofyn i Gyngor Sir Caerfyrddin ymgymryd ag 
asesiad addysg cyfrwng Cymraeg.  Gan fod gennym ganran uchel o ddysgwyr 
sy'n cael addysg cyfrwng Cymraeg nid yw'n ofynnol arnom yn ôl y gyfraith i fesur y 
galw.  Mae'r Cynllun Strategol Cymraeg mewn Addysg Sir Gaerfyrddin wedi cael 
ei gymeradwyo'n ffurfiol gan Lywodraeth Cymru.  Mae'r cynnydd graddol yn nifer y 
disgyblion yn y ffrwd Gymraeg a'r gostyngiad yn y nifer y disgyblion yn y ffrwd 
Saesneg yn ysgolion Llangennech dros y blynyddoedd diwethaf, yn dangos yn glir 
bod galw cynyddol am addysg cyfrwng Cymraeg yn yr ardal.”  

5.3. CWESTIWN GAN MRS MICHAELA BEDDOWS I'R CYNGHORYDD 
GARETH JONES, AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL DROS 
ADDYSG A PHLANT:-

Dywedodd y Cadeirydd nad oedd Mrs Beddows yn gallu bod yn bresennol yn y 
cyfarfod heddiw ond gofynnwyd iddo ofyn y cwestiwn ar ei rhan. 

“Mewn cyfarfod blaenorol o'r Pwyllgor Craffu, dywedodd Mr Sully mai ei fwriad 
oedd newid yr holl ysgolion Dwy Ffrwd yn rhai cyfrwng Cymraeg a newid yr holl 
ysgolion cyfrwng Saesneg yn rhai Dwy Ffrwd ac yn y blaen....Bydd hyn yn arwain 
at waredu'r holl ysgolion cyfrwng Saesneg sydd yn Sir Gaerfyrddin yn y pen draw.  
A allwch gadarnhau ai hwn hefyd yw cynllun addysg yr Awdurdod yn y tymor hir?”

Ymatebodd y Cynghorydd Gareth Jones, yr Aelod o'r Bwrdd Gweithredol 
dros Addysg a Phlant fel a ganlyn:-

“Mae gan Gyngor Sir Caerfyrddin gyfrifoldeb statudol o dan Ran 4 o Ddeddf 
Safonau a Threfniadaeth Ysgolion (Cymru) 2013 i lunio Cynllun Strategol y 
Gymraeg mewn Addysg ar gyfer ei ardal gyda golwg benodol ar wella'r modd y 
cynllunnir darparu addysg drwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg er mwyn codi'r safonau o ran 
addysgu ac o ran dysgu Cymraeg.  Mae dau Gynllun Strategol Cymraeg mewn 

Tudalen 7



Addysg diwethaf Sir Gaerfyrddin wedi cael eu derbyn gan Weinidog Cymru a 
Chyngor Sir Caerfyrddin.  Yn ôl y Cynllun mae'n ofynnol i holl ysgolion cynradd Sir 
Gaerfyrddin, gan gynnwys yr ysgolion cyfrwng Saesneg, symud ar hyd y 
continwwm iaith, gan barhau i gynyddu cyfran yr addysg sy'n cael ei ddarparu 
drwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg, gyda golwg ar sicrhau ymhen amser y bydd yr holl blant 
yn gwbl ddwyieithog wrth adael yr ysgol gyda defnydd o ddwy iaith o leiaf.”

5.4. CWESTIWN GAN MR STEVE HATTO I'R CYNGHORYDD GARETH 
JONES, AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL DROS ADDYSG A 
PHLANT:-

“Yn ôl adroddiad diweddaraf PISA, mae Cymru'n dal y tu ôl i weddill y DU mewn 
Mathemateg, Gwyddoniaeth a Saesneg. Gallai'r ffaith nad yw plant yn cael eu 
haddysgu yn eu hiaith gyntaf fod yn rheswm uniongyrchol dros hyn. Ni fydd plant 
nad ydynt mor ddisglair yn academaidd yn cyrraedd eu potensial llawn os nad 
ydynt yn deall yn llawn y wers sy'n cael ei dysgu ac os na fydd rhieni'n gallu eu 
helpu gartref. A yw Cyngor Sir Caerfyrddin yn credu bod hyrwyddo'r Gymraeg i'r 
fath raddau ar draul safon ein haddysg yn aberth gwerth ei wneud?”

Ymatebodd y Cynghorydd Gareth Jones, yr Aelod o'r Bwrdd Gweithredol 
dros Addysg a Phlant fel a ganlyn:-

 “Mae blaenoriaeth genedlaethol yng Nghymru, a arddelir gan Gyngor Sir 
Caerfyrddin, i gynyddu nifer y bobl yn ein cymunedau sy'n gallu siarad Cymraeg 
ac sy'n defnyddio'r iaith wrth fyw eu bywydau beunyddiol.  Ystyrir bod ysgolion yn 
elfen hanfodol bwysig yn natblygiad plant er mwyn iddyn nhw fod yn gwbl 
ddwyieithog erbyn eu bod yn gadael yr ysgol gynradd.  Nid ydym yn derbyn bod 
addysg drwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg yn arwain at safonau a chanlyniadau is. Mae 
profion PISA yn profi ystod o sgiliau a doniau ac maent yn cael eu gweinyddu yn 
yr iaith y mae'r plentyn yn astudio.  Yn anffodus nid oes canlyniadau ar gael o ran 
lefelau Cyngor Sir Caerfyrddin na lefel canlyniadau unigol ac felly mae'n amhosibl 
canfod sut y gwnaeth disgyblion Sir Gaerfyrddin berfformio yn y profion hyn.”

Gofynnodd Mr Hatto y cwestiwn atodol canlynol:-

"Mae ymchwil wedi dangos bod plant sy'n cael eu haddysgu yn Gymraeg sy'n dod 
o gartrefi lle siaredir Cymraeg yn fwy tebygol o gyrraedd eu potensial. Nid yw plant 
o gartrefi lle siaredir Saesneg yn cyrraedd eu llawn botensial pan fyddant yn cael 
eu haddysgu yn gyfan gwbl yn Gymraeg.  Mae'r Athro Angelina Kioko, mewn 
astudiaeth o Affrica yn nodi bod defnyddio iaith cartref y plentyn yn fwy buddiol i'w 
addysg yn hytrach na defnyddio ail iaith.  Ar ôl gweithio am 20 mlynedd mewn 
colegau yn Abertawe a Llanelli, byddem yn gofyn bob blwyddyn i fyfyrwyr a oedd 
yn dod o ysgolion uwchradd Cymraeg a oeddent yn dymuno cael eu haddysgu yn 
Gymraeg, a doedd neb yn derbyn y cynnig, byth. A yw'r Cyngor yn cytuno bod yr 
achos a nodir gan yr Athro Kioko yn wir?"

Ymatebodd y Cynghorydd Jones fel a ganlyn:-

"Nid wyf yn gyfarwydd â'r ymchwil fy hun, ond byddaf yn ymchwilio iddo erbyn y 
cyfarfod nesaf a bydd gennyf well ateb ar eich cyfer."

Tudalen 8



5.5. CWESTIWN GAN MRS JULIA REES I'R CYNGHORYDD GARETH 
JONES, AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL DROS ADDYSG A 
PHLANT:-

“Fel rhiant plentyn â gofynion dysgu ychwanegol, yn amlwg rwy'n teimlo'n gryf 
iawn ynghylch yr hyn sy'n digwydd yma heddiw. Cafodd fy mab ei osod gan 
Gyngor Sir Caerfyrddin mewn canolfan asesu tymor byr, un o blith 3 yn unig yn Sir 
Gaerfyrddin. Cafodd ei osod yno i asesu ei ofynion cyn ei ryddhau i addysg brif 
ffrwd fel nifer o blant eraill bob blwyddyn. Mae'r 3 canolfan asesu hyn yn addysgu 
drwy gyfrwng y Saesneg ac nid oes canolfan gyfatebol Gymraeg yn Sir 
Gaerfyrddin. Fel sydd wedi cael ei nodi o'r blaen, dywedwyd wrthym mai nod y 
cyngor yw dirwyn yr holl addysg drwy gyfrwng y Saesneg i ben erbyn 2022, ac mai 
rhan o'r cynllun hirdymor hwn yn unig yw Ysgol Llangennech. Sut gall y cyngor 
ddirwyn addysg drwy gyfrwng y Saesneg i ben yn y sir pan gaiff llawer o blant bob 
blwyddyn eu gosod gan arbenigwyr y Sir yn y canolfannau asesu Saesneg eu 
hiaith hyn, os na fydd ysgolion Saesneg y gallant gael eu rhyddhau iddynt ar ôl eu 
hasesu?”

Ymatebodd y Cynghorydd Gareth Jones, yr Aelod o'r Bwrdd Gweithredol 
dros Addysg a Phlant fel a ganlyn:-

“Mae Cyngor Sir Caerfyrddin yn darparu ar gyfer dysgwyr ag Anghenion Dysgu 
Ychwanegol yn y Gymraeg a'r Saesneg.  Mae'r holwr yn gywir yn nodi bod tair 
Canolfan Arsylwi ac Asesu o fewn y Sir. Fodd bynnag, er bod dwy o'r canolfannau 
hyn yn addysgu trwy gyfrwng y Saesneg, mae'r ganolfan yn Ysgol Bro Banw yn 
addysgu'n ddwyieithog.  Mae gennym hefyd uned cyfrwng Cymraeg yn Ysgol 
Nantgaredig. Mae'n ofynnol i holl ysgolion cynradd yn Sir Gaerfyrddin, gan 
gynnwys ysgolion cyfrwng Saesneg, yn ôl y polisi Cymraeg mewn Addysg, symud 
ar hyd y continwwm iaith, gan barhau i gynyddu cyfran yr addysg sy'n cael ei 
ddarparu drwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg, gyda golwg ar sicrhau ymhen amser bod yr 
holl blant yn gwbl ddwyieithog wrth adael yr ysgol. Mae'r disgwyliad o ran cynnydd 
yn berthnasol i'r holl ysgolion, fodd bynnag bydd pa mor gyflym y gall ysgolion 
ehangu dwyieithrwydd ac addysg cyfrwng Cymraeg yn dibynnu ar amgylchiadau 
lleol.  Er ei bod yn ofynnol i ysgolion cynradd symud ar hyd y continwwm iaith yn ôl 
y Cynllun Strategol Cymraeg mewn Addysg, nid yw'n fwriad gan Gyngor Sir 
Caerfyrddin ddirwyn addysg cyfrwng Saesneg i ben erbyn 2022.”

Gofynnodd Mrs Rees y cwestiwn atodol canlynol:-

"Mi wnaethoch chi ddweud fod addysg ddwyieithog ym Mro Banw, ond pan wnes i 
siarad â'r ysgol cefais wybod nad trochi yn y Gymraeg sydd ar gael, ac mewn 
gwirionedd mae'n rhyw fath o gyfuniad felly nid oes proses drochi yn yr ysgol. 
Siaradais hefyd ag Ysgol Nantgaredig a dywedwyd wrthyf oherwydd bod hyn yn 
rhan o'r brif ysgol gynradd, dim ond plant o'r ardal gyfagos leol sy'n gallu cael 
mynediad ac nid yr ardal ehangach.  Felly does dim gobaith i blant fel fy mab a 
gafodd ei roi mewn ysgol cyfrwng Cymraeg ond yna ei symud gan y Cyngor i 
ganolfan asesu sydd yn uniaith Saesneg.  Beth ydych chi'n mynd i wneud am 
sefyllfa debyg yn y dyfodol?"  

Ymatebodd y Cynghorydd Jones fel a ganlyn:-

"Rydym wedi siarad am hyn eisoes. Bydd yr ateb yn cael ei ddarparu yn y llythyr y 
gwnaethom drafod yn ystod y cyfarfod blaenorol hwnnw.  Mae'r ganolfan yn 

Tudalen 9



Nantgaredig yn darparu ar gyfer ardal fawr.  Nid yw wedi'i chyfyngu o ran pa 
ardaloedd y mae'r plant yn teithio."

5.6. CWESTIWN GAN MR DEAN BOLGIANI I'R CYNGHORYDD GARETH 
JONES, AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL DROS ADDYSG A 
PHLANT:-

“Yn ôl gwybodaeth a ddaeth i law yn ddiweddar o dan Ddeddf Rhyddid 
Gwybodaeth 2000, mae Ysgolion Bryn a Bynea eisoes wedi gwrthod ceisiadau am 
le yn yr ysgolion, er gwaethaf y ffaith y dywedwyd wrthym mewn cyfarfodydd 
blaenorol nad oedd yr ysgolion yn llawn. Yn yr Hendy y mae'r Ysgol Cyfrwng 
Saesneg agosaf, ac nid oes ganddi lwybr diogel i'r ysgol. Rydych wedi rhoi 
gwybod inni drwy gydol yr ymgynghoriad hwn nad yw'n fwriad gan yr Awdurdod i 
unrhyw blentyn adael Ysgol Llangennech, ond mae'n amlwg eich bod eisoes wedi 
gyrru rhai plant ymaith a diflannodd y croeso pan ddatganodd Cadeirydd y 
Llywodraethwyr yn agored fod plant sy'n siarad Saesneg yn niweidiol i addysg 
plant sy'n siarad Cymraeg. Os gwaredir addysg drwy gyfrwng y Saesneg o 
Langennech, gwaredir hefyd y rhyddid sydd gan rieni i ddewis. A fyddech cystal ag 
ateb y cwestiwn y tro hwn a dweud ble yr ydych yn mynd i ddarparu ar gyfer 
disgyblion sy'n ceisio Addysg drwy Gyfrwng y Saesneg, gan na fydd ar gael 
mwyach yn Llangennech ar gyfer y sawl sy'n ei cheisio?”

Ymatebodd y Cynghorydd Gareth Jones, yr Aelod o'r Bwrdd Gweithredol 
dros Addysg a Phlant fel a ganlyn:-

“Nid yw'r Cyngor Sir yn cynnig dewisiadau eraill heblaw ysgol Llangennech ar 
gyfer y plant lleol.  Rydym yn parhau o'r farn bod modd diwallu anghenion yr holl 
ddysgwyr yn Ysgol Llangennech.  Dymuniad yr Awdurdod Lleol yw bod yr holl 
ddisgyblion presennol yn aros yn yr ysgol a bod y plant lleol yn y dyfodol yn 
mynychu ysgol eu pentref gan dderbyn eu haddysg drwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg yn 
bennaf, a bod Saesneg yn bwnc a addysgir yng Nghyfnod Allweddol 2 ac yn 
gyfrwng dysgu ar gyfer rhai gwersi eraill yn ystod y blynyddoedd olaf yn yr ysgol. 
Nod Cyngor Sir Caerfyrddin yw bod yr holl blant yn gwbl ddwyieithog erbyn iddynt 
adael yr ysgol gynradd gyda mynediad at ragor o gyfleoedd a dewisiadau pan 
fyddant yn gadael yr ysgol.  Yr unig rwymedigaeth sydd ar y Cyngor Sir o ran 
hwyluso dewis y rhieni yw pan fo'r dewis hwnnw'n gyson â darparu addysg mewn 
modd effeithiol a defnyddio adnoddau'n effeithlon. Nid oes gan yr un rhiant hawl i 
fynnu lle mewn ysgol benodol i'w blentyn neu i'w blant.  Caiff y lleoedd yn yr 
ysgolion eu dyrannu ar sail polisi derbyn disgyblion cyhoeddedig y Cyngor, sy'n 
ffafrio bod plant yn mynychu eu hysgol leol neu ysgol ddynodedig.  Ar gais y rhieni 
caiff plant eu derbyn mewn ysgol heblaw eu hysgol ddynodedig a hynny pan fo 
lleoedd ar gael ac yn unol â'r meini prawf o ran goralw yn y polisi derbyn 
disgyblion cyhoeddedig.  Yn rhinwedd ei swyddogaeth fel yr Awdurdod Derbyn ar 
gyfer ysgolion yn Sir Gaerfyrddin, mae'r Cyngor yn ddiduedd ac yn gyfreithiol ni all 
gynghori rhieni ynghylch y dewis o ysgol ar gyfer eu plant. Mae'r llyfryn Derbyn i 
Ysgolion - Gwybodaeth Rieni yn rhoi'r holl wybodaeth sydd ei hangen ar rieni i'w 
helpu i ddewis ysgol, e.e. dewis iaith, ysgolion ffydd ac ati. Mae Lleol-i hefyd ar 
gael i helpu i ganfod yr ysgolion perthnasol wrth nodi cyfeiriad a chôd post cartref 
yr ymgeisydd.  Mae nifer y lleoedd sydd ar gael mewn ysgolion yn gyfnewidiol 
iawn a gall newid yn ddyddiol. Mae'r galw am leoedd mewn nifer o ysgolion llawer 
yn uwch na'r nifer o leoedd sydd ar gael.”

Tudalen 10



Gofynnodd Mr Bolgiani y cwestiwn atodol canlynol:-

"Yn ystod y broses hirfaith hon mae Mr Sully wedi son am ddalgylchoedd ysgolion.  
Hyd yn oed yn ystod y cyfarfod craffu diwethaf, mynegodd Mr Sully bryderon fy 
mod wedi dosbarthu holiadur gwrthwynebiad yn y Bryn a oedd allan o'r ardal yn ôl 
Mr Sully.  Yn dilyn cais Rhyddid Gwybodaeth mae'n ymddangos nad oedd gan 
456 o'r holiaduron a oedd o blaid enwau strydoedd na chodau post a dim 32 oedd 
wedi dod i law mewn gwirionedd o Langennech. Os felly, a fyddech cystal â 
chadarnhau fod y ffurflenni o blaid wedi cael eu tynnu yn ôl oherwydd eu bod allan 
o'r dalgylch sef LL16 Sir Ddinbych, LL58 Ynys Môn, CF35 Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr, 
CG71 Pont-y-pŵl, CF36 Porthcawl, SA32 and SA31 Caerfyrddin, SA17 
Cydweli/Glanyfferi, SA4 Abertawe a SA18 Rhydaman/Glanaman.”

Ymatebodd y Cynghorydd Jones fel a ganlyn:-

"Mae'n rhaid ystyried yr holl lythyron sy'n dod i law oherwydd mai dyma farn 
bersonol y bobl hyn."

5.7. CWESTIWN GAN MRS KAREN HUGHES I'R CYNGHORYDD GARETH 
JONES, AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL DROS ADDYSG A 
PHLANT:-

“Aelodau o gymuned Llangennech yw'r 'KeepDualStreamCommittee', sydd wedi 
rhoi eu hamser a'u harian yn wirfoddol i sicrhau bod llais gan y mwyafrif yn 
Llangennech. Hyd yn hyn, atebion megis 'Mae'n rhaid gwneud hynny oherwydd 
Cynllun Strategol y Gymraeg mewn Addysg' neu 'Mae Cyngor Sir Caerfyrddin yn 
gwybod beth sydd orau o ran addysg eich plentyn' neu 'Does dim galw am Ffrwd 
Ddeuol' sydd wedi cael eu rhoi i unrhyw gwestiynau. Yn syml, datganiadau 
damcaniaethol, camarweiniol, nad ydynt yn rhai ffeithiol yw'r rhain ac maent yn 
profi nad oes sylw'n cael ei roi i'r materion sy'n cyfrif go iawn. Methir cydnabod hyd 
yn oed bryderon ynghylch plant ag anableddau, galluoedd dysgu, dyfodiad 
rhaniadau cymdeithasol, traffig cynyddol trwy Langennech wrth i blant gael eu 
cludo yno ac oddi yno yn ddianghenraid i gael addysg yn eu dewis iaith, ynghyd 
ag effeithiau niweidiol ar yr amgylchedd ac ar hyrwyddo ffordd o fyw iach. Hefyd 
rhaid inni beidio ag anghofio'r effaith negyddol ar yr iaith Gymraeg ei hun, yr oedd 
y rhan fwyaf o'r rhieni'n ei chroesawu gan fod Llangennech wedi bod yn gefnogol 
bob amser o'r diwylliant, y dreftadaeth a'r iaith. Rydym yn syfrdan nad oes un o'r 
ffactorau hyn yn rhan o'r Asesiad Cymunedol, er bod angen cyfreithiol i roi 
'ystyriaeth ddyledus' iddynt. Mae'n ymddangos mai ymarfer ticio bocsys yn unig yw 
hwn ac nad oes neb yn ei gymryd o ddifrif nac yn darparu atebion y gellir eu 
gweithredu. Yn hytrach mae'r Cynllun Strategol Cymraeg mewn Addysg yn cael ei 
ddefnyddio fel dull i amddiffyn yr hyn a wneir.  Mae'n eironig mai diben yr Asesiad 
Cymunedol yw llywio'r Cynllun Strategol Cymraeg mewn Addysg a thynnu sylw at 
risgiau er mwyn sicrhau bod yr hyn a weithredir yn addas at y diben. Ni 
chofnodwyd dim o'r materion a godwyd gan y Gymuned yn eich asesiadau risg. O 
ganlyniad, rhaid gofyn beth yw diben cynnal yr ymgynghoriad hwn pan mae'r rhan 
fwyaf o'r barnau a'r pryderon yn cael eu hanwybyddu. A allwch egluro'r rhesymau 
dros anwybyddu proses wybodus a ddemocrataidd ar gyfer gwneud 
penderfyniadau, a sut y gallwch weld hyn yn rhywbeth positif?”

Ymatebodd y Cynghorydd Gareth Jones, yr Aelod o'r Bwrdd Gweithredol 
dros Addysg a Phlant fel a ganlyn:-

Tudalen 11



“Mae'r ddogfen ymgynghori wedi cael ei pharatoi; ac mae'r broses ymgynghori a'r 
cyfnod ymgynghori statudol wedi cael eu cynnal yn unol â'r Côd Trefniadaeth 
Ysgolion statudol.  Mae'n rhaid i ni ddilyn y broses honno.  Mae Cyngor Sir 
Caerfyrddin wedi cytuno i gymeradwyo cynigion mewn perthynas ag ad-drefnu 
ysgolion.  Cyn dechrau'r cyfnod ymgynghori ar 25 Ionawr 2016, cafodd y Ddogfen 
Ymgynghori ei hystyried gan y Pwyllgor Craffu - Addysg a Phlant a'r Bwrdd 
Gweithredol a rhoddwyd caniatâd i ymgynghori.  Yn dilyn diwedd y cyfnod 
ymgynghori ar 18 Mawrth 2016, paratowyd adroddiad ymgynghori yn cynnwys yr 
holl sylwadau a ddaeth i law gan gynnwys yr holl sylwadau cefnogol a'r 
gwrthwynebiadau mewn ymateb i'r cyfnod ymgynghori.  Yn ogystal roedd yr 
adroddiad hwn yn cynnwys ymateb Estyn a'r Ysgol i'r cynnig.  Cafodd yr 
Adroddiad Ymgynghori ei gyflwyno i'r Pwyllgor Craffu - Addysg a Phlant a'r Bwrdd 
Gweithredol ac ystyriwyd cynnwys yr adroddiad.  Ym mis Gorffennaf 2016, 
rhoddodd y Bwrdd Gweithredol ganiatâd i gyhoeddi'r cynnig drwy Hysbysiad 
Statudol.  Cafodd yr Hysbysiad Statudol ei gyhoeddi ar 5 Medi, 2016.  Yn dilyn 
hyn, mae adroddiad gwrthwynebu wedi cael ei baratoi yn cynnwys yr holl 
wrthwynebiadau a'r sylwadau cefnogol a dderbyniwyd mewn ymateb i'r Hysbysiad 
Statudol ac ymatebion yr awdurdod lleol i'r sylwadau hyn. Cafodd yr adroddiad ei 
gyflwyno i'r Pwyllgor Craffu Addysg a Phlant ar 21 Tachwedd, 2016 ac yn y pen 
draw bydd yn cael ei gyflwyno i'r Cyngor Sir er mwyn iddo wneud penderfyniad.  
Yn ystod pob cam o'r broses, mae pob adroddiad wedi cael ei ystyried yn ofalus 
gan aelodau cyn gwneud penderfyniad i symud ymlaen.  Drwy gydol y broses, 
mae'r Adran wedi ymateb i geisiadau ac wedi rhannu gohebiaeth â phartïon sydd 
â diddordeb a hynny gan fod yn agored ac yn dryloyw.”       

Gofynnodd Mrs Hughes y cwestiwn atodol canlynol:-

"Rwy'n credu y gallwn gytuno mai amcan yr ymgynghoriad a'r Asesiad o'r Effaith 
ar y Gymuned yw sicrhau bod yr ymgyngoreion yn gallu llunio a dylanwadu ar y 
cynnig. Y disgwyliad yw bod modd clywed yn glir y rheiny yr effeithir arnynt fwyaf.  
Yn dilyn cais Rhyddid Gwybodaeth a ddarparwyd gennych, mae'n amlwg o fewn 
pentref Llangennech bod dros 700 yn gwrthwynebu'r cynigion hyn a dim ond 32 yn 
eu cefnogi. Mae'r cynnig hwn yn broblematig iawn heb fawr ddim cefnogaeth ac er 
mwyn i'r ymgynghoriad hwn fod yn effeithiol, mae angen ystyried y safbwyntiau 
hyn. A fyddech cystal â dangos sut yr ydych wedi diwygio eich cynigion yn ôl yr 
ymatebion er mwyn sicrhau nad yw'r 95% o wrthwynebwyr y pentref yn cael eu 
hanwybyddu.  Bydd methiant i wneud hyn yn dangos nad yw eich meddwl yn 
agored ac o ganlyniad mae'r broses ymgynghori wedi methu."  

Ymatebodd y Cynghorydd Jones fel a ganlyn:-

"Fel y gwnes i sôn eisoes, mae'n rhaid i ni ystyried yr holl ymgynghoriadau a 
anfonwyd atom, ac rwy'n gwybod nad ydych yn hapus â'r sefyllfa, ond yn anffodus 
nid oes dim y gallaf ei wneud am y rhan hon o'r broses. Heb os bydd hyn yn cael 
ei ychwanegu at y dystiolaeth sydd wedi cael ei chynhyrchu ac mae'n bwysig eich 
bod wedi cael y cyfle i leisio eich barn unwaith eto y bore hwn."

5.8. CWESTIWN GAN MR NIGEL HUGHES I'R CYNGHORYDD GARETH 
JONES, AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL DROS ADDYSG A 
PHLANT:-

“Bydd cael gwared ar y ffrwd ddeuol yn Llangennech yn cael effaith anferthol o ran 
annog pobl broffesiynol nad ydynt yn siarad Cymraeg i beidio â symud i'r ardal.  

Tudalen 12



Os oes ganddynt blant sydd wedi cael eu haddysg yn Saesneg yn eu blynyddoedd 
cynnar, maent yn annhebygol o symud i'r ardal.  Bydd hyn yn cael effaith andwyol 
ar brisiau tai a buddsoddiadau o'r tu allan i'r sir. Mae fel petai strategaeth hirdymor 
Cyngor Sir Caerfyrddin am greu sir lle caiff pobl eu hynysu a'u gwahanu. A allwch 
egluro sut ydych yn bwriadu denu busnesau a doniau newydd i'r sir pan fyddwch 
ond yn addysgu plant mewn un o ddwy iaith gydnabyddedig Cymru, heb roi dewis 
i deuluoedd?  Dyma gamsyniad arall gan y cynghorwyr lleol a ysgrifennodd y 
Cynllun Strategol Cymraeg mewn Addysg, nad yw wedi ystyried yr effeithiau 
hirdymor yn ôl pob tebyg.”

Ymatebodd y Cynghorydd Gareth Jones, yr Aelod o'r Bwrdd Gweithredol 
dros Addysg a Phlant fel a ganlyn:-

“Eisoes mae nifer o ysgolion cyfrwng Cymraeg yn Sir Gaerfyrddin yn darparu 
addysg yn llwyddiannus i ddisgyblion o gefndiroedd Saesneg/eraill gyda disgyblion 
yn llwyddo.  Mae'r dystiolaeth ar gyfer ysgolion Llangennech yn cadarnhau bod 
plant o gartrefi di-Gymraeg sydd yn y ffrwd Gymraeg yn cael canlyniadau cyson 
dda yn yr holl bynciau, gan gynnwys Saesneg.  Bydd yr addysg yn Ysgol 
Llangennech yn ddwyieithog a bydd Saesneg yn cael ei addysgu fel pwnc yng 
Nghyfnod Allweddol 2 ac yn cael ei ddefnyddio fel cyfrwng addysgu mewn rhai 
gwersi eraill yn ystod blynyddoedd olaf yr ysgol ynghyd â'r iaith Gymraeg.  Nod 
Cyngor Sir Caerfyrddin yw y bydd disgyblion yn gwbl ddwyieithog yn y Gymraeg 
a'r Saesneg pan fyddant yn symud i'r ysgol uwchradd.  Mae Cyngor Sir 
Caerfyrddin yn ystyried yr iaith Gymraeg yn fantais ac yn sgil allweddol ar gyfer 
cael gwaith yn Sir Gaerfyrddin a Chymru oherwydd gydag amser bydd 
dwyieithrwydd yn sgìl mwyfwy pwysig yn y byd gwaith.  Er enghraifft, mae'r holl 
sefydliadau cyhoeddus yng Nghymru yn gorfod cydymffurfio â safonau statudol 
newydd o ran y Gymraeg, a thros gyfnod bydd mwyfwy o angen iddynt benodi 
nifer gynyddol o siaradwyr Cymraeg i ddarparu eu gwasanaethau.  Gydag amser 
bydd meddu ar sgiliau Cymraeg yn rhoi mwyfwy o fantais gystadleuol i unigolion 
wrth chwilio am waith.”

Gofynnodd Mr Hughes y cwestiwn atodol canlynol:-

"Fel y dywedais, mae gan Gymru ddwy iaith gydnabyddedig, Cymraeg a Saesneg. 
Rwy'n credu nad ydych yn rhoi digon o bwyslais ar bwysigrwydd cael addysg dda 
yn Saesneg.  Yn y byd economaidd modern hwn mae Saesneg yn cael ei 
chydnabod yn iaith fusnes dros 2 biliwn o siaradwyr, ac mae'n hanfodol i ddyfodol 
economaidd a chymdeithasol plant yng Nghymru. Sut y gallwch chi ystyried bod 
cael ei gwared yn fuddiol pan fo gwledydd eraill yn ceisio ei defnyddio mwy a 
mwy?"

Ymatebodd y Cynghorydd Jones fel a ganlyn:-

"Nid ydym yn ceisio cael gwared ar Saesneg fel pwnc yn Ysgol Llangennech nac o 
fewn y sir. Mae'n bwysig iawn, iawn a bydd hefyd angen Saesneg arnoch fel sgil 
cyflogaeth allweddol.  Wrth fod yn ddwyieithog bydd yn ychwanegu at y 
manteision sydd gan y plant hyn eisoes."

5.9. CWESTIWN GAN MR PHILLIP WILLOCK I'R CYNGHORYDD GARETH 
JONES, AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL DROS ADDYSG A 
PHLANT:-

Tudalen 13



“Rydym ar fin gweld a ydych chi, fel y diduedd Mr Campbell, yn credu mewn 
addysg Gymraeg trwy orfodaeth. Rydych wedi gofyn am sylwadau'r cyhoedd trwy'r 
ymgynghoriad statudol a bellach rydym yn awyddus iawn i weld a ydych yn mynd i 
wrando arnynt. O ystyried bod mwyafrif ymatebion Llangennech yn gwrthwynebu'r 
newid, a ydych yn mynd i fabwysiadu ymagwedd awdurdodaidd at yr 
ymgynghoriad hwn?”

Ymatebodd y Cynghorydd Gareth Jones, yr Aelod o'r Bwrdd Gweithredol 
dros Addysg a Phlant fel a ganlyn:-

“Ni allaf siarad dros sylwadau aelodau eraill ynghylch y cynnig, fodd bynnag, wrth 
ystyried yr holl sylwadau a ddaeth i law, mae'n rhaid, yn statudol, i'r penderfyniad 
ynghylch camu ymlaen neu beidio â'r cynnig gael ei wneud er lles pennaf y 
dysgwyr.  Felly mae'n rhaid penderfynu ar sail y rhinweddau addysgol yn hytrach 
nag ar sail nifer yr ymatebion a ddaeth i law, boed o blaid neu yn erbyn y cynnig.”

Gofynnodd Mr Willcock y cwestiwn atodol canlynol:-

"Mae plant y blynyddoedd cynnar o dan anfantais os nad ydynt yn cael eu 
haddysgu yn iaith y cartref.  Mae ymchwil gan Dr. Angelina Kioko, ynghyd ag 
adroddiad Unesco gan Helen Pinnock a chanlyniadau'r profion Pisa yn dangos 
hyn. Wrth edrych ar ganlyniadau Pisa, mae plant y Ffindir yn dechrau'r ysgol yn 7 
oed ac yn cael eu haddysgu yn iaith y cartref.  Mae'r Ffindir, a ddaeth yn bumed 
yng nghanlyniadau Pisa, ychydig y tu ôl o ran marciau i Singapore a ddaeth yn 
gyntaf.   Mae gan y Ffindir, fel Cymru, iaith frodorol sef Suomi. Wrth ddefnyddio 
iaith y cartref er lles y plant ac nid er mwyn gwneud cymhellion gwleidyddol, cudd 
gydag addysg, mae'r Ffindir ymhell ar y blaen ar Gymru. A yw'r Bwrdd Gweithredol 
wedi ystyried unrhyw adroddiadau eraill heblaw adroddiad Yr Athro Donaldson ac 
os felly, pwy oedd yr awduron ac a wnaethant ddewis yr adroddiadau a oedd yn 
cyd-fynd â'u cymhellion?"  

Ymatebodd y Cynghorydd Jones fel a ganlyn:-

"Rydym wedi ein rhwymo i ddeddfwriaeth Llywodraeth Cymru yn ogystal ag 
adroddiadau eraill. Rwy'n gwybod bod swyddogion yn sicrhau eu bod yn meddu ar 
y wybodaeth ddiweddaraf ynghylch dwyieithrwydd."

5.10. CWESTIWN GAN MRS SALLYANN THOMAS I'R CYNGHORYDD 
GARETH JONES, AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL DROS 
ADDYSG A PHLANT:-

Dywedodd y Cadeirydd nad oedd Ms Thomas yn gallu bod yn bresennol yn y 
cyfarfod heddiw ond gofynnwyd iddo ofyn y cwestiwn ar ei rhan.

“Cynhaliwyd ymgynghoriad eang yn ddiweddar gan Lywodraeth Cymru i ganfod 
barn amrywiol ffynonellau am ei gweledigaeth hirdymor ar gyfer yr iaith Gymraeg.  
Nod Llywodraeth Cynulliad Cymru yw creu miliwn o siaradwyr dwyieithog, 
Cymraeg a Saesneg, erbyn 2050, ac mae canlyniadau'r ymgynghoriad hwn yn 
cael eu hadolygu o hyd.  Yn ddiamheuaeth, bydd y canfyddiadau'n cael effaith 
sylweddol ar sut ydym yn darparu ein system addysg mewn Ysgolion Cynradd.  
Pa resymau sydd gennych dros beidio ag aros tan fod argymhellion ymgynghoriad 

Tudalen 14



panel annibynnol Cymru yn dod i law ar ddechrau 2017, cyn penderfynu ar unrhyw 
newid i unrhyw un o'n hysgolion yn Sir Gaerfyrddin?”

Ymatebodd y Cynghorydd Gareth Jones, yr Aelod o'r Bwrdd Gweithredol 
dros Addysg a Phlant fel a ganlyn:-

"Cyn cyhoeddi "Ymgynghoriad ynghylch Strategaeth Ddrafft Llywodraeth Cymru: 
miliwn o siaradwyr Cymraeg erbyn 2050”, roedd Awdurdodau Lleol yn destun 
deddfwriaeth a gofynion gan Lywodraeth Cymru mewn perthynas ag addysg 
cyfrwng Cymraeg ac mae'r rheiny dal mewn grym.  Yn 2010, cyhoeddodd 
Llywodraeth Cymru ei bolisi cenedlaethol "Strategaeth Addysg Cyfrwng Cymraeg 
2010" er mwyn datblygu addysg drwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg ledled y wlad.  Mae'r 
strategaeth genedlaethol yn gosod safbwyntiau Llywodraeth Cymru ar 
bwysigrwydd addysg cyfrwng Cymraeg i ddeilliannau dysgwyr a'r uchelgais o 
ddatblygu dinasyddion dwyieithog.  Cyhoeddodd Llywodraeth Cymru hefyd 
"Strategaeth Iaith Gymraeg 2012-2017 – Iaith Fyw: Iaith Byw". Mae'r polisi 
cenedlaethol hwn yn ystyried yr amodau y mae eu hangen er mwyn hyrwyddo 
mwy o ddefnydd o'r Gymraeg gan blant a phobl ifanc ym mhob agwedd ar eu 
bywydau ac mae'n cynnig nifer o gamau gweithredu lefel uchel er mwyn sicrhau'r 
nod. Mae'n rhaid i Gyngor Sir Caerfyrddin yn ogystal ag Awdurdodau Lleol eraill 
yng Nghymru barhau i gydymffurfio â'r deddfwriaethau a'r gofynion hyn ni waeth 
am yr ymgynghoriad er mwyn creu miliwn o siaradwyr Cymraeg.  Mae Rhan 4 o 
Ddeddf Safonau a Threfniadaeth Ysgolion (Cymru) 2013 yn ei gwneud yn ofynnol i 
awdurdodau lleol baratoi Cynllun Strategol Cymraeg mewn Addysg yn nodi sut y 
byddant yn cyflawni eu swyddogaethau addysg gyda golwg benodol ar wella'r 
modd y mae'r ddarpariaeth addysg drwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg yn cael ei chynllunio 
a chodi'r safonau o ran addysg cyfrwng Cymraeg ac addysgu Cymraeg.  Mae hyn 
yn rhoi dyletswydd ar Gyngor Sir Caerfyrddin i wella a helaethu addysg cyfrwng 
Cymraeg.  Yn ogystal mae gennym gyfrifoldeb i ymateb i adroddiad Cyngor Sir 
Caerfyrddin a gafodd ei ddatblygu yn dilyn Cyfrifiad 2011 a ddangosodd bod 
canran y siaradwyr Cymraeg yn Sir Gaerfyrddin wedi lleihau ac am y tro cyntaf 
mewn hanes, wedi gostwng o dan hanner.  Yn ogystal mae'n rhaid i'r broses ar 
gyfer unrhyw gynnig cael ei chynnal yn unol â'r Côd Trefniadaeth Ysgolion 
statudol.  Mae'r Côd Trefniadaeth Ysgolion yn nodi: "o dan adran 53 o Ddeddf 
2013, rhaid i’r cynigydd wneud penderfyniad cyn pen 16 wythnos (112 diwrnod) o 
ddiwedd y cyfnod gwrthwynebu. Os bydd y cynigydd yn methu â phenderfynu ar y 
cynnig cyn pen 16 wythnos, ystyrir ei fod wedi tynnu’r cynnig yn ôl a bydd angen 
iddo ailgyhoeddi’r cynigion os hoffai barhau."

5.11. CWESTIWN GAN MS VICKI FREEMAN I'R CYNGHORYDD GARETH 
JONES, AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL DROS ADDYSG A 
PHLANT:-

“Mae llawer o ddoctoriaid a nyrsys yn y Gwasanaeth Iechyd Gwladol o 
gefndiroedd ethnig gwahanol.  Mae nifer fawr o nyrsys o Ynysoedd y Philipinos ac 
India, ac mae mwyafrif llethol y doctoriaid o'r Dwyrain Canol a'r Dwyrain Pell.  Mae 
Saesneg yn ail iaith iddynt eisoes. Mae llawer o swyddi gwag yn Sir Gaerfyrddin o 
ran y ddwy alwedigaeth. Mae trafodaeth wedi bod ynghylch pam y mae cyn lleied 
o bobl yn gwneud cais am y swyddi hyn. Yr ateb gan nifer ohonynt oedd gan fod 
eu plant yn siarad dwy iaith eisoes, maent o'r farn y byddai'n rhy anodd symud i'r 
ardal hon pan fo'r Gymraeg yn cael ei gorfodi ar fewnfudwyr nad ydynt yn ei 
medru. Roedd hwn yn bryder penodol yn achos plant 8 neu 9 oed nad oeddent 
erioed wedi dod i gysylltiad â'r iaith Gymraeg.  A yw Cyngor Sir Caerfyrddin yn 

Tudalen 15



ymwybodol fod dilyn trywydd lle gwaredir addysg drwy gyfrwng y Saesneg yn 
mynd i gael effaith ar seilwaith cyfan y sir ac atal mewnfudo proffesiynol i'n GIG 
lleol a busnesau eraill?”

Ymatebodd y Cynghorydd Gareth Jones, yr Aelod o'r Bwrdd Gweithredol 
dros Addysg a Phlant fel a ganlyn:-

“Mae'r Adran Addysg yn darparu cefnogaeth i'w holl ddisgyblion ledled y sir gan 
gynnwys hwyrddyfodiaid a allai ddod o amrywiol gefndiroedd/cartrefi di-Gymraeg.  
Mae pob ysgol yn y sir yn ymroddedig ac wedi ymrwymo i addysgu a chefnogi'r 
holl ddisgyblion i gyflawni hyd eithaf eu gallu ac mae gennym nifer o straeon 
llwyddiant am ddysgwyr o wahanol gefndiroedd yn dod yn siaradwyr Cymraeg 
hyfedr iawn.  Rwyf hefyd yn siŵr y bydd unrhyw un, waeth beth yw ei gefndir, sy'n 
dymuno symud i Sir Gaerfyrddin, neu yn wir unrhyw ran o Gymru yn ystyried yr 
holl ffactorau dan sylw gan gynnwys dwy iaith genedlaethol y wlad cyn gwneud 
penderfyniad.  Wrth wneud ei benderfyniad, bydd pob unigolyn wedi ystyried safon 
ac iaith yr addysg y gallai ei blentyn dderbyn yn ei ysgol leol.  Yn ogystal mae'n 
rhaid cofio bod yn rhaid i Gyngor Sir Caerfyrddin yn ogystal ag Awdurdodau Lleol 
eraill yng Nghymru ddilyn deddfwriaeth a gofynion Llywodraeth Cymru.  Bydd 
Llywodraeth Cymru wedi craffu ar y polisïau a gyhoeddwyd cyn eu cymeradwyo.”

Gofynnodd Ms Freeman y cwestiwn atodol canlynol:-

"Sut ydych chi'n bwriadu darparu ar gyfer plant ag anableddau?  Mae gennyf 
blentyn ag anableddau sy'n cael anhawster astudio Saesneg. Os bydd hi bellach 
yn cael ei gorfodi i newid i'r Gymraeg, ni fydd yn gallu ymdopi a'i haddysg. Nid yw 
hyn yn amlwg yn eich asesiad anabledd."

Ymatebodd y Cynghorydd Jones fel a ganlyn:-

"Mae gennym bolisi ein bod yn ceisio darparu ar gyfer yr holl anghenion dysgu 
ychwanegol o fewn y sir.  Nid oeddwn yn sicr a oeddech yn cyfeirio at y 
Gwasanaeth Iechyd Gwladol neu'r Awdurdod Addysg, ond bydd gennym gymaint 
â phosibl o gefnogaeth ar eich cyfer chi a'ch teulu."

5.12. CWESTIWN GAN MS ORLA WILLIAMS I'R CYNGHORYDD GARETH 
JONES, AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL DROS ADDYSG A 
PHLANT:-

Dywedodd y Cadeirydd nad oedd Ms Williams yn gallu bod yn bresennol yn y 
cyfarfod heddiw felly gofynnwyd iddo ofyn y cwestiwn ar ei rhan. 

“Mae CSC yn gwahanu ac yn gwthio i'r cyrion ddysgwyr y ffrwd Saesneg a 
dysgwyr dwyieithog cyfredol ysgol Llangennech, a rhai'r dyfodol, trwy beidio â 
darparu llwybr addas i'r dysgwyr hynny.  Yn neddfwriaeth Llywodraeth Cymru, 
mae gan y Gymraeg a'r Saesneg statws cyfartal.  Ond dim os ydych yn byw yn 
Nwyrain Sir Gaerfyrddin. Mae symud i sefyllfa lle addysgir drwy gyfrwng y 
Gymraeg yn unig yn Llangennech, lle mae canran uchel o'r rhieni yn rhai dosbarth 
canol o'r tu allan i'r dalgylch sydd ar eu ffordd i gyffordd 48 yr M4, a mynnu ar 
Gymraeg yn unig, yn gynllun gwallus gan y Cyngor Sir.   Pa ddarpariaeth sy'n cael 
ei rhoi ar waith i wella perfformiad yn Ysgol Gynradd yr Hendy ac Ysgol Gyfun y 
Strade i gyfiawnhau'r arfer gwaharddol hwn ac i ddarparu addysg sydd o'r un 
safon uchel yn Llangennech i rieni sy'n dymuno i'w plant gael eu haddysgu'n 

Tudalen 16



ddwyieithog, gan nad oes gan Ysgol Bryn yr un ethos dwyieithog, perfformiad, 
deilliannau nac arweinyddiaeth â'r hyn sydd gan Ysgol Llangennech ar hyn o bryd, 
sef pam y mae rhieni'n dewis y ffrwd ddwyieithog. Bydd cadw'r ffrwd ddwyieithog 
yn Llangennech yn helpu i gyrraedd targed y llywodraeth o filiwn o siaradwyr 
Cymraeg erbyn 2050. Ni fydd atal teuluoedd rhag cael addysg ddwyieithog yn rhoi 
anogaeth na chroeso i'r teuluoedd hynny sy'n barod i gymryd y camau cyntaf tuag 
at fod yn rhugl.  Bydd y polisi arfaethedig hwn yn annog rhai teuluoedd i beidio â 
siarad Cymraeg, ac yn creu rhwyg a darpariaeth addysg anghyfartal a chynhennus 
yn Nwyrain Llanelli.  Heb os nac oni bai mae'n well croesawu pobl, fel sydd wedi 
cael ei brofi gan astudiaethau yng Nghatalonia, y Ffindir a Lithwania, lle mae 
perfformiad, PISA a pherfformiad rhyngwladol yn tystio i lwyddiant addysg gwir 
ddwyieithog.  Oni fyddai chwilio am atebion cynhwysol yn fwy buddiol i'r disgyblion 
presennol ac i genedlaethau'r dyfodol yn ein cymuned ac yn sicrhau bod y Cyngor 
hwn yn gadael gwaddol gwell?”

Ymatebodd y Cynghorydd Gareth Jones, yr Aelod o'r Bwrdd Gweithredol 
dros Addysg a Phlant fel a ganlyn:-

“Fel y nodwyd yn flaenorol, nod Cyngor Sir Caerfyrddin yw creu unigolion 
dwyieithog sydd meddu ar sgiliau i ddarllen, ysgrifennu a siarad yn rhugl yn y 
Gymraeg a'r Saesneg.  O ganlyniad i'r cynnig hwn, bydd disgyblion yn gadael 
ysgol Llangennech â dwy iaith gyntaf a hyfedredd yn y Gymraeg a'r Saesneg.  
Mae'r cynnig hwn yn ceisio darparu'r cyfle hwn i'r holl ddisgyblion yn ysgolion 
Llangennech.  Mae gan Gyngor Sir Caerfyrddin bolisi dewis rhieni mewn 
perthynas â derbyn i ysgolion ond rhoddir blaenoriaeth i ddisgyblion sy'n byw yn y 
dalgylch.  Yr unig rwymedigaeth sydd ar y Cyngor Sir o ran hwyluso dewis y rhieni 
yw pan fo'r dewis hwnnw'n gyson â darparu addysg mewn modd effeithiol a 
defnyddio adnoddau'n effeithlon.  Nid oes gan yr un rhiant hawl i fynnu lle mewn 
ysgol benodol i'w blentyn neu i'w blant.  Caiff y lleoedd yn yr ysgolion eu dyrannu 
ar sail polisi derbyn disgyblion cyhoeddedig y Cyngor, sy'n ffafrio bod plant yn 
mynychu eu hysgol leol neu ysgol "ddynodedig".  Ar gais y rhieni caiff plant eu 
derbyn mewn ysgol heblaw eu hysgol ddynodedig a hynny pan fo lleoedd ar gael 
ac yn unol â'r meini prawf o ran goralw yn y polisi derbyn disgyblion cyhoeddedig.”

5.13. CWESTIWN GAN MR DARREN SEAWARD I'R CYNGHORYDD GARETH 
JONES, AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL DROS ADDYSG A 
PHLANT:-

Dywedodd y Cadeirydd nad oedd Mr Seaward yn gallu bod yn bresennol yn y 
cyfarfod heddiw ond gofynnwyd iddo ofyn y cwestiwn ar ei ran.

“Mae'r Cynghorydd Gwyn Hopkins wedi dweud sawl gwaith mai lleiafrif uchel eu 
cloch sy'n gwrthwynebu'r newidiadau, ac mae wedi sôn wrth y wasg am hynny er 
nad yw'n wir. O gofio bod mwy na 750 o wrthwynebiadau, sef yr apêl fwyaf yn 
hanes Llangennech yn ôl pob tebyg, mae'n anffodus nad yw Mr Hopkins, ar ôl bod 
yn Gynghorydd Sir am fwy nag 20 mlynedd, yn deall anghenion a dymuniadau'r 
etholwyr yn well. Hefyd mae'n rhaid gofyn y cwestiwn, pa benderfyniadau gwael 
eraill sydd wedi cael eu gwneud yn ystod yr ymgynghoriad hwn. Rydym o'r farn y 
byddai'n decach i bawb, yn cynnwys yr ymgeisydd newydd, fod y penderfyniad 
hwn yn cael ei ohirio tan ar ôl etholiadau mis Mai 2017, pryd y caiff ymgeisydd 
newydd ei benodi. Mae'n bosibl y bydd modd adfer hyder bryd hynny ac y bydd 
gan y pentref lais sy'n ei gynrychioli. A ydych yn cytuno y dylid gohirio?”

Tudalen 17



Ymatebodd y Cynghorydd Gareth Jones, yr Aelod o'r Bwrdd Gweithredol 
dros Addysg a Phlant fel a ganlyn:-

“Nid fy lle i yw cyflwyno sylwadau ynghylch barn y Cynghorydd Hopkins, fodd 
bynnag, rwy'n ymwybodol mai ef yw aelod lleol Llangennech ac y bydd ganddo 
wybodaeth leol ynghylch yr ardal.  Mae'n rhaid i'r broses ar gyfer unrhyw gynnig 
cael ei chynnal yn unol â'r Côd Trefniadaeth Ysgolion a dyna yw'r broses.”

5.14. CWESTIWN GAN MRS JACQUELINE SEWARD I'R CYNGHORYDD 
GARETH JONES, AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL DROS 
ADDYSG A PHLANT:-

“Tristwch mawr i ni yw gweld i ba raddau y mae ein cymuned, a oedd unwaith yn 
un glos, wedi cael ei rhannu gan y cynnig hwn sy'n cael ei hybu gan leiafrif o'r 
pentref. Mae'n ymddangos ein bod wedi anghofio am yr hyn sy'n bwysig yma, sef 
bod gennym ysgol ddwy ffrwd hynod lwyddiannus sy'n darparu ar gyfer pawb. Mae 
gan Ysgol Llangennech enw rhagorol a cheisir lle ynddi gan lawer, sydd hyd yn 
oed yn barod i deithio o'r tu allan i'r ardal i gael eu haddysgu yn Llangennech. 
Byddai nifer o'r plant yn y Ffrwd Gymraeg heb roi cynnig arni petai'r ysgol yn un 
Gymraeg yn unig a dyma'r hyn y mae'n rhaid inni gydnabod. Mae Llywodraeth 
Cymru am weld miliwn o siaradwyr Cymraeg erbyn 2050. Dylai'r Gymraeg fod yn 
rhywbeth y mae pobl yn dyheu amdano ac nid yn rhywbeth sy'n cael ei orfodi, a 
thrwy amddifadu rhieni rhag cael dewis, yr unig beth y byddwn yn ei wneud fydd 
gwanhau'r Gymraeg ac nid cynyddu'r defnydd ohoni. Mae Llangennech eisoes yn 
cyfrannu at gynyddu nifer y siaradwyr Cymraeg a bydd yn parhau i wneud hynny 
fel ysgol ddwy ffrwd. Mae angen i ysgolion eraill ddilyn ein hesiampl. Gadewch inni 
edrych ar yr effaith mae'r cynnig hwn wedi ei chael ar gymuned Llangennech, sydd 
wedi bod yn gefnogol i'r Gymraeg ers blynyddoedd. Mae'r mater yn peri inni 
feddwl sut y byddai ysgolion eraill, yn enwedig yr holl ysgolion cyfrwng Saesneg, 
yn ymateb pe baent yn wynebu'r un cynnig â'r hyn a ddymunir gan Mr Sully, sef 
gwneud pob ysgol yn Sir Gaerfyrddin yn un Gymraeg ei chyfrwng.  Bydd hyn yn 
achosi anghydfod ac yn niweidiol i'r Gymraeg yn y pen draw, ac nid dyna'r hyn 
ydym ei eisiau yn bendant. Rydym am i'n plant ddal ati i ddysgu Cymraeg fel y 
maent yn gallu ei wneud nawr yn y ffrwd ddeuol, ond ar gyflymdra sy'n addas 
iddynt ac yn unol â dewis rhieni. Mae ein hymarfer diwethaf wedi rhoi tystiolaeth 
gadarn inni fod 750 o bobl yn erbyn y cynnig. Cafwyd 698 o sylwadau a gefnogai'r 
cynnig, ond yn dilyn cais Rhyddid Gwybodaeth rydym wedi cael gwybod bod 
cyfran helaeth o'r rhai a gyflwynodd sylwadau ddim yn dod o'r pentref na'r sir hyd 
yn oed. Rydym wedi gofyn unwaith eto o dan gais Rhyddid Gwybodaeth am 
fanylion pellach ynghylch strydoedd, fel y gellir gwneud dadansoddiad go iawn. 
Ond yn anffodus, yn ôl yr arfer, nid yw'r wybodaeth hon ar gael yn hwylus. Cafodd 
ffigyrau a phobl eu cam-lywio am flynyddoedd lawer cyn y cynnig hwn, er mwyn 
cyflwyno darlun ffug o'r galw yn y pentref. Mae pobl Llangennech wedi lleisio eu 
barn, ac mae'n hen bryd gwrando arnynt. A yw'n bosibl ichi mewn difrif wneud 
penderfyniad mor bwysig am ddyfodol ac am addysg ein plant pan fo cynifer o 
gwestiynau yn dal heb gael eu hateb?”

Ymatebodd y Cynghorydd Gareth Jones, yr Aelod o'r Bwrdd Gweithredol 
dros Addysg a Phlant fel a ganlyn:-

“Rydym yn hyderus na fydd safonau ac enw da Ysgol Llangennech yn newid o 
ganlyniad i'r cynnig hwn.  Mae'r cynnig yn ceisio gwella ymhellach y cyfleoedd i'r 
plant sy'n mynychu'r ysgolion er mwyn sicrhau bod y canlyniadau'n dal i wella.  Fel 

Tudalen 18



y nodwyd yn flaenorol, bydd plant yng nghyfnod allweddol 2 yn derbyn addysg 
ddwyieithog, a bydd Saesneg yn bwnc craidd ac yn gyfrwng dysgu ar gyfer rhai 
gwersi eraill yn ystod y blynyddoedd olaf yn yr ysgol.  Yn ogystal mae'n rhaid cofio 
na fydd y cynnig hwn yn effeithio ar ddisgyblion presennol yr ysgol.  Rydym yn 
ymwybodol y derbyniwyd gwrthwynebiadau a sylwadau cefnogol o'r tu allan i ardal 
Llangennech, fodd bynnag, mae gan bob person yr hawl i leisio'i farn bersonol.  
Mae'n rhaid, yn statudol, i'r penderfyniad ynghylch camu ymlaen neu beidio â'r 
cynnig gael ei wneud er lles pennaf y dysgwyr.  Felly mae'n rhaid penderfynu ar 
sail y rhinweddau addysgol yn hytrach nag ar sail nifer yr ymatebion a ddaeth i 
law, boed o blaid neu yn erbyn y cynnig.”

Gofynnodd Mrs Seward y cwestiwn atodol canlynol:-

"Nid oes yr un o'r cwestiynau wedi cael eu hateb mewn gwirionedd heddiw, ac fel 
arfer mae'r un atebion sydd wedi cael eu hargraffu ymlaen llaw yn cael eu rhoi i'r 
Cadeirydd neu'r Cynghorydd i'w darllen ar y diwrnod.  Nid ydynt yn mynd i'r afael 
â'r cwestiynau o gwbl. Mae gan Langennech ychydig dros 1600 o dai.  Cawsom 
757 o wrthwynebiadau ac mae hyn yn profi mai 4.5% yn unig oedd yn cefnogi'r 
newid a 95% yn erbyn y newid. Er bod gan bawb yr hawl i farn bersonol, 
dywedwyd wrthym ar y cychwyn mai lleiafrif oeddem ni, ac nid oedd y pentref yn 
dymuno hyn, ond erbyn hyn rydym wedi profi nad ydym yn lleiafrif. Nid yw 95% o'r 
pentref yn dymuno cael y newid hwn.  Heb os nac oni bai, rhieni ddylai ddewis pa 
fath o addysg y mae eu plant yn ei gael, nid y Cyngor ddylai wneud y penderfyniad 
hwnnw. Rydym yn ymwybodol eich bod eisoes wedi gwneud eich penderfyniad 
cyn dod yma heddiw, ond rydym yn eich annog i edrych ar y ffeithiau a bellach 
gwrando ar y bobl.  A ydych chi'n mynd i wrando ar 95% o'r pentref a pharchu eu 
dymuniadau?

Ymatebodd y Cynghorydd Jones fel a ganlyn:-

"Rydym heb os, yn gwrando arnoch chi'r bore yma. Mae'r cyfan yn rhan o'r broses 
ac rwy'n gwrando yn ofalus iawn, iawn ar yr hyn rydych yn ei ddweud."

Diolchodd y Cadeirydd i'r holl holwyr am eu presenoldeb yn y cyfarfod. 

6. GOHIRIAD

Am 11.00 a.m. gohiriwyd y cyfarfod am egwyl.

7. Y CYFARFOD YN AILYMGYNNULL

Roedd y cyfarfod wedi ailymgynnull am 11.15 a.m.

8. Y RHAGLEN MODERNEIDDIO ADDYSG- CYNNIG I GAU YSGOL BABANOD 
LLANGENNECH AC YSGOL IAU LLANGENNECH A SEFYDLU YSGOL 
GYMUNEDOL GYNRADD LLANGENNECH

Bu'r Bwrdd yn ystyried adroddiad ar y cynnig i gau Ysgol Babanod Llangennech ac 
Ysgol Iau Llangennech ac i sefydlu Ysgol Gynradd Gymunedol Llangennech.

Yn dilyn ymddeoliad pennaeth Ysgol Babanod Llangennech ar ddiwedd tymor yr 
haf 2013 sefydlwyd ffederasiwn llac gyda phennaeth Ysgol Iau Llangennech.  Ar 

Tudalen 19



24 Medi 2014, penderfynodd cyrff llywodraethu'r ddwy ysgol fynd ati i 
ffedereiddio'n ffurfiol o fis Ebrill 2015 ymlaen. 

Roedd yr Awdurdod Lleol ar hyn o bryd yn cynnig darpariaeth addysgu llawn 
amser ar gyfer plant 4-11 oed drwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg a'r Saesneg yn ysgolion 
ffederal Babanod ac Iau Llangennech.  Yn yr ysgol gynradd newydd i ddisgyblion 
3–11 oed, a fyddai'n cynnwys darpariaeth feithrin, cynigiwyd newid categorïau 
ieithyddol presennol Ysgol Babanod Llangennech (Dwy Ffrwd) – (DFf) ac Ysgol 
Iau Llangennech (Dwy Ffrwd) – (DFf) i greu ysgol newydd categori Cyfrwng 
Cymraeg – (CC) a fyddai'n cynyddu'r addysg Cyfrwng Cymraeg a ddarperir yn Sir 
Gaerfyrddin a byddai'n sicrhau bod dwyieithrwydd yn cynyddu yn ardal 
Llangennech.  Byddai'n sicrhau parhad ieithyddol o'r sector meithrin ar hyd y 
cyfnodau allweddol i'r sector uwchradd er mwyn i bob disgybl ddod yn rhugl ac yn 
hyderus wrth ddefnyddio'r Gymraeg a'r Saesneg, yn unol â'r hyn a nodwyd yng 
Nghynllun Strategol Cymraeg mewn Addysg  (2014–17.

Yn dilyn estyniad bach i'r cyfnod ymgynghori, y cyfnod cyn yr etholiad a'r nifer fawr 
o ymatebion a ddaeth i law yn ystod y cyfnod ymgynghori, roedd y dyddiadau ar 
gyfer y cynnig wedi newid.  Yr oeddid wedi gwneud hyn er mwyn sicrhau bod 
digon o amser ar gael i bobl fynegi eu barn ac er mwyn sicrhau nad oedd cyfnod 
gwyliau'r ysgolion yn tarfu ar y broses.  Felly cynigiwyd y canlynol:

(i) cau Ysgol Babanod Llangennech ar 31ain Awst, 2017;
(ii) cau Ysgol Iau Llangennech ar 31 Awst, 2017;
(iii) o 1af Medi, 2017 ymlaen sefydlu Ysgol Gynradd Gymunedol, ynghyd â 

darpariaeth feithrin, drwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg (CC) i ddisgyblion 3-11 oed (a 
elwir o hyn ymlaen yr "Ysgol Newydd" ar safleoedd ac yn adeiladau 
presennol Ysgol Babanod ac Ysgol Iau Llangennech.  Byddai nifer y 
lleoedd yn y ddwy ysgol yn parhau'r un fath, ond byddai hyn yn cael ei 
adolygu a'i addasu petai'r galw yn cynyddu yn y dyfodol. 

Yn unol â chyfarwyddiadau'r Bwrdd Gweithredol yn ystod y cyfarfod a gynhaliwyd 
ar 4 Ionawr, 2016 (gweler cofnod rhif 15) ymgymerwyd ag ymarfer ymgynghori 
ffurfiol rhwng 25 Ionawr a 18 Mawrth, 2016, ac atodwyd canlyniadau'r ymgynghori 
i'r adroddiad. 

Yn ystod y cyfarfod a gynhaliwyd ar 26 Gorffennaf, 2016 (gweler cofnod rhif 9) 
cymeradwyodd y Bwrdd Gweithredol i gyhoeddi Hysbysiad Statudol i weithredu'r 
cynnig.  Cyhoeddwyd yr Hysbysiad Statudol ar 5 Rhagfyr, 2016 gan ganiatáu 28 o 
ddiwrnodau i wrthwynebwyr anfon eu gwrthwynebiadau'n ysgrifenedig at y Cyngor.  
Roedd y cyfnod gwrthwynebu fod dod i ben ar 2 Hydref, 2016 ond yn sgil cais gan 
barti â buddiant, cytunodd y Cyfarwyddwr Addysg a Gwasanaethau Plant ymestyn 
y cyfnod gwrthwynebu o un wythnos hyd at 9 Hydref 2016.  

Cafwyd cyfanswm o 1,418 o sylwadau i'r Hysbysiad Statudol ac atodwyd 
Adroddiad Gwrthwynebu a oedd yn crynhoi'r gwrthwynebiadau a'r sylwadau 
cefnogol ynghyd ag ymatebion yr Awdurdod Lleol i'r adroddiad. 

Petai'r Cyngor Sir yn cytuno i weithredu'r cynnig, byddai Ysgol Babanod 
Llangennech ac Ysgol Iau Llangennech yn dirwyn i ben ar 31 Awst 2017, a byddai 
Ysgol Gynradd Gymunedol Cyfrwng Cymraeg yn cael ei sefydlu ar 1 Medi, 2017. 

Tudalen 20



Roedd y swyddogion yn fodlon nad oedd unrhyw gynigion perthnasol eraill; ac 
roedd y cynnig statudol wedi bod yn destun ymgynghoriad a gafodd ei gyhoeddi 
yn unol â'r Côd Trefniadaeth Ysgolion ac yn cynnwys yr holl wybodaeth 
berthnasol, ac ar ôl ystyried y ddogfen ymgynghori a'r adroddiad ymgynghori, y 
gwrthwynebiadau ac unrhyw ymatebion i'r hysbyseb yn cefnogi'r cynnig yn yr 
adroddiad gwrthwynebu, y dylid argymell i'r Bwrdd Gweithredol bod y cynnig, fel y 
nodwyd yn yr Hysbysiad Statudol, yn cael ei weithredu.

Yn unol â Rheol Gweithdrefn Gorfforaethol 11.1 cyfeiriodd y Cynghorydd D.M. 
Cundy at argymhellion Gweithgor y Cyfrifiad - Yr Iaith Gymraeg a gafodd eu 
cytuno gan y Cyngor Sir ym mis Ebrill 2014. Nododd nad oedd yr ymgynghoriad 
cyhoeddus wedi'i gyflawni ac ni chafodd yr ymatebion eu dwyn gerbron y Cyngor 
er mwyn eu cadarnhau. Gofynnodd felly a ddylid oedi'r broses hyd nes bod y 
broses briodol wedi cael ei dilyn.  Eglurodd yr Aelod o’r Bwrdd Gweithredol dros 
Addysg a Phlant fod argymhellion y Gweithgor wedi'u cynnwys yn y Cynllun 
Strategol Cymraeg mewn Addysg 2014-17 a oedd yn un o'r elfennau a oedd yn 
arwain y cynnig. Eglurodd y Prif Weithredwr ymhellach nad oedd y broses yn 
ddiffygiol gan nad oedd y cynnig yn dibynnu ar argymhelliad y Gweithgor mewn 
perthynas â'r ymgynghoriad. 

Yn unol â Rheol Gweithdrefn Gorfforaethol 11.1 gofynnodd y Cynghorydd J.S. 
Edmunds, wrth ystyried bod Ysgol Llangennech yn un o'r ysgolion gorau yn y sir 
ac yn fodel llwyddiannus o gydlyniant cymunedol, pam mae'r Cyngor yn ceisio 
rhannu'r gymuned a dinistrio'r cydlyniant y mae Llangennech wedi'i fwynhau.   
Eglurodd yr Aelod o’r Bwrdd Gweithredol dros Addysg a Phlant nad oedd yr 
awdurdod yn ceisio rhannu'r gymuned, ond yn hytrach yn dilyn polisïau 
Llywodraeth Cymru ac elfennau cenedlaethol eraill megis y nod o gynyddu nifer y 
siaradwyr Cymraeg. Gofynnodd y Cynghorydd Edmunds a oedd y Bwrdd yn 
bryderus ynghylch y neges yr oedd y penderfyniad hwn yn ei gyfleu i weddill 
Cymru. Dywedodd yr Aelod o’r Bwrdd Gweithredol dros Addysg a Phlant fod y 
Cyngor yn anfon neges gadarnhaol iawn gan fod y gwaith a wnaed o ran y broses 
ymgynghori a chynnwys y gymuned leol wedi gosod esiampl ardderchog i weddill 
Cymru. 
  
PENDERFYNWYD ARGYMELL I'R CYNGOR

8.1 nodi'r sylwadau a ddaeth i law i'r Hysbysiad Statudol ac ymatebion yr 
Awdurdod iddynt; fel y nodwyd yn yr Adroddiad Gwrthwynebu;

8.2 nad oedd unrhyw gynigion perthnasol eraill; a bod y cynnig statudol 
wedi bod yn destun ymgynghoriad a gafodd ei gyhoeddi yn unol â'r 
Côd Trefniadaeth Ysgolion a'i fod yn cynnwys yr holl wybodaeth 
berthnasol, ac ar ôl ystyried y ddogfen ymgynghori a'r adroddiad 
ymgynghori, y gwrthwynebiadau ac unrhyw ymatebion i'r hysbyseb yn 
cefnogi'r cynnig yn yr adroddiad gwrthwynebu, y dylid argymell bod y 
cynnig, fel y nodwyd yn yr Hysbysiad Statudol, yn cael ei weithredu. 

9. CRAFFU AR Y BWRDD GWASANAETHAU CYHOEDDUS

Dywedwyd wrth y Bwrdd Gweithredol bod y Byrddau Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus 
wedi disodli'r Byrddau Gwasanaethau Lleol a'u bod yn ofynnol iddynt yn benodol:-

(a) ymgymryd ag asesiad llesiant ar gyfer yr ardal;

Tudalen 21



(b) gosod amcanion llesiant yn rhan o gynllun llesiant;
(c) cymryd pob cam rhesymol i gyflawni'r amcanion hynny. 

Mae'n ofynnol i bwyllgor trosolwg a chraffu Awdurdod Lleol yn ôl Deddf Llesiant 
Cenedlaethau'r Dyfodol (Cymru) 2015 gael rôl allweddol yn sicrhau atebolrwydd 
democrataidd y Bwrdd Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus drwy ei rôl fel yr amlinellir yn y 
Ddeddf.   Byddai disgwyl i'r pwyllgor craffu dynodedig yn benodol gyflawni'r 
canlynol:-

 Derbyn yr yn ffurfiol yr Asesiad Llesiant a'r Cynllun Llesiant gan y Bwrdd 
Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus;

 Bod yn ymgynghorai statudol ar gyfer yr Asesiad Llesiant a'r Cynllun 
Llesiant; 

 Adolygu'r Cynllun Llesiant os ceir cyfarwyddyd i wneud hynny gan Weinidog 
Cymru (sy'n meddu ar y gallu i gyfeirio ond nid y gallu i gymeradwyo).

Mae Canllawiau Statudol 3 Pennod 6 Cydamcanu:Cydymdrechu Llywodraeth 
Cymru yn nodi:- 

“174. Er mwyn sicrhau atebolrwydd democrataidd mae gofyniad i bwyllgor craffu 
llywodraeth leol ddynodedig yr awdurdod lleol perthnasol graffu ar waith y Bwrdd 
Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus.  Mater i’r awdurdod lleol unigol fydd ei drefniadau ar 
gyfer craffu ar y Bwrdd Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus y mae’n aelod ohono.  Er 
enghraifft, gellir defnyddio pwerau deddfwriaethol sy’n bod eisoes i roi trefniadau 
ar y cyd ar waith, fel ‘cyfethol’ pobl nad ydynt yn aelodau o’r awdurdod i eistedd ar 
y pwyllgor a lle bo’n briodol, penodi cydbwyllgorau sy’n rhychwantu ffiniau mwy 
nag un awdurdod lleol.

175. Er y bydd yn parhau i fod yn hollol gyfreithlon i bwyllgor craffu pwnc (megis 
pwyllgor craffu plant a phobl ifanc) graffu ar waith y bwrdd gwasanaethau 
cyhoeddus mewn perthynas â mater penodol, mae'n bwysig fod gan un pwyllgor 
trosolwg cyffredinol ar effeithiolrwydd y bwrdd.  Dyma pam fod yn rhaid i un 
pwyllgor gael ei ddynodi i ymgymryd â'r gwaith hwn."

PENDERFYNWYD ARGYMELL YN UNFRYDOL I'R CYNGOR bod y Pwyllgor 
Craffu - Polisi ac Adnoddau yn cael ei bennu yn Bwyllgor Craffu'r Awdurdod 
at ddibenion craffu ar waith Bwrdd Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Sir 
Gaerfyrddin, a bod y swyddogaeth  hon yn cael ei hadlewyrchu yn Erthygl 6 
o Gyfansoddiad y Cyngor.

10. ATAL, YMYRRAETH GYNNAR A HYBU BYW'N ANNIBYNNOL

[SYLWER: Gan ei bod wedi datgan buddiant personol a rhagfarnol yn y mater hwn 
yn gynharach, gadawodd y Cynghorydd H.A.L Evans y cyfarfod cyn i'r Pwyllgor 
ystyried y mater a phenderfynu arno.] 

Cynghorwyd y Bwrdd bod y Ddeddf Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Llesiant 
(Cymru) yn gosod cyfrifoldeb statudol ar Awdurdodau Lleol i hyrwyddo 
gwasanaethau ataliol ar gyfer y boblogaeth leol. Roedd yr ymgynghoriad a 
gynhaliwyd gan y Gwasanaethau Integredig â phobl hŷn yn dangos bod cadw 
annibyniaeth a chadw mewn cysylltiad â'u cymuned yn flaenoriaeth allweddol.

Tudalen 22



Roedd y strategaeth yn amlinellu ffyrdd y byddai gwasanaethau ataliol yn cael eu 
gosod yn rhan annatod o'r ddarpariaeth yn ei chyfanrwydd er mwyn hyrwyddo 
annibyniaeth a sicrhau bod strategaethau ymyrraeth gynnar yn cael eu defnyddio i 
gadw pobl mor iach a hunangynhaliol â phosibl.  Roedd y strategaeth yn elfen 
hanfodol o ddarparu arbedion cost, ond byddai'r rhain yn cael eu cyflawni o fewn y 
cyd-destun o hyrwyddo annibyniaeth a darparu'r cymorth cywir yn ystod y camau 
cynharaf er mwyn osgoi argyfwng. 

Nodwyd er y byddai arbedion cost yn cael eu cyflawni drwy gynlluniau megis 
sicrhau pecynnau gofal cywir a gwell gwybodaeth, darparu cyngor a chymorth, 
roedd cyllid ychwanegol wedi cael ei sicrhau drwy gyfrwng y Gronfa Gofal 
Canolraddol er mwyn sicrhau bod y gwasanaethau a amlinellwyd yn y strategaeth 
hon yn gadarn ac yn gallu darparu nid yn unig effeithlonrwydd yn y tymor hir ond 
hefyd gwella gwasanaethau cymunedol yn eu cyfanrwydd, a hyrwyddo'r ethos o 
annibyniaeth a chyfrifoldeb personol dros lesiant. 

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL gymeradwyo'r Strategaeth Gymunedol 
Integredig ac Ymyrraeth Gynnar ar gyfer Gwasanaethau Integredig Sir 
Gaerfyrddin. 

11. CYNLLUN ABSENOLDEB STAFF AR GYFER YSGOLION

Cynghorwyd y Bwrdd bod llawer o ysgolion ar hyn o bryd yn trefnu eu polisïau 
yswiriant eu hunain drwy amryw o ddarparwyr er mwyn talu’r gost o gyflogi 
gweithwyr cyflenwi pan fydd staff addysgu a chymorth dysgu yn absennol o’r 
ysgol.  Mae’r warchodaeth a gynigir gan y polisïau yswiriant hyn yn amrywio’n 
fawr; felly hefyd y costau a’r buddion.  Mae gan 105 o ysgolion bolisïau yswiriant 
ar hyn o bryd, sy’n costio dros £1m i ysgolion cynradd ac uwchradd.  Mae'r incwm 
a gafwyd o hawliadau yn ystod y blynyddoedd diwethaf tua £850k.

Er mwyn sicrhau gwerth am arian, roedd swyddogion wedi ymgymryd ag 
adolygiad o'r ddarpariaeth yswiriant allanol, mewn ymgynghoriad ag ysgolion o 
fewn y sir ac roedd ymchwil yn dangos bod Cynllun Absenoldeb Staff Ysgolion yn 
cynnig manteision ariannol a gweithredol i ysgolion a'r Awdurdod Lleol lle mae 
cynlluniau tebyg wedi cael eu cyflwyno. 

Cafodd y cynllun hwn ei gynllunio i weithredu ar yr egwyddor o bartneriaeth, i’r 
diben o godi arian oddi wrth yr aelodaeth y gellir ei ddefnyddio i ddarparu buddion 
cyffredin a rennir i holl aelodau’r cynllun.  Mae premiymau yswiriant a phatrymau 
absenoldeb presennol yn ysgolion Sir Gaerfyrddin wedi cael eu hystyried wrth 
ddatblygu'r cynllun ac roedd y swyddogion yn fodlon y gallai Cynllun Absenoldeb 
Staff Ysgolion, sy'n cael ei weinyddu a'i strwythuro'n dda, weithredu'n llwyddiannus 
yn y sir, yn amodol ar gael aelodaeth ddigonol gan yr ysgolion.  Ar sail y lefelau 
presennol, byddai modd sicrhau'r gwariant net dros ben a'r costau gweinyddu er 
budd aelodau'r cynllun yn hytrach na bod yr aelodau yn talu premiymau yswiriant i 
ddarparwyr allanol ar golled net wrth gymharu â'r ad-daliadau a geir. 

Pe bai lefel yr hawliad gan aelodau'r cynllun yn uwch na'r arian sydd ar gael, 
byddai'r diffyg yn cael ei drosglwyddo a'i osod yn erbyn yr elw yn y dyfodol. Felly 
roedd o fudd i'r ysgolion a'r Awdurdod i reoli presenoldeb yn gadarnhaol ac yn 
rhagweithiol, yn unol â pholisïau, er mwyn elwa ar bremiymau llai yn y dyfodol. Ar 
sail y data sydd ar gael a'r ymrwymiad gan yr holl bartïon sydd â diddordeb i ddilyn 
y canllawiau a'r polisïau, barnwyd bod y risg o ddiffyg yn isel. 

Tudalen 23



Byddai y Cynllun Absenoldeb Staff Ysgolion yn gweithredu i ddechrau am gyfnod 
o ddwy flynedd gan ddechrau ar 1 Ebrill 2017 hyd at 31n Mawrth 2019 a byddai'n 
gweithredu fel cynllun nad yw’n gwneud elw, er budd yr aelodau sy’n cymryd rhan.  
Byddai'n cael ei adolygu'n flynyddol er mwyn sicrhau ei fod yn parhau'n hyfyw yn 
ariannol yn y blynyddoedd ariannol sydd i ddod. 

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL ARGYMELL I'R CYNGOR y dylid 
mabwysiadu'r Cynllun Absenoldeb Staff Ysgolion.

12. SYLFAEN TRETH Y CYNGOR 2017-2018

Atgoffwyd y Bwrdd Gweithredol ei bod yn ofynnol i'r Cyngor benderfynu, yn 
flynyddol, ar Sylfaen y Dreth Gyngor a Sylfaen y Dreth Gyngor ar gyfer pob 
cymuned yn ei ardal, at ddibenion cyfrifo lefel y Dreth Gyngor am y flwyddyn 
ariannol oedd i ddod a bod y gwaith cyfrifo blynyddol wedi cael ei ddirprwyo i'r 
Bwrdd Gweithredol, o dan ddarpariaethau Adran 84 o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 
2003 a Rheoliadau Trefniadau Gweithrediaeth Awdurdodau Lleol (Swyddogaethau 
a Chyfrifoldebau) (Diwygio) (Cymru) 2004, roedd y cyfrifiad blynyddol wedi cael ei 
ddirprwyo i'r Bwrdd Gweithredol.

Roedd cyfrifiad sylfaen y Dreth Gyngor ar gyfer y Cyngor Sir am 2017-18 wedi'i 
nodi yn Nhabl 1a a chrynodeb yn Nhabl 1b, a oedd wedi'u hatodi i'r adroddiad. 
Roedd y cyfrifiad yng nghyswllt Cynghorau Tref a Chymuned unigol ar gyfer 2017-
18 wedi'i grynhoi yn Nhabl 2 a'r manylion yn Atodiad A, a oedd hefyd wedi'u hatodi 
i'r adroddiad. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL 

12.1. bod y cyfrifiadau o ran pennu Sylfaen y Dreth Gyngor ar gyfer 
blwyddyn ariannol 2017-18, fel y manylwyd arnynt yn Atodiad A o'r 
adroddiad, yn cael eu cymeradwyo;

12.2. bod Sylfaen y Dreth Gyngor o 71,598.56, fel y manylwyd arno yn 
Nhablau 1a a 1b o'r adroddiad, yn cael ei gymeradwyo yng nghyswllt 
ardal y Cyngor Sir; 

12.3. bod y sylfeini treth perthnasol yng nghyswllt y Cynghorau Cymuned a 
Thref unigol, fel y manylwyd arnynt yn nhabl 2 o'r adroddiad, yn cael 
eu cadarnhau.

13. CYNLLUN RHEOLI ASEDAU CORFFORAETHOL 2016-2019

Mae'r Cyngor yn ymgymryd ag adolygiad cynhwysfawr o'i Gynllun Rheoli Asedau 
Corfforaethol bob tair blynedd, gan osod ei flaenoriaethau o ran eiddo er mwyn 
bodloni'r amcanion a nodwyd yn y Strategaethau Corfforaethol a Chymunedol 
Integredig.  

Yn ogystal, mae'r Cynllun Rheoli Asedau Corfforaethol yn nodi'r problemau a'r 
goblygiadau o ran eiddo i wasanaethau, yn sgil newidiadau mewn agendau lleol a 
chenedlaethol. Mae'r gofynion o ran eiddo gwasanaethau yn cael eu cyfeirio atynt 
yn y Cynlluniau Rheoli Asedau Gwasanaethau yn dilyn asesiadau o addasrwydd y 
portffolio perthnasol i fodloni newidiadau o'r fath. 

Tudalen 24



Mae'r Cynllun Rheoli Asedau Corfforaethol yn adolygu perfformiad lefel uchel y 
portffolio corfforaethol ac yn tynnu sylw at yr heriau a'r blaenoriaethau allweddol 
dros y tair blynedd nesaf. 

Yn o ganlyniadau'r Asesiad Corfforaethol diweddaraf oedd y gofyniad i gryfhau'r 
cysylltiadau rhwng y Cynlluniau Rheoli Asedau Gwasanaethau a'r Cynllun Rheoli 
Asedau Corfforaethol, yn ogystal ag adolygu gwybodaeth am y gwaith cynnal a 
chadw sydd i'w wneud er mwyn llywio penderfyniadau yn well. Mae'r eitemau hyn, 
ynghyd â'r heriau y nodir isod, wedi cael eu nodi fel y blaenoriaethau allweddol ar 
gyfer materion sy'n ymwneud ag eiddo dros y tair blynedd nesaf:-

 Buddsoddi mewn safleoedd strategol er mwyn hybu twf economaidd;
 Cynnal yr Asedau Cymunedol;
 Sicrhau addasrwydd yr ystâd a gedwir;
 Edrych ar ffyrdd amgen o ddal asedau eiddo er mwyn darparu 

gwasanaethau;
 Rhagor o gydweithio gyda phartneriaid ar faterion sy'n ymwneud ag eiddo;
 Cynhyrchu Derbyniadau Cyfalaf;
 Lleihau costau refeniw.

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL y dylai fersiwn drafft o Gynllun Rheoli 
Asedau Corfforaethol 2016/2019 gael ei gymeradwyo.

14. CANLLAWIAU A CHYTUNDEB LEFEL GWASANAETH CYNGOR SIR 
CAERFYRDDIN YNGHYLCH CODI TÂL AM GYNGOR CYN CYFLWYNO CAIS 
AC AR ÔL CAEL CANIATÂD I GAIS, MEWN PERTHYNAS Â DATBLYGIADAU 
O ARWYDDOCÂD CENEDLAETHOL (DEDDF CYNLLUNIO (CYMRU) 2015) A 
PHROSIECTAU SEILWAITH O ARWYDDOCÂD CENEDLAETHOL (DEDDF 
CYNLLUNIO 2008).

Bu'r Bwrdd yn ystyried adroddiad a oedd y gofyn am gymeradwyaeth yr Awdurdod 
Cynllunio Lleol i ddechrau codi tâl am roi cyngor, cyn bod ceisiadau'n cael eu 
cyflwyno, i ddatblygwyr sydd wrthi'n llunio ceisiadau i'r Arolygiaeth Gynllunio mewn 
perthynas â datblygiadau o arwyddocâd cenedlaethol. Yn ogystal, diweddaru'r 
canllawiau/ffioedd presennol sy'n ymwneud â phrosiectau seilwaith o arwyddocâd 
cenedlaethol.  

Mae Datblygiadau o Arwyddocâd Cenedlaethol a Phrosiectau Seilwaith o 
Arwyddocâd Cenedlaethol yn ddatblygiadau seilwaith sylweddol megis cynigion ar 
gyfer pwerdai, prosiectau ynni adnewyddadwy mawr, meysydd awyr newydd, a 
helaethiadau i feysydd awyr, prosiectau ffordd sylweddol ac ati. 

Mae Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 2003 yn rhoi pwerau i Awdurdodau Cynllunio Lleol i 
adennill y costau sydd ynghlwm wrth roi cyngor cyn cyflwyno cais mewn 
cydnabyddiaeth o'r amser y mae'n rhaid i swyddogion ei dreulio yn asesu ac yn 
ymchwilio i wybodaeth er mwyn rhoi atebion i ddarpar ddatblygwyr neu asiantiaid.  
Mae'r drefn o godi tâl am gyngor cyn cyflwyno cais yn cael ei hategu ar lefel 
genedlaethol, ac mae'n arferiad sydd wedi hen ennill ei blwyf yn y rhan fwyaf o 
Awdurdodau Cynllunio Lleol.

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL ARGYMELL I'R CYNGOR

Tudalen 25



14.1  cytuno ar ddyletswyddau a gweithdrefnau cyffredinol y Cyngor wrth 
ddarparu'r gwasanaeth cynghori i ddatblygwyr prosiectau seilwaith o 
arwyddocâd cenedlaethol a datblygiadau o arwyddocâd cenedlaethol;

14.2  cytuno ar newidiadau i'r canllawiau presennol sy'n ymwneud â 
phrosiectau seilwaith o arwyddocâd cenedlaethol, a chynnwys 
darpariaethau i ymdrin â datblygiadau o arwyddocâd cenedlaethol;

14.3  cytuno ar y manylion sy'n ymwneud â chodi tâl, anfonebu a 
gweithdrefnau talu

14.4  cytuno ar y manylion sy'n berthnasol i gyfrinachedd datblygwyr.

________________________ __________________
CADEIRYDD DYDDIAD

Tudalen 26



Y BWRDD GWEITHREDOL
Ionawr 23 2017

 
Bargen Ddinesig Bae Abertawe 

Y Pwrpas: 
Pwrpas yr adroddiad hwn yw i:

- Ddiweddaru’r aelodau ar drafodaethau rhwng Llywodraeth y DU a Rhanbarth Ddinesig 
Bae Abertawe ynglŷn â phecyn buddsoddiad y Fargen ddinesig

- Ceisio cymeradwyaeth aelodau i ddirprwyo naill ai Arweinydd y Cyngor neu’r Prif 
weithredwr i arwyddo cytundeb y fargen ddinesig (Pennau’r Cytundeb) ar y sail a 
ddisgrifir yn yr adroddiad hwn.

Yr Argymhellion / Penderfyniadau Allweddol Sydd Eu Hangen:
- I ddirprwyo awdurdod i Arweinydd y Cyngor neu’r Prif Weithredwr, i arwyddo cytundeb 

y Fargen Ddinesig (Pennau’r Cytundeb) ar y sail a ddisgrifir yn yr adroddiad hwn.
 Fe argymhellir bod aelodau’n cefnogi’r penderfyniad uchod.

Y Rhesymau: 
I ddarparu cyfrifoldeb wedi ei ddirprwyo i arwyddo’r Cytundeb y Fargen Ddinesig (Pennau’r 
Cytundeb) ar y sail a ddisgrifir yn yr adroddiad hwn.  Ar y mater hwn, dylid nodi fod y dair 
Awdurdod lleol arall (Sir Benfro, Cyngor Bwrdeistref Castell Nedd a Phort Talbot a 
Chyngor dinas a sir Abertawe) yn cyflwyno adroddiadau tebyg drwy’u Cynghorau a’u 
cabinetau ar hyn o bryd.

Ymgynghorwyd â'r pwyllgor craffu perthnasol: AMHERTHNASOL    

Angen i’r Bwrdd Gweithredol wneud penderfyniad OES 

Angen i’r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad OES

YR AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:- Cyng. M. 
Gravell (ABG dros Adfywio ac Hamdden)

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth:

Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth:

Awdur yr Adroddiad:

Mark James

Swyddi: Prif Weithredwr Rhifau ffôn:01267224110

Cyfeiriadau E-bost:

mjames@sirgar.gov.uk

Tudalen 27

Eitem Rhif  6



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Executive Board
23rd January 2017

Swansea Bay City Deal
1. BRIEF SUMMARY OF PURPOSE OF REPORT
The purpose of this report is to:

- Provide Members with an update on negotiations between UK Government and the 
Swansea Bay City Region in respect of the City Deal investment package

- To seek Members’ approval to delegate to the Leader of the Council or the Chief 
Executive, authority to sign a City Deal agreement (Heads of Terms) on the basis 
described in this report.
  

Background

City Deals were first launched in 2011 and are led by UK Government. They present cities or 
city regions with an opportunity to take control of proposals that influence the growth of their 
economies. The Deals are bespoke arrangements designed to devolve ownership and 
responsibility for regeneration to the City region level. 

In February 2016, the Swansea Bay City Deal proposal was put forward by the Swansea Bay 
City Region Board which was subsequently supported by the Chancellor of the Exchequer, 
who announced in his March 2016 budget that he was opening discussions with the region. In 
the Autumn 2016 Statement, the Chancellor recommitted the UK Government’s support for a 
City Deal for the Swansea Bay City Region. 

Swansea Bay City Deal
The Swansea Bay City Deal focuses on the benefits of digital infrastructure, the energy 
sector, smart manufacturing and innovation in life science for both urban and rural areas 
across the region. Since the original submission of the City Deal proposal to the UK 
Government in February last year, an intensive period of work has led to the submission of a 
detailed bid covering 11 specific projects in October of last year.

The Swansea Bay City Deal involves a total investment of some £1.3 billion over a period of 
15 years. This consists of £241m of central government funding to be split between the two 
governments. Some £360m of other public sector funding and £673m of private sector 
contributions will make up the total investment package. 

This investment will deliver up to 9,465 new jobs for the region, contributing to an uplift in 
GVA of £1.8bn which in turn will avoid a further two decades of jobless growth.

Following the submission of the bid, there has been a series of discussions with both 
governments as well as engagement events with Assembly Members and others across the 
region. 

Prior to Christmas, a “Challenge Session” was held with Welsh Government Ministers which 
produced their agreement in principle to what is proposed. Welsh Government has provided 

Tudalen 28



assurance that funding has been set aside for this Deal

That process will be repeated very shortly in Whitehall with the Secretary of State for Wales 
and other UK Ministers and their advisors. The team that will present to Ministers will be led 
by Mark James and Cllr Rob Stewart. The Leaders and Chief executives of all 4 authorities 
will also attend.  It is hoped that Whitehall will be in a position to sign the Deal by the end of 
February. It is anticipated that once the heads of terms are agreed, each project will need to 
produce further detail on the delivery and finances.

Governance arrangements

The Swansea Bay City Deal is a partnership between 8 organisations and the private sector, 
including the 4 local authorities of Carmarthenshire, Pembrokeshire, Neath Port Talbot and 
Swansea; Abertawe Bro Morgannwg University Health Board; Swansea University; Hywel 
Dda University Health Board and the University of Wales Trinity St David’s.

Utilising the existing statutory framework, the local authorities will establish a joint committee 
which will have ultimate responsibility for the City Deal investment package.

The Funding Package

The structure of the deal in terms of financing will be based on a 15 year programme. The 
four local authorities will be asked to borrow the required sum (each Local Authority will fund 
its relevant projects) and the funding will be drawn down as projects develop over a period of 
5 years. The capital borrowing (in respect of the Government funded element) will be re-paid 
as Government funds are received over the 15 year period.  The exact level of borrowing and 
the structure and terms of the borrowing is yet to be confirmed however will be calculated 
based on the amount required per relevant local authority (please refer to Annex C) and will 
be agreed based on the principles of the Prudential Code. The cost of any external borrowing 
will be the responsibility of the relevant authority. There will be an opportunity for the 
additional Business rate income to be utilised to support part of the revenue implications of 
these projects, Welsh Government has indicated that it is supportive of this approach.

Additionally, we are currently looking at alternative proposals for investment of which equity 
options are being explored to support the projects. Again, Welsh Government has indicated 
that they are supportive of this approach Further details will be brought before Members once 
further detail is available.

Conclusion

To conclude, the City Deal provides a once in a generation opportunity to increase prosperity 
and opportunity within the region. The region’s GVA has fallen from 90% of the UK average to 
77% over the last three decades with low productivity, high economic inactivity and poor 
health just some of the key challenges facing the region. Without the City Deal proposals, 
closing the gap will be extremely challenging. 

2. OTHER OPTIONS AVAILABLE AND THEIR PROS AND CONS

The City Deal is a unique opportunity for Carmarthenshire and the wider region. There are 

Tudalen 29



currently no alternative options of this scale, particularly with the current situation around 
Brexit and EU funds.

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED ? YES 

Tudalen 30



IMPLICATIONS

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this 
report :

Signed:           M James                                                        Chief Executive                            

Policy, Crime 
& Disorder 
and 
Equalities

Legal Finance ICT Risk 
Management 
Issues 

Staffing 
Implications

Physical 
Assets  

YES YES YES YES YES YES NONE 

1. Policy, Crime & Disorder and Equalities
The Swansea Bay City Deal is a good example of working in partnership with other Councils, 
government and the business community. It shows how collaboration and joined up thinking can 
achieve more. 

Our vision in Carmarthenshire is for a Carmarthenshire that enables people to live healthy and 
fulfilled lives by working together to build strong, bilingual and sustainable communities. This will 
contribute to our Integrated Community Strategy Outcomes of:-

·         People in Carmarthenshire are Healthier
·         Carmarthenshire has a stronger and more prosperous economy.

This also supports our Corporate Strategy. Providing secure well paid jobs and training 
opportunities for local people is central to everything we are trying to achieve. In the past too 
many young people have been forced to leave Carmarthenshire to get jobs. Working across all 
sectors- public, voluntary and private-we want to increase prosperity for everyone in the county. 
The focus point of our Corporate Strategy for the economy was to ensure long-term economic and 
social benefits for Carmarthenshire through the Swansea Bay City Region, creating jobs and 
growth and developing training opportunities.

The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act  2015.

The City Deal is a good example of the 5 ways of working promoted by the Act and will make a 
significant contribution to the 7 well being goals.

The City Deal is a 15 year programme which provides an opportunity to address persistent 
challenges such as climate change, poverty, inequality, jobs and skills in a transformational and 
preventative way.

It is also an opportunity for the 4 authorities to demonstrate how they are using the five ways of 
working to maximise their contribution to the well-being goals required under the Act, through a 
major public investment programme.

Tudalen 31



2. Legal  
Utilising the existing statutory framework, the local authorities will establish a joint committee 
which will have ultimate responsibility for the City Deal investment package (please refer to Annex 
B for proposed structure). The Authority has instructed Geldards Law firm to provide advice to the 
Authority and associated partners on the constitution of a joint committee.  This work has 
commenced and will ultimately result in a joint committee agreement for the governance of the 
Swansea Bay City Deal.  Until which point, the Joint Committee will be established in shadow 
form.

3. Finance  
The structure of the deal in terms of financing will be based on a 15 year programme. The four 
local authorities will be asked to borrow the required sum (each Local Authority will fund its 
relevant projects) and the funding will be drawn down as projects develop over a period of 5 
years. The capital borrowing (in respect of the Government funded element) will be re-paid as 
Government funds are received over the 15 year period.  The exact level of borrowing and the 
structure and terms of the borrowing is yet to be confirmed however will be calculated based on 
the amount required per relevant local authority (please refer to Annex C) and will be agreed 
based on the principles of the Prudential Code. The cost of any external borrowing will be the 
responsibility of the relevant authority. There will be an opportunity for the additional Business 
rate income to be utilised to support part of the revenue implications of these projects, Welsh 
Government has indicated that it is supportive of this approach.

When further details of the investment are known, a full business case appraisal of the individual 
projects will be completed which will include the detailed funding proposals. This will be subject 
to a further report. 

Additionally, we are currently looking at alternative proposals for investment of which equity 
options are being explored to support the projects. Again, Welsh Government has indicated that 
they are supportive of this approach Further details will be brought before Members once further 
detail is available.

4. ICT 
Future IT requirements will be realised once governance structures are      
established.

5. Risk Management Issues
Each project will carry its associated risks which will be mitigated throughout the application and 
delivery process. A detailed risk analysis will be undertaken for all projects.

6. Physical Assets  
At this stage none. This will be made clearer once projects are at a further developed stage.

7. Staffing Implications
Project specific teams will be appointed to deliver. Carmarthenshire County Council is 
currently leading on the secretariat role for the City Deal.

Tudalen 32



CONSULTATIONS

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed 
below

Signed:    M James                                                              Chief Executive                                                

1. Scrutiny Committee
A report on the City Deal went through the political process in February 2016. 

2.Local Member(s)  
Members seminar on the City Deal was held on the 27th July 2016.

3.Community / Town Council 

4.Relevant Partners  

5.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations  

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information

List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW     

Title of Document File Ref No. Locations that the papers are available for public inspection 

The Internet Coast N/A Swansea Bay City Region website
www.swanseabaycityregion.com

Tudalen 33



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Executive Board 
23rd January 2017

Swansea Bay City Deal

 Designation.

Mark James, Chief Executive

Directorate

Chief Executives

Telephone No.

01267 224110

Author &  Designation 

Mark James, Chief Executive

Directorate

Chief Executives

Telephone No

01267 224110

1. BRIEF SUMMARY OF PURPOSE OF REPORT.

The purpose of this report is to:

- Provide Members with an update on negotiations between UK Government and the 
Swansea Bay City Region in respect of the City Deal investment package

- To seek Members’ approval to delegate to the Leader of the Council or the Chief 
Executive, authority to sign a City Deal agreement (Heads of Term) on the basis 
described in this report.

 
ANY DECISIONS REQUIRED, IF ANY

- To delegate authority to the Leader of the Council or Chief Executive, to sign a City Deal 
agreement (Heads of Terms) on the basis described in this report. 

2. RECOMMENDATION(S)
It is recommended that Members support the above decisions.

3. REASON(S)
To provide delegated authority to sign the City Deal agreement (heads of term) on the basis 
described in this report.  In this regard, it should be noted that the other three local 
authorities (Pembrokeshire County Council, Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council and 
the City and County of Swansea) are taking similar reports to their Cabinets and Councils at 
this time.

Tudalen 35



4. BACKGROUND AND EXPLANATION OF ISSUES

Background

City Deals were first launched in 2011 and are led by UK Government. They present cities or city 
regions with an opportunity to take control of proposals that influence the growth of their 
economies. The Deals are bespoke arrangements designed to devolve ownership and 
responsibility for regeneration to the City region level. 

The first ‘wave’ of City Deals were signed in July 2012 by eight core cities (Birmingham, Bristol, 
Leeds, Liverpool, Manchester, Newcastle, Nottingham and Sheffield), each having negotiated the 
devolution of certain powers with Central Government. This involves, for example, control over 
local transport, strategic planning, business support and skills provision. By July 2014, 20 further 
City Deals had been negotiated with a range of smaller English cities and city-regions. Scotland 
had their first Deal for Glasgow and Clyde Valley signed in August 2014. 

In February 2016, the Swansea Bay City Deal proposal was put forward by the Swansea Bay 
City Region Board which was subsequently supported by the Chancellor of the Exchequer, who 
announced in his March 2016 budget that he was opening discussions with the region. In the 
Autumn 2016 Statement, the Chancellor recommitted the UK Government’s support for a City 
Deal for the Swansea Bay City Region. 

The Swansea Bay City Deal - Update on current position

The Swansea Bay City Deal focuses on the benefits of digital infrastructure, the energy sector, 
smart manufacturing and innovation in life science for both urban and rural areas across the 
region. Since the original submission of the City Deal proposal to the UK Government in 
February last year, an intensive period of work has led to the submission of a detailed bid 
covering 11 specific projects in October of last year. The projects are summarised later in this 
report at Annex A.

Following the submission of the bid, there has been a series of discussions with both 
governments as well as engagement events with Assembly Members and others across the 
region. Mark James, as lead Chief Executive for the City Deal and Cllr Rob Stewart as lead 
Leader (Leader of Swansea City Council), also led a delegation of prominent private sector 
businesses including Fujitsu, Siemens Healthcare and Wavehub to meet with the Secretary of 
State for Wales in early December to demonstrate the strong commitment and confidence that 
the private sector have in both the City Deal proposal and the future of the region. A further 
meeting was held on the 17th January between the Secretary of State, Sir Terry Matthews and 
BT Wales. 

Prior to Christmas, a “Challenge Session” was held with Welsh Government Ministers which 
produced their agreement in principle to what is proposed. Welsh Government has provided 
assurance that funding has been set aside for this Deal

That process will be repeated very shortly in Whitehall with the Secretary of State for Wales and 
other UK Ministers and their advisors. The team that will present to Ministers will be led by Mark 

Tudalen 36



James and Cllr Rob Stewart. The Leaders and Chief executives of all 4 authorities will also 
attend.  It is hoped that Whitehall will be in a position to sign the Deal by the end of February.

It is anticipated that once the heads of terms are agreed, each project will need to produce 
further detail on the delivery and finances.

The City Deal for Swansea Bay 
The Swansea Bay City Deal sets out a transformational approach to how the region will deliver 
the scale and nature of investment needed to support the area’s plans for growth. The Deal stems 
from the recommendations of the Swansea Bay City Region Economic Regeneration Strategy 
2013-2030, which was endorsed by Carmarthenshire County Council’s Executive Board on 2nd 
December 2013. In turn, Carmarthenshire County Councils Economic Transformational Strategy 
2015-2030 aligns with its aspirations.

The Swansea Bay City Deal involves a total investment of some £1.3 billion over a period of 15 
years. This consists of £241m of central government funding to be split between the two 
governments. Some £360m of other public sector funding and £673m of private sector 
contributions will make up the total investment package. 

This investment will deliver up to 9,465 new jobs for the region, contributing to an uplift in Gross 
Value Added (GVA) of £1.8bn which in turn will avoid a further two decades of jobless growth. 
The City Deal for the Swansea Bay City Region provides a once in a generation opportunity to 
further consolidate the region’s role in technological innovation and  to become lead innovators 
in developing and commercialising solutions to some of the most pressing challenges in the 
fields of life sciences, energy, smart manufacturing and digital networks in both urban and rural 
areas.

Key elements of the Swansea Bay City Deal
The City Deal proposal for the region consists of a package of 11 projects which are focused on 
4 key strands, namely:

- Internet of economic acceleration
- Internet of energy
- Internet of Life Science and Wellbeing
- Internet of Smart manufacturing

A summary of the overall package is included in Annex A.

Whilst the County will benefit from all of the City Deal proposals, the following projects are being 
specifically lead by Carmarthenshire:

Life Science & Wellbeing Village

Total investment: £199.5m

City Deal funding: £40m

Tudalen 37



Match funding: £32m Carmarthenshire County Council; £127.5m private sector funds

Jobs created:  1853 direct jobs

Increase in GVA: £467m over 15 years

The Llanelli Life Science and Wellbeing Village aims to deliver transformational social and 
economic benefits through delivering the full scope of the Life Science and Wellbeing Village 
definition, namely the integration of business development, education, wellness initiatives, 
research and development and healthcare initiatives. The project will consist of the following 
aspects:

- The Institute of Life Science in Llanelli will cater for latent Technology Readiness Level 
R&D with corresponding business start-up and incubation capability, whilst also offering 
larger commercially available office, laboratory and clinic space for growing indigenous 
companies and attracting companies new to the region. 

- The Wellness Hub will house leisure and sports provision, Well-Being promotion and 
community and Third sector groups, as well as being a central venue for local community 
activities in Llanelli. The Wellness Hub will have links to other areas of the village 
including the Life Science and Well being Centre for example for social prescribing and 
expansion of exercise referral schemes.

- The Assisted Living Village will deliver supportive care out of hospital for patients who 
are fit for hospital discharge and provide high quality flats and houses for those that need 
longer term supportive care. These properties will be highly innovative, featuring 
assistive living technologies to promote independent living and quality of life. 

- The Life Science and Wellbeing Centre will be a multidisciplinary environment where 
services can be accessed to facilitate improvement in the wellness of the population and 
outcomes for those already within the health system. In conjunction with this, a network 
of training opportunities will be developed aimed at making a significant contribution to 
meeting the skills shortage in the area through integrated working with the on-site health 
and wellbeing provision between the private, public and third sectors.

Skills and Talent initiative

Total investment: £30m

City Deal funding: £10m

Match funding: £16m public funds, £4m private sector funds

The City Deal will be underpinned by the Skills and Talent initiative, being led by the SW Wales 
Regional & Skills Partnership, which will be a key component in ensuring that local people and 
businesses have the appropriate skills to benefit from each of the City Deal projects.

The delivery of the City Deal is highly dependent upon the attraction, creation and importantly the 
retention of skilled and talented people within the region. The Skills and Talent initiative will 
provide a regional approach to delivering skills focusing on specific sector skills required in order 
to meet the demand of the City Deal themes of ‘Digital, Life science and Wellbeing, Energy and 

Tudalen 38



Smart Manufacturing.  The project will provide the skills solutions for each of the four themes of 
the City Deal including:

- Advanced skills: Leading innovation across the Four Internet themes of the Internet Coast 
proposal.  The advanced skills offer will support the new and emerging technologies 
contained within the constituent proposal bids. 

- Under/Postgraduate Expansion: providing increased productivity through greater graduate 
skills application across the Four themes 

- Further/Higher Education: delivering skills for new roles within the theme sectors, through 
Foundation Degree, programmes, Apprenticeships and Higher Apprenticeships.  
Delivering innovation will include new blended learning approaches.  

- Continuing Professional Development: ensuring the region’s skills across the themes 
remains at the forefront of professional practice.

- Apprenticeships: support the integration of apprenticeship opportunities throughout the 
Skills and Talented Future Generations project.

- Skills facilities development: creation of sector-specific facilities to support the 
development of new emerging skills/roles and the creation of a step-change in capacity 
across the region.

- Schools engagement to influence curriculum development and delivery to ensure the 
adequate supply of young people with the right skill set.

- Careers engagement to enthuse young people and influence career decisions. 

Creative Digital Cluster – Yr Egin

Total investment: £24.3m

City Deal funding: £5m

Match funding from other sources: £19.3m (University of Wales Trinity St David’s)

Jobs created: 203 new jobs created

GVA increase:  £91m over 15 years.              

Yr Egin will create a digital and creative industry cluster within Carmarthen, joined by S4C as 
the key anchor tenant and approximately 28 other digital and creative media SMEs as tenants. 
The centre will create a clustering effect which will create major and positive change in the 
creative and digital economy of Wales. This development will also contain business accelerator 
facilities, incubation, as well as shared spaces for interaction between each of the tenants, 
driving entrepreneurial development.

Tudalen 39



Governance arrangements

The Swansea Bay City Deal is a partnership between 8 organisations and the private sector, 
including the 4 local authorities of Carmarthenshire, Pembrokeshire, Neath Port Talbot and 
Swansea; Abertawe Bro Morgannwg University Health Board; Swansea University; Hywel Dda 
University Health Board and the University of Wales Trinity St David’s.

Utilising the existing statutory framework, the local authorities will establish a joint committee 
which will have ultimate responsibility for the City Deal investment package (please refer to 
Annex B for proposed structure).

The establishment of the Joint Committee is linked to the Welsh Government’s local 
government reform agenda in the context of a push towards a greater regional working on 
economic development, transport and strategic planning.  The proposed Joint Committee 
therefore represents a good vehicle for both the City Deal and wider local government 
collaboration.  

On behalf of the wider partners, the Authority has instructed Geldards Law firm to provide 
advice to the Authority and associated partners on the constitution of a joint committee.  This 
work has commenced and will ultimately result in a joint committee agreement for the 
governance of the Swansea Bay City Deal.  Until which point, the Joint Committee will be 
established in shadow form.

Beneath the Joint Committee, individual themes will have their own governance boards to 
reflect the skills and experience required to oversee delivery. The private sector will play a 
prominent role at all levels of governance.

A delivery team will be appointed, reporting directly to the Joint Committee, and will be 
responsible for:

- Supporting and enabling the joint committee to function effectively
- Monitor delivery and impact at a project and theme level
- Ensure financial probity 
- Develop a strategic communications plan and support individual projects in 

communicating to stakeholders and local citizens.

The Welsh Government has been asked to make funding available to support the delivery team. 
This will need to be matched in cash by the four local authorities, the Universities, the Local 
Health Boards and potentially other partners. Initially, it is proposed to fund any Council 
contribution (circa £25,000 per annum based on current City Region Board agreement) from 
within existing resources.  

The Funding Package

As noted above, the City Deal will invest £1.3bn into the Swansea Bay City Region. The Deal 
will consist of £241m of central government funding to be split between the two governments. 
Some £360m of other public sector funding and £673m of private sector contributions will make 

Tudalen 40



up the total investment package. Welsh Government has provided assurance that funding has 
been set aside.

Funding proposals

The structure of the deal in terms of financing will be based on a 15 year programme. The four 
local authorities will be asked to borrow the required sum (each Local Authority will fund its 
relevant projects) and the funding will be drawn down as projects develop over a period of 5 
years. The capital borrowing (in respect of the Government funded element) will be re-paid as 
Government funds are received over the 15 year period.  The exact level of borrowing and the 
structure and terms of the borrowing is yet to be confirmed however it will be calculated based 
on the amount required per relevant local authority (please refer to Annex C) and will be agreed 
based on the principles of the Prudential Code. The cost of any external borrowing will be the 
responsibility of the relevant authority. There will be an opportunity for the additional Business 
rate income to be utilised to support part of the revenue implications of these projects, Welsh 
Government has indicated that it is supportive of this approach.

Additionally, we are currently looking at alternative proposals for investment of which equity 
options are being explored to support the projects. Again, Welsh Government has indicated that 
they are supportive of this approach Further details will be brought before Members once further 
detail is available.

Each of the individual projects will be subject to individual business case which will detail the 
financing arrangements.  

Conclusion

To conclude, the City Deal provides a once in a generation opportunity to increase prosperity 
and opportunity within the region. The City Deal proposals will harness digital hyper 
connectivity, life science, smart manufacturing and renewable energy technologies to create 
9465 jobs and £1.8bn additional GVA.

The region’s GVA has fallen from 90% of the UK average to 77% over the last three decades 
with low productivity, high economic inactivity and poor health just some of the key challenges 
facing the region. Without the City Deal proposals, closing the gap will be extremely 
challenging. 

5. OTHER OPTIONS AVAILABLE, AND THEIR PROS AND CONS
The City Deal is a unique opportunity for Carmarthenshire and the wider region. There are 
currently no alternative options of this scale, particularly with the current situation around Brexit 
and EU funds.

Tudalen 41



6. IMPLICATIONS:

1. POLICY AND CRIME & DISORDER  

The Swansea Bay City Deal is a good example of working in partnership with other Councils, 
government and the business community. It shows how collaboration and joined up thinking can 
achieve more. 

Our vision in Carmarthenshire is for a Carmarthenshire that enables people to live healthy and 
fulfilled lives by working together to build strong, bilingual and sustainable communities. This will 
contribute to our Integrated Community Strategy Outcomes of:-

·         People in Carmarthenshire are Healthier
·         Carmarthenshire has a stronger and more prosperous economy.

This also supports our Corporate Strategy. Providing secure well paid jobs and training 
opportunities for local people is central to everything we are trying to achieve. In the past too 
many young people have been forced to leave Carmarthenshire to get jobs. Working across all 
sectors- public, voluntary and private-we want to increase prosperity for everyone in the county. 
The focus point of our Corporate Strategy for the economy was to ensure long-term economic 
and social benefits for Carmarthenshire through the Swansea Bay City Region, creating jobs 
and growth and developing training opportunities.

The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015.

The City Deal is a good example of the 5 ways of working promoted by the Act and will make a 
significant contribution to the 7 well being goals.

The City Deal is a 15 year programme which provides an opportunity to address persistent 
challenges such as climate change, poverty, inequality, jobs and skills in a transformational and 
preventative way.

It is also an opportunity for the 4 authorities to demonstrate how they are using the five ways of 
working to maximise their contribution to the well-being goals required under the Act, through a 
major public investment programme.

2. LEGAL  
Utilising the existing statutory framework, the local authorities will establish a joint committee 
which will have ultimate responsibility for the City Deal investment package (please refer to 
Annex B for proposed structure). The Authority has instructed Geldards Law firm to provide 
advice to the Authority and associated partners on the constitution of a joint committee.  This 
work has commenced and will ultimately result in a joint committee agreement for the 
governance of the Swansea Bay City Deal.  Until which point, the Joint Committee will be 
established in shadow form.

Tudalen 42



3. FINANCE  
The structure of the deal in terms of financing will be based on a 15 year programme. The four 
local authorities will be asked to borrow the required sum (each Local Authority will fund its 
relevant projects) and the funding will be drawn down as projects develop over a period of 5 
years. The capital borrowing (in respect of the Government funded element) will be re-paid as 
Government funds are received over the 15 year period.  The exact level of borrowing and the 
structure and terms of the borrowing is yet to be confirmed however will be calculated based on 
the amount required per relevant local authority (please refer to Annex C) and will be agreed 
based on the principles of the Prudential Code. The cost of any external borrowing will be the 
responsibility of the relevant authority. There will be an opportunity for the additional Business 
rate income to be utilised to support part of the revenue implications of these projects, Welsh 
Government has indicated that it is supportive of this approach.

When further details of the investment are known, a full business case appraisal of the 
individual projects will be completed which will include the detailed funding proposals. This will 
be subject to a further report. 

4. ICT 
Future IT requirements will be realised once governance structures are      
established.

5.RISK ASSESSMENT  
Each project will carry its associated risks which will be mitigated throughout the application 
and delivery process. A detailed risk analysis will be undertaken for all projects.

6.STAFFING  
Project specific teams will be appointed to deliver. Carmarthenshire County Council is 
currently leading on the secretariat role for the City Deal.

7.PHYSICAL ASSETS  
At this stage none. This will be made clearer once projects are at a further developed stage.

FEEDBACK FROM CONSULTATIONS UNDERTAKEN

1. SCRUTINY COMMITTEE & DATE

A report on the City Deal went through the political process in February 2016. In addition, a 
Members seminar on the City Deal was held on the 27th July 2016.

2. LOCAL MEMBER (S)  TO BE NAMED AND COMMENTS INCLUDED, IF ANY

Tudalen 43



3. COMMUNITY TOWN COUNCIL(S)  

4. RELEVANT PARTNERS

5. STAFF SIDE REPRESENTATIVES

7. OTHER ORGANISATIONS

8. LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS USED IN THE PREPARATION OF THE REPORT

Title of Document File Ref 
No.

Where available for public 
inspection

The Internet Coast N/A Swansea Bay City Region website
www.swanseabaycityregion.com 

Tudalen 44

http://www.swanseabaycityregion.com/


ANNEX A

INTERNET OF ECONOMIC ACCELERATION

The Vision for the region is to establish a coherent connected region, placing it at the forefront 
of digital innovation and maintaining critical infrastructure fit for purpose for the 21st Century 
digital age. Specifically this strand will deliver the following investments:

Digital Infrastructure 

Lead / Partners / Joint Partners:
Joint Partners: Neath Port Talbot CBC, CC Swansea, Pembrokeshire CC, Carmarthenshire 
CC, Swansea University, University of Wales Trinity St David (UWTSD), ABMUHB & Hywel Dda

Funding:
Investment requested from City Deal - £25m
Match funding from other sources - £30m         
Total Project Value - £55m

A regional state of the art digital infrastructure will be implemented to support each of the City 
Deal strategic themes and projects. The project will:

- Create digital infrastructure including gigabit fibre and next generation wireless networks  
that will enable  innovation  and entrepreneurship within the region

- Expansion of the provision of 4G and Wi-fi capabilities to benefit both urban and rural 
areas of the region

- Development of digital infrastructure for key sectors including energy, manufacturing and 
life sciences 

Swansea City & Waterfront Digital District

Lead / Partners / Joint Partners:
Lead: CC Swansea
Partners: Swansea University and University of Wales Trinity Saint David (UWTSD)

Funding:
Investment requested from City Deal - £50 m
Match funding from other sources - £118.2m
Total Project Value - £168.2 m

The Swansea City and Waterfront Digital District will capitalise on the next generation 
connectivity available within the region, developing a vibrant and prosperous City Centre 
that facilitates the growth of high value ICT and digitally enabled sectors, and act as a key 
driver for the regional economy. The project will include: incubation space and co-working 
areas for start-ups and small businesses, alongside global enterprise; a new City Centre 
Business District and a Digital Square and Arena. 

Tudalen 45



Creative Digital Cluster – Yr Egin

Lead / Partners / Joint Partners:
Lead: University of Wales Trinity Saint David
Partners: Carmarthenshire County Council, S4C

Funding:
Investment requested from City Deal - £5m
Match funding from other sources - £19.3m
Total Project Value - £24.3m

Yr Egin will create a digital and creative industry cluster within Carmarthen, joined by S4C as 
the key anchor tenant and approximately 28 other digital and creative media SMEs as tenants. 
The centre will create a clustering effect which will create major and positive change in the 
creative and digital economy of Wales. This development will also contain business accelerator 
facilities, incubation, as well as shared spaces for interaction between each of the tenants, 
driving entrepreneurial development.

Centre of Excellence in Next Generation Services (CENGS)

Lead / Partners / Joint Partners:
Lead: Neath Port Talbot CBC, CC Swansea, Carmarthenshire CC & Pembrokeshire CC, 
Swansea University, University of Wales Trinity Saint David, ABMUHB, Hywel Dda Health 
Board
Partners: TATA & Swansea University (SPECIFIC project) 
Funding:
Investment requested from City Deal - £23m
Match funding from other sources - £32.5m 
Total Project Value - £55.5m

The CENGS project will provide a data analytics capability to turn world class data into 
commercial systems and solutions. The Centre will bridge the gap between research and 
innovation and the ability to launch, develop and grow commercial opportunities Focusing on 
the themes of life science and energy, the core objective is to transition ‘ideas’ into private 
sector jobs creation and wealth generation.

Skills and Talent initiative

The City Deal will be underpinned by the Skills and Talent initiative, being led by the SW Wales 
Regional & Skills Partnership, which will be a key component in ensuring that local people and  
businesses have the appropriate skills to benefit from each of the City Deal themes.

The delivery of the City Deal is highly dependent upon the attraction, creation and importantly the 
retention of skilled and talented people within the region. The Skills and Talent initiative will 
provide a regional approach to delivering skills focusing on specific sector skills required in order 
to meet the demand of the City Deal themes of ‘Digital, Health and Wellbeing, Energy and Smart 
Manufacturing.

Tudalen 46



INTERNET OF ENERGY

The vision is to establish the region as globally significant in the area of energy production and 
storage whilst addressing the challenges of fuel poverty and energy security for current and 
future generations.

Specifically this strand will deliver the following investments:

Homes as Power Stations

Lead / Partners / Joint Partners: 
Lead: Neath Port Talbot CBC, CC Swansea, Carmarthenshire CC, Pembrokeshire CC. 
Partners: Swansea University 

Funding:
Investment from City Deal - £15m
Match funding from other sources - £502.1m  
Total Project Value - £517.1m

The project will create a new industry based around innovative and sustainable energy 
generation, combined with storage and efficiency. New technologies developed will be applied 
within the region, allowing homes and buildings to generate, store, and release their own 
energy. The project will also address fuel poverty, which remains a persistent challenge for 
many communities across the region.  Also a focus on broadband Internet connections and 
smart metering, and the potential for links to a local authority led ESCO (Energy Supply 
Company).

Pembroke Dock Marine
Lead / Partners / Joint Partners: 
Lead: Milford Haven Port Authority
Partners: Marine Energy Pembrokeshire (META), Offshore Renewable Energy –Catapult 
(MEECE) and Wave Hub Ltd (SPDZ) 

Funding: 
Investment Requested from City Deal – £28m 
Match funding from other sources – £48.3m 
Total Project Value - £76.3m

The project will involve the development of a marine energy test area utilising the deep port 
of Milford Haven, an energy engineering centre of excellence, and a wave energy 
demonstration zone. By creating a cluster of resources, knowledge, and capabilities, 
Pembroke Marine will accelerate technology development, enhancing the sector’s success 
and ensuring continued investment and development in other test sites on a regional, Welsh 
and UK scale.

Tudalen 47



INTERNET OF LIFE SCIENCE & WELLBEING

The vision is to place the region at the forefront of life science innovation and to be recognised 
as a destination of choice for global investment and enterprise in the field of life sciences and well 
being.

Life Science & Wellbeing Village

Lead / Partners / Joint Partners: 
Lead: Carmarthenshire County Council
Partners: ARCH Partners/Private sector investment consortium (additional partners including 
Coleg Sir Gar)

Funding:
Investment requested from City Deal - £40 m
Match funding from other sources - £159.5 m
Total Project Value - £199.5 m

The Llanelli Life Science and Wellbeing Village aims to deliver transformational social and 
economic benefits through delivering the full scope of the Life Science and Wellbeing Village 
definition, namely the integration of business development, education, wellness initiatives, 
research and development and healthcare initiatives. The project will consist of the following 
aspects:

- The Institute of Life Science in Llanelli will cater for latent Technology Readiness Level 
R&D with corresponding business start-up and incubation capability, whilst also offering 
larger commercially available office, laboratory and clinic space for growing indigenous 
companies and attracting companies new to the region. 

- The Wellness Hub will house leisure and sports provision, Well-Being promotion and 
community and Third sector groups, as well as being a central venue for local community 
activities in Llanelli. The Wellness Hub will have links to other areas of the village 
including the Life Science and Well being Centre for example for social prescribing and 
expansion of exercise referral schemes.

- The Assisted Living Village will deliver supportive care out of hospital for patients who 
are fit for hospital discharge and provide high quality flats and houses for those that need 
longer term supportive care. These properties will be highly innovative, featuring 
assistive living technologies to promote independent living and quality of life. 

- The Life Science and Wellbeing Centre will be a multidisciplinary environment where 
services can be accessed to facilitate improvement in the wellness of the population and 
outcomes for those already within the health system. In conjunction with this, a network 
of training opportunities will be developed aimed at making a significant contribution to 
meeting the skills shortage in the area through integrated working with the on-site health 
and wellbeing provision between the private, public and third sectors.

Tudalen 48



Life science & Wellbeing campus network

Lead / Partners / Joint Partners:
Lead: CC Swansea
Partners: ARCH partnership (ABMUHB, Swansea University, Hywel Dda UHB, Private Sector)
Partners/Private sector investment consortium

Funding:
Investment requested from City Deal - £15 m
Match funding from other sources - £30 m
Total Project Value - £45 m

The ‘Life Science and Wellbeing Campus network’ will build upon the successful Institute of Life 
Science initiative, providing a world-class integrated research & business incubator/park 
secondary/tertiary clinical, research and trials environment, and skills development centres. Life 
science innovation hubs and satellite sites will be created across the region, in hospital and 
primary care settings. This will strengthen the region’s capacity to commercialise research, 
attract additional inward investment, and further increase the export of high value services 
and goods, such as medical devices.

INTERNET OF SMART MANUFACTURING

The vision is to place the region at the forefront of smart manufacturing, supporting SMEs to 
harness the opportunities associated with the digital manufacturing revolution. 

Specifically this strand will deliver the following investments:

Factory of the Future

Lead / Partners / Joint Partners: 
Lead: Swansea University/Industry Consortium 
Partners: Wider Supply/Value Chain Industry Partners

Funding: 
Investment requested from City Deal - £10m
Match funding from other sources - £13.5m 
Total Project Value - £23.5m

The Factory of the Future initiative will support SMEs to invest in leading edge technologies and 
harness the opportunities associated with the digital manufacturing revolution. The project will 
have:

Tudalen 49



Two physical hubs: one for fundamental research for the initiation, development and 
demonstration of technology solutions outside the daily constraints of industry, and one for 
applied research translating fundamental work into applications in the factory. 

Four physical spokes: these will be themed regional technology demonstration and application 
spokes. The hubs and spokes will be equipped with state of the art equipment. The hubs and 
spokes will be operated by experts supported by world class academic and industrial researchers.

Steel Science
Lead / Partners / Joint Partners: 
Lead: Neath Port Talbot CBC and Swansea University 
Partners: Industry Partners

Funding:
Investment requested from City Deal - £20 m
Match funding from other sources - £60 m
Total project value - £80 m

The Centre will address the current and future challenges of sustaining primary steel-making 
capacity in the region and the UK, building upon the region’s centres of excellence and 
industrial capabilities. In doing so, it will place the region at the cutting edge of low carbon 
production and the utilisation of locally generated waste products such as chemical and raw 
materials feedstock. Steel technologists will be co-located with academic and research staff 
from Swansea and key UK partner universities supporting knowledge flow. This is a model that 
could be exported to all developed economies ensuring a vibrant, sustainable and profitable 
steel sector with regional and national product specialisms. 

Tudalen 50



ANNEX B

Tudalen 51



ANNEX C

Tudalen 52



 
 

 

 

Y BWRDD GWEITHREDOL  

IONAWR 23AIN 2017 
 

Cynllun Strategol y Gymraeg mewn Addysg (CSyGmA) 2017-2020 

Pwrpas:  

 I ystyried ymatebion i'r CSyGmA drafft yn dilyn ymgynghoriad statudol 

 I dderbyn y CSyGmA diwygiedig yng ngoleuni'r ymgynghoriad  

Yr Argymhellion / Penderfyniadau Allweddol Sydd Eu Hangen: 

1. I dderbyn adroddiad ar yr ymarferiad ymgynghori statudol 

2. I ystyried ymateb y Cyngor Sir i'r ymgynghoriad 

3. I dderbyn a chymeradwyo fersiwn terfynol o'r CSyGmA cyn ei ddanfon i Lywodraeth 
Cymru 

Y Rhesymau:  

Gesyd Deddf Trefniadaeth a Safonau Ysgol (2013) gyfrifoldeb statudol ar awdurdodau lleol i 
baratoi Cynllun Strategol y Gymraeg mewn Addysg. Galluoga'r Ddeddf y Llywodraeth i 
gymeradwyo'r cynllun, i gymeradwyo gydag addasiadau, neu wrthod y cynllun, gyda golwg at 
baratoi un arall. 

 

Mae datblygu'r cynllun yn galw ar awdurdodau lleol i ymgynghori gyda'r cyhoedd ac 
ymgynghorai statudol. Caeodd y broses ymgynghorol ar 19.12.16, gan arwain at fân 
ddiwygiadau i'r CSyGmA. Mae angen cymeradwyaeth y Bwrdd Gweithredol ar y fersiwn terfynol 
cyn ei gyflwyno i Lywodraeth Cymru. 
 

Rhag-gyfarfod y BG: 9.1.17 

Ymgynghorwyd â'r pwyllgor craffu perthnasol: DO,   

Pwyllgor Craffu Addysg a gwasanaethau Plant- 22.12.16  

Argymhellion / Sylwadau'r Pwyllgor Craffu: Yn unfrydol, fe gymeradwywyd y CSyGmA drafft 
a'r diweddariad llafar parthed yr ymgynghoriad  

Y BWRDD GWEITHREDOL: 23-01-17- i gytuno fersiwn terfynol y Cynllun Strategol y 
Gymraeg mewn Addysg  

Angen i’r Bwrdd Gweithredol wneud penderfyniad: OES  

Angen i’r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad NAC OES  
 

YR AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:- Y Cynghorydd 
Gareth Jones 

Tudalen 53

Eitem Rhif  7



 
 

 

 

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth:  

Addysg a Phlant 

Gareth Morgans 

Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth: 

Aeron Rees 

Awdur yr Adroddiad:  

Gareth Morgans,  
Aeron Rees 

Catrin Griffiths 

Swyddi: 
 
Cyfarwyddwr Addysg a Phlant 
Gweithredol 
 
Pennaeth Rhaglenni Dysgu 
Ymgynghorydd Her 
 
Cyfarwyddwr  
Pennaeth Rhaglenni Dysgu 
Ymgynghorydd Her 

Rhifau ffôn - 01267 246450 

Cyfeiriadau ebost: 

EDGMorgans@sirgar.gov.uk  

JARees@sirgar.gov.uk 

01267 246532 

CSGriffiths@sirgar.gov.uk  

01267 246641 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 54

mailto:EDGMorgans@sirgar.gov.uk
mailto:JARees@sirgar.gov.uk
mailto:CSGriffiths@sirgar.gov.uk


 
 

 

 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
EXECUTIVE BOARD 
23RD JANUARY 2017 

 

Carmarthenshire’s Welsh in Education Strategic Plan 2017-20 

The Wales School Standards and Organisation Act (2013) places a statutory duty on local 
authorities to prepare and submit a Welsh in Education Strategic Plan (WESP). WESPs detail 
how local authority's aim to achieve the Welsh Government’s outcomes and targets outlined in 
the Welsh Medium Education Strategy (WMES) which sets out the Welsh Government’s vision 
for an education and training system that responds in a planned way to the growing demand 
for Welsh-medium education. 

WESPs also have to reflect the context of the Welsh Government’s wider strategy for the Welsh 
language.  The Welsh Government’s vision is to see ‘A million Welsh speakers by 2050’.  
According to the most recent Census in 2011 there were 562,000 Welsh speakers in Wales. 
On that basis, the aim of the strategy will be to almost double the number of Welsh speakers 
by the middle of the century.  

The Welsh Government recognises that the education system is the main vehicle for ensuring 
that children are able to develop their Welsh skills, and for creating new speakers. The WESPs 
will provide the means for the Welsh Government to monitor the way in which local authorities 
respond and contribute to the implementation of these objectives. 

 The Plan should provide the strategic direction for the planning and delivery of Welsh-
medium and Welsh-language education in the authority as well as a vision statement.   

 The Plan should be approved by the Executive Board and signed by the person with 
the statutory responsibility for education within the authority.  

 The Plan needs to be underpinned and informed by Welsh Government’s current Welsh-
medium Education Strategy (April 2010) and policy statement for 2015-16 (March 2016). 

 The Plan needs to reflect the following Welsh Government policies/strategies-     
 

 Welsh Language Strategy  
 Rewriting the Future  
 Successful Futures 
 Future Generations  
 Aligning with Welsh Government’s 21st Century Schools Programme 
 Welsh-medium Education Assessment and Childcare sufficiency 

assessment 
 

The Plan will need to deliver on the following- 

 more seven-year-old children being taught through the medium of Welsh as a 
percentage of the Year 2 cohort;  

 more learners continuing to improve their language skills on transfer from primary 
school to secondary school; 

Tudalen 55



 
 

 

 

 more 14-16 year old learners studying for qualifications through the medium of 
Welsh;  

 more learners aged 16-19 studying Welsh and subjects through the medium of 
Welsh; and 

 more learners with higher skills in Welsh.  

There is a requirement to address standards of attainment in Welsh and Welsh Second 
Language, Welsh-medium provision for learners with additional learning needs (ALN) and 
workforce planning and continuing professional development (CPD). 

Consultation on the Draft WESP was required for a period of at least 8 weeks (11.10.16 to 
19.12.16). A range of stakeholders were invited to respond, including the following statutory 
consultees- 

 neighbouring local authorities 

 the headteacher of each school maintained by it 

 the governing body of each school maintained by it 

 each institution within the further education sector in its area 

 other prescribed persons. 
 

 “Other prescribed persons” are listed in Regulation 9: 

 the Welsh Language Commissioner 
 the Early Years Development and Childcare Partnership 
 school councils 
 Her Majesty’s Chief Inspector of Education and Training in Wales 
 such organisations providing services to children and young people as the local authority 

considers appropriate 
 such other persons or bodies as appear to the local authority to be appropriate. 

 
An oral presentation on the consultation and a copy of the draft WESP was provided to Scrutiny 
Committee on 22.12.16. Subsequently, the appended consultation response document 
has been prepared for Executive Board's perusal. 

In addition, minor amendments have been made to the draft WESP the finalised version 
of which is also appended for Executive Board's consideration. 

Once agreed, the Plan should be published on the local authority’s websites by 1st June 2017 
with copies made available in offices and in any other place the local authority considers 
appropriate. 

OTHER OPTIONS AVAILABLE AND THEIR PROS AND CONS 
 
Producing and publishing a WESP is required by Welsh Government, to be completed 
according to detailed guidelines and criteria. Welsh Government are empowered to approve 
the plan submitted, to approve the Plan with modifications, or reject the Plan and ask us to 
prepare another plan. 
 
DETAILED REPORTS ATTACHED? YES 

Tudalen 56



 
 

 

 

IMPLICATIONS 
 

 

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this 
report : 

 

Signed: E.D. Gareth Morgans, Interim Director of Education and Children's Services  

Policy, Crime 
& Disorder 

and 
Equalities 

 

Legal Finance ICT Risk 
Management 

Issues 

Organisational 
Development 

Physical 
Assets 

YES YES YES NONE YES NONE NONE 

1. Policy and Crime & Disorder   

Developments are consistent with the Local Authority’s and Welsh Government’s strategies and 
plans. It complies with Welsh Government statutory requirements. 

The County Council is currently developing its policy with respect to the Wellbeing of Future 
Generations Act (2015). Attaining one of the goals, 'A Wales of thriving culture and vibrant Welsh 
Language' will require significant input from the education sector, as research shows that 4/5 
people currently learn Welsh at school. 

Welsh Government is underpinning this ideal with its proposals to reach a 'million Welsh 
speakers by 2050’. Education is singled by Welsh Government as the prime medium for 
realising this vision.  

The 2011 Census saw a 6.4% decrease in Welsh speakers in Carmarthenshire. The 
recommendations emanating from the subsequent 'Welsh in Carmarthenshire' report, monitored 
by the Members' Consultative Panel on the Welsh Language, are currently being incorporated in 
an updated development plan to 2018, authored by corporate policy colleagues. There are well 
over 20 recommendations for the Department of Education and Children to administer with 
implementing the WESP being integral to this overarching strategy. 

An Equalities Impact Assessment (EIA) is being drafted to ensure that there is no discrimination, 
with respect to various groups with protected characteristics. Completion of the EIA is expected 
imminently. 

2. Legal   

Appropriate consultation has been undertaken and views from consultees considered. 

3. Finance   

As noted in the 'Welsh in Carmarthenshire' report’s recommendations, sufficient support and 
resources are required in order to develop and lead on the strategy to promote and extend Welsh 
medium education. 

5. Risk Management Issues 

Not delivering an aspirational Welsh in Education Strategic Plan could see problems being 
perpetuated and the County Council failing to meet Welsh Government requirements in respect 
of the development of Welsh medium education. This could also lead to defaulting on other 
important policy areas, as described in section 1 above 

Tudalen 57



 
 

 

 

 

CONSULTATIONS 

 

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below 

 

Signed: EDG Morgans, Interim Director of Education and Children's Services      

 

1. Scrutiny Committee 

Education and Children’s Services Scrutiny Committee were consulted informally from 
the 11-10-16 and formally on 22-12-16. The Draft WESP and oral 
feedback/presentation were unanimously received. 

2. Local Member(s)   

All Elected Members have had an opportunity to respond to the draft Welsh in Education 
Strategic Plan.  In addition they have the opportunity to respond as members of a 
Governing Body. 

3. Community / Town Council  

Not one of the statutory consultees. 

4. Relevant Partners   

A range of partners have been consulted - list in the report. 

5. Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations   

School staff unions have had an opportunity to respond during the formal consultation 
stage. 

 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 

List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW      

Title of Document 

 

File Ref No. Locations that the papers are available for public inspection  

Welsh in Education 
Strategic Plans 2017-
2020- Welsh Government 
Guidance 

 Education Office, St David’s Park 
 

Well Being of Future 
Generations Act (2015) 

 http://gov.wales/docs/dsjlg/publications/150623-guide-to-the-
fg-act-en.pdf  
http://gov.wales/docs/dsjlg/publications/150623-guide-to-the-
fg-act-cy.pdf  

Tudalen 58

http://gov.wales/docs/dsjlg/publications/150623-guide-to-the-fg-act-en.pdf
http://gov.wales/docs/dsjlg/publications/150623-guide-to-the-fg-act-en.pdf
http://gov.wales/docs/dsjlg/publications/150623-guide-to-the-fg-act-cy.pdf
http://gov.wales/docs/dsjlg/publications/150623-guide-to-the-fg-act-cy.pdf


CSyGMA- Fersiwn 3: 13-01-17 

1

Cynllun Strategol 
Cymraeg mewn Addysg

SIR GAERFYRDDIN
2017-2020

Tudalen 59



CSyGMA- Fersiwn 3: 13-01-17 

2

Ôl-Nodyn: Derbyniwyd nifer o sylwadau cadarnhaol yn ystod y broses ymgynghorol. 
Er nad yw rheiny’n eu hanfod yn newid y naratif a amlinellwyd yn y cynllun strategol 
hwn, fe roddir ystyriaeth bellach i awgrymiadau yn y cynllun gweithredu a fydd yn 
deillio o’r ddogfen yma.

Tudalen 60



CSyGMA- Fersiwn 3: 13-01-17 

3

1. Ein gweledigaeth yw: Sir Gaerfyrddin ddwyieithog.
Er mwyn cyflawni hyn byddwn yn:  Sicrhau twf sylweddol mewn addysg a hyfforddiant 
cyfrwng Cymraeg i gynyddu nifer y bobl o bob oed sy’n dod yn rhugl mewn Cymraeg a 
Saesneg ac sydd â’r gallu i ddefnyddio’u hieithoedd yn hyderus gyda’u teuluoedd, yn eu 
cymunedau ac yn y gweithle.

2. Egwyddorion

 Mae addysg cyfrwng Cymraeg ar gael i’r holl ddysgwyr, o fewn pellter teithio rhesymol 
i’w cartrefi.

 Bydd disgwyl i ddysgwyr sydd wedi dilyn y rhaglen Cymraeg Iaith 1af yn yr ysgol 
gynradd barhau â’r rhaglen hon wrth drosglwyddo i’r ysgol uwchradd.

 Gweithio gyda gwasanaethau eraill i hyrwyddo a chynyddu dwyieithrwydd.

 Dathlu cynnydd ac ymrwymiad i ddatblygu’r Gymraeg

 Bydd pob dysgwr yn dod yn rhugl mewn ‘dwy iaith a mwy’.

 Mae dysgwyr ag anghenion dysgu ychwanegol yn cael cyfle ieithyddol cyfartal..

3. Amcanion

 Sicrhau bod pob disgybl yn gwbl ddwyieithog (ac amlieithog) wrth adael yr ysgol fel 
bod ganddynt y sgiliau i weithredu fel dinasyddion dwyieithog yn eu cymunedau, y 
gweithle a’r tu hwnt/yn fyd-eang.

 Hyrwyddo manteision gwybyddol, economaidd, cymdeithasol, addysgol, iechyd a 
chymunedol dwyieithrwydd.

 Hybu datblygiad sgiliau dwyieithog dysgwyr ar bob cyfle o fewn sefyllfaoedd ffurfiol 
ac anffurfiol fel bod y Gymraeg yn cael ei defnyddio’n naturiol i gyfathrebu.

 Hyrwyddo cyfleoedd i rieni a’r teulu ehangach ddatblygu eu sgiliau Cymraeg fel eu 
bod yn gallu cefnogi datblygiad iaith eu plant.

 Darparu gwasanaethau a fydd yn sicrhau cyfleoedd dysgu o ansawdd da ar gyfer holl 
blant, pobl ifanc ac oedolion Sir Gaerfyrddin, a thrwy hynny’n eu galluogi i wireddu 
eu llawn botensial fel dysgwyr gydol oes yng nghyd-destun natur ddwyieithog 
unigryw’r Sir.

 Sicrhau bod y Gymraeg yn cael ei haddysgu fel iaith 1af a/neu 2il iaith yn ein holl 
ysgolion, yn unol â Deddf Addysg 2002, a pharatoi’n rhagweithiol ar gyfer addysgu 
Cymraeg fel un continwwm erbyn 2020.

 Sicrhau bod yr holl ddisgyblion yn gallu siarad, darllen ac ysgrifennu’r iaith yn rhugl 
erbyn diwedd Cyfnod Allweddol 2 yn unol â’u cam datblygiad disgwyliedig.

Tudalen 61



CSyGMA- Fersiwn 3: 13-01-17 

4

 Sicrhau dilyniant o ddarpariaeth gyn-ysgol cyfrwng Cymraeg i addysg gynradd ac 
uwchradd ddwyieithog. 

 Sicrhau dilyniant ieithyddol ar draws meysydd cwricwlaidd wrth drosglwyddo o 
Gyfnod Allweddol 2 i Gyfnod Allweddol 3, o Gyfnod Allweddol 3 i Gyfnod Allweddol 4 
a hybu dilyniant ieithyddol o Gyfnod Allweddol 4 i ddysgu gydol oes.

 Datblygu datganiad Sirol eglur o ran disgwyliadau wrth ystyried cymhwysedd 
disgyblion a’r angen i sicrhau her briodol i’r holl ddisgyblion er mwyn iddynt wireddu 
eu potensial addysgol yn llawn;

 Gweithio mewn partneriaeth gyda’r holl ddarparwyr i wella safon y Gymraeg o fewn yr 
amgylchedd ddysgu .

 Datblygu a hyrwyddo rhaglenni hyfforddi a fydd yn galluogi’r gweithlu ysgolion i ennill 
y cymhwysedd a’r hyder i addysgu trwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg. 

 Sicrhau bod hwyrddyfodiaid yn gallu gwneud y defnydd gorau o’r athrawon sy’n 
cefnogi datblygiad y Gymraeg er mwyn iddynt allu integreiddio’n naturiol yn eu hysgol 
a’u cymuned leol.

4. Cysylltiadau â Pholisïau Llywodraeth Cymru

Ailysgrifennu’r Dyfodol- Rydym yn ymrwymedig i egwyddor codi dyhead a chyrhaeddiad 
yn ysgolion Sir Gaerfyrddin trwy weithio’n frwd i ddileu’r rhwystrau a wynebir gan ddysgwyr 
o gefndiroedd difreintiedig. Byddwn yn rhoi cymorth priodol i ddysgwyr gan gynnwys defnydd 
effeithiol a phriodol o’r Grant Amddifadedd Disgyblion ym mhob lleoliad.

Dyfodol Llwyddiannus- Mae rôl y Gymraeg yn y cwricwlwm newydd i Gymru yn cael ei 
datgan yn eglur ac yn fynych yn y weledigaeth a geir yn y ddogfen Dyfodol Llwyddiannus. 
Rydym ni’n ymrwymedig, trwy lunio cwricwlwm ar gyfer Sir Gaerfyrddin, i hyrwyddo’r 
Gymraeg fel pwnc, fel cyfrwng addysgu, fel cymhwysedd ac fel yr iaith ar gyfer cyfathrebu 
anffurfiol yn ein hysgolion.

Deddf Llesiant Cenedlaethau’r Dyfodol (Cymru) 2015 - Rydym yn ymrwymo i greu Sir 
Gaerfyrddin sy’n gymdeithas sy’n hyrwyddo ac yn gwarchod diwylliant, treftadaeth a’r 
Gymraeg, ac sy’n annog pobl i gyfranogi yn y celfyddydau, a chwaraeon a hamdden. 

Strategaeth Ddrafft Llywodraeth Cymru- miliwn o siaradwyr Cymraeg erbyn 2050- 
Rydym yn ymrwymo i gyflawni cynnydd sylweddol yn nifer y plant a phobl ifanc sy’n cael 
addysg Gymraeg ac yn meddu ar sgiliau yn y Gymraeg, gan mai dim ond trwy alluogi mwy 
o bobl i ddysgu Cymraeg y bydd yn bosibl gwireddu’r uchelgais i fod â miliwn o siaradwyr 
Cymraeg ledled Cymru. Byddwn yn canolbwyntio ar y blynyddoedd cynnar, oherwydd po 
gynharaf y mae plentyn yn cael cyswllt â’r iaith, po fwyaf o gyfle sydd gan y plentyn i ddod 
yn rhugl.

Ysgolion yr 21ain Ganrif a’r Rhaglen Addysg- Bydd rhaglen fuddsoddi Sir Gaerfyrddin yn 
ystyried y Cynllun Strategol Cymraeg mewn Addysg ac yn gweithio i ddatblygu 
amgylcheddau dysgu a fydd yn ei gwneud yn bosibl mynd ati’n llwyddiannus i gyflawni 
strategaethau ar gyfer gwella a deilliannau addysgol gwell.

Tudalen 62



CSyGMA- Fersiwn 3: 13-01-17 

5

5. Mae gan awdurdodau lleol ddyletswydd statudol dan Adran 10 o 
Fesur Teithio gan Ddysgwyr (Cymru) 2008 i hybu mynediad at 
addysg a hyfforddiant trwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg.

Mae’r awdurdod lleol yn ateb gofynion Adran 10 o Fesur Teithio gan Ddysgwyr (Cymru) 2008. Mae 
addysg gynradd cyfrwng Cymraeg ar gael ym mron pob cymuned yn Sir Gaerfyrddin. Mae rhai 
ardaloedd e.e. Talacharn/Tremoilet/Llanmiloe lle mae mynediad at addysg cyfrwng Cymraeg yn her. 
Mae gan y Cyngor Sir gynllun i ymateb i’r mater hwn. Yn y sector uwchradd mae addysg cyfrwng 
Cymraeg ar gael i’r holl ddisgyblion. Mae pob cymuned ysgol yn rhan o ddalgylch ysgol cyfrwng 
Cymraeg benodedig

6. Rôl a Chylch Gwaith y Fforwm Iaith

 Helpu i ddatblygu’r Cynllun Strategol Cymraeg mewn Addysg ac adnabod a 
datblygu mesurau perfformiad er mwyn i’r amcanion a’r targedau gael eu 
mesur/cyflawni/cyrraedd. 

 Monitro amcanion a thargedau’r Cynllun Strategol Cymraeg mewn Addysg a 
sicrhau eu bod yn cael eu cyflawni/cyrraedd.

 Sicrhau y croesgyfeirir at strategaethau a chynlluniau perthnasol eraill e.e. y 
Strategaeth Gymunedol Integredig

 Cynghori ynghylch cynnal Arolwg o’r Angen i gynghori ynghylch datblygu addysg 
cyfrwng Cymraeg

 Ystyried data ar gyrhaeddiad a chael adroddiadau ar agweddau penodol ar y 
Cynllun

 Ystyried yr adroddiadau monitro a ddarperir ar gyfer Llywodraeth Cymru a gwneud 
sylwadau arnynt.

 Darparu adborth ar gyfer y Pwyllgor Craffu, Panel Ymgynghorol yr Aelodau ar yr 
Iaith Gymraeg a phwyllgorau eraill yn ôl y gofyn

 Cael tystiolaeth gan bartïon/partneriaid perthnasol ac ystyried ffyrdd y gall y Cyngor 
a’r gymuned ehangach fynd i’r afael â her y gostyngiad yn nifer y siaradwyr 
Cymraeg 

 Rhoi cymorth a her o ran gweithredu’r Cynllun Strategol Cymraeg mewn Addysg.

 Rhannu arfer effeithiol.

Tudalen 63



CSyGMA- Fersiwn 3: 13-01-17 

6

7. Deilliannau a Chynllun Gweithredu

Deilliant 1: Mwy o blant saith oed yn cael eu haddysgu trwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg
Mae’r sefyllfa bresennol o ran nifer y plant saith oed a addysgir trwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg a’n 
targedau ar gyfer y tair blynedd nesaf fel a ganlyn -

Sefyllfa bresennol 2017/2018 2018/2019 2019/2020
58.2% 59% 60% 61%

Er mwyn cyflawni’r deilliant hwn byddwn yn -

 Gweithio gyda darparwyr gofal plant/cyn-ysgol i gynyddu nifer y dysgwyr sy’n dewis addysg 
cyfrwng Cymraeg, trwy hyrwyddo manteision dwyieithrwydd.

 Cyflawni consensws i gynyddu nifer y lleoedd cyfrwng Cymraeg a chynorthwyo ysgolion i 
symud ar hyd y continwwm iaith.

 Hyrwyddo’r Siarteri Iaith a mentrau eraill er mwyn datblygu’r defnydd o’r Gymraeg y tu allan 
i ddysgu ffurfiol

 Sicrhau safonau cyrhaeddiad uchel mewn Cymraeg ym mhob ysgol.

Datganiad Ategol:

Yn Sir Gaerfyrddin mae addysg gyn-ysgol yn cael ei darparu gan ysgolion a lleoliadau nas 
cynhelir. Byddwn yn gweithio gyda phartneriaid i gynyddu’r ddarpariaeth cyfrwng Cymraeg gan 
dargedu ardaloedd lle nad oes darpariaeth ar gael ar hyn o bryd. Byddwn yn rhoi cymorth ac 
arweiniad trwy ein tîm Blynyddoedd Cynnar ac yn rhannu deunyddiau ynglŷn  â gwerth 
dwyieithrwydd gyda rhieni fel bod ganddynt ddealltwriaeth well a’u bod yn gallu gwneud 
penderfyniadau gwybodus ynghylch addysg statudol.

Byddwn yn rhoi cymorth ac arweiniad i ysgolion trwy ein tîm AGGaD o ran sut i ymateb i 
ymholiadau rhieni. Byddwn yn rhannu deunyddiau gyda rhieni/gofalwyr/gwarcheidwaid ynglŷn â 
gwerth dwyieithrwydd er mwyn iddynt fod â dealltwriaeth well a gallu gwneud penderfyniadau 
gwybodus yn ystod pob cyfnod pontio. 

Byddwn yn sicrhau bod rhieni, drwy ein llyfryn Gwybodaeth i Rieni yn gwybod pa ysgolion sy’n 
cynnig darpariaeth y Cyfnod Sylfaen a Chyfnodau Allweddol 2-5 drwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg. Mae'r 
wybodaeth am natur ieithyddol pob ysgol, yn unol â dogfen 'Diffinio ysgolion yn ôl darpariaeth 
cyfrwng Cymraeg' Llywodraeth Cymru, 2008, ar gael ar wefan y Cyngor Sir.

http://www.sirgar.llyw.cymru/cartref/preswylwyr/addysg-ac-ysgolion/dod-o-hyd-i-
ysgol/#.WAo01MuV-1s 

Mae’r diffiniad presennol o’n hysgolion cynradd fel a ganlyn-

Math o ysgol Nifer % Nifer y disgyblion
Cyfrwng Cymraeg 58 58.6 6784
Trawsnewidiol 2 2 292
Dwy Ffrwd 11 11.1 2885
Cyfrwng Saesneg gyda defnydd sylweddol o’r Gymraeg 3 3 698
Cyfrwng Saesneg 25 25.3 4626

Er mwyn cynyddu nifer y lleoedd cyfrwng Cymraeg sydd ar gael byddwn yn ail-gyflunio’r 

Tudalen 64

http://www.sirgar.llyw.cymru/cartref/preswylwyr/addysg-ac-ysgolion/dod-o-hyd-i-ysgol/#.WAo01MuV-1s
http://www.sirgar.llyw.cymru/cartref/preswylwyr/addysg-ac-ysgolion/dod-o-hyd-i-ysgol/#.WAo01MuV-1s


CSyGMA- Fersiwn 3: 13-01-17 

7

ddarpariaeth bresennol trwy wneud y canlynol-

 Datblygu mwy o ofal plant/darpariaeth cyn-ysgol cyfrwng Cymraeg
 Cynorthwyo ein hysgolion dwy ffrwd a thrawsnewidiol presennol i ddod yn ysgolion cyfrwng 

Cymraeg
 Buddsoddi mewn sefydlu ysgolion Cymraeg/dwy ffrwd newydd gan ddefnyddio cyllid 

Rhaglen Ysgolion yr 21ain Ganrif ac Adran 106 os yn briodol..
 Cynorthwyo ysgolion cyfrwng Saesneg i ddatblygu darpariaeth cyfrwng Cymraeg yn y 

Cyfnod Sylfaen.
 Ymestyn ystod oedran ysgolion penodol a chreu lle i gynnig darpariaeth blynyddoedd 

cynnar cyfrwng Cymraeg.
 Byddwn, gyda phartneriaid, yn monitro’n barhaus  y galw am addysg cyfrwng Cymraeg yn 

ein hardaloedd trefol gan hyrwyddo ac ehangu darpariaeth yn ôl yr angen.
 Mae capasiti ysgolion Sir Gaerfyrddin yn cael ei fonitro yn rheolaidd ac mae cynlluniau yn 

cael eu rhoi ar waith i ymdrin ag unrhyw faterion. Ym mis Ionawr 2016, roedd gan 33% o 
ysgolion cynradd a 42% o ysgolion uwchradd gapasiti yn llai na 10%.

 Ystyried datblygiadau economaidd a thai ar effaith ar leoedd ysgol gan ehangu darpariaeth 
yn ôl yr angen. 

Byddwn yn gweithio gyda phartneriaid e.e. Llywodraeth Cymru, ERW, y Mentrau Iaith, Prifysgol 
Cymru y Drindod Dewi Sant i gwblhau ein deunydd hyrwyddo ynglŷn â manteision dwyieithrwydd. 
Byddwn yn sicrhau bod ein holl gyhoeddiadau’n seiliedig ar yr ymchwil wyddonol fwyaf diweddar 
a pherthnasol. Byddwn yn defnyddio astudiaethau achos ac enghreifftiau lleol o effaith gadarnhaol 
dwyieithrwydd ac yn eu rhannu gyda rhanddeiliaid. Byddwn yn mynd ati’n frwd i hyrwyddo gwerth 
bod yn ddwyieithog yn Sir Gaerfyrddin er mwyn gwireddu ein gweledigaeth.

Byddwn yn cefnogi ysgolion ac yn gweithio gyda phartneriaid i ddatblygu cyfleoedd i ddefnyddio’r 
Gymraeg y tu allan i’r ystafell ddosbarth. Bydd Siarteri Iaith Gymraeg ‘Codi Caerau’ a ‘Cymraeg 
Campus’ yn cael eu hyrwyddo a byddwn yn dathlu ac yn rhannu arfer da. Byddwn yn parhau i 
annog ystod o weithgareddau allgyrsiol cyfrwng Cymraeg sy’n rhoi cyfleoedd i ddysgwyr 
gymdeithasu trwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg e.e. y Mentrau Iaith, Yr Urdd, CFfI.

Ar hyn o bryd rydym yn cefnogi hwyrddyfodiaid trwy ddarparu pecynnau ymyrraeth mewn ysgolion 
a’r rheiny’n becynnau at ofynion unigol. Byddwn yn ymchwilio i ymarferoldeb a chostau cysylltiedig 
gweithredu model trochi Gwynedd/Ceredigion; fodd bynnag, yn yr hinsawdd economaidd sydd 
ohoni bydd angen cytundeb gwleidyddol a mewnbwn ariannol.

Bydd ein Tîm Gwella Ysgolion yn cynorthwyo ac yn herio ysgolion i sicrhau bod deilliannau mewn 
Cymraeg yn cael eu gwella a’u cynnal. Byddwn yn cynnal astudiaeth o ddeilliannau a 
chyrhaeddiad ein dysgwyr mewn Cymraeg gyda ffocws ar addysgeg, cymedroli asesiadau ac 
adnoddau. Bydd hyn yn arwain at adnabod arfer effeithiol a datblygu cynllun gweithredu ar gyfer 
gwella. Gallai hyn gynnwys rhaglen o ffederasiynau rhwng ysgolion a fydd yn arwain at 
arweinyddiaeth gryfach a deilliannau gwell.

Cyfrifoldeb
 Penaethiaid Ysgolion Cynradd a’u Cyrff Llywodraethu
 Y Pennaeth Effeithiolrwydd Ysgolion a’r Tîm Ymgynghorwyr Her
 Ymgynghorydd Her â chyfrifoldeb am y Gymraeg ac AGGaD
 Rheolwr Moderneiddio Ysgolion,
 Mudiad Meithrin

Deilliant 2: Mwy o ddysgwyr yn parhau i wella’u sgiliau iaith wrth drosglwyddo o’r ysgol 

Tudalen 65



CSyGMA- Fersiwn 3: 13-01-17 

8

gynradd i’r ysgol uwchradd.
Mae ein sefyllfa bresennol a’n targedau ar gyfer y tair blynedd nesaf o ran nifer y dysgwyr ym 
mlwyddyn 9 sy’n cael eu hasesu yn y Gymraeg (Iaith Gyntaf) fel a ganlyn - 

Sefyllfa Bresennol 2017/2018 2018/2019 2019/2020
42.2% 43% 44% 45%

Er mwyn cyflawni’r deilliant hwn byddwn yn -

 Hyrwyddo manteision dwyieithrwydd.
 Sicrhau dilyniant ieithyddol o’r blynyddoedd cynnar i Gyfnod Allweddol 2 ac ymlaen i’r 

sector uwchradd.
 Cynyddu darpariaeth addysg ddwyieithog yn y sector uwchradd.
 Mabwysiadu protocol dilyniant eglur i gynyddu nifer y disgyblion sy’n parhau i astudio trwy 

gyfrwng y Gymraeg ym mhob cyfnod allweddol a sicrhau bod hyn yn cael ei gyfleu yn eglur 
i’r holl randdeiliaid.

Datganiad Ategol:
Mae’r diffiniad presennol o’n hysgolion uwchradd fel a ganlyn -

Math o ysgol Nifer
Ysgolion

% Nifer y 
disgyblion

Cyfrwng Cymraeg- 1 1 8.3 877
Dwyieithog - 2A 2 16.6 1920
Dwyieithog - 2B 2 16.6 2757
Cyfrwng Saesneg gyda defnydd sylweddol o’r Gymraeg (EW) 3 25 2779
Cyfrwng Saesneg (EM) 4 33.3 2848

Er mwyn cynyddu nifer y lleoedd dwyieithog sydd ar gael byddwn yn ail-gyflunio’r ddarpariaeth 
bresennol trwy wneud y canlynol -

 Cynyddu nifer y pynciau ar gael trwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg yn ein hysgolion 2B, EW a EM.
 Sicrhau bod ein hysgolion EW a EM yn darparu Cymraeg fel iaith 1af.
 Cyn diwedd y cynllun byddwn yn mesur y galw am addysg ddwyieithog yn ein hardaloedd 

trefol gyda ffocws ar addysg uwchradd.

Byddwn yn sicrhau bod yr holl ddisgyblion yn gallu siarad, darllen ac ysgrifennu’r iaith yn rhugl 
erbyn diwedd Cyfnod Allweddol 2 i’w lefelau disgwyliedig. Byddwn yn datblygu protocol sy’n nodi 
ein disgwyliadau y bydd dysgwyr sydd wedi dilyn y rhaglen Cymraeg iaith 1af yn yr ysgol gynradd 
yn parhau â’r rhaglen hon wrth drosglwyddo i’r ysgol uwchradd. Bydd hefyd yn mynegi ein 
disgwyliad y bydd yr holl ddysgwyr sydd wedi mynychu ysgolion cynradd dwyieithog yn astudio o 
leiaf 3-5 maes cwricwlaidd trwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg yng Nghyfnod Allweddol 3 er mwyn sefydlu 
eu cymhwysedd ieithyddol a’i ddatblygu ymhellach.

O’r disgyblion Bl 6 a gafodd eu hasesu yn Gymraeg yn 2013  (808 disgybl/56.5% o ddisgyblion y 
Sir) cafodd 751 disgybl/92.9% ohonynt eu hasesu yn y Gymraeg (fel pwnc) ar ddiwedd CA3 yn 
2016. Yn amlwg mae gostyngiad yn y niferoedd a bydd hyn yn cael sylw gan yr uchod.

Cyfrifoldeb
 Penaethiaid Ysgolion Cynradd ac Uwchradd a’u Cyrff Llywodraethu
 Y Pennaeth Effeithiolrwydd Ysgolion a’r Ymgynghorydd Her â chyfrifoldeb am y Gymraeg 

ac AGGaD
 Mudiad Meithrin

Deilliant 3: Mwy o ddisgyblion 14-16 oed yn astudio ar gyfer cymwysterau                              

Tudalen 66



CSyGMA- Fersiwn 3: 13-01-17 

9

trwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg.
Deilliant 4: Mwy o ddisgyblion a myfyrwyr 14-19 oed yn astudio ar gyfer cymwysterau 

trwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg, mewn ysgolion, colegau a dysgu seiliedig-ar-waith
Mae ein sefyllfa bresennol a’n targedau o ran y ganran o’r dysgwyr a gofrestrwyd ar gyfer TGAU 
Cymraeg (iaith gyntaf) ac a gofrestrwyd ar gyfer 2 neu’n fwy o gymhwyster Lefel 1 neu Lefel 2 
pellach trwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg fel a ganlyn -

Y Sefyllfa Bresennol 2017/2018 2018/2019 2019/2020
I’w gadarnhau 90% 91% 92%

Mae ein sefyllfa bresennol a’n targedau o ran y ganran o’r dysgwyr a gofrestrwyd ar gyfer TGAU 
Cymraeg (iaith gyntaf) ac a gofrestrwyd ar gyfer 5 neu’n fwy o gymhwyster Lefel 1 neu Lefel 2 
pellach trwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg fel a ganlyn –

Y Sefyllfa Bresennol 2017/2018 2018/2019 2019/2020
I’w gadarnhau 68% 69% 70%

Er mwyn cyflawni’r deilliant hwn byddwn yn -

 Cynyddu nifer y pynciau a gynigir ac a addysgir trwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg.
 Cynyddu nifer y dysgwyr sy’n astudio pynciau trwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg.
 Gwella’r ddarpariaeth ac ansawdd yr addysgu trwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg gyda phwyslais ar 

hyfforddi staff ar bob lefel o ran rhuglder a thrwy ddefnyddio ystod o ddulliau
 Sicrhau cynnydd mewn safonau o’i gymharu â dangosyddion cydnabyddedig.

Datganiad Ategol:

Rydym yn bwriadu symud pob ysgol gynradd ac uwchradd ar hyd y continwwm iaith (ac eithrio’r 
ysgolion hynny sydd eisoes yn gweithredu’r model yn ei gyfanrwydd). Mae hyn yn golygu amserlen 
gymharol fyrrach i’r ysgolion hynny sydd eisoes ar y siwrne; i eraill, bydd yn nod mwy hirdymor. 
Byddwn yn datblygu rhestr o ysgolion gyda’r disgwyliadau priodol yn cael eu nodi yn y strategaeth 
hon ac yn sicrhau bod y cynnydd a geisir yn rhesymol ac yn gyraeddadwy.

Ar gyfer y tymor canolig/hwy (5 mlynedd+) byddwn yn symud ysgolion ar hyd y continwwm. Yn y 
tymor byr (erbyn 2020) byddwn yn pennu targedau ac yn cynorthwyo ysgolion uwchradd 2A, 2B, 
2C, EW a EM i gynyddu’r niferoedd sy’n dysgu trwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg. Dylai’r ffigyrau hyn gynnig 
her briodol, ond bod yn rhesymol ac yn gyraeddadwy, gyda chymorth priodol.

Bydd hefyd yn bwysig gweithio gyda chyflogwyr a sicrhau gwybodaeth am y farchnad lafur er 
mwyn targedu meysydd galwedigaethol a phwysleisio pwysigrwydd ethos ysgolion a’r cwricwlwm 
cudd gan fynd ati ar yr un pryd i hyrwyddo hunaniaeth a diwylliant Cymreig ac addysgu trwy 
gyfrwng y Gymraeg.
  
Hefyd, rydym yn amcanu at weithredu argymhellion yr adolygiad o’r cwricwlwm 11-19 yn Sir 
Gaerfyrddin: Bydd y cwricwlwm a nodir yn yr Adolygiad 11-19 yn cael ei ddatblygu yn Gymraeg, 
yn Saesneg ac yn ddwyieithog lle y bo’n briodol. Bydd hyn yn cynnwys blaenoriaethu opsiynau o 
ran cyrsiau i sicrhau ystod a chontinwwm ieithyddol o gyfleoedd cyfrwng Cymraeg i ddysgwyr yn 
unol â Mesur Dysgu a Sgiliau (Cymru) 2009. Ar gyfer darpariaeth cyfrwng Cymraeg, bydd rôl 
rhwydwaith clwstwr y Bartneriaeth Addysg Gymraeg (PAG) sy’n cynnwys Ysgolion Cymraeg, 
Coleg Sir Gâr a chyflogwyr lleol allweddol yn hanfodol i sicrhau bod dilyniant effeithiol i opsiynau 
o ran cyrsiau cyfrwng Cymraeg yng Nghyfnodau Allweddol 4 a 5 ar gael. Bydd cysylltiadau cryfach 
â darpariaeth addysg uwch leol trwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg yn cael eu datblygu hefyd i alluogi pobl 
ifanc i gael dilyniant ieithyddol pellach'.

Byddwn hefyd yn datblygu partneriaethau strategol a pholisi gyda rhanddeiliaid ar bob lefel, gan 

Tudalen 67



CSyGMA- Fersiwn 3: 13-01-17 

10

gynnwys yr Ymgynghorydd Proffesiynol Cymraeg mewn Addysg (Llywodraeth Cymru). Hefyd, 
byddwn yn lobïo Llywodraeth Cymru am adnoddau a datblygiadau mewn darpariaeth drosfwaol a 
fyddai’n ategu gweithgarwch ar Lefel Sirol. Gallai hyn olygu newidiadau i 
ddeddfwriaeth/rheoliadau. Yn fwy lleol rydym yn dymuno arwain ar y Gymraeg o fewn y 
Cwricwlwm mewn cydweithrediad â rhanbarth ERW, gan hyrwyddo canfyddiadau dogfen strategol 
ar y lefel hon a gweithio’n rhagweithiol i weithredu argymhellion 21-30 yn Adolygiad Donaldson, 
‘Dyfodol Llwyddiannus’, yn ysgolion y sir fel yr amlygwyd yn yr adroddiad mewnol, ‘Palmantu’r 
Ffordd’.

Cyfrifoldeb
 Penaethiaid Ysgolion Uwchradd a’u Cyrff Llywodraethu 
 Pennaeth Rhaglenni Dysgwyr
 Pennaeth Effeithiolrwydd Ysgolion a’r tîm Ymgynghorwyr Her
 Ymgynghorydd Her â chyfrifoldeb am y Gymraeg ac AGGaD

Deilliant 5: Mwy o ddisgyblion sydd â sgiliau iaith uwch yn y Gymraeg
Mae ein sefyllfa bresennol a’n targedau o ran cyfanswm cofrestriadau Lefel A Cymraeg Iaith 
Gyntaf presennol fel canran o'r cofrestriadau TGAU Cymraeg Iaith Gyntaf ddwy flynedd yn 
gynharach fel a ganlyn -

Y Sefyllfa Bresennol 2017/2018 2018/2019 2019/2020
3.7% 4% 4.3% 4.6%

Mae ein sefyllfa bresennol a’n targedau o ran cyfanswm cofrestriadau Lefel A Cymraeg ail iaith 
presennol fel canran o'r cofrestriadau TGAU Cymraeg Ail Iaith cwrs llawn a byr ddwy flynedd yn 
gynharach fel a ganlyn-

Y Sefyllfa Bresennol 2017/2018 2018/2019 2019/2020
1.3% 1.5% 1.8% 2%

Er mwyn cyflawni’r deilliant hwn byddwn yn-

 Creu Cymuned Ddysgu Broffesiynol ar draws yr ALl/ERW i drafod llwyddiannau a heriau a 
sut i fynd i’r afael â hwy.

 Parhau i weithio gyda chyflogwyr ac addysg uwch i hyrwyddo dwyieithrwydd fel sgil 
allweddol ar gyfer addysg bellach a byd gwaith.

 Gwneud gwaith pellach i ddatblygu cyfleoedd i ddefnyddio’r Gymraeg mewn 
gweithgareddau anffurfiol (e.e. gwirfoddoli, Gwobr Dug Caeredin, Clybiau Ieuenctid).

 Hyrwyddo sgiliau gwell ar gyfer defnydd gydol oes o’r Gymraeg (ymchwil i fodiwl Cymraeg 
Proffesiynol a datblygu modiwl o’r fath ar gyfer disgyblion ôl-16 e.e. trwy Fagloriaeth 
Cymru).

Datganiad Ategol:

Rydym yn bwriadu trafod ffyrdd o recriwtio mwy o bobl ifanc i gyrsiau Cymraeg Safon Uwch/Uwch 
Gyfrannol yn enwedig bechgyn. Rydym hefyd yn dymuno ystyried cydweithio er mwyn datblygu 
cwrs uwch mewn Cymraeg Proffesiynol. Bydd y cwrs yma’n cael ei gynnig:

 fel cwrs Safon Uwch/Uwch Gyfrannol yn ei rinwedd ei hun
 trwy elfennau modwlar annibynnol y gall disgyblion anelu amdanynt, ni waeth pa un a ydynt 

yn astudio Cymraeg i Safon Uwch ai peidio e.e. Tystysgrif/achrediad Ôl-16 mewn Cymraeg 
i Wyddonwyr. Gall hyn olygu ymchwilio i bosibiliadau pellach o fewn Bagloriaeth Cymru 
trwy annog disgyblion nad ydynt ar lwybrau Cymraeg academaidd i hogi eu sgiliau e.e. tuag 

Tudalen 68



CSyGMA- Fersiwn 3: 13-01-17 

11

at fod yn rhugl o fewn ein fframwaith sgiliau. 

Tuag at y tymor canolig a’r tu hwnt, rydym yn amcanu at gynnig mewnbwn cadarnhaol gan hefyd 
ddatblygu’r Gymraeg fel un continwwm, gan gynnwys opsiynau yn y tymor canolig i roi cofrestriad 
deuol i ddisgyblion ar lefel TGAU, yn yr ysgolion perthnasol. Hefyd, rydym yn dymuno: datblygu a 
hyrwyddo’r cyfraniad y gall disgyblion hŷn mewn ysgolion 11-18 ei wneud fel esiamplau a 
mentoriaid e.e. trwy fentrau megis PCAI; ymestyn rhuglder gweithwyr yn y Gwasanaeth Ieuenctid, 
yn enwedig gweithwyr sydd wedi’u lleoli mewn ysgolion er mwyn hyrwyddo defnydd anffurfiol o’r 
Gymraeg a datblygu deunydd hyrwyddo sy’n dangos y gwerth y mae cyflogwyr yn ei roi ar 
ddwyieithrwydd. 

Byddwn yn cefnogi ysgolion ac yn gweithio gyda phartneriaid i ddatblygu cyfleoedd i ddefnyddio’r 
Gymraeg y tu allan i’r ystafell ddosbarth. Byddwn yn parhau i gefnogi ystod o weithgareddau 
allgyrsiol cyfrwng Cymraeg sy’n rhoi cyfleoedd i ddysgwyr gymdeithasu trwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg.

Cyfrifoldeb
 Pennaeth Rhaglenni Dysgwyr
 Cydlynwyr y Gymraeg/Llythrennedd mewn ysgolion
 Penaethiaid a Chyrff Llywodraethu 
 Pennaeth Effeithiolrwydd Ysgolion a’r tîm
 Aelodau o’r Fforwm Iaith
 Ymgynghorydd Her â chyfrifoldeb am y Gymraeg ac AGGaD

Deilliant 6: Darpariaeth cyfrwng Cymraeg i ddysgwyr ag anghenion dysgu ychwanegol
Er mwyn cyflawni’r deilliant hwn byddwn yn -

 Parhau i sicrhau bod yr holl wasanaethau cymorth arbenigol ar gyfer Anghenion Dysgu 
Ychwanegol ar gael yn ddwyieithog.

 Datblygu system ddwyieithog i ymateb i’r agenda ddiwygio ar gyfer ADY.
 Gweithio gyda’n Hysgolion/Unedau Arbennig a’r Tîm Cynnal Ymddygiad i ddatblygu’r 

ddarpariaeth ddwyieithog ymhellach.
 Gwneud gwaith pellach i ddatblygu sgiliau ein Cydlynwyr Anghenion Dysgu Ychwanegol i 

gefnogi dysgwyr.

Datganiad Ategol:

Mae’r Awdurdod Lleol yn ymrwymedig i ddarparu gwasanaeth dwyieithog ar gyfer dysgwyr Sir 
Gaerfyrddin. Mae ein gweledigaeth fel a ganlyn - ‘Byddwn yn gweithio gyda’n partneriaid i sicrhau 
bod pob plentyn a pherson ifanc yn cael y cyfle i wireddu ei botensial mewn amgylchedd 
dwyieithog sy’n parchu ac yn gwerthfawrogi pob diwylliant a thraddodiad.’

Gan fod cyfran uchel o’n hysgolion yn ddwyieithog rydym yn gallu cydymffurfio â  cheisiadau  am 
ddarpariaeth addysg brif ffrwd mewn modd amserol. Mae’r holl wasanaethau cymorth a phrosesau 
statudol ar gael yn ddwyieithog ac rydym yn rhoi hyfforddiant a chymorth i Gydlynwyr ADY er 
mwyn iddynt allu diwallu anghenion pob dysgwr.  

Mae pob ymyrraeth ar gael yn ddwyieithog ac rydym yn ymrwymo i sicrhau bod yr holl adnoddau 
a ddatblygir yn Sir Gaerfyrddin ar gael yn Gymraeg ac yn Saesneg.

Byddwn yn parhau i fonitro ceisiadau am gymorth arbenigol a gweithio gydag arweinwyr ysgolion, 
Cydlynwyr ADY a swyddogion cynhwysiant i adnabod meysydd i’w datblygu a byddwn yn cynnwys 
y datblygiadau hyn yn ein cynllun moderneiddio ysgolion.

Byddwn yn mabwysiadu’r ffordd newydd o weithio a chefnogi dysgwyr ag ADY (Plentyn-ganolog, 

Tudalen 69



CSyGMA- Fersiwn 3: 13-01-17 

12

Cynllun Datblygu Unigol, a Llais y Plentyn) gan sicrhau bod y dull ar gael yn ddwyieithog.

Rydym yn cydnabod bod darpariaeth ddwyieithog yn ein Hysgolion a’n Hunedau Arbennig yn 
gyfyngedig. Byddwn yn gweithio gyda’r lleoliadau hyn i ddatblygu darpariaeth ddwyieithog er 
mwyn sicrhau bod dysgwyr ag anghenion ychwanegol cymhleth yn gallu cael mynediad at 
ddarpariaeth ddwyieithog a chael cymorth yn eu dewis iaith. 

Cyfrifoldeb
 Rheolwyr Cynhwysiant
 Staff Ymgynghori’r Awdurdod
 Partneriaid e.e. Swyddogion y Bwrdd Iechyd
 Penaethiaid a Chydlynwyr ADY

Deilliant 7: Cynllunio’r gweithlu a datblygiad proffesiynol parhaus.

Er mwyn cyflawni’r deilliant hwn byddwn yn -

 Defnyddio holiaduron sgiliau iaith i ganfod lefelau sgiliau iaith Gymraeg yr holl staff.
 Er mwyn datblygu sgiliau a hyder y gweithlu ysgolion presennol, byddwn yn gweithio gyda 

phartneriaid (ERW, Y Ganolfan Dysgu Cymraeg Genedlaethol) i ddarparu rhaglenni 
hyfforddi gyda ffocws penodol ar addysgu trwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg.

 Gweithio gyda phartneriaid ar recriwtio, datblygu a hyfforddi’r gweithlu ysgolion yn y dyfodol 
er mwyn gallu cyflawni’r Cynllun hwn a dyhead Llywodraeth Cymru i fod â ‘Miliwn o 
Siaradwyr Cymraeg erbyn 2050’.

 Rhoi cymorth a chyngor i Lywodraethwyr ac arweinwyr ysgolion mewn perthynas â phenodi 
a datblygu staff.

Datganiad Ategol:

Bydd yr holl ddarparwyr yn cynnal holiadur bob chwe mis i ganfod Sgiliau Iaith Gymraeg y gweithlu 
ysgolion. Bydd dadansoddi’r data’n adnabod y ddarpariaeth bresennol a meysydd i’w datblygu 
ymhellach a fydd yn cael eu hadlewyrchu yn hunanarfarniad yr ysgol a’r ddogfennaeth datblygu 
ysgol. Bydd yn ofynnol i ysgolion ddefnyddio’u hadnoddau i ddarparu cyfleoedd i staff ddatblygu. 

Ar hyn o bryd nid oes unrhyw broblemau o ran recriwtio staff addysg sy’n siarad Cymraeg i weithio 
yn ein hysgolion Cymraeg. Fodd bynnag, mae heriau o ran recriwtio arweinwyr ysgolion sy’n 
siarad Cymraeg yn dod yn fwy amlwg ac rydym yn bwriadu cynllunio a ffurfioli ffederasiynau i 
gynorthwyo’r sefyllfa. Byddwn yn rhoi arweiniad a hyfforddiant ac yn cefnogi’r rôl arwain newydd 
hon trwy hwyluso cymorth rhwng ysgolion.

Bydd dadansoddiad pellach gan yr Awdurdod Lleol o ddata ar y gweithlu yn ein hysbysu ynghylch 
bylchau yn y ddarpariaeth ac anghenion hyfforddi yn y dyfodol/cynnwys rhaglenni hyfforddi. Gan 
fod y Cynllun yn cynnwys cyfeiriadau at wella darpariaeth ddwyieithog byddwn yn gweithio gyda 
phartneriaid e.e. Consortia/Llywodraeth Cymru i sicrhau bod gennym weithlu ysgolion sy’n meddu 
ar sgiliau addas. Bydd hyn yn cynnwys gweithredu’r Safonau Proffesiynol newydd i Athrawon, 
cynyddu nifer yr athrawon sy’n gallu addysgu Cymraeg fel pwnc a gweithio’n effeithiol mewn 
lleoliadau dwyieithog, manteisio ar lwybrau amgen i mewn i’r proffesiwn addysgu, cael mynediad 
at systemau cenedlaethol ar gyfer cynllunio’r gweithlu a’r dull Cymru gyfan mewn perthynas ag 
ysgolion bach a gwledig. 

Byddwn yn cynnig hyfforddiant i staff er mwyn gwella sgiliau darllen, ysgrifennu a siarad yn 
Gymraeg, ac er mwyn mireinio sgiliau Cymraeg y rhai sydd eisoes â gafael ar yr iaith. Byddwn yn 
defnyddio Fframwaith Sgiliau Iaith y Cyngor Sir, sy’n seiliedig ar ein fframwaith sgiliau iaith, fel sail 
ar gyfer y gwaith yma. Hefyd, rydym yn bwriadu datblygu sgiliau a hyder athrawon i addysgu trwy 

Tudalen 70



CSyGMA- Fersiwn 3: 13-01-17 

13

gyfrwng y Gymraeg a hefyd uwchsgilio staff cymorth i gynorthwyo disgyblion trwy gyfrwng y 
Gymraeg.

Ar ben hynny, byddwn yn uwchsgilio staff i sicrhau y mabwysiedir addysgeg briodol, er mwyn 
sicrhau bod safonau’n cael eu cynnal a’u codi wrth addysgu trwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg. Gall hyn 
gael ei gefnogi gan Arweinwyr Dysgu a Chymunedau Dysgu Proffesiynol er mwyn sicrhau cymorth 
ymarferol i ymarferwyr sy’n addysgu’n fwyfwy trwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg, yn enwedig mewn 
perthynas ag adnoddau ar gyfer yr ystafell ddosbarth. Gall hyn arwain wedyn at weithio gyda 
chyhoeddwyr deunyddiau addysgol (e.e. CAA, Peniarth, asiantaethau allanol) i ddatblygu 
adnoddau addysgu, apiau a.y.b. a gweithio gyda Llywodraeth Cymru er mwyn sicrhau adnoddau 
ariannol i ddatblygu’r agwedd hon.

Bydd yr Awdurdod Lleol yn rhoi cymorth a her i Lywodraethwyr ac arweinwyr ysgolion mewn 
perthynas â phenodi staff sydd â chymwysterau addas er mwyn iddynt allu ateb gofynion y Cynllun 
hwn a pharhau i wella safonau addysgol. Byddwn yn gweithio gyda chydweithwyr yn y Consortia 
ar hyfforddi’r gweithlu ysgolion a datblygu arweinwyr. 

Cyfrifoldeb
 Penaethiaid a Chyrff Llywodraethu 
 Swyddogion Adnoddau Dynol
 Ymgynghorydd Her
 Ymgynghorydd Her â chyfrifoldeb am y Gymraeg ac AGGaD

Llofnod:

Dyddiad: ………………………………

(Mae angen i hwn gael ei lofnodi gan y Prif Swyddog Addysg mewn awdurdod lleol) 

Atodiad 1- DATA

Tudalen 71



CSyGMA- Fersiwn 3: 13-01-17 

14

Deilliant 1: Mwy o blant saith oed yn cael eu haddysgu drwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg
Cynyddu’r ddarpariaeth Presennol 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20
Beth yw canran y dysgwyr 7 oed sy’n cael 
eu haddysgu drwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg? 58.2 59% 60% 61%

Deilliant 2: Mwy o ddysgwyr yn parhau i wella eu sgiliau iaith wrth drosglwyddo o’r ysgol 
gynradd i’r ysgol uwchradd 

Presennol 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20
Beth yw canran y disgyblion Blwyddyn 9 
sy’n cael eu hasesu yn y Gymraeg (Iaith 
Gyntaf)?

42.2 43% 44% 45%

Sut mae'r ffigwr hwn yn cymharu â chanran 
y dysgwyr Blwyddyn 6 a aseswyd mewn 
Cymraeg (iaith gyntaf) dair blynedd yn 
gynharach?

50.4  (-8.2)

Trosglwyddo effeithiol a pharhad ieithyddol/ 
Beth yw cyfraddau dilyniant ieithyddol rhwng
lleoliadau gofal plant cyfrwng Cymraeg yn y sector nas cynhelir ar gyfer plant dan 3 oed 
ac ysgolion cyfrwng Cymraeg/dwyieithog yn cyflwyno’r Cyfnod Sylfaen; 

I’w 
gadarnhau

lleoliadau gofal plant cyfrwng Cymraeg yn y sector nas cynhelir ar gyfer plant dan 3 oed 
a lleoliadau nas cynhelir a gyllidir yn cyflwyno’r Cyfnod Sylfaen;

I’w 
gadarnhau

leoliadau cyfrwng Cymraeg nas cynhelir a gyllidir ac ysgolion cyfrwng 
Cymraeg/dwyieithog;

I’w 
gadarnhau

lleoliadau gofal plant nas cynhelir ar gyfer plant dan 3 oed a lleoliadau nas cynhelir 
cyfrwng Cymraeg a gyllidir yn cyflwyno’r Cyfnod Sylfaen ac wedyn ysgolion cyfrwng 
Cymraeg/dwyieithog;

I’w 
gadarnhau

y Cyfnod Sylfaen a Chyfnod Allweddol 2; 93.1

Cyfnodau Allweddol 2 a 3 92.9
Cyfnodau Allweddol 3 a 4. 98.6

Os oes gan eich awdurdod ysgolion uwchradd dwyieithog (categori 2A, 2B, 2C a 2CH) mae angen darparu 
data ar gyfer pob ysgol gan ddangos faint o ddisgyblion sydd yn y ffrwd cyfrwng Cymraeg a faint ohonynt 
sydd yn y ffrwd cyfrwng Saesneg, fesul bob cyfnod allweddol os gwelwch yn dda.

Enw’r Ysgol Ffrwd Cymraeg Ffrwd Saesneg
DYFFRYN AMAN (2B) KS3- 369 KS4- 277 KS5- 4 KS3-365 KS4-264 KS5-271
BRO DINEFWR (2B) KS3- 353 KS4- 258 KS5 - 5 KS3-162 KS4-162 KS5-185
STRADE (2A) KS3- 540 KS4- 335 KS5- 181 KS3- 0 KS4- 0 KS5- 0
MAES Y GWENDRAETH (2A) KS3- 451 KS4- 235 KS5- 157 KS3- 0 KS4- 0 KS5- 0
Deilliant 3: Mwy o fyfyrwyr 14-16 oed yn astudio ar gyfer cymwysterau drwy gyfrwng y 
Gymraeg.
Deilliant 4: Mwy o fyfyrwyr 16–19 oed yn astudio pynciau drwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg, mewn 
ysgolion, colegau a dysgu seiliedig ar waith
Cynyddu canran y myfyrwyr 14-16 sy’n astudio ar gyfer cymwysterau drwy gyfrwng y 
Gymraeg.

Presennol 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20
Beth yw canran y myfyrwyr Blwyddyn 11 sy'n 
cael eu cofrestru ar gyfer TGAU Cymraeg iaith 
gyntaf sy'n astudio ar gyfer 5 neu fwy o 
gymwysterau pellach  lefel 1 neu lefel 2 drwy 
gyfrwng y Gymraeg?

I’w 
gadarnhau

90% 91% 92%

Beth yw canran y myfyrwyr Blwyddyn 11 sy'n 
cael eu cofrestru ar gyfer TGAU Cymraeg iaith 
gyntaf sy'n astudio ar gyfer 2 neu fwy o 
gymwysterau pellach lefel 1 neu lefel 2 drwy 
gyfrwng y Gymraeg?

I’w 
gadarnhau

68% 69% 70%

Tudalen 72



CSyGMA- Fersiwn 3: 13-01-17 

15

Cynyddu canran y dysgwyr 16-19 oed sy'n astudio pynciau drwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg mewn 
ysgolion 
Beth yw canran y dysgwyr 16-19 oed sy'n astudio 2 neu fwy o bynciau- 
a) drwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg? 38.5
b) yn ddwyieithog (e.e. elfennau o gymwysterau/ modiwlau)? 7.5

Deilliant 5: Mwy o ddisgyblion sydd â sgiliau iaith uwch yn y Gymraeg
Gwella darpariaeth a safonau Cymraeg Iaith 1af Presennol 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20
Beth yw canran y disgyblion diwedd y Cyfnod 
Sylfaen sy’n cyrraedd o leiaf Deilliant 5 mewn 
Iaith, Llythrennedd a Chyfathrebu mewn 
lleoliadau cyfrwng Cymraeg/dwyieithog?  

90.4% 91% 91.5% 92%

Beth yw canran y disgyblion diwedd Cyfnod 
Allweddol 2 sy’n cyrraedd o leiaf Lefel 4 ar gyfer 
asesiadau athro mewn Cymraeg?

88.3% 89% 89.5% 90%

Beth yw canran y disgyblion diwedd Cyfnod 
Allweddol 3 sy’n cyrraedd o leiaf Lefel 5 ar gyfer 
asesiadau athro mewn Cymraeg? 

88.5% 89% 89.5% 90%

Beth yw canran y disgyblion diwedd Cyfnod 
Allweddol 4 sy’n cyrraedd graddau A*-C Cymraeg 
Iaith gyntaf.

72.8% 73.5% 74% 75%

Gwella darpariaeth a safonau Cymraeg ail iaith Presennol 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20
Beth yw canran y disgyblion diwedd Cyfnod 
Allweddol 2 sy’n cyrraedd o leiaf Lefel 4 ar gyfer 
asesiadau athro mewn Cymraeg Ail Iaith?

66.5% 67% 68% 69%

Beth yw canran y disgyblion diwedd Cyfnod 
Allweddol 3 sy’n cyrraedd o leiaf Lefel 5 ar gyfer 
asesiadau athro mewn Cymraeg Ail Iaith?

78.4% 80% 82% 83%

Beth yw canran y disgyblion diwedd Cyfnod 
Allweddol 4 sy’n cyrraedd graddau A*-C mewn 
TGAU Cymraeg Ail Iaith Cwrs Llawn?

82.1% 83% 84% 85%

Beth yw canran y disgyblion diwedd Cyfnod 
Allweddol 4 sy’n cyrraedd graddau A*-C mewn 
TGAU Cymraeg Ail Iaith Cwrs Byr?

74.9% 76% 77% 78%

Pa ganran o’r garfan sydd wedi cofrestru ar gyfer-
(i) TGAU Cymraeg Ail Iaith Cwrs Llawn? 63.9 60%
(ii) TGAU Cymraeg Ail Iaith Cwrs Byr? Dim Dim
(iii) heb eu cofrestru ar gyfer y naill na’r llall? 5.2 4.2%
Mwy o ddysgwyr â sgiliau iaith Gymraeg lefel uwch
Beth yw cyfanswm cofrestriadau Lefel A Cymraeg Iaith Gyntaf presennol fel canran o'r 
cofrestriadau TGAU Cymraeg Iaith Gyntaf ddwy flynedd yn gynharach? 3.7

Beth yw cyfanswm cofrestiadau Lefel A Cymraeg ail iaith presennol fel canran o'r 
cofrestriadau TGAU Cymraeg Ail Iaith cwrs llawn a byr ddwy flynedd yn gynharach? 1.3

Atodiad 2- Diffinio ysgolion yn ôl y ddarpariaeth cyfrwng Cymraeg
Ysgolion Cynradd

Tudalen 73



CSyGMA- Fersiwn 3: 13-01-17 

16

Cyfrwng Cymraeg 
[WM]

Ysgol Gynradd Cyfrwng Cymraeg- Mae pob disgybl yn y Cyfnod Sylfaen yn 
cael profiad o’r meysydd dysgu drwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg. Cymraeg yw’r prif 
gyfrwng addysgu yng Nghyfnod Allweddol 2 ac mae o leiaf 70% o’r addysgu 
drwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg. Caiff Saesneg ei gyflwyno yn ffurfiol fel pwnc yng 
Nghyfnod Allweddol 2 a chaiff ei addysgu drwy gyfrwng y Saesneg, ac mae’n 
bosibl y defnyddir Saesneg hefyd ar gyfer rai agweddau ar rai pynciau. 

Dwy Ffrwd                   
[DS]

Ysgol Gynradd Ddwy Ffrwd- Mae dau fath o ddarpariaeth yn bodoli ochr yn 
ochr yn yr ysgolion hyn. Mae’r rhieni/disgyblion yn dewis naill ai’r ddarpariaeth 
sy’n bennaf drwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg (WM), neu’r ddarpariaeth sy’n bennaf 
drwy gyfrwng y Saesneg (EM).

Trawsnewidiol                  
[TR]

Ysgol Gynradd Drawsnewidiol: cyfrwng Cymraeg ond â defnydd 
sylweddol o’r Saesneg- Mae disgyblion yn y Cyfnod Sylfaen yn cael profiad 
o’r meysydd dysgu drwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg yn bennaf. Defnyddir y naill iaith 
a’r llall i addysgu yng Nghyfnod Allweddol 2, ond rhoddir mwy o bwyslais ar y 
Gymraeg, sy’n gyfrwng addysgu ar gyfer dros hanner a hyd at 70% o’r 
cwricwlwm. (Dim ond dros dro y byddai ysgolion yn y categori hwn fel arfer)

Saesneg yn bennaf 
(â defnydd 

sylweddol o’r 
Gymraeg)

 [EW]

Ysgol Gynradd cyfrwng Saesneg yn bennaf ond â defnydd sylweddol o’r 
Gymraeg - Mae disgyblion yn y Cyfnod Sylfaen yn cael profiad o’r meysydd 
dysgu yn y naill iaith a’r llall ond rhoddir mwy o bwyslais ar y Saesneg. 
Defnyddir y Gymraeg a’r Saesneg wrth addysgu yng Nghyfnod Allweddol 2, 
ond rhoddir mwy o bwyslais ar y Saesneg. Mae’r Gymraeg yn gyfrwng 
addysgu ar gyfer 20% - 50% o’r cwricwlwm cynradd yn gyffredinol.

Saesneg yn bennaf 
[EM]

Ysgol Gynradd cyfrwng Saesneg yn bennaf- Mae pob disgybl yn y Cyfnod 
Sylfaen yn cael profiad o’r meysydd dysgu drwy gyfrwng y Saesneg yn 
bennaf. Saesneg yw’r prif gyfrwng addysgu yn CA2. Addysgir y Gymraeg fel 
ail iaith yn CA2, ac mae’n bosibl y caiff rhai agweddau ar rai pynciau eu dysgu 
drwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg. Mae llai na 20% o’r addysgu drwy gyfrwng y 
Gymraeg.

Ysgolion Uwchradd

1 Ysgol Uwchradd Cyfrwng Cymraeg- Addysgir pob pwnc (gan gynnwys Addysg 
Grefyddol ac ABCh) heblaw am Saesneg drwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg i bob disgybl, er bod 
rhai ysgolion, o bosibl, yn cyflwyno terminoleg Saesneg mewn un neu ddau o bynciau.

2A Ysgol Uwchradd Ddwyieithog- Addysgir o leiaf 80% o’r pynciau ac eithrio’r Gymraeg a’r 
Saesneg drwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg yn unig i bob disgybl. Mae un neu ddau o bynciau yn 
cael eu haddysgu i rai o’r disgyblion yn Saesneg neu yn y naill iaith a’r llall.

2B Ysgol Uwchradd Ddwyieithog- Addysgir o leiaf 80% o’r pynciau (ac eithrio’r Gymraeg a’r 
Saesneg) drwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg ond fe’u haddysgir drwy gyfrwng y Saesneg hefyd.

2C Ysgol Uwchradd Ddwyieithog- Addysgir 50 - 79% o bynciau (ac eithrio’r Gymraeg a 
Saesneg) drwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg ond fe’u haddysgir drwy gyfrwng y Saesneg hefyd.

EW Ysgol Uwchradd cyfrwng Saesneg yn bennaf ond â defnydd sylweddol o’r Gymraeg- 
Addysgir yn y naill iaith a’r llall, ac addysgir 20 - 49% o’r pynciau drwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg. 
Fel rheol, byddai pob pwnc yn cael ei addysgu drwy gyfrwng y Saesneg hefyd.

EM Ysgol Uwchradd cyfrwng Saesneg yn bennaf- Addysgir y disgyblion yn bennaf drwy 
gyfrwng y Saesneg. Addysgir y Gymraeg fel ail iaith hyd at CA4. Mae’n bosibl y gellir dewis 
dysgu un neu ddau bwnc (a allai gynnwys y Gymraeg fel iaith gyntaf) drwy gyfrwng y 
Gymraeg neu drwy gyfrwng y naill iaith a’r llall.

Atodiad 3- Acronymau

Tudalen 74



CSyGMA- Fersiwn 3: 13-01-17 

17

ADY Anghenion Dysgu Ychwanegol
AGGaD Athrawon Gwella'r Gymraeg a Dwyieithrwydd
ALl Awdurdod Lleol
CAA Cyhoeddwr Cymraeg
CFfI Clybiau Ffermwyr Ifanc
CSyGMA Cynllun Strategol y Gymraeg mewn Addysg
Cyfnod Allweddol 2 Yr ail gyfnod statudol ar gyfer dysgwyr  yng Nghymru (7-11 oed).
Cyfnod Allweddol 3 Y trydydd cyfnod statudol ar gyfer dysgwyr  yng Nghymru (11-14 oed).
Cyfnod Allweddol 4 Y pedwerydd cyfnod statudol ar gyfer dysgwyr  yng Nghymru (14-16 oed).
Cyfnod Allweddol 5 Y pumed cyfnod statudol ar gyfer dysgwyr  yng Nghymru (16-18 oed).
Cyfnod Sylfaen Y cyfnod statudol ar gyfer dysgwyr 3 i 7 oed yng Nghymru
ERW Mae ERW yn gynghrair o chwe awdurdod lleol (Sir Gaerfyrddin, 

Ceredigion, Castell-nedd Port Talbot, Sir Benfro, Powys ac Abertawe) sy'n 
gweithio gyda'i gilydd i gytuno ar strategaeth ranbarthol a chynllun busnes 
i ddarparu gwasanaethau gwella ysgolion.

PAG Partneriaeth Addysg Gymraeg Sir Gar
PCAI Prosiect Cefnogi Arferion Iaith
Peniarth Cyhoeddwr Cymraeg
TGAU Tystysgrif Gyffredinol Addysg Uwchradd
Yr Urdd Mudiad Ieuenctid

Tudalen 75



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



CONSULTATION REPORT
Carmarthenshire’s Welsh in Education Strategic Plan 2017-2020

T
udalen 77



2

Acknowledgements

We value all the constructive comments received in response to our draft Welsh in Education Strategic Plan. We have 
endeavoured to ensure that this is a short and succinct strategic document highlighting our main priorities. However, to enable us to 
implement this Plan effectively we acknowledge that we will need to develop a detailed Action Plan and incorporate it into our 
business planning process. Many of the supportive comments and suggestions will be considered and incorporated into the 
operational plan.

T
udalen 78



1

Appendix A
List of Respondents to the Consultation Document

Rhif ymateb / 
Response Number

Your position / Category of Respondent (e.g. parent, governor)

1 Parent
2 Parent
3 Governor & Parent
4 Parent
5 Heb Ymateb / No Response
6 Governor
7 Governor - Ysgol Dyffryn Aman
8 Aelod o'r gymuned a chyfarwyddwr Canolfan Cymraeg y Lle, Llanelli /Member of community and director of ‘Y Lle’, 

Llanelli
9 Resident

10 Resident.
11 Parent
12 Local Campaigner
13 Heb Ymateb / No Response
14 Community Member
15 Councillor
16 Parent
17 Heb Ymateb / No Response
18 Rhiant / Parent
19 Governor
20 Carmarthenshire resident
21 Board of Governors
22 Board of Governors
23 LA Governor
24 Interest Group (Cymdeithas yr Iaith Gymraeg / Welsh Language Society)
25 Interest Group (Rhieni Dros Addysg Gymraeg / Parents for Welsh Medium Education)
26 Interest Group (CAER– Cymdeithas Addysg Ewrop y Rhanbarthau)  
27 Governor (received after close of consultation period)

T
udalen 79



2

APPENDIX B: Statistical Summary

T
udalen 80



3

Appendix C 
Observations/Themes and LA response

T
udalen 81



Observation/Theme Local Authority Response
In opposition

1 The lack of parental 
choice is 
unacceptable

There is a duty on All Welsh County Councils to develop and publish a Welsh in Education Strategic Plan 
(WESP) in order to comply with The School Standards and Organisation Act (2013) which became law on  
4thMarch 2013. WESPs detail how local authorities aim to achieve the Welsh Government’s outcome and 
targets outlined in the Welsh Medium Education Strategy (WMES).
We do not agree with the response in respect to choice. We believe that we are compliant with the law and 
that the respondent has applied too broad an interpretation of “parental choice”, as the law does not give 
parents, the absolute right to have their children educated through whatever linguistic medium they choose. 
The Local Authority also has a responsibility to provide all pupils with the best education possible and believes 
that ensuring our learners become as proficient as possible in at least two languages is best for all our pupils’ 
future prospects. The aim of Carmarthenshire’s Welsh in Education Strategic Plan 2017-2020 is to ensure that 
every pupil can speak, read and write fluently in Welsh and English by the end of statutory school leaving age; 
In order to achieve this requires initiation during early years education, development during Key Stage 2 and 
further enhancement at secondary school. Athrawon Bro support is available to latecomers.

2 Borders on 
discrimination / is 
racist / increases 
segregation

There is a requirement on Local Authorities to produce a Welsh in Education Strategic Plan, as directed by 
the democratically elected Welsh Government. In formulating the plan, detailed WG guidance has been 
followed, ensuring that criteria set down for each section of the plan are closely followed. The consultation 
document has already been shared with WG officials and has received a very favourable response. 
Furthermore, an Equalities Impact Assessment is being conducted, which considers whether the policy is in 
any way discriminatory to groups with protected characteristics. 
The County Council is also of the view that encouraging our young people to attain fluency in at least two 
languages can only serve to be beneficial: socially; linguistically; conceptually; cognitively; culturally; in terms 
of health and well-being and in terms of future employability prospects. In accordance with national 
expectations, the scheme sets out to move each school along the language continuum and this will be applied 
across the Local Authority. Indeed, it may be viewed as more discriminatory to exclude schools from this 
development plan as we feel that young people not included in its implementation could lose out.
Any perceived risks to segregation can be mitigated by applying the policy to all schools, so that all pupils can 
eventually benefit from becoming fluently bilingual.

3 Forces young people 
to learn Welsh

Welsh is a statutory subject to age 16 in Welsh schools i.e. it is illegal not to teach Welsh. This is set to 
continue with the onset of the new curriculum for Wales. Welsh Government are embarking on a plan to reach 
a million Welsh speakers by 2050. Amongst 6 factors, education is cited as the prime means of realising this 
goal, given that 4/5 people learn to speak Welsh at school.
The Local Authority will expect its schools and teachers to make learning Welsh and learning through the 
medium of Welsh as motivational, interesting, fun and relevant as possible. 

4 Welsh is irrelevant / 
confined to one 

Following the well-documented success of Welsh medium schools in creating fluent and confident bilingual 
citizens, there is concrete evidence that bilingualism promotes the ability to acquire additional languages, 

T
udalen 82



2

country only/is a bar 
to higher education

which is a potential benefit which can be applied worldwide. They key to success will be a good level of 
fluency and confidence in both languages, borne from setting high standards, rather than accepting sub-
optimal teaching and mediocre fluency in one or both languages.
Being able to speak Welsh and being taught through the medium of Welsh has not proven to be a bar to 
higher education; there are countless examples of fluently bilingual young people from Carmarthenshire and 
other parts of Wales thriving at University, including at more sought after institutions such as The Sutton Trust 
Group.

5 Transport – wrong to 
subside travel from 
out of catchment to 
Welsh schools but not 
to English schools

The County Council has a School Transport Policy which complies with all relevant legislation. The policy can 
be accessed as follows: http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/1602051/SchoolTransportPolicy.pdf . 
There is no provision for, or reference to, subsidising out of catchment travel to attend a school of any given 
language category.

6 Lack of consultation All consultation requirements have been complied with. There was an 8 week consultation period, which 
opened on 11.10.16 and closed on 19.12.16.

7 Impact on English 
Medium schools in 
respect to funding, 
intake etc.

The WESP requires all schools to move along the language continuum and develop Welsh medium provision. 
We have some English medium secondary schools who have responded to this challenge and are providing 
some subjects through the medium of Welsh at Key Stage 3. This has attracted learners and protected their 
roll and funding. English medium schools in the consultation have provided supportive commentary, 
reaffirming their wish to develop Welsh medium provision.

8 Spend money instead 
on quality of 
education

Significant investment is already focussed on School Improvement services via our consortium and Challenge 
Adviser team. Attaining fluency in both languages requires particular regard for setting high standards in 
teaching and learning.

9 Naïve to think ALN 
pupils will be catered 
for / lack of capacity in 
Welsh medium ALN 
expertise

ALN provision is a major objective within the scheme and aims to ensure that all areas of ALN support 
services are available equitably in both languages. There is more to do, as set out in the plan.

10 Policy needs to be 
fairer to non-Welsh 
speaking parents

Comments are noted. A support package for parents will be developed with practical advice and guidance for 
parents in non-Welsh speaking families. Being a non-Welsh speaking parent is not a barrier to Welsh medium 
education for children and advice on issues such as homework, Welsh for the Family etc. will be made 
available.

In support
1 Benefits of learning at 

least two languages 
and learners leaving 

Respondents’ support is noted and we welcome the observations. There are many advantages to being 
bilingual as confirmed by national and international research. Bilingualism has positive effects on children’s’ 
linguistic and educational development as well as having social advantages. Some new studies also suggest 

T
udalen 83

http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/1602051/SchoolTransportPolicy.pdf


3

school with fluency 
and confidence in 
Welsh – need more 
stress on marketing 
the advantages, 
especially for the 
workplace

that bilingualism may offer some protection against the decline of cognitive abilities in old age, both in normal 
and pathological ageing.
The link with the workplace is noted and will be pursued as part of implementing recommendations emanating 
from the County Council’s 11-19 curriculum review

2 The plan is properly 
geared towards 
realising the vision / 
will increase Welsh 
medium education and 
meet the growing 
demand

Respondents’ supportive comments are noted and we welcome the observations.

3 Policy is welcomed / 
Support the plan but 
the goals are not 
ambitious enough / 
targets need 
strengthening 

We note comments made by respondents. We will revise our targets after the first year of the plan, in order to 
ensure that they are suitably ambitious, commensurate with evolving provision and achievable.

4 Schools stating that 
they wish to enhance 
provision

The comments are welcomed and we will work in partnership with the schools in question to develop the aims 
of the policy.

5 The MEP programme 
should reflect the 
growing demand for 
Welsh medium 
education 

Carmarthenshire County Council’s Modernising Education Provision programme is addressing this issue and 
increasing the number of Welsh medium education places across the county. 

6 Would like to see a 
plan for every primary 
and secondary school 
to move along the 
Welsh language 
continuum.

The LA agrees with this comment and this aim is referenced in the draft consultation document

ACTION- LA to draft a primary and secondary language continuum plan for discussion with all head 
teachers and school Governing Bodies.

7 Staff capacity to 
realise the scheme in 

Welsh as a 1st or 2nd language is a statutory element of the National Curriculum. All schools are required to 
provide a certain level of Welsh therefore Governing Bodies have a duty to employ staff who have the skills/ 

T
udalen 84



4

terms of competence 
and confidence needs 
to be developed

are able to deliver the Welsh requirements of the curriculum. The new national curriculum for Wales as 
outlined in the Successful Futures review (2015) recommends that Welsh remain compulsory to age 16. 
Furthermore, there are 9 other recommendations, designed to develop Welsh and teaching through the 
medium of Welsh in the curriculum. The new curriculum for Wales will be available in 2018 and statutory from 
2021 onwards. This presents a challenge in respect of ensuring that we have more than sufficient workforce 
capacity to realise this agenda. It is thus proposed nationally that significant investment is made in 
professional development and staff training so that school staff can deliver the new curriculum and also teach, 
support and promote Welsh and Welsh medium education within that curriculum. We will work with Welsh 
Government, our consortium and other partners such as Welsh for Adults to build this capacity.

8 Non-Welsh speaking 
parents should not 
feel left out in being 
able to send their 
children to Welsh 
medium education

The plan aims to be inclusive and support will be available as described previously. There are already a great 
number of children in Welsh medium education from non-Welsh speaking families; indeed, it is the norm 
across large areas of south Wales. We aspire that all families can embrace the potential benefits accruing 
from the aims of this plan.

9 Simplify the process 
of changing category 
of dual stream schools 
to Welsh medium 
schools

This matter is being discussed with Welsh Government.

10 Greater help required 
for English medium 
and dual stream 
schools to develop 
Welsh provision by 
upskilling staff

This will be addressed in a support package for schools, school staff, parents and governors.
English medium schools have been proactive in responding to this consultation, with the majority declaring a 
wish to develop their Welsh medium provision.

11 Expand Welsh 
medium places in 
urban areas, 
particularly Llanelli

Comment noted and is referenced in the MEP plan.

General comments
1 Bilingual education 

needs to be 
encouraged rather 
than Welsh medium 
education

The aim of Welsh medium education is to attain competent fluency in two or more languages. Developing 
Welsh medium education is a vehicle to attain at least functional and, preferably, adept bilingualism. Not 
developing Welsh medium education will fail to realise the stated aim of ensuring that all learners in 
Carmarthenshire leave statutory and post statutory education fluently and confidently bilingual. That is why 
every school has a role to play in moving along the language continuum.

T
udalen 85



5
Tudalen 86



Y BWRDD GWEITHREDOL

23AIN IONAWR 2017

Pwnc a Pwrpas:

Model Gweithdrefn Galluogrwydd ar Gyfer Athrawon a Penaethiaid

Yr Argymhellion / Penderfyniadau Allweddol sydd eu Hangen:

I gefnogi mabwysiadu ‘Model Gweithdrefn Galluogrwydd ar Gyfer Athrawon a Penaethiaid’.

Y Rhesymau:

Bu cydnabyddiaeth gan ERW bod yr angen i greu Gweithdrefn Galluogrwydd ar gyfer Athrawon 
a Phenaethiaid yn flaenoriaeth, felly datblygwyd y weithdrefn hon yn rhanbarthol, ar draws yr 6 
Awdurdod Lleol sy'n rhan o ERW, mewn ymgynghoriad ag undebau llafur.

Angen ymgynghori â'r Pwyllgor Craffu perthnasol - Amherthnasol                                           
Angen i’r Bwrdd Gwenthredol Wneud Penderfyniad Oes
Angen i’r Cyngor Wneud Penderfyniad Na

YR AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO: Cyng. Mair 
Stephens; Cyng. Gareth Jones
Cyfarwyddiaeth:  Prif Weithredwr / Rheoli Pobl a Pherfformiad; Addysg a Gwasanaethau’r Plant
Enw Pennaeth y 
Wasanaeth: 

Swyddi: Rhifau ffôn:
Cyfeiriadau E-bost: 

Paul R. Thomas Prif Weithredwr Cynorthwyol (Rheoli 
Pobl a Pherfformiad)

01267 246123
PRThomas@sirgar.gov.uk

Gareth Morgan Cyfarwyddwr Dros Dro Adran Addysg 
a Gwasanaethau’r Plant

01267 224888
AEDGMorgans@sirgar.gov.uk

Awdur yr Adroddiad: 
Julie Stuart Uwch Bartner Busnes (AD) 01267 246375

JStuart@sirgar.gov.uk

 

Tudalen 87

Eitem Rhif  8

mailto:PRThomas@sirgar.gov.uk
mailto:AEDGMorgans@sirgar.gov.uk
mailto:JStuart@sirgar.gov.uk


EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
EXECUTIVE BOARD
23RD JANUARY 2017

Model Capability Procedure for Teachers and Headteachers

1. Background

The Authority is committed to providing a first-class education for children and young people.  
In order to ensure this, school leaders and governing bodies must recognise the importance 
of addressing performance issues in a fair, transparent and efficient manner. 

Effective performance management procedures demonstrate a school’s commitment to 
develop all employees to ensure job satisfaction, high levels of expertise and progression 
of employees in their profession.  It will also help employees to meet the needs of pupils 
and raise standards.  Effective performance management requires line managers to pay 
continuous attention to monitoring progress during the year, intervening early and providing 
support if there are concerns about the performance of an employee. It sets a framework 
for staff, school leaders and governors to agree and review priorities and objectives in the 
context of professional development and the School’s improvement plans. 

The purpose of this Procedure is to help schools secure improvement - this is a joint effort 
between the employee, the Headteacher or line manager and the Governing Body.  Early 
identification of underperformance and appropriate intervention and support through 
effective performance management will help to avoid the need for formal capability 
procedures at a later date.  

This Procedure applies to all teachers and Headteachers, except for Newly Qualified 
Teachers (NQTs) who are subject to separate procedures.

Detailed report attached: YES

Tudalen 88



IMPLICATIONS

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate 
Directors / Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications 
associated with this report:

Signed:
ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE (PEOPLE MANAGEMENT & PERFORMANCE)

Policy, 
Crime & 

Disorder & 
Equalities

Legal Finance ICT Risk 
Management 

Issues

Staffing 
Implications

Physical 
Assets

YES YES NO NO NO YES NO

1. Policy, Crime & Disorder

The recommendations support the Council’s Strategic Aim ‘Building a Better Council’ and 
‘Making Better Use of Resources’.

2. Legal

The Model Capability Procedure for Teachers and Headteachers is in line with Welsh 
Government’s ‘Capability of school teaching staff: Guidance for schools’ (guidance 
document no: 111/2013) and ‘Capability of Headteachers - Guidance for schools’ (guidance 
document no: 153/2014).

6. Staffing Implications

The HR Team will provide advice and guidance to schools on the application of the Model 
Capability Procedure for Teachers and Headteachers.

Tudalen 89



CONSULTATIONS

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken place and the outcomes are as detailed 
below:

Signed:
ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE (PEOPLE MANAGEMENT & PERFORMANCE)

1. Scrutiny Committee
None

2. Local Member(s)
None

3. Community / Town Council
None

4. Relevant Partners
None

5. Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations
Education & Children’s Services Employee Relations Forum - 8th November 2016

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 - Access to information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:
THERE ARE NONE

Title of Document File Ref No. Locations that the papers are available for public inspection

Tudalen 90



Model Capability Procedure

 for Teachers and Headteachers

Tudalen 91



DOCUMENT CONTROL

Policy name Capability Procedure for 
Teachers and Headteachers

Department
 

Human Resources

Reviewing Officers ERW HR Group on behalf of 
the 6 constituent local 
authorities 

REVISION HISTORY 

Version 1 November 2016

CONSULTATION PROCESS

The following Trade Unions have been consulted in respect of this Procedure: 

 ASCL

 ATL / AMiE

 NAHT

 NASUWT

 NUT

 UCAC

Tudalen 92



  
The Governing Body of _____________________________ School 

formally adopted this Procedure on ______________

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Section A: General Principles 

1. Introduction……………………………………………………………….…...3
2. Purpose…………………………………………………………………….….4
3. Principles………………………………………………………………….......5
4. Exceptional Circumstances……………………………………………….…6
5. Employee Absence During the Procedure………………………………...7
6. Grievances……………………………………………………………….……8
7. Reporting Professional Incompetence to the Education Workforce 

Council…………………………………………………………………….…..9

Section B: Procedure for Teachers 

8. Stage 1: Informal Support……………………………………………….…10
9. Stage 1: Review Period Meeting………………………………………..…11
10.Stage 2……………………………………………………………………….13
11.Stage 3……………………………………………………………………….14
12.Appeals Against Formal Warnings………………………………………..15
13.Stage 4: Capability Hearing …………………………………………….…16
14.Stage 5: Capability Appeal Hearing…………………………………….…19

Section C: Procedure for Headteachers

15.Stage 1: Informal Support…………………………………………….……23
16.Stage 1: Capability Hearing…………………………………………….….25
17.Stage 2…………………………………………………………………….…27
18.Stage 3…………………………………………………………………….…28
19.Appeals Against Formal Warnings………………………………………..28
20.Stage 4: Capability Hearing………………………………………………..30
21.Stage 5: Capability Appeal Hearing……………………………………….33

Appendix 1:  Flowchart Outlining Procedure for Teachers………………..36
Appendix 2:  Flowchart Outlining Procedure for Headteachers………….37
Appendix 3:  Roles and Responsibilities (Teacher Capability)……….…..38
Appendix 4:  Roles and Responsibilities (Headteacher Capability)….…..41
Appendix 5:  Capability Hearing Format……………………………………....45
Appendix 6:  Capability Appeal Hearing Format…………………………….46

Tudalen 93



SECTION A:  GENERAL PRINCIPLES

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 This Local Authority is committed to providing a first-class education for 
children and young people. In order to ensure this, school leaders and 
governing bodies must recognise the importance of addressing 
performance issues in a fair, transparent and efficient manner. The 
Governing Body of this School is therefore committed to ensuring that 
all staff possess the appropriate skills, knowledge, competence and 
aptitude to undertake their roles effectively.

1.2 Effective performance management procedures demonstrate a school’s 
commitment to develop all employees to ensure job satisfaction, high 
levels of expertise and progression of employees in their profession. It 
will also help employees to meet the needs of pupils and raise 
standards. Effective performance management requires line managers 
to pay continuous attention to monitoring progress during the year, 
intervening early and providing support if there are concerns about the 
performance of an employee. It sets a framework for staff, school 
leaders and governors to agree and review priorities and objectives in 
the context of professional development and the School’s improvement 
plans1. 

1.3 The purpose of this Procedure is to help schools secure improvement – 
this is a joint effort between the employee, the Headteacher or line 
manager and the Governing Body. Early identification of 
underperformance and appropriate intervention and support through 
effective performance management will help to avoid the need for 
formal capability procedures at a later date. In many cases, 
improvement may be achieved through existing review processes - 
often with a minimum of support and attention. In those instances, 
where serious concerns are identified in terms of unsatisfactory 
performance, a more formal approach may be required.

1.4 The commencement of capability procedures should not come as a 
surprise to the employee, as there should have been regular and 
effective communication with his/her line manager during the 
performance management process. 

1.5 This Procedure applies to all teachers and Headteachers, except for 
Newly Qualified Teachers (NQTs) who are subject to separate 
procedures.

1 Under the School Teacher Appraisal (Wales) Regulations 2011 there is a statutory requirement to undertake 
Performance Management procedures for teaching staff. Performance Management procedures are separate and 
distinct from Capability Procedures

Tudalen 94



1.6 If concerns are raised about an employee’s performance, it is important 
to establish the facts and to apply the appropriate procedures. A clear 
understanding needs to be established as to whether the issue is a lack 
of capability due to lack of competence, a lack of capability due to ill 
health or a matter of professional conduct. 

1.7 Where unsatisfactory performance is as a result of an employee’s lack 
of skill or aptitude, this Procedure will apply. 

1.8 Where it emerges that the issue causing concern relates to any 
inadequacy in health or any other physical or mental quality which 
results in unsatisfactory performance, the School’s Sickness Absence 
Policy will apply and consideration should be given to any reasonable 
adjustments that might be required. 

1.9 Where it emerges that the issue causing concern is one of misconduct 
because the employee has failed to do something as a result of his or 
her own negligence or by refusal to act, then the issue is not one of lack 
of capability and it is to be dealt with in line with the School’s 
Disciplinary Policy.

1.10 This Procedure should be read in conjunction with the Welsh 
Government’s ‘Capability of school teaching staff: Guidance for schools’ 
(guidance document no: 111/2013) and ‘Capability of Headteachers - 
Guidance for schools’ (guidance document no: 153/2014).

2. PURPOSE

2.1 The purpose of this Procedure is to enable:

 all employees to ensure that they achieve, sustain and improve on 
the levels of skill, knowledge and aptitude required of them, in order 
to improve standards and achieve better outcomes for pupils;

 all employees to access an appropriate programme of monitoring, 
support, guidance and training, to achieve and sustain a satisfactory 
level of performance; and

 employees to be made aware of circumstances where there is 
evidence that a satisfactory level of performance is not being 
maintained and of the process to be followed in such 
circumstances.

2.2 Sections B and C of this Procedure represent a set of stages that will 
provide teachers and Headteachers, respectively, with opportunities to 
hear how or why their performance is considered unsatisfactory and to 
offer any explanation that they wish to put forward.  

Tudalen 95



2.3 This Procedure is written with the presumption that the Headteacher will 
have the lead decision-making role when dealing with performance 
issues involving teachers and that line managers or other senior leaders 
may be designated with the responsibility of gathering and collating 
written evidence regarding the concerns.

2.4 Where the term “designated manager” is used in this Procedure, it 
means the Headteacher, senior leader, line manager or (where the 
Headteacher’s performance is concerned) the Chair of Governors 
managing the process.

3. PRINCIPLES

3.1 The main principles behind this Procedure are that: 

 all employees should be treated with respect, consistency and 
fairness;

 all matters of managing unsatisfactory performance and related 
investigations will be treated in confidence by all parties involved 
throughout all stages of the process;

 where reference is made in this Procedure to “the required / 
satisfactory standard of performance”, this means the requirements 
of  the employee’s job description and person specification and the 
relevant Professional Standards;

 all meetings at the various stages of this procedure should be 
arranged as soon as possible within the time limits specified. If the 
time limits cannot be met for any justifiable reason, they can be 
extended by agreement on both sides;

 employees subject to these procedures should be given between 5 
and 10 working days’ notice, in writing, of the time and place of any 
meeting set up to hear the capability matter or any appeal that may 
follow. At least 10 working days’ notice will be given in the case of a 
Stage 4 capability hearing or Stage 5 capability appeal hearing;

 employees will be advised of the performance concerns raised 
against them in advance of any interview, performance review or 
capability hearing and will be given the opportunity to state their 
case and present relevant evidence before any decision is made;

 employees will have the right to appeal against any decision to 
issue a warning or against their dismissal as part of this procedure; 

Tudalen 96



 employees have the right to be accompanied by a work colleague or 
their trade union representative at all stages of this procedure. 
Please note this does not include a right to representation at review 
meetings held with the designated manager for the purposes of 
monitoring and reviewing performance outside of this Procedure;

 Where an employee’s trade union representative cannot attend a 
formal meeting which may lead to a formal warning, an alternative 
date, normally within 5 working days, should be offered by the 
representative. Should the representative subsequently be unable 
to attend the rearranged date, the meeting may be held in their 
absence and/or written representations will be accepted;

 all stages of this procedure should be fully recorded, with the 
designated manager or Governing Body Committees keeping a 
record of all interviews and reviews with employees giving the date, 
time and explanation (if any) provided at all stages of the procedure. 
A copy of such records should be given to the employee; and

 Where the process proceeds to the hearing and appeal hearing 
stages, the disciplinary and dismissal procedures apply.2

3.2 If, at any stage during the procedure, the employee consistently 
achieves the required standard of performance and there is evidence to 
suggest that this improvement is sustainable, these procedures will 
conclude. At this point, the normal performance management process 
will recommence. The designated manager will inform the employee of 
this both verbally and in writing. The employee must also be 
encouraged to sustain and improve their performance in the future. If, 
however, following conclusion of the Capability Procedure, the 
employee fails to sustain the required standard of performance within 
60 working days of that conclusion, the procedure will recommence at 
the point where it was concluded previously. 

3.3 Where it is necessary to recommence this Procedure on more than two 
occasions, the Headteacher (or Chair of Governors, in the case of the 
Headteacher) may consider that there is sufficient, cumulative evidence 
indicating serious performance issues that require the procedures to 
start at Stage 3 immediately.

3.4 The roles and responsibilities of all parties involved in this procedure 
can be found at Appendix 3 (for teachers) and Appendix 4 (for 
Headteachers) of this Procedure, as per the Welsh Government 
guidance documents. 

2 A formal meeting should be instigated with the Staff Disciplinary and Dismissal Committee of the Governing Body, 
following the Welsh Government’s ‘Disciplinary and dismissal procedures for school staff: Revised guidance for 
governing bodies’ (2013)

Tudalen 97



3.5 Compliance with the requirements of equalities legislation should be 
maintained. The designated manager may need to seek further 
assistance to ensure reasonable adjustments are considered where an 
employee has a disability that falls under the Equality Act 2010. 

4. EXCEPTIONAL CIRCUMSTANCES 

4.1 In the exceptional case where the Headteacher (or Chair of Governors, 
in the case of the Headteacher) has overwhelming evidence that the 
continued employment of the employee will jeopardise the School, 
pupils’ education or put the pupils or staff at risk of harm, it may be 
appropriate to move directly to issue a final written warning, or to refer 
the matter to the Staff Disciplinary and Dismissal Committee, in 
accordance with this procedure. 

4.2 For this to occur, the employee’s performance should fall so far short of 
what is required that improvement to the required standard of 
performance may be deemed impossible, or the employee’s 
underperformance has a seriously detrimental effect in the School. 

4.3 The Headteacher, in consultation with the Chair of Governors (or Chair 
of Governors, in the case of the Headteacher’s capability), may also 
consider suspending the employee where it is considered necessary for 
the protection of pupils, staff or property, or where the employee’s 
continued presence is likely to have a seriously detrimental effect in the 
School. This is only likely to occur in exceptional circumstances and 
where all alternative options have been explored. It is therefore strongly 
recommended that HR advice is sought in such instances. 

5. EMPLOYEE ABSENCE DURING THE PROCEDURE

5.1  It is possible that an employee will become absent through ill health 
either before or during the Capability Procedure. While it may be 
reasonable to wait for the employee’s recovery, the Headteacher (or 
Chair of Governors, in the case of the Headteacher) should immediately 
seek HR advice relating to a referral to the Local Authority’s 
Occupational Health team or an appropriately qualified health 
professional. The Occupational Health team or appropriately qualified 
health professional should then be able to give advice on:

 whether the sickness absence is related to the employee’s 
performance issues; and

 whether the employee is able to continue to participate in the 
Capability Procedure. 

 

Tudalen 98



5.2 Whilst it is difficult to continue to assess the performance of an absent 
employee, if at any stage of the procedure the body of evidence is 
strong enough to proceed and the employee is afforded the opportunity 
to offer an explanation or have it presented on their behalf, the 
Headteacher (or Chair of Governors, in the case of the Headteacher) 
may decide to:

 conclude the proceedings on the basis that the employee has 
achieved the required standard of performance and that it is 
sustainable; or

 continue the Capability Procedure to the next stage on the basis 
that the evidence shows that the employee has not consistently 
achieved the required standard of performance. This decision 
should be made in consultation with the Occupational Health team 
or appropriately qualified health professional who should be able to 
advise on whether the employee is well enough to present 
themselves or take part in the next stage of the process. If the 
employee is not well enough, the Headteacher (or Chair of 
Governors, in the case of the Headteacher) may decide to suspend 
the process until they are.  

5.3 Where the evidence is strong enough to proceed to Stage 4 of the 
procedure and the employee is absent from work through ill health, 
every effort should be made to ensure that the employee can attend the 
hearing to present themselves. However, if the employee is unable to 
attend, this should not unduly delay the hearing taking place and written 
representations or representatives attending in the employee’s absence 
will be allowed instead. 

5.4 Throughout this procedure, if it is the advice of the Occupational Health 
team or appropriately qualified health professional that there is no 
likelihood of the employee returning to work in the foreseeable future, 
then the Headteacher (or Chair of Governors, in the case of the 
Headteacher) should consider dealing with the employee’s sickness 
absence through the School’s Sickness Absence Procedure. The 
requirement to notify the Education Workforce Council under the 
appropriate regulations dealing with professional incompetence will be 
unaffected by this decision.

6.    GRIEVANCES

6.1 Where an employee feels that they have been treated unfairly in the 
application of the Capability Procedure, this would normally be dealt 
with through the appeal process outlined in this Procedure. 

Tudalen 99



6.2 If an employee feels that they have been treated unfairly or have been 
discriminated against, they may bring a grievance3 at any stage. The 
grievance should normally be heard separately and contemporaneously 
so that the capability procedures are able to continue uninterrupted.  A 
final decision regarding the continuation of the capability procedures will 
be made on a case-by-case basis, in light of available evidence. .

6.3 Where, however, the grievance is against the designated manager (or, 
in the case of the Headteacher, the designated person leading on the 
performance issue), the individual to whom the grievance is submitted 
should seek HR advice and consider whether to allocate an alternative 
person to the role before continuing with the capability process. If the 
grievance is against the Chair of Governors, then advice should be 
sought from the Local Authority (or the diocesan authority) before 
continuing with the capability process. 

6.4 Subject to the above, initiation of the Capability Procedure does not in 
any way affect an employee’s right to raise a grievance under the 
School’s Grievance Policy. 

7. REPORTING PROFESSIONAL INCOMPETENCE TO THE 
EDUCATION WORKFORCE COUNCIL

7.1 Employers have a legal responsibility to report cases of professional 
incompetence related to registered teachers directly to the Education 
Workforce Council where the employer:

 has ceased to use the services of a registered teacher on the 
ground of his/her professional incompetence; or

 may have ceased to use the services of a registered teacher on that 
ground had s/he not ceased to provide those services (e.g. through 
resigning his/her post).

7.2 Where a registered teacher resigns at the informal stage of this 
Procedure, his/her case would not normally be referred to the Education 
Workforce Council, other than in the exceptional circumstances referred 
to in paragraph 4 of this Procedure (e.g. where the matter would have 
been referred directly to the Staff Disciplinary and Dismissal Committee, 
had the employee not have resigned). 

3 Grievances are concerns, problems or complaints raised by an employee (or somebody 
acting on their behalf, e.g. their Trade Union representative) which relate to their working 
conditions or relationships at work. Issues that may cause grievances include work relations, 
bullying and harassment or discrimination. 

Tudalen 100



SECTION B:  PROCEDURE FOR TEACHERS

8. STAGE 1: INFORMAL SUPPORT  

8.1 Where there are concerns regarding a teacher’s performance, the 
teacher should be advised by their line manager that continued failure 
to improve performance could result in a need to address their 
performance issues via this procedure. For this reason, the line 
manager will update the Headteacher regarding the matter, who will 
then instigate an initial investigation of the issue and appoint a 
designated manager to undertake the task. 

8.2 The designated manager must meet with the teacher to ensure that 
there is complete clarity on where the performance issue lies (including 
consideration of the issues set out at paragraphs 1.6 to 1.9) and, 
through discussion, devise a plan to support the teacher to improve 
their performance to the standard required. The development of a 
support plan does not signify the start of a formal process. 

8.3 The Headteacher will also meet with the teacher (in the presence of a 
trade union representative, if the teacher so wishes) and provide 
evidence of the concerns regarding his/her performance, having a 
discussion with the teacher so that a mutual understanding of the 
performance issue(s) is established. 

8.4 The teacher should be provided with between 5 and 10 working days’ 
notice of this meeting. At the same time, the teacher will be provided 
with a copy of this Procedure and with details of the performance 
concerns.

8.5 As a result of that meeting, the Headteacher may determine one of the 
following actions:

 that no further action is required as the Headteacher is satisfied with 
the teacher’s response; or

 that a support plan and review period should be established to 
address the performance concerns. 

 8.6 If a support plan is required, the period for improvement should be no 
more than 30 working days and the Headteacher should set the review 
period meeting and establish SMART4 targets for performance 
improvement.  

8.7 The Headteacher will discuss and, wherever possible, agree the content 
of the support plan with the teacher. In cases where it is not possible to 

4 SMART targets should be specific, measurable, achievable, relevant and time-bound. 

Tudalen 101



reach agreement, the Headteacher will determine the content of the 
support plan. 

 8.8 The Headteacher will:

 specify the support for the teacher in achieving the targets. The 
range of support may include training, coaching, mentoring, 
counselling, monitoring, working in a professional learning 
community, learning and development opportunities (as distinct 
from training) , supervision, occupational health, etc;

 require the designated manager to monitor performance and 
progress following this first meeting;

 ensure that the monitoring process includes a range of supportive 
interventions;

 always ensure that the identified support is provided in a timely 
manner, is specific and time limited, and will help the teacher 
achieve an improvement in their performance;

 ensure that, throughout the monitoring process, the teacher is given 
the opportunity of commenting upon the proposed plan of support; 
and 

 ensure that the monitoring process is conducted in a sympathetic 
and non-threatening way, with the objective of improving the 
teacher’s work performance. However, it must be made clear that 
Stage 2 of the procedure will be triggered if there is no improvement 
within the review period.

8.9 The designated manager will write to the teacher, confirming the 
outcome of this meeting, within 5 working days. 

8.10 During the review period, the designated manager will be responsible 
for gathering and collating any further written evidence. Progress will be 
reported to the Headteacher during the review period and presented to 
the Headteacher at the end of the period.

8.11 If at any time in this procedure it is determined that a teacher has not 
engaged positively and constructively with the process of improvement, 
then the matter may be considered to be an issue of professional 
misconduct and may be considered under the School’s Disciplinary 
Policy.

Tudalen 102



9. STAGE 1:  REVIEW PERIOD MEETING

9.1 Shortly before the Stage 1 review meeting takes place, the designated 
manager should prepare for it by undertaking an assessment of the 
teacher’s performance during the agreed timescale for improvement. 

9.2 The teacher should be notified of the date and arrangements for the 
meeting in writing between 5 and 10 working days prior to the meeting 
and should be informed of the right to be accompanied by a trade union 
representative or work colleague. At the same time, the teacher should 
be provided with copies of any written evidence to be relied upon by the 
Headteacher or designated manager at the meeting. 

9.3 Should the teacher wish to submit any documentation, it should be 
provided to the Headteacher at least 2 working days in advance of the 
meeting.

9.4 At the meeting, the designated manager will present their report 
regarding the review period and the teacher will have the opportunity to 
provide a response to the report.

9.5 The Headteacher will then consider all the evidence presented, before 
determining one of the following outcomes: 

 the teacher’s performance has improved to a satisfactory level 
and no further action is necessary. This will be confirmed in 
writing and the teacher should be reminded of the requirement to 
sustain the satisfactory standard of performance and of the 
consequences if this is not achieved; or 

the teacher has made insufficient progress and is still not achieving the 
required standard of performance, and so will be issued with a Stage 1 
oral warning.

9.6 If it is determined to issue the teacher with an oral warning, this will also 
be provided in a written format that will state:

 the performance issue(s) that were discussed and the standard 
of performance that is required;

 the ways in which the School will help the teacher to attain a 
satisfactory level of performance, i.e. details of any training and 
support to be provided;

 the timescale for improvement (not to exceed 6 weeks) and the 
date on which the teacher’s performance will be reviewed;

 the consequences if the teacher does not reach the required 
standard, including that formal disciplinary action and dismissal 
are a potential option;

Tudalen 103



 that the current performance management cycle for the teacher 
will be suspended now that a formal oral warning has been 
issued;

 that the oral warning will remain on their record for 65 working 
days; 

 the right to appeal (which should not stop the on-going capability 
procedure, as the two processes can run concurrently); and 

 a note that the teacher has acknowledged the warning orally or in 
writing, and of any observations that the teacher wished to make 
at that time. 

10. STAGE 2 

10.1 At the end of the agreed review period for Stage 1, the designated 
manager should gather evidence and undertake an assessment of the 
teacher’s performance against the identified targets during the 
timescale for improvement.

10.2 A review meeting will take place as per the process for Stage 1 (see 9.1 
to 9.3). 

10.3 The Headteacher will then consider all the evidence presented before 
determining one of the following outcomes:

 the teacher has made sufficient progress and is now achieving a 
satisfactory level of performance that is sustainable, in which case no 
further action will be taken. This will be confirmed in writing and the 
teacher will be reminded of the expectation of sustaining the satisfactory 
level of performance and the consequence of failure to sustain this 
standard; 

 the teacher has achieved partial improvement and the review period 
should be extended. Any such extension should not exceed the original 
period set for improvement, must be based upon clear expectations of 
the improvements to be delivered, must be confirmed in writing and 
should not be repeated on more than one occasion; or 

 The teacher’s performance is not satisfactory and they should be issued 
with a Stage 2 written warning. 

10.4 If it is determined to issue the teacher with a written warning, this will 
state:  

Tudalen 104



 the performance issue(s) that were discussed and the standard 
of performance that is required;

 the timescale for improvement (not to exceed 6 weeks) and the 
date on which the teacher’s performance will be reviewed;

 the ways in which the School will help the teacher to attain a 
satisfactory level of performance, i.e. details of any training and 
support to be provided;

 that the warning will remain on their record for 130 working days;

 the consequences of failure to meet the required standard and 
the potential to move to Stage 3 of the procedure;

 the right to appeal (which should not stop the on-going capability 
procedure, as the two processes can run concurrently); and

 a note that the teacher has acknowledged the warning orally or in 
writing, and of any observations that the teacher wished to make 
at that time. 

11. STAGE 3

11.1 At the end of the agreed review period for Stage 2, the designated 
manager should gather evidence and undertake an assessment of the 
teacher’s performance against the identified targets during the 
timescale for improvement. 

11.2 A review meeting will take place as per the process for Stages 1 and 2 
(see 9.1 to 9.3). 

11.3 The Headteacher will then consider all the evidence presented before 
determining one of the following outcomes:

 the teacher has made sufficient progress and is now achieving a 
satisfactory level of performance that is sustainable, in which case no 
further action will be taken. This will be confirmed in writing and the 
teacher will be reminded of the expectation of sustaining the satisfactory 
level of performance and the consequence of failure to sustain this 
standard; 

 the teacher has achieved partial improvement and the review period 
should be extended. Any such extension should not exceed the original 
period set for improvement, must be based upon clear expectations of 
the improvements to be delivered, must be confirmed in writing and 
should not be repeated on more than one occasion; or 

Tudalen 105



 The teacher’s performance is not satisfactory and they should be issued 
with a Stage 3 final written warning. 

11.4 If it is determined to issue the teacher with a final written warning, this 
will state:  

 the performance issue(s) that were discussed and the standard 
of performance that is required;

 the timescale for improvement (not to exceed 6 weeks) and the 
date on which the teacher’s performance will be reviewed;

 the ways in which the School will help the teacher to attain a 
satisfactory level of performance, i.e. details of any training and 
support to be provided;

 that the warning will remain on their record for one academic 
year;

 the consequences of failure to meet the required standard and 
the potential to move to Stage 4 of the procedure;

 the right to appeal (which should not stop the on-going capability 
procedure, as the two processes can run concurrently); and

 a note that the teacher has acknowledged the warning orally or in 
writing, and of any observations that the teacher wished to make 
at that time. 

12. APPEALS AGAINST FORMAL WARNINGS

12.1 The teacher will have the right to appeal against any decision to issue 
an oral, written or final written warning as part of this procedure. 

12.2 In order to do this, the teacher must write to the Clerk to the Governing 
Body within 5 working days of the date of the formal warning, stating 
their grounds for appeals.

12.3 Upon receipt of the teacher’s appeal, the Clerk to Governing Body will 
arrange for the appeal to be heard by the Teacher Capability Appeals 
Committee of the Governing Body. 

12.4 An appeal should be heard promptly, and within 20 working days of the 
teacher’s appeal being lodged, as the process of managing the 
capability process will not necessarily cease, pending the outcome of a 
hearing. The teacher will be expected to continue to work towards the 

Tudalen 106



improvements identified with the designated manager, while 
arrangements are made for the appeal hearing to be held. The appeal 
should be heard separately so that the capability procedures are able to 
continue uninterrupted. 

12.5 The teacher will be provided with between 5 and 10 working days’ 
notice of the appeal hearing. 

12.6 The format of the appeal hearing will be as follows:

 Introductions and confirmation of the reason for the appeal hearing;

 Presentation of the case by the teacher or their representative, 
including cross examination by the Committee and the designated 
manager;

 The Headteacher’s reply and cross-examination by the Committee 
and teacher; 

 Final questions and clarification from the Committee;

 Summing up from the teacher; 

 Summing up from the Headteacher;

 Adjournment for the Committee to make a decision, taking into 
consideration the submissions and evidence presented during the 
course of the appeal hearing and in the supporting documentation; 
and 

 Reconvene to inform the teacher of the panel’s decision, unless 
agreed that the panel’s decision will be conveyed in writing to the 
teacher. 

12.7 The Teacher Capability Appeals Committee will have three options 
open to it:

 confirm the Headteacher’s original decision;

 uphold the teacher’s appeal and overturn the Headteacher’s original 
decision; or

 agree a further assessment period, in the current stage, of no more 
than six weeks to allow the teacher to achieve the required standard 
of performance. Where this occurs, the Committee must reconvene 
at the end of the further assessment period to review the progress 
of the teacher and if the required standard of performance is still not 
met confirm the original decision. 

Tudalen 107



12.8 The Teacher Capability Appeals Committee must confirm its decision in 
writing to the teacher, within 5 working days of the appeal hearing, also 
informing the teacher that there will be no further right of appeal at this 
stage of the procedure.

12.9 All appeals against formal warnings should be heard before capability 
matters are referred to the Staff Disciplinary and Dismissal Committee 
under Stage 4 of this Procedure.

13. STAGE 4:  CAPABILITY HEARING

13.1 Where the procedures detailed at Stages 1, 2 and 3 have been followed 
(save for in the exceptional circumstances outlined in paragraph 4) and 
have resulted in a final written warning being issued, but the teacher 
has not achieved the satisfactory level of performance within the agreed 
timescale for improvement, it will be appropriate to inform the teacher 
that the matter will be referred to a hearing before the Staff Disciplinary 
and Dismissal Committee (SD&DC) of the Governing Body.

13.2 The hearing process should be conducted in line with the Welsh 
Government’s ‘Disciplinary and dismissal procedures for school staff: 
Revised guidance for governing bodies’ (circular 002/2013). The 
SD&DC should therefore ensure that they refer to that guidance at this 
stage. 

13.3 In all maintained schools, the Local Authority’s Chief Education Officer 
or their representative are entitled to attend such a hearing for the 
purpose of giving advice on all proceedings relating to any decision to 
dismiss a member of staff. The CEO or their representative must be 
notified of the meeting at the same time as the teacher and the person 
presenting the case against the teacher. 

13.4 In voluntary aided and voluntary controlled schools, the diocesan officer 
or their representative has the same advisory rights as those given to 
the Chief Education Officer. In foundation schools, the Governing Body 
may agree with the diocesan authority to award those same advisory 
rights to the diocesan officer or their representative. The diocesan 
director should also be notified of the hearing. 

13.5 At this stage, there may be circumstances where the Headteacher, in 
consultation with the Chair of Governors, may consider suspending a 
teacher from duty on full pay where they consider that it is necessary for 
the protection of pupils, staff or property, or where the teacher’s 
continued presence is likely to have a seriously detrimental effect in the 
School. This is only likely to occur in exceptional circumstances and 

Tudalen 108



where all alternative options have been explored. It is therefore strongly 
recommended that HR advice is sought in such instances.

13.6 The hearing will be held as soon as it can be arranged by the Clerk to 
the SD&DC, even if the teacher has subsequently resigned5. This may 
also be the case if the teacher is absent from work due to ill health. 

13.7 The teacher will be informed in writing, with at least 10 working days’ 
notice, of: 

 the date, time and place for the hearing; 

 the purpose of the hearing and the range of possible outcomes, 
including that a potential outcome of the hearing is dismissal; 

 the right of the teacher to be accompanied by a trade union 
representative or a work colleague; 

 the membership of the SD&DC;

 the name of the person presenting the case against the teacher;

 the full details of the performance concerns, the evidence to be 
presented and the names of any witnesses to be called, etc.;

 the name of the adviser to the SD&DC; and

 the date by which all relevant documentation should be received by 
the Clerk prior to the hearing. 

13.8 The Clerk will arrange for the documentation from both parties to be 
distributed to the teacher and their representative, including up-to-date 
procedures at the same time as informing them in writing of the hearing. 

13.9 Should the teacher wish to submit documentation to support their case, 
this should be provided to the Clerk at least 5 working days in advance 
of the hearing.

13.10 At the same time as informing the teacher in writing of the hearing and 
providing them with all relevant documentation, the Clerk will provide 
the SD&DC with:

 written details of the arrangements for hearing the capability matter;

5 In cases where the teacher has already resigned, he/she must still be notified that a hearing 
is to be held and be invited to attend, in the same way as a current employee. He/she must 
also subsequently be informed of the hearing’s outcome.

Tudalen 109



 formal written notice of the capability matter and any supporting 
documentation such as written reports prepared by the designated 
manager and/or Headteacher at each stage of the Capability 
Procedure; and

 written confirmation of the teacher’s response to the capability 
matter with any supporting documentation.

13.11 All evidence that will be used at the capability hearing is provided in 
confidence and this must remain so throughout the proceedings. At no 
time prior to the capability hearing will members of the SD&DC discuss 
the capability matter.

13.12 No new material should be introduced at the capability hearing, above 
and beyond that previously issued to the SD&DC.

13.13 The format to be followed at the capability hearing is outlined at 
Appendix 5.  

13.14 The SD&DC will consider all of the evidence presented, before 
determining one of the following outcomes:

 the teacher’s performance is satisfactory and no further action will be 
taken. The teacher should be reminded of the requirement to sustain 
a satisfactory standard of performance and the consequences if this 
is not achieved; 

 the teacher’s performance is unsatisfactory and the teacher should 
be dismissed on the grounds of capability; or 

 the teacher has made some progress towards improving their 
performance but has not yet achieved the required satisfactory 
standard. A further assessment period of no more than six weeks 
will be agreed, in order to allow the teacher to achieve the required 
standard of performance. Where this occurs, the SD&DC must 
reconvene at the end of the further assessment period to review the 
progress of the teacher and if the required standard of performance 
is still not met, recommend dismissal with the right to appeal.

13.15 The SD&DC will confirm its decision in writing to the teacher, within 5 
working days of reaching its decision. Where appropriate, this letter will 
inform the teacher of their right to appeal against the decision of the 
SD&DC. 

13.16 In maintained schools, where the SD&DC takes the decision to dismiss 
the teacher, the SD&DC must copy the hearing outcome letter to the 
Chief Education Officer once the period allowed for the teacher to 
appeal has expired and they have not appealed. The reason for this is 
that the Local Authority is the employer of staff in maintained schools. 

Tudalen 110



The Local Authority is therefore required to dismiss the teacher and 
should do so within 14 school days of notification of the decision by the 
SD&DC. 

13.17 In voluntary aided and foundation schools, the teacher is employed by 
the Governing Body. The SD&DC should therefore include notification 
of dismissal and any appropriate period of notice in the hearing 
outcome letter that it sends to the teacher. 

14. STAGE 5:  CAPABILITY APPEAL HEARING

14.1 Where the teacher appeals against the dismissal decision of the 
SD&DC, the appeal will be heard by the Staff Disciplinary and Dismissal 
Appeals Committee (SD&DAC). 

14.2 The appeal hearing process should be conducted in line with the Welsh 
Government’s ‘Disciplinary and dismissal procedures for school staff: 
Revised guidance for governing bodies’ (circular 002/2013). The 
SD&DAC should therefore ensure that they refer to that guidance at this 
stage.

14.3 The appeal hearing will focus upon the issues set out in the teacher’s 
letter of appeal, therefore the appeal hearing may not always take the 
form of a complete re-hearing. However, under certain circumstances, 
i.e. where new evidence comes to light or the first hearing process was 
flawed or biased, it may be appropriate to re-hear part, if not all, of the 
case. Two possible formats for the capability appeal hearing are 
therefore outlined at Appendix 6. 

14.4 Where a teacher has been dismissed and given the right of appeal, they 
must notify the Clerk to the Governing Body in writing that they intend to 
appeal, stating their grounds for appeal, within 10  working days of 
receiving written confirmation of the decision.

14.5 The teacher’s grounds for appeal could include: 

 that there has been a procedural flaw in the first hearing; 

 that the findings are inconsistent with the evidence produced;

 that the teacher feels that the sanctions are inappropriate;

 that the capability procedure and/or the first hearing was in some 
way unfair or biased; and 

 that new evidence has come to light that was not considered at the 
original hearing. 

Tudalen 111



14.6 On receipt of the teacher’s written notice of appeal, the Clerk to the 
Governing Body will arrange for the SD&DAC to hear the capability 
appeal within 20 working days of the teacher’s appeal being lodged.

14.7 The Clerk will inform the teacher in writing, with at least 10 working 
days’ notice, of: 

 the date, time and place for the appeal hearing; 

 the purpose of the appeal hearing and the range of possible 
outcomes; 

 the right of the teacher to be accompanied by a trade union 
representative or a work colleague; 

 the membership of the SD&DAC;

 the full details of the evidence to be presented and the names of any 
witnesses to be called, etc.;

 the name of the adviser to the SD&DAC; and

 the date by which all relevant documentation should be received by 
the Clerk prior to the appeal hearing. 

14.8 The Clerk will arrange for the documentation to be relied upon at the 
appeal hearing (including any such documentation from the first 
hearing) to be distributed to the teacher and their representative, 
including up-to-date procedures at the same time as informing them in 
writing of the appeal hearing. 

14.9 Should the teacher wish to submit documentation to support their case, 
this should be provided to the Clerk at least 5 working days in advance 
of the appeal hearing.

14.10 At the same time as informing the teacher in writing of the appeal 
hearing and providing them with all relevant documentation, the Clerk 
will provide the SD&DAC with:

 written details of the arrangements for the appeal hearing;

 copies of any supporting documentation to be relied upon at the 
appeal hearing, including copies of any documentation that was 
considered at the first hearing; and

 copies of any documentation submitted by the teacher, in support of 
their appeal.

Tudalen 112



14.11 All evidence that will be used at the capability appeal hearing is 
provided in confidence and this must remain so throughout the 
proceedings. At no time prior to the capability hearing will members of 
the SD&DAC discuss the capability matter.

14.12 No new material should be introduced at the capability appeal hearing, 
above and beyond that previously issued to the SD&DAC.

14.13 The SD&DAC will have four options open to it:

 confirm the decision of the SD&DC to dismiss the teacher;

 uphold the teacher’s appeal and overturn the SD&DC’s decision to 
dismiss;

 agree a further assessment period of no more than six weeks to 
allow the teacher to achieve the required standard of performance. 
Where this occurs, the SD&DAC must reconvene at the end of the 
further assessment period to review the progress of the teacher and 
if the required standard of performance is still not met confirm the 
dismissal; or

 recommend that the teacher be redeployed should suitable 
alternative employment be available.

 
14.14 The SD&DAC will confirm its decision in writing to the teacher, within 5 

working days of reaching its decision. Where appropriate, this letter will 
inform the teacher that the decision of the SD&DAC is final and there is 
no further right of appeal. 

14.15 In maintained schools, where the SD&DAC upholds the SD&DC’s 
decision to dismiss the teacher, the SD&DAC must copy the appeal 
hearing outcome letter to the Chief Education Officer. The reason for 
this is that the Local Authority is the employer of staff in maintained 
schools. The Local Authority is therefore required to dismiss the teacher 
and should do so within 14 school days of notification of the decision by 
the SD&DAC. 

14.16 In voluntary aided and foundation schools, the teacher is employed by 
the Governing Body. The SD&DC should therefore include notification 
of dismissal and any appropriate period of notice in the appeal hearing 
outcome letter that it sends to the teacher. 

Tudalen 113



SECTION C:  PROCEDURE FOR HEADTEACHERS

15. STAGE 1: INFORMAL SUPPORT  

15.1 Where concerns in relation to the Headteacher’s performance arise, the 
Chair of Governors should arrange a meeting with the Headteacher to 
raise the concerns, identify any reasons for the underperformance 
(including consideration of the issues set out in paragraphs 1.6 to 1.9) 
and identify support that can be put in place to help the Headteacher to 
address the concerns. The Chair of Governors would normally be 
accompanied at this meeting by a Local Authority representative. 

15.2 In advance of the meeting, the Chair of Governors should secure from 
the Regional Consortium, via the Local Authority, the support of an 
individual with appropriate education expertise and no previous direct 
involvement in the work of the School (“Consortium Adviser”). That 
person will be responsible for clarifying the concerns and gathering 
relevant, contextualised evidence in advance of that meeting. 

15.3 The Headteacher should be provided with details of the performance 
concerns and a copy of this Procedure, between 5 and 10 working days 
in advance of the meeting. 

15.4 At the meeting, the Chair of Governors should present the evidence 
relating to the performance concerns to the Headteacher, so that a 
mutual understanding of the issues and causes can be established. The 
Chair of Governors should listen to the Headteacher’s response in order 
to discuss, consider and, if possible, agree steps to be taken to address 
the identified concerns. At this point, the performance concerns and the 
support to be provided should be clearly established. 

15.5 As a result of the meeting, the Chair of Governors may determine one 
of the following actions:

 that no further action is required as the Chair of Governors is 
satisfied with the Headteacher’s response; or

 that a support plan and review period should be established to 
address the performance concerns. 

15.6 If a support plan is required, the period for improvement should normally 
be 20 - 40 working days and the Chair of Governors should set the 
review period meeting and establish clear targets for performance 
improvement. These must be reasonable, informed by the Consortium 
Adviser, discussed with the Headteacher and confirmed in writing. 

Tudalen 114



15.7 The Chair of Governors will discuss and, wherever possible, agree the 
content of the support plan with the Headteacher. In cases where it is 
not possible to reach agreement, the Chair of Governors will determine 
the content of the support plan. 

15.8 There may be exceptional instances where the identified 
underperformance of the Headteacher is considered to be so serious 
that the formal procedure should commence immediately (i.e. Stage 2). 
Advice must be obtained from the Local Authority and, where 
applicable, the diocesan authority before such decisions are 
considered.

 15.9 Throughout the review period, by working closely with the Consortium 
Adviser, the Chair of Governors will:

 specify the support for the Headteacher in achieving the targets. 
The range of support may include training, coaching, mentoring, 
counselling, monitoring, working in a professional learning 
community, learning and development opportunities (as distinct 
from training), supervision, occupational health, etc.;

 require the Consortium Adviser to coordinate the implementation of 
the support plan, be responsible for gathering and collating 
evidence relating to the Headteacher’s performance, and their 
progress against the performance targets;

 ensure that the monitoring process includes a range of supportive 
interventions;

 always ensure that the identified support is provided in a timely 
manner, is specific and time limited, and will help the Headteacher 
achieve an improvement in their performance;

 ensure that, throughout the monitoring process, the Headteacher is 
given the opportunity of commenting upon the proposed plan of 
support; and 

 ensure that the monitoring process is conducted in a sympathetic 
and non-threatening way, with the objective of improving the 
Headteacher’s work performance. However, it must be made clear 
that Stage 2 of the procedure will be triggered if there is no 
improvement within the review period.

15.10 Progress will be reported to the Chair of Governors during the review 
period and presented to the Chair of Governors at the end of the period, 
by the Consortium Adviser. 

15.11 At the end of the review period, an interview with the Headteacher 
should be conducted by the Chair of Governors (in the presence of a 

Tudalen 115



trade union representative or work colleague, if the Headteacher so 
wishes). The Consortium Adviser will present their report and the Chair 
of Governors may find it helpful to be accompanied at the meeting by a 
Local Authority representative.

15.12 Where the Chair of Governors determines that the Headteacher has 
achieved partial improvement, they may determine to extend the period 
of the informal stage. Any such extension should not exceed the original 
period set for improvement, must be based upon clear expectations of 
the improvements to be delivered, must be confirmed in writing and 
should not be repeated on more than one occasion.

15.13 Where the Chair of Governors determines that the evidence 
demonstrates that the Headteacher's performance has improved to a 
satisfactory level, they will determine that no further action is necessary 
and that the procedure will cease. This will be confirmed in writing, 
with the Headteacher reminded of the requirement to sustain the 
satisfactory standard of performance and the consequences of failing to 
sustain this standard. 

 15.14 Where the Chair of Governors determines that actions taken during the 
informal stages have failed to achieve the required improvement in the 
Headteacher’s performance, they will inform the Headteacher that a 
review meeting will be arranged, to be heard by a governor panel 
(“Capability Panel”), who will consider whether to trigger the formal 
stage of the procedure. 

16. STAGE 1:  REVIEW PERIOD MEETING

16.1 The Capability Panel will comprise 3 non-staff members of the 
Governing Body, A Local Authority representative (or diocesan 
representative, where applicable) should attend in an advisory capacity, 
with the consent of the chair of the Panel.

16.2 The Headteacher should be notified of the date and arrangements for 
the meeting, including their right to be accompanied by a trade union 
representative or work colleague, in writing between 5 and 10 working 
days in advance of the meeting. All documentation for the panel, 
including the report of the Consortium Adviser will be provided at this 
point.

16.3 The Consortium Adviser’s report should identify the nature of the 
Headteacher’s underperformance, detail the actions taken at the 
informal stage and the impact, or otherwise, of those interventions.

16.4 Should the Headteacher wish to submit any documentation, it should be 
provided to the chair of the Panel at least 2 working days in advance of 
the meeting. 

Tudalen 116



16.5 At the meeting, the Consortium Adviser will present their report and the 
Headteacher and/or their representative will then have an opportunity to 
respond to the report and the performance concerns raised. 

16.6 The Capability Panel will then consider all the evidence presented, 
before determining one of the following outcomes:

 the Headteacher's performance is satisfactory and no further 
action will be taken. This should be confirmed in writing and the 
Headteacher should be reminded of the requirement to sustain a 
satisfactory standard of performance and of the consequences if 
this is not achieved; 

 the Headteacher's performance is unsatisfactory and the 
Headteacher should be issued with a formal written warning and 
advised of expected improvements within a specified timescale; 
or

 The Headteacher has made some progress towards improving 
their performance but has not yet achieved the required 
satisfactory standard and the review period should be extended 
by a period no greater than the original period set. This option 
would not normally be considered where an extension of review 
period has already been provided under the informal stage.

16.7 If it is determined to issue the Headteacher with a formal warning, this 
will be a written warning which will state:

 the performance issue(s) that were discussed and the standard 
of performance that is required;

 the ways in which the School will help the Headteacher to attain 
a satisfactory level of performance, i.e. details of any training and 
support to be provided;

 the timescale for improvement (not to exceed 6 weeks) and the 
date on which the Headteacher’s performance will be reviewed;

 the consequences if the Headteacher does not reach the 
required standard, including that a final written warning may be 
issued;

 that the current performance management cycle for the 
Headteacher will be suspended now that a formal written warning 
has been issued;

 that the written warning will remain on their record for one year; 

Tudalen 117



 the right to appeal (which should not stop the on-going capability 
procedure, as the two processes can run concurrently); and 

 whilst no response is required, a note should be made of any 
response made by the Headteacher. 

16.8 Where the evidence presented suggests that the Headteacher has not 
engaged positively and constructively with the procedure, the matter 
may be considered to be an issue of professional misconduct and will 
be dealt with under the School’s Disciplinary Policy. Before considering 
this action, the Chair of Governors should seek advice from the Local 
Authority, diocesan authority (where applicable) or HR. 

17. STAGE 2 

17.1 At the end of the agreed review period for Stage 1, the Consortium 
Adviser should gather evidence and undertake an assessment of the 
Headteacher’s performance against the identified targets, during the 
timescale allocated for improvement. The Consortium Adviser’s report 
will then be presented to the Capability Panel. 

17.2 A review meeting will take place as per the process for Stage 1 (see 
16.1 to 16.5). 

17.3 The Capability Panel will then consider all the evidence presented 
before determining one of the following outcomes: 

 the Headteacher’s performance is satisfactory and no further action 
will be taken. This will be confirmed in writing and the Headteacher 
should be reminded of the requirement to sustain a satisfactory 
standard of performance and of the consequences if this is not 
achieved; 

 the Headteacher’s performance is unsatisfactory and they should be 
issued with a final written warning, and advised of expected 
improvements within a specified timescale; or 

 the Headteacher has made some progress towards improving their 
performance but has not yet achieved the required satisfactory 
standard and the review period should be extended. The period of 
extension should not exceed the length of the original review period. 
An extension would not normally be agreed in circumstances where 
an extension was agreed at the formal warning stage. 

17.4 If it is determined to issue the Headteacher with a final written warning, 
this will state:

Tudalen 118



 the performance issue(s) that were discussed and the standard 
of performance that is required;

 the ways in which the School will help the Headteacher to attain 
a satisfactory level of performance, i.e. details of any training and 
support to be provided;

 the timescale for improvement (not to exceed 6 weeks) and the 
date on which the Headteacher’s performance will be reviewed;

 the consequences if the Headteacher does not reach the 
required standard, i.e. that the matter may be referred to the Staff 
Disciplinary and Dismissal Committee of the Governing Body and 
that the outcome could be dismissal; 

 that the final written warning will remain on their record for one 
year; 

 the right to appeal (which should not stop the on-going capability 
procedure, as the two processes can run concurrently); and 

 whilst no response is required, a note should be made of any 
response made by the Headteacher. 

18. STAGE 3

18.1 At the end of the agreed review period for Stage 2, the Consortium 
Adviser will gather evidence and undertake an assessment of the 
Headteacher’s performance against targets during the timescale 
allocated for improvement. The Consortium Adviser’s report will then be 
presented to the Capability Panel. It is recommended that the Capability 
Panel secures the services of a Local Authority or diocesan adviser 
(where applicable) at this stage, to provide support and advice. 

18.2 If the Capability Panel judge that sufficient progress has been made and 
that the Headteacher is now achieving the required standard of 
performance in a way that is sustainable, then they will reflect this by 
acknowledging the improvement made by the Headteacher and by 
formally concluding the Capability Procedure. This will be confirmed in 
writing and the Headteacher will be reminded of the expectation of 
sustaining a satisfactory level of performance and of the consequence 
of failure to sustain this standard. 

18.3 If, however, the Capability Panel judge that insufficient progress has 
been made and there remains concern that the Headteacher is still not 
achieving the required satisfactory standard of performance, the 
Capability Panel will refer the issue to the Staff Disciplinary and 

Tudalen 119



Dismissal Committee of the Governing Body. The Capability Panel 
should seek the advice of the Local Authority, diocesan authority (where 
applicable) or HR if the process moves to Stage 4.

19. APPEALS AGAINST FORMAL WARNINGS

19.1 In order to appeal against a decision to issue a written or final written 
warning, the Headteacher must write to the Clerk to the Governing Body 
within 5 working days of the date of the formal warning, stating their 
grounds for appeals.

19.2 Upon receipt of the Headteacher’s appeal, the Clerk to Governing Body 
will arrange for the appeal to be heard by the Headteacher Capability 
Appeals Committee of the Governing Body.

19.3 An appeal should be heard promptly, and within 20 working days of the 
Headteacher’s appeal being lodged, as the process of managing the 
capability process will not necessarily cease, pending the outcome of a 
hearing. The Headteacher will be expected to continue to work towards 
the improvements identified with the Chair of Governors, Consortium 
Adviser and Capability Panel, while arrangements are made for the 
appeal hearing to be held. The appeal should be heard separately so 
that the capability procedures are able to continue uninterrupted. 

19.4 The format of the appeal hearing will be as follows:

 Introductions and confirmation of the reason for the appeal hearing;

 Presentation of the case by the Headteacher or their representative, 
including cross examination by the Committee and the Chair of the 
Capability Panel; 

 The Chair of the Capability Panel’s reply and cross-examination by 
the Committee and Headteacher; 

 Final questions and clarification from the Committee;

 Summing up from the Headteacher; 

 Summing up from the Chair of the Capability Panel;

 Adjournment for the Committee to make a decision, taking into 
consideration the submissions and evidence presented during the 
course of the appeal hearing and in the supporting documentation; 
and 

Tudalen 120



 Reconvene to inform the Headteacher of the panel’s decision, 
unless agreed that the panel’s decision will be conveyed in writing to 
the Headteacher. 

19.5 The Headteacher Capability Appeals Committee will have three options 
open to it:

 confirm the Capability Panel’s original decision;

 uphold the Headteacher’s appeal and overturn the Capability 
Panel’s original decision; or

 agree a further assessment period of no more than six weeks to 
allow the Headteacher to achieve the required standard of 
performance. Where this occurs, the Committee must reconvene at 
the end of the further assessment period to review the progress of 
the Headteacher and if the required standard of performance is still 
not met confirm the original decision.

19.6 The Headteacher Capability Appeals Committee must confirm its 
decision in writing to the Headteacher within 5 working days of the 
appeal hearing, also informing the Headteacher that there will be no 
further right of appeal at this stage of the procedure.

19.7 All appeals against formal warnings should be heard before capability 
matters are referred to the Staff Disciplinary and Dismissal Committee 
under Stage 4 of this Procedure. 

20. STAGE 4:  CAPABILITY HEARING

20.1 Where the procedures detailed at Stages 1, 2 and 3 have been followed 
(save for in the exceptional circumstances outlined in paragraph 4) and 
have resulted in a final written warning being issued, but the 
Headteacher has not achieved the satisfactory level of performance 
within the agreed timescale for improvement, it will be appropriate to 
inform the Headteacher that the matter will be referred to a hearing 
before the Staff Disciplinary and Dismissal Committee (SD&DC) of the 
Governing Body.

20.2 The hearing process should be conducted in line with the Welsh 
Government’s ‘Disciplinary and dismissal procedures for school staff: 
Revised guidance for governing bodies’ (circular 002/2013). The 
SD&DC should therefore ensure that they refer to that guidance at this 
stage.

20.3 In all maintained schools, the Local Authority’s Chief Education Officer 
or their representative are entitled to attend such a hearing for the 
purpose of giving advice on all proceedings relating to any decision to 

Tudalen 121



dismiss a member of staff. The CEO or their representative must be 
notified of the hearing at the same time as the Headteacher and the 
person presenting the case against the Headteacher. 

20.4 In voluntary aided and voluntary controlled schools, the diocesan officer 
or their representative has the same advisory rights as those given to 
the Chief Education Officer. In foundation schools, the Governing Body 
may agree with the diocesan authority to award those same advisory 
rights to the diocesan officer or their representative. The diocesan 
director should also be notified of the hearing. 

20.5 At this stage, there may be circumstances where the Chair of 
Governors may consider suspending a Headteacher from duty on full 
pay where they consider that it is necessary for the protection of pupils, 
staff or property, or where the Headteacher’s continued presence is 
likely to have a seriously detrimental effect in the School. This is only 
likely to occur in exceptional circumstances and where all alternative 
options have been explored. It is therefore strongly recommended that 
HR advice is sought in such instances.

20.6 The hearing will be held as soon as it can be arranged by the Clerk to 
the SD&DC, even if the Headteacher has subsequently resigned6. This 
may also be the case if the Headteacher is absent from work due to ill 
health. 

20.7 The Headteacher will be informed in writing, with at least 10 working 
days’ notice, of: 

 the date, time and place for the hearing; 

 the purpose of the hearing and the range of possible outcomes, 
including that a potential outcome of the hearing is dismissal; 

 the right of the Headteacher to be accompanied by a trade union 
representative or a work colleague; 

 the membership of the SD&DC;

 the name of the person presenting the case against the 
Headteacher;

 the full details of the performance concerns, the evidence to be 
presented and the names of any witnesses to be called, etc.;

 the name of the adviser to the SD&DC; and

6 In cases where the Headteacher has already resigned, he/she must still be notified that a 
hearing is to be held and be invited to attend, in the same way as a current employee. He/she 
must also subsequently be informed of the hearing’s outcome. 

Tudalen 122



 the date by which all relevant documentation should be received by 
the Clerk prior to the hearing. 

20.8 The Clerk will arrange for the documentation from both parties to be 
distributed to the Headteacher and their representative, including the 
Consortium Adviser’s reports and a copy of this Procedure at the same 
time as informing them in writing of the hearing. 

20.9 Should the Headteacher wish to submit documentation to support their 
case, this should be provided to the Clerk at least 5 working days in 
advance of the hearing.

20.10 At the same time as informing the Headteacher in writing of the hearing 
and providing them with all relevant documentation, the Clerk will 
provide the SD&DC with:

 written details of the arrangements for hearing the capability matter;

 formal written notice of the capability matter and any supporting 
documentation such as written reports prepared by the Consortium 
Adviser at each stage of the Capability Procedure; and

 written confirmation of the Headteacher’s response to the capability 
matter with any supporting documentation.

20.11 All evidence that will be used at the capability hearing is provided in 
confidence and this must remain so throughout the proceedings. At no 
time prior to the capability hearing will members of the SD&DC discuss 
the capability matter.

20.12 No new material should be introduced at the capability hearing, above 
and beyond that previously issued to the SD&DC.

20.13 The format to be followed at the capability hearing is outlined at 
Appendix 5.  

20.14 The SD&DC will consider all of the evidence presented, before 
determining one of the following outcomes:

 the Headteacher’s performance is satisfactory and no further action 
will be taken. The Headteacher should be reminded of the 
requirement to sustain a satisfactory standard of performance and 
the consequences if this is not achieved; 

 the Headteacher’s performance is unsatisfactory and the 
Headteacher should be dismissed on the grounds of capability; or 

Tudalen 123



 the Headteacher has made some progress towards improving their 
performance but has not yet achieved the required satisfactory 
standard. A further assessment period of no more than six weeks 
will be agreed, in order to allow the Headteacher to achieve the 
required standard of performance. Where this occurs, the SD&DC 
must reconvene at the end of the further assessment period to 
review the progress of the Headteacher and if the required standard 
of performance is still not met, recommend dismissal with the right to 
appeal.

20.15 The SD&DC will confirm its decision in writing to the Headteacher, 
within 5 working days of reaching its decision. Where appropriate, the 
letter will inform the Headteacher of their right to appeal against the 
decision of the SD&DC. 

20.16 In maintained schools, where the SD&DC takes the decision to dismiss 
the Headteacher, the SD&DC must copy the hearing outcome letter to 
the Chief Education Officer once the period allowed for the Headteacher 
to appeal has expired and they have not appealed. The reason for this 
is that the Local Authority is the employer of staff in maintained schools. 
The Local Authority is therefore required to dismiss the Headteacher 
and should do so within 14 school days of notification of the decision by 
the SD&DC. 

20.17 In voluntary aided and foundation schools, the Headteacher is 
employed by the Governing Body. The SD&DC should therefore include 
notification of dismissal and any appropriate period of notice in the 
hearing outcome letter that it sends to the Headteacher. 

21. STAGE 5:  CAPABILITY APPEAL HEARING

21.1 Where the Headteacher appeals against the dismissal decision of the 
SD&DC, the appeal will be heard by the Staff Disciplinary and Dismissal 
Appeals Committee (SD&DAC). 

21.2 The appeal hearing process should be conducted in line with the Welsh 
Government’s ‘Disciplinary and dismissal procedures for school staff: 
Revised guidance for governing bodies’ (circular 002/2013). The 
SD&DAC should therefore ensure that they refer to that guidance at this 
stage.

21.3 In all maintained schools, the Local Authority’s Chief Education Officer 
or their representative are entitled to attend such an appeal hearing for 
the purpose of giving advice on all proceedings relating to any decision 
to dismiss a member of staff. The CEO or their representative must be 
notified of the hearing at the same time as the Headteacher. 

Tudalen 124



21.4 In voluntary aided and voluntary controlled schools, the diocesan officer 
or their representative has the same advisory rights as those given to 
the Chief Education Officer. In foundation schools, the Governing Body 
may agree with the diocesan authority to award those same advisory 
rights to the diocesan officer or their representative. The diocesan 
director should also be notified of the appeal hearing. 

21.5 The appeal hearing will focus upon the issues set out in the 
Headteacher’s letter of appeal, therefore the appeal hearing may not 
always take the form of a complete re-hearing. However, under certain 
circumstances, i.e. where new evidence comes to light or the first 
hearing process was flawed or biased, it may be appropriate to re-hear 
part, if not all, of the case. Two possible formats for the capability 
appeal hearing are therefore outlined at Appendix 6. 

21.6 Where a Headteacher has been dismissed and given the right of 
appeal, they must notify the Clerk to the Governing Body in writing that 
they intend to appeal, stating their grounds for appeal, within 10  
working days of receiving written confirmation of the decision.

21.7 The Headteacher’s grounds for appeal could include: 

 that there has been a procedural flaw in the first hearing; 

 that the findings are inconsistent with the evidence produced;

 that the Headteacher feels that the sanctions are inappropriate;

 that the capability procedure and/or the first hearing was in some 
way unfair or biased; and 

 that new evidence has come to light that was not considered at the 
original hearing. 

21.8 On receipt of the Headteacher’s written notice of appeal, the Clerk to 
the Governing Body will arrange for the SD&DAC to hear the capability 
appeal as soon as possible and within 20 working days of the 
Headteacher’s appeal being lodged. 

21.9 The Clerk will inform the Headteacher in writing, with at least 10 working 
days’ notice, of: 

 the date, time and place for the appeal hearing; 

 the purpose of the appeal hearing and the range of possible 
outcomes; 

Tudalen 125



 the right of the Headteacher to be accompanied by a trade union 
representative or a work colleague; 

 the membership of the SD&DAC;

 the full details of the evidence to be presented and the names of any 
witnesses to be called, etc.;

 the name of the adviser to the SD&DAC; and

 the date by which all relevant documentation should be received by 
the Clerk prior to the appeal hearing. 

21.10 The Clerk will arrange for the documentation to be relied upon at the 
appeal hearing (including any such documentation from the first 
hearing) to be distributed to the Headteacher and their representative, 
including up-to-date procedures at the same time as informing them in 
writing of the appeal hearing. 

21.11 Should the Headteacher wish to submit documentation to support their 
case, this should be provided to the Clerk at least 5 working days in 
advance of the appeal hearing.

21.12 At the same time as informing the Headteacher in writing of the appeal 
hearing and providing them with all relevant documentation, the Clerk 
will provide the SD&DAC with:

 written details of the arrangements for the appeal hearing;

 copies of any supporting documentation to be relied upon at the 
appeal hearing, including copies of any documentation that was 
considered at the first hearing; and

 copies of any documentation submitted by the Headteacher, in 
support of their appeal.

21.13 All evidence that will be used at the capability appeal hearing is 
provided in confidence and this must remain so throughout the 
proceedings. At no time prior to the capability hearing will members of 
the SD&DAC discuss the capability matter.

21.14 No new material should be introduced at the capability appeal hearing, 
above and beyond that previously issued to the SD&DAC.

21.15 The SD&DAC will have four options open to it:

 confirm the decision of the SD&DC to dismiss the Headteacher;

Tudalen 126



 uphold the Headteacher’s appeal and overturn the SD&DC’s        
decision to dismiss;

 agree a further assessment period of no more than six weeks to 
allow the Headteacher to achieve the required standard of 
performance. Where this occurs, the SD&DAC must reconvene at 
the end of the further assessment period to review the progress of 
the Headteacher and if the required standard of performance is still 
not met confirm the dismissal; or

 recommend that the Headteacher be redeployed should suitable 
alternative employment be available.

 
21.16 The SD&DAC will confirm its decision in writing to the Headteacher, 

within 5 working days of its decision being reached. Where appropriate, 
this letter will inform the Headteacher that the decision of the SD&DAC 
is final and there is no further right of appeal. 

21.17 In maintained schools, where the SD&DAC upholds the SD&DC’s 
decision to dismiss the Headteacher, the SD&DAC must copy the 
appeal hearing outcome letter to the Chief Education Officer. The 
reason for this is that the Local Authority is the employer of staff in 
maintained schools. The Local Authority is therefore required to dismiss 
the Headteacher and should do so within 14 school days of notification 
of the decision by the SD&DAC. 

21.18 In voluntary aided and foundation schools, the Headteacher is 
employed by the Governing Body. The SD&DC should therefore include 
notification of dismissal and any appropriate period of notice in the 
appeal hearing outcome letter that it sends to the Headteacher. 

Tudalen 127



APPENDIX 1:  FLOWCHART OUTLINING PROCEDURE 
FOR TEACHERS

Identified 
underperformance

Stage 1: Informal 
Support

Not 
satisfied 

with 
response

Satisfied 
with 

response

End of process

Informal Support Plan 
(30 working days max.)

Stage 1: Review Period 
Meeting

Insufficient 
progress Sufficient 

progress

End of process

Issue oral warning, set 
timescale for 

improvement & progress 
to Stage 2

Stage 2: Review Period 
Meeting

Insufficient 
progress 

Sufficient 
progress

End of process

Issue written warning, set 
timescale for 

improvement & progress 
to Stage 3

Stage 3: Review Period 
Meeting

Insufficient 
progress 

Issue final written 
warning, set timescale for 
improvement & progress 

to Stage 4

Sufficient 
progress

End of process

Stage 4: Capability 
Hearing

Stage 5: Capability 
Appeal Hearing

End of process

Tudalen 128



APPENDIX 2:  FLOWCHART OUTLINING PROCEDURE 
FOR HEADTEACHERS

Identified 
underperformance

Stage 1: Informal 
Support

Not 
satisfied 

with 
response

Satisfied 
with 

response

End of process

Informal Support Plan 
(20-40 working days)

Stage 1: Review Period 
Meeting

Insufficient 
progress Sufficient 

progress

End of process

Issue written warning, set 
timescale for 

improvement & progress 
to Stage 2

Stage 2: Review Period 
Meeting

Insufficient 
progress 

Sufficient 
progress

End of process

Issue final written 
warning, set timescale for 
improvement & progress 

to Stage 3

Stage 3: Review Period 
Meeting

Insufficient 
progress 

Confirm progression to 
Stage 4 & refer matter 

to SD&DC

Sufficient 
progress

End of process

Stage 4: Capability 
Hearing

Stage 5: Capability 
Appeal Hearing

End of process

Tudalen 129



APPENDIX 3:  ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
(TEACHER CAPABILITY)

The roles and responsibilities of the main participants are outlined below with 
the expectation that all parties work together to improve the unsatisfactory 
performance of the teacher. 

Teaching staff 

• To be fully aware of the requirements of the Practising Teacher Standards. 

• To cooperate with their line manager to agree performance objectives. 

• To cooperate with their line manager to achieve a satisfactory level of overall 
performance. 

• To take responsibility for their training and development and be proactive in 
seeking arrangements where needs have been identified. 

• To draw to the attention of their line manager any external factors that may 
be impacting adversely on their performance. 

• To make every effort to attend any meetings or hearings under this Capability 
Procedure. 

• To engage with the Local Authority’s Occupational Health team or an 
appropriately qualified health professional, where applicable. 

Role of the representative 

• To accompany the teacher at all stages of the capability procedure, should 
the teacher wish. The teacher should be advised that they have the right to 
be represented by a work colleague or trade union representative. 

• To support the teacher in presenting their evidence and seek clarification on 
any issues raised during the meeting. 

• To confer with the teacher, if necessary, during any meeting.
 

Role of the line manager 

• To be fully aware of the requirements of the Practising Teacher Standards. 

Tudalen 130



• To ensure that members of staff have received a full induction into the 
School. 

• To be fully familiar with the relevant policies relating to performance 
management and any other relevant underperformance policies. 

• To monitor the performance of their staff, making clear the standard of 
performance the School expects. 

• To take action and a considered approach in all cases when there are 
concerns about a teacher’s performance. 

• To ensure standards of fairness, objectivity and consistency of treatment of 
teachers in all cases. 

• To provide evidence and advise the Headteacher (or those delegated by the 
Headteacher to administer the capability process) at all times during the 
process. 

• To seek further guidance from the Headteacher (or those delegated by the 
Headteacher to administer the capability process) where appropriate on any 
matter related to this policy and procedures. 

Role of the Headteacher 

• To support and advise teachers on effective performance management 
procedures. 

• To support and advise line managers who express concerns about the 
unsatisfactory performance of a teacher. 

• To initiate the formal investigation of the issue and take appropriate action at 
any stage in the management of unsatisfactory performance. 

• To appoint, where appropriate, a designated member of the teaching staff to 
investigate the issues and/or provide appropriate support. 

• To ensure that an appropriate programme of support and guidance is put in 
place for the teacher whose performance is deemed to be unsatisfactory. 

• To ensure that formal oral/written warnings are only issued by the 
Headteacher.

• To seek the advice and support of the Local Authority (or the diocesan 
authority or provider of HR support). 

• To ensure that the Governing Body’s policies are enacted and the Governing 
Body is involved in the capability process at the appropriate stages. 

Tudalen 131



Role of the Governing Body 

• To ensure that the policies relating to the management of the performance 
and unsatisfactory performance of teachers are implemented and are 
working effectively alongside other relevant policies. 

• To ensure that all relevant policies are available to teachers and are reviewed 
on a regular basis. 

• To ensure that the appropriate committees of the Governing Body are 
established and that Governors are aware of their responsibilities and receive 
appropriate training to support them in their roles. 

• To seek the advice and support of the Local Authority (or the diocesan 
authority or provider of HR support) if the capability process is to move to 
Stage 4 (Capability Hearing). 

Role of the appropriate authority (i.e. the Local Authority or 
diocesan authority)

• To provide advice and support to the Headteacher and Governing Body 
through the Local Authority, the diocesan authority or provider of HR support, 
dependant on the status of the School. 

• Where the Local Authority is the employer, the Chief Education Officer or 
their representative is entitled to attend all formal meetings of the Governing 
Body and its committees for the purpose of giving advice. 

• In a voluntary aided or voluntary controlled School, the diocesan officer or 
their representative has the same advisory rights as those given to the Chief 
Education Officer. 

• In foundation schools, the Governing Body may agree to award those same 
rights to the provider of HR support.

Tudalen 132



APPENDIX 4:  ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
(HEADTEACHER CAPABILITY)

The roles and responsibilities of the main participants are outlined below. The 
clear expectation is that all parties work together to seek to improve the 
performance of the Headteacher.

Role of the Headteacher

 To be fully aware of the requirements of the Practising Teacher 
Standards and the Leadership Standards.

 To cooperate with the Chair of Governors to agree performance 
objectives.

 To cooperate with the Chair of Governors to achieve a satisfactory level 
of overall performance.

 To take responsibility for their training and development and be 
proactive in seeking to improve their performance where needs have 
been identified.

 To draw the attention of the Chair of Governors to any external factors 
that may be impacting adversely on their performance.

 To make every reasonable effort to attend any meetings or hearings 
under this Capability Procedure.

 To engage with the Local Authority’s Occupational Health team or an 
appropriately qualified health professional, where applicable.

Role of the representative

 To accompany the Headteacher at all stages of the Capability 
Procedure, where the Headteacher so wishes.

 To support the Headteacher in presenting their evidence and seek 
clarification on any issues raised during the meeting.

 To confer with the Headteacher, if necessary, during any meeting.

 To ensure they are familiar with the content of the Capability Procedure.

 To make themselves available to meet the timescales defined within the
Procedure.

Tudalen 133



Role of the Governing Body

 To be fully aware of the requirements of the Practising Teacher 
Standards and the Leadership Standards.

 To be fully familiar with the relevant policies relating to performance 
management.

 To ensure that the policies relating to the management of the 
performance and unsatisfactory performance of the Headteacher are 
implemented and are working effectively alongside other relevant 
policies.

 To ensure that all relevant policies are available to the Headteacher and 
are reviewed on a regular basis.

 To ensure that the appropriate committees of the Governing Body are
established, that Governors are aware of their responsibilities and 
receive appropriate training to support them in their roles.

Role of the Chair of Governors

 To ensure the Governing Body adopts appropriate procedures to 
manage Headteacher capability.

 To establish and maintain effective arrangements and good 
communications with the Headteacher in relation to performance and 
school priorities.

 To obtain Local Authority HR advice in the event of any concerns about 
Headteacher underperformance.

 To initiate the informal stage (Stage 1) of this Procedure.

 To appoint, where appropriate, a designated member of the Local 
Authority / Consortium to investigate the issues and/or provide 
appropriate support during the informal stage.

 
 To reach a view, at the end of the informal stage as to whether the 

identified concerns have been addressed or to convene the Capability 
Panel to determine whether formal capability procedures should be 
invoked

 To consult the Local Authority as necessary to secure sufficient 
governor capacity to support delivery of this Capability Procedure.

Tudalen 134



Role of the Capability Panel

 To take action and a considered approach in all cases when there are 
concerns about a Headteacher’s performance.

 To ensure standards of fairness, objectivity and consistency of 
treatment of the Headteacher in all cases. 

 To determine whether the formal stages of the Capability Procedure 
should be invoked.

 To initiate the formal investigation of the issues and take appropriate 
action at any stage in the management of unsatisfactory performance
appoint, where appropriate, designated members of the Local Authority 
or Consortium staff to investigate the issues and provide appropriate 
support.

 To ensure an appropriate programme of support is put into place for a
Headteacher whose performance is deemed to be unsatisfactory.

 To seek the advice and support of the Local Authority (or the diocesan 
authority or provider of HR support) at every stage of the Procedure.

Role of the appropriate authority (i.e. the Local Authority or 
diocesan authority)

 To work with the Consortium to provide advice and support to the Chair 
of Governors and Governing Body.

 To ensure accessible, high quality HR advice is available to the Chair 
and Governing Body.

 To exercise, as appropriate the right to attend all formal meetings of the
Governing Body and its Committees, for the purpose of giving advice.

 To exercise, as appropriate, powers of intervention in order to ensure 
the appropriate procedures are adopted and followed.

 To deliver or commission appropriate training to equip the Chair of 
Governors and Governing Body to fulfil effectively their obligations 
under this Procedure.

 To liaise with the Governing Body to ensure that there is sufficient 
governor capacity for implementation of the various stages of the 
capability and appeals processes.

Tudalen 135



Role of the Consortium

 To appoint a suitably experienced officer to support the Governing 
Body, acting on behalf of, and accountable to, the relevant Local 
Authority.

 To secure and allocate an experienced Challenge Adviser to work with 
the School to help raise standards.

 To agree, broker and ensure appropriate support for the Headteacher.

 To ensure effective communication with, and involvement of, the Local 
Authority, to enable that Authority to fulfil effectively its statutory 
functions.

Tudalen 136



APPENDIX 5:  CAPABILITY HEARING FORMAT

The order of proceedings for a capability hearing involving a teacher or 
Headteacher is as follows7:

 The Chair introduces the members of the SD&DC and the Clerk; 

 The presenting officer sets out the case, presents any written or other 
evidence and calls and questions witnesses;

 The employee and/or their representative asks questions of the presenting 
officer and/or witnesses. Members of the SD&DC question the presenting 
officer and/or any parties called to give evidence against the employee;

 The employee and/or their representative presents their case, including any 
relevant written or other evidence, and calls witnesses; 

 The presenting officer and/or members of the SD&DC question the 
employee and any witnesses called on behalf of the employee; 

 Witnesses leave the room after they have given evidence and been 
questioned by both parties, but should remain on hand in case of further 
questioning by the SD&DC; 

 The presenting officer and the employee and/or their representative each 
sums up their case. If these persons do not wish to hear the advice from 
the advisors to the SD&DC, they should leave the hearing at this point; 

 All parties hear any advice which the Chief Education Officer and, if 
applicable, diocesan director or their representatives, may wish to offer to 
the SD&DC. These advisers, together with the presenting officer and the 
employee and/or their representative, then leave the hearing;

 The SD&DC continues in private, without advisers, other than the Clerk, to 
make its decision; and 

 The SD&DC can adjourn the hearing at any time for all parties to consider 
any new evidence or for private discussion. In addition, all parties should 
be able to request an adjournment at any point.  

7 The SD&DC and Clerk to the SD&DC must refer to the Welsh Government’s ‘Disciplinary and 
dismissal procedures for school staff: Revised guidance for governing bodies’ (Circular 
002/2013) to ensure that the correct process is followed at this stage (e.g. that the panel’s 
deliberations are correctly recorded, etc).

Tudalen 137



APPENDIX 6:  CAPABILITY APPEAL HEARING 
FORMAT

The order of proceedings for a capability appeal hearing involving a teacher or 
Headteacher will take one of the following forms, depending upon whether it is 
a re-hearing or a review8.

Format for a re-hearing

 The Chair introduces the members of the SD&DAC and the Clerk; 

 The employee and/or their representative presents their case, including any 
relevant written or other evidence, and calls witnesses; 

 The presenting officer and/or members of the SD&DAC question the 
employee and any witnesses called on behalf of the employee; 

 The presenting officer sets out the case, presents any written or other 
evidence and calls and questions witnesses;

 The employee and/or their representative asks questions of the presenting 
officer and/or witnesses. Members of the SD&DAC question the presenting 
officer and/or any parties called to give evidence against the employee;

 Witnesses leave the room after they have given evidence and been 
questioned by both parties, but should remain on hand in case of further 
questioning by the SD&DAC; 

 The presenting officer and the employee and/or their representative each 
sums up their case. If these persons do not wish to hear the advice from 
the advisors to the SD&DAC, they should leave the appeal hearing at this 
point; 

 All parties hear any advice which the Chief Education Officer and, if 
applicable, diocesan director or their representatives, may wish to offer to 
the SD&DAC. These advisers, together with the employee and/or their 
representative, then leave the appeal hearing;

 The SD&DAC continues in private, without advisers, other than the Clerk, 
to make its decision; and 

8 The SD&DAC and Clerk to the SD&DAC must refer to the Welsh Government’s ‘Disciplinary 
and dismissal procedures for school staff: Revised guidance for governing bodies’ (Circular 
002/2013) to ensure that the correct process is followed at this stage (e.g. that the panel’s 
deliberations are correctly recorded, etc).

Tudalen 138



 The SD&DAC can adjourn the appeal hearing at any time for all parties to 
consider any new evidence or for private discussion. In addition, all parties 
should be able to request an adjournment at any point.  

Format for a review

 The Chair introduces the members of the SD&DAC and the Clerk; 

 The employee and/or their representative presents their case, including any 
relevant written or other evidence; 

 The members of the SD&DAC question the employee; 

 The members of the SD&DAC may call the presenting officer from the first 
hearing to attend as a witness, if it is deemed necessary in order for the 
SD&DAC to reach a decision regarding the employee’s appeal. If that 
occurs, the employee will have the right to ask questions of the presenting 
officer after the SD&DAC have asked their questions. The presenting 
officer would then leave the room after they have given evidence and been 
questioned;

 The employee and/or their representative sums up their case. If they do not 
wish to hear the advice from the advisors to the SD&DAC, they should 
leave the appeal hearing at this point; 

 All parties hear any advice which the Chief Education Officer and, if 
applicable, diocesan director or their representatives, may wish to offer to 
the SD&DAC. These advisers, together with the employee and/or their 
representative, then leave the appeal hearing;

 The SD&DAC continues in private, without advisers, other than the Clerk, 
to make its decision; and 

 The SD&DAC can adjourn the appeal hearing at any time for all parties to 
consider any new evidence or for private discussion. In addition, all parties 
should be able to request an adjournment at any point.  

Tudalen 139



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Y BWRDD GWEITHREDOL

22AIN IONAWR 2017

Model Polisi Cyflogau Athrawon 2016/2017

Yr Argymhellion / Penderfyniadau Allweddol sydd eu Hangen:

I gefnogi’r ‘Model Polisi Cyflogau Athrawon 2016/2017’ cyn ei gyflwyno i Ysgolion i’w 
fabwysiadu gan eu Cyrff Llywodraethu.

Y Rhesymau:

Mae'r Model Polisi Cyflogau Athrawon wedi ei ddiweddaru i adlewyrchu newidiadau 
deddfwriaethol a gyflwynwyd gan Dogfen Cyflog ac Amodau Athrawon Ysgol 2016.

Angen ymgynghori â'r Pwyllgor Craffu perthnasol - Amherthnasol                                           
Angen i’r Bwrdd Gwenthredol Wneud Penderfyniad Oes
Angen i’r Cyngor Wneud Penderfyniad Na

YR AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO: Cyng. Mair 
Stephens; Cyng. Gareth Jones
Cyfarwyddiaeth:  Prif Weithredwr / Rheoli Pobl a Pherfformiad; Addysg a Gwasanaethau’r Plant
Enw Pennaeth y 
Wasanaeth: 

Swyddi: Rhifau ffôn:
Cyfeiriadau E-bost: 

Paul R. Thomas Prif Weithredwr Cynorthwyol (Rheoli 
Pobl a Pherfformiad)

01267 246123
PRThomas@sirgar.gov.uk

Gareth Morgan Cyfarwyddwr Dros Dro Adran Addysg 
a Gwasanaethau’r Plant

01267 224888
AEDGMorgans@sirgar.gov.uk

Awdur yr Adroddiad: 
Julie Stuart Uwch Bartner Busnes (AD) 01267 246375

JStuart@sirgar.gov.uk

 

Tudalen 141

Eitem Rhif  9

mailto:PRThomas@sirgar.gov.uk
mailto:AEDGMorgans@sirgar.gov.uk
mailto:JStuart@sirgar.gov.uk


EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
EXECUTIVE BOARD
23RD JANUARY 2017

Model Teachers’ Pay Policy 2016/2017

All schools are required to adopt a pay policy that sets out the basis on which it determines 
teachers’ pay and the date by which it will determine the teachers’ annual pay review and also 
establish procedures for addressing teachers’ grievances in relation to their pay.  The document 
called School Teachers Pay and Conditions (STP&CD) is updated each year which can lead to 
amendments in the model pay policy offered to schools.

This revised model Pay Policy has been updated to reflect legislative changes introduced in the 
STP&CD on 1 September 2016.  The HR Group of the Education Regional Working (ERW) 
Consortium has updated the current Pay Policy to be offered to all schools across the region.  
The ERW Consortium consists of the following County Councils, Carmarthenshire, Ceredigion, 
Neath & Port Talbot, Pembrokeshire and Powys and City of Swansea. 

Teaching associations have been fully consulted and has agreed the Pay Policy 2016/2017 on 
a regional basis. 

1.
The ERW region developed a regional model Teachers’ Pay Policy which it can distribute to 
schools for consideration and adoption by governing bodies.  This policy encompasses the 
changes to teachers’ pay arrangements as outlined in the STPCD 2016 and will assist in 
achieving a high level of consistency across the region. 

Each Local Authority is going through their individual Council process for endorsement of the 
policy and ERW advice to all schools is not to do anything further about introducing a new pay 
policy until the final model pay policy is released by the Director of Education & Children’s 
Services. This will be done as soon as possible but is likely to be the January 2017.

Detailed report attached: Yes

Tudalen 142



IMPLICATIONS

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this 
report :

ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE (PEOPLE MANAGEMENT & PERFORMANCE)

Policy, 
Crime & 

Disorder & 
Equalities

Legal Finance ICT Risk 
Management 

Issues

Staffing 
Implications

Physical 
Assets

YES YES NONE NONE YES YES NO

1. Policy, Crime & Disorder

The document called School Teachers Pay and Conditions (STP&CD) is updated each 
year which can lead to amendments in the model pay policy offered to schools.

2. Legal

The Model Pay Policy has been updated to reflect legislative changes introduced by the 
School Teachers Pay and Conditions Document 2015.

3. Finance

No corporate financial implications as the schools have their own delegated budget.

5. Risk Management Issues

The schools are statutorily bound to have a pay policy in place.

6. Staffing Implications

The HR Team will provide advice and guidance to schools on the application of the Model 
Teachers’ Pay Policy 2016/2017 as required.

Tudalen 143



CONSULTATIONS

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken place and the outcomes are as detailed 
below:

Signed:
ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE (PEOPLE MANAGEMENT & PERFORMANCE)

1. Scrutiny Committee
None

2. Local Member(s)
None

3. Community / Town Council
None

4. Relevant Partners
None

5. Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations
Education & Children’s Services Employee Relations Forum - 8th November 2016

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 - Access to information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:
THERE ARE NONE

Title of Document File Ref No. Locations that the papers are available for public inspection

Tudalen 144



Model Teachers’ Pay Policy
 

2016/2017

Tudalen 145



DOCUMENT CONTROL

Policy name Teachers’ Pay Policy 
2016/2017

Department
 

Human Resources

Reviewing Officers ERW HR Group on behalf of 
the 6 constituent local 
authorities 

CONSULTATION PROCESS

The following Trade Unions have been consulted in respect of this Policy: 

 ASCL 

 ATL / AMiE

 NAHT

 NASUWT

 NUT 

 UCAC 

  

Tudalen 146



The Governing Body of _____________________________ School 

formally adopted this Policy on ______________

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1. Introduction……………………………………………………………………..…4
2. Statement of Intent…………………………………………………………..…...4
3. Equalities Legislation…………………………………………………………..…4
4. Equalities and Performance-related Pay…………………………………….....4
5. Job Descriptions……………………………………………………………..……5
6. Appraisal……………………………………………………………………………5
7. Governing Body’s Obligations……………………………………………..….…5
8. Headteacher’s Obligations……………………………………………………….5
9. Teachers’ Obligations…………………………………………………………….6
10. Differentials……………………………………………………………………..….6
11. Safeguarding……………………………………………………………………....6
12. Capability and Pay Progression…………………………………………………6
13. Pay Determination………………………………………………………………...7
14. Headteacher Pay………………………………………………………………….8
15. Deputy / Assistant Headteacher Pay……………………………………………8
16. Pay Progression for Leadership Group Members………………………….....9
17. Classroom Teacher Pay…………………………………………………….…..10
18. Applications to be paid on the Upper Pay Range…………………………....12
19. Leading Practitioner Role……………………………………………………….13
20. Unqualified Teachers…………………………………………………………....14
21. Discretionary Allowances and Payments……………………………………..15
22. Part Time Teachers……………………………………………………………..17
23. Teachers Employed on a Short Notice Basis (Supply)……………………...17

Appendix 1: 2016/17 Pay Ranges……………………………………………………18
Appendix 2: Annual Teachers’ Pay Review Statement…….………………………22
Appendix 3:  Upper Pay Range Progression Criteria………………………………..23
Appendix 4: Upper Pay Range Application Form…………………………………..24 
Appendix 5: Flowchart of Pay Review Process…….……………………………….25
Appendix 6: Leadership Group Salaries Guidance…………………………………26
Appendix 7: Leadership Group Annual Review Form…….………………………..34
Appendix 8: Pay Appeals Procedure…………………………………………………35
Appendix 9: Part Time Teachers’ Pay and Time Calculations…………………….36
Appendix 10: School Staffing Structure……………………………………………….40

Tudalen 147



1.  INTRODUCTION

1.1 This Pay Policy provides a framework for making decisions on teachers’ pay. It 
has been developed to comply with the requirements of the School Teachers’ 
Pay and Conditions Document (STPCD) and has been subject to consultation 
with all recognised teaching associations.

2.  STATEMENT OF INTENT

2.1 The primary statutory duty of governing bodies in Wales, as set out in paragraph 
21 (2) of the Education Act 2002 is to “…conduct the school with a view to 
promoting high standards of educational achievement at the school”. This Policy 
is intended to support that statutory duty.

2.2 The procedures for determining pay in this School will be consistent with the 
principles of public life:  objectivity, openness and accountability.

2.3 The Governing Body will act with integrity, confidentiality, objectivity and 
honesty in the best interests of the School in relation to the operation of this 
Policy. 

2.4 The Governing Body will be open about pay decisions made and actions taken, 
and will be prepared to explain decisions and actions to interested persons. 

2.5 Any future revisions to this policy will comply with the STPCD and will be subject 
to consultation with relevant parties, including recognised trade unions.

3.    EQUALITIES LEGISLATION

3.1  The School is committed to ensuring equality in everything that we do. The 
       Equality Act 2010 has replaced and strengthened previous equality legislation.  
       The Governing Body will comply with all relevant equalities legislation. 

3.2  This Policy will be applied consistently to all employees irrespective of age, 
       disability, race, gender (sex), gender reassignment, marriage / civil partnership, 
       pregnancy / maternity, religion, belief and sexual orientation.

3.3  The Governing Body will promote equality in all aspects of school life, 
       particularly in relation to all decisions on the advertising of posts, appointing,   
       promoting and paying staff, training and staff development. 

4.   EQUALITIES AND PERFORMANCE-RELATED PAY

4.1 The Governing Body will ensure that pay processes are transparent and fair.  
All decisions made will be objectively justified and recorded. Reasonable 
adjustments will be made on a case by case basis to take account of individuals’ 
circumstances such as long-term absence on the grounds of maternity or ill-
health.

Tudalen 148



5.  JOB DESCRIPTIONS

5.1 The Headteacher will ensure that each member of staff is provided with a job  
description in accordance with the School’s staffing structure (see Appendix 
10), as agreed by the Governing Body.

5.2 Job descriptions will identify key areas of responsibility and may be reviewed 
and changed from time to time in consultation and agreement with the 
individual/s concerned in order to make reasonable changes in the light of the 
changing needs of the School.

6.  APPRAISAL

6.1 The Governing Body will comply with the School Teacher Appraisal (Wales) 
Regulations 2011 concerning the appraisal of headteachers and teachers 
through the application of the School’s Performance Management Policy.

7.  GOVERNING BODY’S OBLIGATIONS

7.1  The Governing Body will:

• fulfil its obligations as set out in the STPCD and the Conditions of Service 
for School Teachers in England and Wales (the “Burgundy Book”); 

• establish a Pay Committee and Pay Appeals Committee; 

• determine all pay progression decisions, taking account of 
recommendations from the Headteacher; 

• ensure that it makes funds available to support pay decisions, in 
accordance with this Pay Policy and the School’s spending plan; 

• ensure that teachers, via the Headteacher, are informed about pay 
decisions which affect them, and that records are kept of 
recommendations and decisions made; and 

• monitor, on an annual basis, the outcomes of pay decisions, including the 
extent to which different groups of teachers may progress at different 
rates. The outcome of the review will be shared with school-level trade 
union representatives.

8.    HEADTEACHER’S OBLIGATIONS

8.1  The Headteacher will: 

• ensure that all appraisers (where not the Headteacher) provide accurate, 
relevant, complete and timely information about pay recommendations;

• moderate performance assessments and initial pay recommendations to 
ensure consistency and fairness; 

Tudalen 149



• submit pay recommendations to the Pay Committee and ensure the Pay 
Committee has relevant information upon which to make pay decisions; 

• inform teachers about the School’s Pay Policy and to ensure its 
accessibility; 

• notify payroll and/or HR staff within the Local Authority about pay 
decisions to be implemented; and 

• ensure that a report on the operation of the Pay Policy is presented to the 
Governing Body and the relevant Trade Unions on an annual basis.  

9.   TEACHERS’ OBLIGATIONS

9.1  Teachers will:

• familiarise themselves with the provisions of this Pay Policy, the STPCD, 
the relevant professional standards and all relevant school employment 
policies; and

• engage positively with the processes set out in this Policy.

10.    DIFFERENTIALS

10.1  Within the framework of the STPCD, appropriate differentials will be created 
         and maintained between posts within the School, recognising accountability 
         and job weight, and the Governing Body’s need to recruit and retain sufficient 
         teachers of the required quality at all levels.

11.    SAFEGUARDING

11.1  Where a pay determination leads, or may lead, to the start of a period of safe-
         guarding, the Governing Body will comply with the relevant provisions of the 
         STPCD and will give the required notification as soon as possible and within 
         no later than one month after the determination.

12.    CAPABILITY AND PAY PROGRESSION

12.1  Where a teacher’s performance has been assessed as being unsatisfactory 
         and the teacher  is subject to the School’s Capability Procedure, the School’s 
         performance management processes will be suspended in relation to the 
         teacher concerned until the Capability Procedure has been concluded.

12.2  On conclusion of the Capability Procedure, the teacher will resume perfor-
         mance management processes in accordance with the School’s Policy.

Tudalen 150



12.3 Pay progression will not be permissible in accordance with this Pay Policy 
while a teacher is subject to the School’s Capability Procedure.

12.4 On conclusion of the Capability Procedure, before pay progression can be 
considered, the teacher will be required to demonstrate, for a reasonable 
period of time, the required level of performance needed for a successful 
appraisal review, based on the revised personal objectives established at the 
conclusion of the Capability Procedure. 

12.5    Pay progression will not be applied retrospectively in any case of capability. 

13.     PAY DETERMINATION

13.1   The Governing Body has delegated its pay determination powers to the Pay 
          Committee. 

13.2   Annual determination of pay

13.2.1 All teaching staff salaries, including those of the leadership group, will be 
reviewed annually to take effect from 1st September. The Governing Body 
will conclude teachers’ annual pay reviews, and assessments of applications 
to progress to the Upper Pay Range, by 31st October; the Headteacher’s 
annual pay review will be concluded by 31st December.

13.2.2 Reviews may take place at other times of the year to reflect, for example, any 
changes in circumstances, changes in a job description that lead to a change 
in the basis for calculating an individual’s pay and in cases where a teacher 
resumes performance management arrangements following capability 
processes.

13.2.3 The Governing Body will apply any future national pay awards as specified 
by the STPCD.

13.3   Notification of pay determination

13.3.1 A written statement will be given to each teacher setting out the pay and any 
other financial benefits to which they are entitled following a determination. 
Where applicable, this will include information about the basis on which it was 
made. This will be done by 31st October for teachers, 31st December for 
Headteachers, or by no later than one month following the determination. 

13.4 Appeals procedure

13.4.1 The Governing Body has an appeals procedure in relation to pay. This is set 
out in Appendix 8 of this Pay Policy.

Tudalen 151



14.     HEADTEACHER PAY

14.1 The Governing Body will ensure that the process of determining the 
remuneration of the Headteacher is fair and transparent. 

14.2 The Governing Body will assign a seven-point leadership pay range for the 
Headteacher based on the school group size and any permanent additional 
relevant factors as determined within the framework of the STPCD.

14.3 Additional factors to be taken into account will include all permanent 
responsibilities of the post, challenges specific to the role and all other 
relevant considerations, alongside any factors relating to recruitment and 
retention.

14.4 The Governing Body may re-determine the Headteacher’s pay range if it 
becomes necessary to change the Headteacher group (including where the 
Headteacher becomes responsible and accountable for more than one school 
in a federation on a permanent basis). The Headteacher’s pay range may also 
be reviewed at any time if it considers it necessary to reflect a significant 
change in the responsibilities of the post. 

14.5 Payments in respect of temporary responsibilities for the Headteacher will not 
be included in the pay range but will be determined in accordance with the 
STPCD as explained in Appendix 6.

14.6 In this School, the Governing Body will apply discretionary reference pay 
points for leadership pay as indicated in Appendix 1 and has agreed a seven 
step pay range of L xxx to L xxx (details to be inserted here by the school).

14.7 Pay on appointment

14.7.1 For new appointments, the Governing Body will determine the leadership pay 
range to be advertised and will agree the starting pay on appointment, taking 
account of the full role of the Headteacher and the provisions of the STPCD. 

14.7.2 The Governing Body will adopt a three-stage process when setting the pay 
for new Headteacher appointments as set out in Appendix 6.

14.7.3 The Pay Committee will review the School’s headteacher group and the head 
teacher’s leadership pay range, as necessary, to ensure fair pay relativities 
within the School.

14.7.4 See Appendix 6 of this Pay Policy for guidelines on leadership pay ranges 
and Appendix 7 for the Annual Review Pay Statement.

15.     DEPUTY / ASSISTANT HEAD TEACHER PAY

15.1 In this School, the Governing Body will use the discretionary reference pay 
points for leadership pay as indicated in Appendix 1.

15.2 The Governing Body will assign a five-point leadership pay range for Deputy 
/ Assistant Headteacher posts based on the school group size and any 

Tudalen 152



permanent additional relevant factors as determined within the framework of 
the STPCD.

15.3 The range for individual posts will be determined according to the duties and 
responsibilities of the post and may vary between posts.  

15.4 In this School, the Deputy Headteacher five step pay range is L xx to L xxx 
(pay details to be inserted here by the school).

15.5 In this School, the Assistant Headteacher five step pay range is L xx to L xxx 
(pay details to be inserted here by the school).

15.6 Pay on appointment

15.6.1 When a new appointment needs to be made, the Governing Body will 
determine the leadership pay range for the post to be advertised and will 
agree the starting pay on appointment.

15.6.2 The pay range will be determined in accordance with the STPCD.

15.6.3 The Governing Body will adopt the three-stage process when setting the pay 
for new appointments to the wider leadership team as set out in Appendix 6.

16. PAY PROGRESSION FOR LEADERSHIP GROUP MEMBERS

16.1 The Governing Body must consider annually whether or not to increase the 
salary of members of the leadership group who have completed a year of 
employment since the previous pay determination and, if it determines to do 
so, to what salary within the relevant pay range determined in accordance 
with the STPCD and the School Teachers Appraisal (Wales) Regulations 
2011.  

16.2 Leadership Group members will be awarded pay progression following a 
successful appraisal review. The review will be deemed to be successful 
where the member of staff has evidenced a sustained high quality of 
performance and has met, or has made significant progress towards meeting, 
his/her performance management objectives.

16.3 Competence in relation to the relevant standards will be taken into account 
as part of the School’s performance management process.

16.4 A sustained high quality of performance on the part of the member of staff 
should give him/her an expectation of progression to the top of the relevant 
pay range, having always taken account of the recommendation made on the 
member of staff’s performance management appraisal statement. 

16.5 Where a member of staff’s performance management objectives have not 
been met, or significant progress has not been made towards meeting the 
objectives, pay progression will not be awarded unless the Governing Body 
is satisfied that there are relevant extenuating circumstances. Where such a 

Tudalen 153



discretionary award of pay progression is made, this decision will be recorded 
accordingly.

16.6 In making its decision regarding pay progression, the Governing Body’s Pay 
Committee will take account of the appraiser’s recommendation regarding 
pay progression, as outlined on the member of staff’s performance 
management appraisal statement. 

16.7 The Pay Committee will record its decision regarding pay progression on the 
Annual Pay Review form contained at Appendix 7. A copy of this form will 
be provided to the member of staff.  

16.8 Where pay progression is granted, the member of staff’s salary will increase 
with effect from 1st September of the current academic year. 

16.9 Where pay progression is not granted, the rationale for that decision will be 
recorded on the Annual Pay Review form. The member of staff has the right 
to appeal against any decision not to grant pay progression. The appeals 
procedure is set out in Appendix 8. 

17.  CLASSROOM TEACHER PAY
17.1    Pay on appointment

17.1.1 Advertisements for vacant posts in the School will be considered by the 
Headteacher [and the (insert details of committee) where appropriate].  All 
posts will be advertised either internally or externally, locally or nationally as 
appropriate.

17.1.2 The advertisement will include details of the pay range and any additional 
payments or allowances applicable to the post.

17.1.3 The Governing Body will determine the starting salary of a vacant classroom 
teacher post, in accordance with the Main Pay Range and Upper Pay Range, 
detailed at Appendix 1.  

17.1.4 The Governing Body is committed to the principle of pay portability for 
teachers who are currently paid in accordance with the provisions of the 
STPCD and will apply this principle in practice when making new permanent 
and fixed-term appointments.

17.1.5 The Governing Body will not restrict the pay range advertised, or starting 
salary and pay progression prospects available for classroom teacher posts, 
other than the minimum of the Main Pay Range and the maximum of the 
Upper Pay Range.

17.2 Pay progression for existing Main Pay Range and Upper Pay Range 
teachers

17.2.1 The Governing Body must consider annually whether or not to increase the 
salary of teachers (excluding NQTs undertaking their induction year) who 
have completed a year of employment since the previous pay determination 

Tudalen 154



and, if it determines to do so, to what salary within the relevant pay range 
determined in accordance with the STPCD and the School Teachers 
Appraisal (Wales) Regulations 2011.  

17.2.2 A sustained high quality of performance on the part of the teacher 
should give him/her an expectation of progression to the top of the relevant 
pay range, having always taken account of the recommendation made on the 
teacher’s performance management appraisal statement. 

17.2.3 Teachers will be awarded pay progression following a successful appraisal 
review. The review will be deemed to be successful where the teacher has 
evidenced a sustained high quality of performance and has met, or has made 
significant progress towards meeting, his/her performance management 
objectives.

17.2.4 Where a teacher’s performance management objectives have not been met, 
or significant progress has not been made towards meeting the objectives, 
pay progression will not be awarded unless the Governing Body is satisfied 
that there are relevant extenuating circumstances. Where such a 
discretionary award of pay progression is made, this decision will be recorded 
accordingly.

17.2.5 Competence in relation to the relevant standards will be taken into account 
as part of the School’s performance management process.

17.2.6 In the case of teachers who are already on the Upper Pay Range, the Pay 
Committee will also take account of whether:

 the teacher has maintained the criteria for assessment to the Upper Pay 
Range (see section 18.8 - “Assessment”, and Appendix 3); and

 the teacher continues to be highly competent in all elements of the relevant 
standards. 

17.2.7 In making its decision regarding pay progression, the Governing Body’s Pay 
Committee will take account of the appraiser’s recommendation regarding 
pay progression, as outlined on the teacher’s performance management 
appraisal statement. The Pay Committee will be advised by the Headteacher 
in making all such decisions. 

17.2.8 The Pay Committee will record its decision regarding pay progression on the 
Annual Teachers’ Pay Review Statement contained at Appendix 2. A copy 
of this form will be provided to the teacher.  

17.2.9 Where pay progression is granted, the teacher’s salary will be increased with 
effect from 1st September of the current academic year. 

17.2.10 Where pay progression is not granted, the rationale for that decision will be 
recorded on the Annual Teachers’ Pay Review Statement. The teacher has 
the right to appeal against any decision not to grant pay progression. The 
appeals procedure is set out in Appendix 8. 

18. APPLICATIONS TO BE PAID ON THE UPPER PAY RANGE 

Tudalen 155



 
18.1 A qualified teacher may apply once each year to be paid on the Upper Pay 

Range in accordance with the STPCD and this School’s Pay Policy. 

18.2 It is each teacher’s responsibility to decide whether to submit an application.

18.3 In order for the assessment to be robust and transparent, it will be an 
evidence based process.

18.4 Personal objectives for the forthcoming appraisal cycle will be set at a level 
which is sufficient to ensure that the criteria included in the STPCD for 
progression to the Upper Pay Range can be met, including that the teacher 
is highly competent in all elements of the relevant standards.

18.5 Teachers who have been absent from work for sickness, disability or 
maternity-related reasons, along with those who are not subject to the 
Appraisal Regulations 2011 (i.e. a teacher who is employed on a short term 
contract of less than one term), may cite written evidence from a suitable and 
relevant period before the date of application in support of their application.

18.6 If a teacher is simultaneously employed at one or more other schools, he / 
she may submit separate applications if they wish to apply to be paid on the 
UPR in those schools. This School will not be bound by a pay decision made 
by another school.  

18.7 Process

18.7.1 The closing date for an application to be submitted by a teacher to his / her 
appraiser is (school to insert date here - normally prior to the end of the 
Summer Term).

18.7.2 Exceptions may be made in some specific circumstances, e.g. those teachers 
who are on maternity leave or on sick leave as at the closing date for receipt 
of applications. In such circumstances, the teacher may request - at least 2 
weeks before the specified closing date - an extension of no more than half a 
term for the submission of an application.

18.7.3 The process for applications is:

• Teacher to inform appraiser in writing, within the required timescale (see 
paragraphs 16.7 and 16.8 above) that he / she wishes to be considered for 
progression to the Upper Pay Range and that his / her personal objectives 
for the forthcoming appraisal period should reflect this request.

Following completion of the relevant appraisal period:

• The appraiser will complete an assessment pro-forma as shown in 
Appendix 4, setting out the appraiser’s recommendation in relation to 
progression to the Upper Pay Range, following completion of the relevant 
appraisal period; 

Tudalen 156



• The Headteacher will consider the appraiser’s recommendation and will 
make a recommendation to the Pay Committee; 

• The Pay Committee will make a decision about pay progression, following 
receipt of advice from the Headteacher; 

• The teacher will receive written notification of the outcome of their 
application by 31st October in the relevant year; 

• Where the application is unsuccessful, the written notification will set out 
details of the areas of the teacher’s performance which are not considered 
to have satisfied the relevant criteria set out in this Policy (see “Assessment” 
below); 

• If requested, oral feedback will be provided by the Headteacher. Oral 
feedback will normally be given within 10 working days of the date of 
notification of the outcome of the application. Feedback will be given in a 
positive manner and will include advice and support about areas for 
improvement in order for the teacher to meet the relevant criteria; and 

• Successful applicants will move to step 1 of the Upper Pay Range with 
effect from 1st September of the academic year following their application 
being supported. 

18.7.4 Unsuccessful applicants may appeal the decision as outlined in Appendix 8.

18.8 Assessment

18.8.1 An application will only be successful where the Governing Body is satisfied 
that all of the requirements of the STPCD have been met, including that:

• the teacher is highly competent in all elements of the relevant standards; 
and 

• the teacher’s achievements and contribution to an educational setting or 
settings are substantial and sustained.

18.8.2 For the purposes of this Pay Policy, the Pay Committee will be satisfied that 
the teacher has met the Governing Body’s expectations for progression to the 
Upper Pay Range where the Upper Pay Range criteria (see Appendix 3) 
have been satisfied as evidenced by a successful appraisal review.

18.8.3 Further information, including details about sources of evidence, is contained 
in the School’s Performance Management Policy.

19.    LEADING PRACTITIONER ROLE

19.1 The Governing Body may establish Leading Practitioner posts for teachers 
whose primary purpose is the modelling and leading improvement of teaching 
skills.

Tudalen 157



19.2 Where the Governing Body wishes to establish such posts it will determine 
the responsibilities and pay range for these posts. Consultation with relevant 
staff and trade unions will take place in relation to any such proposed changes 
to the staffing structure.  

19.3 The Policy of the Governing Body will be to appoint any new Leading 
Practitioner teacher to a 5-point range, as deemed appropriate by the 
Governing Body. 

19.4 The pay range for Leading Practitioners will be in accordance with the 
STPCD, which is currently a minimum of £38,984 per annum (i.e. Leadership 
Pay Point 1) and a maximum of £59,264 per annum (i.e. Leadership Pay Point 
18). 

19.5 In this School, the Governing Body will use the discretionary reference pay 
points detailed at Appendix 1. 

19.6 Pay progression for Leading Practitioners will be determined as per the 
process set out at 17.2.1 to 17.2.10 above. 

20.     UNQUALIFIED TEACHERS 

20.1 A teacher on the unqualified pay range will be paid an annual salary between 
£16,461 and £26,034 per annum. In this School, the Governing Body will use 
the discretionary reference pay points detailed at Appendix 1.

20.3 Under the Education (Specified and Registration) (Wales) Regulations 2010 
there are specific circumstances when those other than qualified teachers 
who are registered with the Education Workforce Council may carry out 
‘specified work’.

20.4 The School will comply with these legal requirements and will only employ 
unqualified teachers as specified in these Regulations.

20.5 The Governing Body may pay an additional allowance to an unqualified 
teacher who meets the criteria as defined in the STPCD.

20.6 In order to progress up the pay range, unqualified teachers will need to show 
that they have met or made significant progress towards meeting their 
performance management objectives, along with demonstrating the required 
improvement in their teaching skills.

20.7 In making its decision regarding pay progression, the Governing Body’s Pay 
Committee will take account of the appraiser’s recommendation regarding 
pay progression, as outlined on the teacher’s performance management 
appraisal statement. The Pay Committee will be advised by the Headteacher 
in making all such decisions. 

20.8 The Pay Committee will record its decision regarding pay progression on the 
Annual Teachers’ Pay Review Statement contained at Appendix 2. A copy 
of this form will be provided to the unqualified teacher.  

Tudalen 158



20.9 Where pay progression is granted, the unqualified teacher’s salary will be 
increased with effect from 1st September of the current academic year. 

20.10 Where pay progression is not granted, the rationale for that decision will be 
recorded on the Annual Teachers’ Pay Review Statement. The teacher has 
the right to appeal against any decision not to grant pay progression. The 
appeals procedure is set out in Appendix 8. 

20.11 An unqualified teacher who obtains qualified teacher status will be paid on 
the pay ranges for qualified teachers, in accordance with this Pay Policy.

21.     DISCRETIONARY ALLOWANCES AND PAYMENTS

21.1   Teaching and Learning Responsibility Payments (TLRs)

21.1.1 The Governing Body will award TLR 1 and TLR 2 payments to post holders 
as indicated in the School’s staffing structure (see Appendix 10).

21.1.2 These payments will be awarded to teachers who undertake clearly defined 
and sustained additional responsibility in the context of the School’s staffing 
structure for the purpose of ensuring the continued delivery of high quality 
teaching and learning and for which the teacher is made accountable. 

21.1.3 All job descriptions will be regularly reviewed and will make clear the 
responsibility or package of responsibilities for which a TLR is awarded.

21.1.4 The criteria for awarding a TLR 1 and TLR 2 payment will be in accordance 
with the STPCD. 

21.1.5 The minimum and maximum range for a TLR 1 is £7,622 to £12,898 per an-
num.

21.1.6 The minimum and maximum range for a TLR 2 is £2,640 to £6,450 per an-
num.

21.1.7 In this School the value of TLRs currently in use is as follows:

TLR 1 - (details of each TLR 1 to be inserted here by school)
TLR 2 - (details of each TLR 2 to be inserted here by school) 

21.1.8 The Governing Body may award a fixed-term TLR 3 payment to a teacher of 
between £523 and £2,603 per annum for a clearly time-limited school 
improvement project, or one-off externally driven responsibilities. 

21.1.9 The duration of the fixed term, and the amount of annual payment will be 
established at the outset and will be paid on a monthly basis.

21.1.10 Where the Governing Body wishes to make TLR 3 payments, the proposed    
responsibilities, level of payment and the duration of payment will be set out 
clearly following consultation with relevant staff and union representatives.

21.1.11 A teacher in receipt of either a TLR1 or 2 may also hold a concurrent TLR3.

Tudalen 159



21.1.12 No safeguarding will apply in relation to an award of a TLR3.

21.1.13 A TLR1 or 2 payment awarded to a part time teacher will be on a pro rata    
basis but where a TLR3 payment is awarded to a part time teacher, the pro 
rata principle will not apply.

21.2 Special Educational Needs (SEN) Allowances

21.2.1 The Governing Body will award SEN allowances in accordance with the 
criteria and provisions set out in the STPCD. 

21.2.2 An SEN Allowance of no less than £2,085 per annum, and no more than 
£4,116 per annum, will be payable to a classroom teacher in accordance with 
STPCD.  

21.2.3 In this School, the SEN values are: (details of each SEN Allowance / value to 
be inserted here by school)

21.2.4 In deciding the SEN value, the Governing Body will take into account the 
structure of the School’s SEN provision, whether any mandatory 
qualifications are required for the post, the qualifications or expertise of the 
teacher relevant to the post, and the relative demands of the post.

21.3    Acting Allowances

21.3.1 Acting allowances are payable to teachers who are assigned and carry out 
           the duties of Headteacher, Deputy Headteacher or Assistant Headteacher in    
           accordance with the STPCD.

21.3.2 The Governing Body will, within a four-week period of the commencement of 
acting duties, determine whether or not the acting post holder will be paid an 
allowance. In the event of a planned and prolonged absence, an acting 
allowance may be agreed in advance and paid from the first day of absence.

21.3.3 Any teacher who carries out the duties of Headteacher, Deputy Head, or As-
           sistant Head, for a period of four weeks or more, will be paid at an appropriate 
           point of the Head’s pay range, Deputy Head pay range or Assistant Head pay 
           range, as determined by the Pay Committee. Payment will be backdated to 
           the commencement of the duties but will normally be paid a month in arrears.

21.3.4 Acting allowances may also apply to teachers covering absent colleagues in 
           receipt of a TLR and/or SEN allowance.

21.4    Additional Payments

21.4.1 With exception of those on the leadership range the Governing Body may 
           make additional payments to a teacher, in respect of:

• continuing professional development undertaken outside the school day; 

• activities relating to the provision of initial teacher training as part of the 
ordinary conduct of the School; 

Tudalen 160



• participation in out-of-school hours learning activity agreed between the 
teacher and the Headteacher; and

• additional responsibilities and activities due to, or in respect of, the 
provisions of services by the teacher relating to the raising of educational 
standards to one or more additional schools. 

21.5     Recruitment or Retention Incentive Benefits

21.5.1  The Governing Body can award lump sum payments, periodic payments, or 
            provide other financial assistance, support or benefits for a recruitment or 
            retention incentive. In deciding any such awards, the Governing Body will 
            have regard to the STPCD and specialist HR advice.

21.5.2   Headteachers, Deputy Headteachers and Assistant Headteachers may not 
             be awarded such a payment other than as reimbursement of reasonably 
             incurred housing or relocation costs.

21.5.3   All other recruitment and retention considerations in relation to a 
             Headteacher, Deputy Headteacher or Assistant Headteacher post will be 
             taken into account when determining the pay range.

21.5.4   The reason for the award of any additional payment, the expected duration 
             of any such incentive or benefit, and the review date after which they may 
             be withdrawn will be made clear at the outset, in writing.

21.5.5   The Governing Body will conduct an annual review of all such awards.

22.       PART-TIME TEACHERS

22.1    Teachers employed on an ongoing basis at the school but who work less than 
           a full working week will be deemed to be part-time. 

22.2    Part-time teachers will be provided with a written statement detailing their 
           working time obligations and the standard mechanism used to determine their 
           pay, subject to the provisions of the statutory pay and working time arrange-
           ments and by comparison with the School’s timetabled teaching week for a 
           full-time teacher in an equivalent post. This does not affect the TLR3 payment 
           which is not pro rata for part time staff. See Appendix 9 for further infor-
           mation.

23.     TEACHERS EMPLOYED ON A SHORT NOTICE BASIS (I.E. SUPPLY)

23.1   Teachers employed on a supply basis will be paid on a daily basis 
          calculated on the assumption that a full working year consists of 195 days;  
          periods of employment for less than a day being calculated pro rata.   

Tudalen 161



Appendix 1

2016/17 PAY RANGES

Main Pay Range:

Point Value

MPR 1 £22,467

MPR 2 £24,243

MPR 3 £26,192

MPR 4 £28,207

MPR 5 £30,430

MPR 6 £33,160

Upper Pay Range:

Point Value

UPR 1 £35,571

UPR 2 £36,889

UPR 3 £38,250

Leading Practitioners Pay Range:

Point Value

LP 1 £38,984

LP 2 £39,960

LP 3 £40,958

LP 4 £41,978

Tudalen 162



LP 5 £43,023

LP 6 £44,102

LP 7 £45,290

LP 8 £46,335

LP 9 £47,492

LP 10 £48,711

LP 11 £49,976

LP 12 £51,127

LP 13 £52,405

LP 14 £53,712

LP 15 £55,049

LP 16 £56,511

LP 17 £57,810

LP 18 £59,264

Unqualified Teachers Pay Range:

Point Value

UNQ 1 £16,461

UNQ 2 £18,376

UNQ 3 £20,289

UNQ 4 £22,204

UNQ 5 £24,120

UNQ 6 £26,034

Tudalen 163



Leadership Pay Range:

Point Value

L 1 £38,984

L 2 £39,960

L 3 £40,958

L 4 £41,978

L 5 £43,023

L 6 £44,102

L 7 £45,290

L 8 £46,335

L 9 £47,492

L 10 £48,711

L 11 £49,976

L 12 £51,127

L 13 £52,405

L 14 £53,712

L 15 £55,049

L 16 £56,511

L 17 £57,810

L 18 £59,264

L 19 £60,733

L 20 £62,240

L 21 £63,779

L 22 £65,363

L 23 £66,982

L 24 £68,643

L 25 £70,349

L 26 £72,089

L 27 £73,876

L 28 £75,708

L 29 £77,583

Tudalen 164



L 30 £79,514

L 31 £81,478

L 32 £83,503

L 33 £85,579

L 34 £87,694

L 35 £89,874

L 36 £92,099

L 37 £94,389

L 38 £96,724

L 39 £99,081

L 40 £101,554

L 41 £104,091

L 42 £106,699

L 43 £108,283

Tudalen 165



Appendix 2

ANNUAL TEACHERS’ PAY REVIEW STATEMENT

Name       Staff Number      

School       Effective Date      

SALARY DETAILS

SALARY AND POINT - MAIN PAY RANGE (S1 -  S6)
£      point      

SALARY AND POINT - UPPER PAY RANGE (S1 - S3)
£      point     

SALARY AND POINT - UNQUALIFIED RANGE (S1 – S6) 
£      point    

SALARY ON LEADING PRACTITIONER RANGE
£

ALLOWANCES

Details e.g. temp 
(with applicable 
dates), reason for 
allowance

TEACHING LEARNING 
RESPONSIBILITY PAYMENTS
(see Pay Policy Advice)

TLR1/TLR2/TLR3 

TLR________ £      

RECRUITMENT OR RETENTION
(see Pay Policy Advice)

VALUE £      

SPECIAL EDUCATIONAL NEEDS 
ALLOWANCE (see Pay Policy Advice)

Value

£      

OTHER ALLOWANCES
(See Pay Policy advice)

Please specify

SAFEGUARDING £      

TOTAL SALARY £      

Pay Committee meeting on ………………………………..
Signature of Head teacher/Chair of Committee ……………………………………Date ………………… 

Tudalen 166



Appendix 3

UPPER PAY RANGE PROGRESSION CRITERIA

(1) Professional attributes

1.1 Contribute significantly, where appropriate, to implementing workplace policies 
and practice and to promoting collective responsibility for their implementation.

(2) Professional knowledge and understanding

2.1 Have an extensive knowledge and understanding of how to use and adapt a 
range of teaching, learning and behaviour management strategies, including 
how to personalise learning to provide opportunities for all learners to achieve 
their potential.

2.2 Have an extensive knowledge and well-informed understanding of the 
assessment requirements and arrangements for the subjects/curriculum areas 
they teach, including those related to public examinations and qualifications.

2.3 Have up-to-date knowledge and understanding of the different types of 
qualifications and specifications and their suitability for meeting learners’ 
needs.

2.4 Have a more developed knowledge and understanding of their 
subjects/curriculum areas and related pedagogy including how learning 
progresses within them.

2.5 Have sufficient depth of knowledge and experience to be able to give advice 
on the development and wellbeing of children and young people.

(3) Professional skills

3.1 Be flexible, creative and adept at designing learning sequences within lessons 
and across lessons that are effective and consistently well-matched to learning 
objectives and the needs of learners and which integrate recent developments, 
including those relating to subject/curriculum knowledge.

3.2 Have teaching skills which lead to learners achieving well relative to their prior 
attainment, making progress as good as, or better than, similar learners 
nationally. 

3.3 Promote collaboration and work effectively as a team member.

3.4 Contribute to the professional development of colleagues through coaching 
and mentoring, demonstrating effective practice, and providing advice and 
feedback

Tudalen 167



Appendix 4

Assessment of Teacher’s Application to Progress to Upper Pay Range

For Completion by the Teacher’s Appraiser

Teacher’s Name:

Post:

Evidence from most recent appraisal
Please state which appraisal statement is attached:

* Criteria Met                                            *Criteria Not Met 
(* please delete as appropriate)

If criteria have not been met in full, please record details below (and 
continue overleaf, as necessary) about the areas of the teacher’s 

performance which do not satisfy the criteria:

Signed: ………………………………………………… (Appraiser)  

Date: ……...……………………………………………..
(To be submitted to the head teacher)

School Use Only

Application Form received on……………………………………

Assessment made on ……………………………………………

by…………………………………………………………………….

Tudalen 168



Appendix 8

Performance Management Objectives Set 

Performance Management Appraisal 
Review / Pay Recommendation by 

Appraiser

HT Reviews all appraisal recommendations and adds pay recommendation

HT submits to Pay Committee for pay decision

Pay Committee decides on pay determination

Teacher seeks representation hearing 
with Pay Committee (Informal Appeal)

Representation hearing by Pay Committee and decision notified to teacher

Flowchart of Pay Review Process (not including Headteacher)

Teacher applies for upper pay range

Application added to Appraisal Review

Teacher advised by HT in writing

END OF PROCESS

TEACHER ACCEPTS TEACHER DOES NOT ACCEPT

Appendix 5

Appeal escalated to 
Appeal Committee

Appeal Committee hears pay appeal and decision notified to teacher.  
END OF PROCESS

END OF PROCESS

TEACHER ACCEPTS TEACHER DOES NOT ACCEPT

Appraisee may appeal against Appraisal/Performance Management outcome

Tudalen 169



Appendix 6
LEADERSHIP GROUP SALARIES, GUIDANCE

 

1) Headteacher and Leadership Team (ALL SCHOOLS)

Whilst there is no longer a national pay scale published for leadership posts 
within the STPCD, the national employers along with the recognised trade 
unions have published indicative pay rates based on a 43 step leadership 
salary scale on which a Headteacher, Deputy Headteacher and Assistant 
Headteacher could be paid as determined by the Governing Body. These are 
set out below.

2) School Groups (ALL SCHOOLS)

There are eight school groups determined from the unit score of the school. 
The STPCD specifies a maximum and minimum pay value for each group 
and the indicative pay rates published jointly by the employers and trade 
unions attach values to individual pay points within those ranges  

The Governing Body has established a 7 point pay range for the Headteacher 
and a 5 point pay range for all other leadership posts.

3A) Unit Score of School (FOR ALL SCHOOLS EXCLUDING SPECIAL 
SCHOOLS)

The unit score is calculated to determine the group of the School, using the 
formula in the STPCD. In this Authority*, the LA will recalculate the unit score 
annually and the results will be applied from 1st January each year. If a school 
has reasonable grounds to expect a change in pupil numbers, they should 
request a recalculation by the Authority at that time.

* Delete if not appropriate

Information on how the unit score is calculated:

This is determined by pupil numbers as shown on the most recent STATS 1 
(annual school census) return to the Welsh Government.

For each pupil at the foundation stage/ KS1/KS2 7 units
For each pupil in the school at KS3 9 units
For each pupil in the school at KS4 11 units
For each pupil in the school at KS5 13 units

Each pupil with a statement of special educational needs shall, if she/he 
is in a special class consisting wholly or mainly of such pupils, count three 
units more than she/he would otherwise count.  If she/he is not in such a 
special class count three such units only where the relevant body so 
determine.

Tudalen 170



Each pupil who attends for no more than half a day on each day for which 
she/he attends the school shall count half as many units as she/he would 
otherwise count.

Total unit score School group

Up to 1,000 1

1,001 to 2,200 2

2,201 to 3,500 3

3,501 to 5,000 4

5,001 to 7,500 5

7,501 to 11,000 6

11,001 to 17,000 7

17,001 and over 8

3B) Modified Unit Score of School (SPECIAL SCHOOLS ONLY)

The modified unit score is calculated to determine the group of the school, 
using the formula in the STPCD. In this Authority* the LA will recalculate the 
unit score annually and the results will be applied from 1st January each year. 
If a school has reasonable grounds to expect a change in pupil numbers, they 
should request a recalculation by the Authority at that time.

* Delete if not appropriate

A special school must be assigned to a headteacher group in accordance 
with the following table by reference to its modified total unit score calculated 
in accordance with sub-sections (i) and (ii) below: 

Modified total unit score School group

Up to 2,200 2

2,201 to 3,500 3

3,501 to 5,000 4

5,001 to 7,500 5

7,501 to 11,000 6

Tudalen 171



(i) Information on how the staff-pupil ratio is calculated

The proportion of staff to pupils at the school must be calculated and
           expressed as a percentage (“the staff-pupil ratio”) in accordance with 

the 
           following formula: 

A   x 100
     B

           where A is the number of teachers and support staff weighted as 
provided at    

           (a) below, and B is the number of pupils at the school weighted as 
provided   

           at (b) below: 

a) The weighting for a teacher is two units for each full-time equivalent 
teacher, and the weighting for each support staff member is one unit 
for each full-time equivalent individual; and 

b) The weighting for a full-time pupil is one unit and the weighting for a 
part-time pupil is half a unit. 

The staff-pupil ratio modifier must be calculated in accordance with the 
           following table by reference to the staff-pupil ratio determined in 

accordance 
           with the above:  

Staff-pupil ratio Staff-pupil ratio modifier

1 – 20% 1

21 – 35% 2

36 – 50% 3

51 – 65% 4

66 – 80% 5

81% or more 6

11,001 to 17,000 7

17,001 and over 8

Tudalen 172



NB: “Support staff member” means a member of the school staff who is not: 
 a teacher; 
 a person employed in connection with the provision of meals; 
 a person employed in connection with the security or maintenance of   
           the school premises; or 
 a person employed in a residential school to supervise and care for 

pupils out of school hours. 

(ii) Information on how the modified total unit score is calculated:

This is determined by pupil numbers as shown on the most recent STATS 1 
(annual school census) return to the Welsh Government.

The relevant body must determine the school’s total unit score in accordance 
with the number of pupils on the school register calculated as follows:

Key Stage (KS) Units per pupil

For each pupil in the Foundation 
Stage, KS1 and KS2 10

For each pupil in KS3 12

For each pupil in KS4 14

For each pupil in KS5 16

The relevant body must determine the school’s modified total unit score by 
multiplying the school’s total unit score determined under this section (i.e. as 
per the above table) by the staff-pupil ratio modifier calculated under section 
3.

NB:  Where the headteacher is appointed as headteacher of more than one  
school on a permanent basis, the relevant body of the headteacher’s original 
school or, under the Collaboration Regulations (5), the collaborating body 
must calculate the headteacher group by combining the unit score of all the 
schools for which the headteacher is responsible to arrive at a total unit score, 
which then determines the headteacher group. 

4) New Leadership Appointments / Changes to existing Leadership pay 
structures – Three Stage Process (ALL SCHOOLS)

The Governing Body should follow the three stage process when setting the 
pay for new appointments or revising existing pay structures in respect 
of headship or the wider leadership team.

Stage 1 – Defining the role and determining the Headteacher group
Tudalen 173



Stage 2 – Setting the indicative pay range
Stage 3 – Deciding the starting salary and individual pay range

All decisions and the reasons for them should be well documented at every 
stage.  All pay decisions must be made on objective criteria so that there is 
no discriminatory effect of any group of teachers with a particular protected 
characteristic under the Equality Act 2010.

It is suggested that schools seek advice when calculating and recording 
leadership pay structure decisions 

Stage 1  - Defining the Role and Determining the Headteacher Group

The Governing Body should, at this stage, define the job and identify the 
broad pay range as a provisional guide to determining appropriate level of 
pay.  The Governing Body will need to define and set out the specific role, 
responsibilities and accountabilities of the post as well as the skills and 
relevant competences required.

For Headteacher posts, the Governing Body will assign the School to a 
Headteacher group (as defined in 3 above) which will determine the 
appropriate broad pay range as outlined below:

Group size Range of steps Salary range (STPCD 2016)

1 L6 – L 18 £44,102 – £58,677

2 L 8 – L 21 £46,335 – £63,147

3 L 11 – L 24 £49,976 – £67,963

4 L 14 – L 27 £53,712 – £73,144

5 L 18 – L 31 £59,264 – £80,671

6 L 21 – L 35 £63,779 – £88,984

7 L 24 – L39 £68,643 – £98,100

8 L 28 – L 43 £75,708 – £108,283

For other leadership group posts, the Governing Body should consider how 
the role fits within the wider leadership structure of the School. The pay range 
for a Deputy Headteacher or Assistant Headteacher should only overlap the 
Headteacher’s pay range in exceptional circumstances.

Tudalen 174



Stage 2 - Setting the Indicative Pay Range

At this stage, the Governing Body will need to consider the complexity and 
challenge of the role in the particular context of the School and make a 
judgement on pay in light of this.

For Headteacher posts, it is expected that normally the Governing Body will 
conclude that the total unit score fully captures the complexity of the 
Headteacher role and that the relevant broad pay range accommodates 
appropriate levels of reward.  The Governing Body will need to consider 
whether the indicative pay range should start at the minimum of the 
Headteacher group or whether they wish it to start at a higher level because 
of the level of challenge of the post.

There may be circumstances, however, in which there are additional factors 
that suggest the indicative pay range should be higher than would be 
provided by the basic calculation in Stage 1.

The following represent some examples of additional factors to be considered 
(this list is not exhaustive):

 The context and challenge arising from pupils’ needs e.g. if there is a high 
level of deprivation in the community (Free School Meal entitlement and/or 
English as an Additional Language) or there are high numbers of looked 
after children or children with Additional Learning Needs and this affects 
the challenge in relation to improving outcomes;

 A high degree of complexity and challenge e.g. accountability for multiple 
schools or managing across several dispersed sites, which goes 
significantly beyond that expected of any headteacher of similar-sized 
school(s) and is not already reflected in the total unit score used at stage 
1;

 Additional accountability not reflected in stage 1, e.g. leading a teaching 
school alliance; and

 Factors that may impede the school’s ability to attract appropriately 
qualified and experienced leadership candidates e.g. location, language 
medium, subject area / specialism and/or level of support from the wider 
leadership team.

The Governing Body may set the indicative pay range with a maximum of 
up to 25% above the top of the relevant Headteacher group range.  

Above that limit, external independent advice must be sought and, should the 
advice suggest a range which exceeds this limit is appropriate, a business 
case must be made and agreed by the full Governing Body.

The Governing Body should ensure that no double counting takes place e.g. 
of things taken account of in stage 1, such as responsibility for an additional 

Tudalen 175



school already reflected in the total unit score; or from using overlapping 
indicators, such as FSM and the pupil premium.

The Governing Body SHOULD NOT increase base pay nor pay an additional 
allowance for regular local collaboration which is part of the role of all 
headteachers.

For other leadership roles the process is broadly the same. The Governing 
Body will wish to consider how the other leadership roles should be set in 
accordance with the level set for the Headteacher and to ensure that there is 
sufficient scope for progression. Consideration should also be given to any 
teaching posts that carry additional allowances.

At the end of this stage, the Governing Body should decide where in the broad 
range to position the indicative pay range and set this out clearly when 
advertising the post.  An overall judgement should be made on the position 
and breadth of range, allowing appropriate scope for performance-related 
progression over time, clearly linked to school improvement priorities and 
outcomes.

There should be a clear audit trail for all decisions made and the reasoning 
behind them.  

It is also expected where possible that the School will undertake a process of 
benchmarking of salaries before setting the pay range for the Headteacher or 
other leadership posts.

For those factors which are not expected to persist, such as temporary 
responsibility for an additional school, these should be reflected through an 
allowance rather than consolidated into the indicative pay range.

Stage 3 – Deciding the starting salary and Individual Pay Range for new 
appointments.

The first two stages provide the means for determining the appropriate pay 
range. The third stage is essentially about deciding on the starting salary for 
the individual who is to be offered the post.

At this stage, the Governing Body will have a preferred candidate for the role 
and will wish to set the starting salary in the light of candidate-specific factors, 
such as the extent to which the candidate meets the specific requirements of 
the post.

It will be important to ensure there is scope for performance-related 
progression over time.

There must be a clear audit trail for any advice given and a full and accurate 
record of all decisions made and the reasoning behind them. 

5) Establishing a Pay Range above the School’s Headteacher Group (ALL 
SCHOOLS)

Tudalen 176



The expectation is that in most cases the pay range will be within the limits of 
the Headteacher group.  However, in some cases e.g. where there may be 
significant difficulty in making an appointment or there is a need to incentivise 
a head teacher to take on responsibility for a very large school or to lead 
multiple large schools, it may be appropriate to consider extending the 
individual pay range.

The Governing Body can, in such cases, decide that the maximum of the pay 
range may be above the maximum of the Headteacher group, up to an 
additional 25%.

If it is considered that there are exceptional circumstances that warrant an 
extension beyond that limit, a business case would be required. The 
Governing Body would need to seek external independent advice from an 
appropriate person or body who can consider whether it is justifiable to 
exceed the limit in a particular case.

There must be a clear audit trail for any advice given and a full and accurate 
record of all decisions made and the reasoning behind them. 

6) Pay Progression for all leadership posts (ALL SCHOOLS)

It is the responsibility of the Governing Body to ensure that performance-
based progression awards reflect individual performance.

Schools should review and update their pay policies on an annual basis to 
ensure that they remain fit for purpose.  Governing bodies will need to satisfy 
themselves that objective-setting is fair, reasonable and meaningful, but 
rigorous, and that the school’s pay policy provides a clear link between levels 
of achievement and progression.

Governing bodies have the freedom to award progression increases as they 
judge appropriate in their particular circumstances. Although no progression 
award should be made if it is not justified.

Normally the Governing Body will award one increment for sustained high 
quality performance against the set criteria, or may award two or more 
increments where performance has been exceptional and exceeded all the 
expectations.  

Temporary Payments for Headteachers

In addition, the Governing Body may consider an additional payment to the 
Headteacher in respect of clearly temporary additional duties and 
responsibilities or duties that are in additional to the post for which their salary 
has been determined e.g. where they are providing services to other schools. 
Including where the Headteacher is appointed as a temporary Headteacher 
of one or more additional schools not included as a permanent factor in the 
calculation of the pay range.  

Tudalen 177



7) Salary Protection (ALL SCHOOLS)

If the School is assigned to a lower group, or the Governing Body chooses to 
reduce the leadership pay range, the member of staff will be entitled to receive 
a safeguarded sum for a period of up to three years, subject to the STPCD.

Appendix 7

Headteacher / Deputy Headteacher / Assistant Headteacher
Annual Review Form - September 201_

Full Name:

Staff number:

School:

*Headteacher

School Group: Headteacher pay range:

*Deputy/Assistant Headteacher:

Pay range:

Salary and point at August 20 £ Point

Rationale used for pay decision:

Revised salary and point at 
September 20

£ Point

Certified by Chair of 

Tudalen 178



Governors/Pay Committee:

Certified by Head 
teacher:

Date:

*Please delete as appropriate

Appendix 8
PAY APPEALS PROCEDURE

The Governing Body is committed to ensuring that appeals against pay decisions 
are dealt with quickly, fairly and are consistent with equalities and other relevant 
legislation, as well as the STPCD. 

Teachers, including Headteachers, may appeal any determination in relation to their 
pay or any other decision taken by the Governing Body (or a Committee or individual 
acting with delegated authority) that affects their pay.

Reasons for appeal may include the following, which is not an exhaustive list. That 
the person or Committee making the decision:

a) incorrectly applied any provision of the STPCD;
b) failed to have proper regard for statutory guidance;
c) failed to take proper account of relevant evidence;
d) took account of irrelevant or inaccurate evidence
e) was biased; or
f) or otherwise unlawfully discriminated against the teacher.

For both the representation hearing and the appeal hearing, the teacher is entitled 
to be accompanied by a work colleague or trade union representative.

Stage 1 – Informal Discussion

A teacher who is dissatisfied with a pay recommendation has the opportunity to 
discuss the recommendation with his/her appraiser or the Headteacher before the 
recommendation is actioned and confirmation of the pay decision is made by the 
School. 

If, having had an informal discussion with the person making the pay 
recommendation, the teacher believes that an incorrect recommendation has been 
made, he/she may make representation to the Pay Committee of the Governing 
Body (see Stage 1 below).

Stage 2 - Representation Hearing

1. The teacher receives written notification of the pay determination and, where 
applicable, details of the basis on which the decision was made.  The Pay 
Committee will ensure the teacher is aware of the process for making 
representation and appealing against the decision, if appropriate.

Tudalen 179



2. If the teacher wishes to make representation, he/she should do so by writing to 
the Clerk to Governors within 10 school days of receiving the decision.

3. The Clerk to Governors will arrange for a representation hearing to take place 
as soon as possible, which will be chaired by the Pay Committee. The 
Headteacher may be required to attend the hearing to clarify the grounds for the 
pay recommendation. 

4. The teacher will be provided with between 5 and 10 school days’ notice of the 
representation hearing. The teacher may attend the hearing in order to present 
evidence, call witnesses and ask questions of the Pay Committee. 

5. The Pay Committee will decide if the original pay determination is to be amended 
and will write to the teacher about the outcome within 5 school days of the 
decision being reached.

6. Where the teacher continues to be dissatisfied, he/she may appeal this decision 
within 10 school days of receiving the Committee’s outcome letter by proceeding 
to Stage 3 of the process.

Stage 3 - Appeal Hearing

1. The teacher should clearly set out in writing the grounds for appealing the pay 
decision and send it to the Clerk to Governors within 10 school days of receipt 
of the written outcome of the Stage 2 decision (see above). 

2. The Clerk to Governors will arrange for an appeal hearing to take place as soon 
as possible, but normally within 20 school days of the receipt of the written 
appeal notification. 

3. The teacher should be provided with between 5 and 10 school days’ notice of 
the hearing.  

4. The appeal should be heard by the Pay Appeals Committee comprising of a 
minimum of three eligible governors who were not involved in the original 
decision, or where the original Pay Committee comprised of more than three 
members, a number at least equal to that of the Pay Committee.

5. The Pay Appeals Committee’s decision is final and, as set out in Section 3, 
paragraph 7 of the STPCD 2016, there is no recourse to the School’s Grievance 
Procedure.

6. Those required to attend the appeal hearing include:

 Chair and other Appeal Committee members
 The teacher and his/her representative or work colleague (if the teacher 

is accompanied)
 Witnesses for the employee side (if appropriate)
 a member of the original Pay Committee who will clarify the reasons for 

the original decision

Tudalen 180



 Witnesses for the management side (if appropriate)
 Clerk to the hearing
 HR Adviser to give advice to the Appeal Committee (subject to the 

provisions of any Service Level Agreement)

A model procedure for formal appeal meetings 

Chair introduces everyone and their role in the proceedings. 

• The teacher will present his/her case including any evidence to be considered 
and any witnesses they have called;

• Pay Appeals Committee members may ask questions of the teacher, as may 
the Pay Committee representative; 

• Pay Committee representative will state their case including the evidence on 
which the decision was based and call any witnesses to support the case, if 
appropriate;

• Pay Appeals Committee members may ask questions of the Pay Committee 
representative, as may the teacher; and

• Both parties may make a closing statement if they wish (teacher first, followed 
by Pay Committee representative).  No new evidence can be introduced at this 
stage;

• Both parties leave the hearing; 
• The Pay Appeals Committee may request advice from the HR Adviser (if 

applicable). Once this has been given, the HR Adviser will leave the hearing but 
may be recalled for further advice (if applicable);

• The Pay Appeals Committee will consider all the evidence and reach a final 
decision;

• The Pay Appeals Committee will call the parties back to inform the teacher of the 
decision (if awaiting the decision) or instruct the Clerk to write to the teacher on 
their behalf with their decision and the reasons for it; and

• The Clerk will notify the Local Authority of change of pay, if appropriate.

Tudalen 181



Appendix 9

 Part Time Teachers’ Pay and Time Calculations

• A School’s Timetabled Teaching Week must be established and a part time 
teacher must be paid a proportion of the STTW.

• Each school must establish a STTW week for each teacher, this refers to 
school sessions hours that are timetabled for teaching, including PPA but 
excluding break times, registration and assemblies. 

• Part time teachers will then be paid on actual teaching time excluding 
registration assemblies and breaks.

For example, if the school day, excluding registration and assembly, runs 
from 9.00am to 12.15pm and again from 1.15pm to 3.30pm with one 
15minute break in the morning session and one 15-minute break in the 
afternoon session, the STTW for a full time teacher would be calculated as 
25 hours. If a part time teacher were employed for mornings only working 
9.00am to 12.15pm every day, their percentage of the timetabled teaching 
week would be calculated as 15 hours. This is shown below

Morning 
Session (less 
breaks, 
registration + 
assembly)

+ Afternoon 
Session (less 
breaks, 
registration + 
assembly)

x No of 
days in 
timetable

= STTW % of 
STTW

Full-
time 3 hours + 2 hours x 5 days =

25 
hours 100%

Part-
time 3 hours x 5 days =

15 
hours 60%

• PPA and Management time must be included when calculating class contact 
time 

• Directed time - a head teacher may allocate directed time to part time 
teacher (subject to conditions) as a proportion of a FTE 1265. Part time 
teachers can now be directed to cover breaks, assemblies and registration 
as part of their directed duties.

Tudalen 182



• Part time teachers cannot be required to be available for work (either for 
teaching or other duties) on days they do not normally work.  However, they 
may attend by mutual agreement with the head teacher. Any resultant 
additional hours should be paid at the teachers’ normal salary.

• Part time teachers may be required to carry out duties, other than teaching 
pupils, outside school sessions on the day on which the teacher is normally 
required to be available for work (whether the teacher is normally required to 
be available for work for the whole or part of that day). This can form part of 
directed time.

Tudalen 183



Appendix 10
School Staffing Structure

(School to enter details below as applicable at the time of this Pay Policy being 
adopted by the Governing Body)

Tudalen 184



Y BWRDD GWEITHREDOL
23AIN O IONWAR 2017

FERSIYNAU DIWYGIEDIG O'R POLISI RHEOLI STRAEN, Y POLISI YSMYGU 
A'R POLISI CAMDDEFNYDDIO ALCOHOL A SYLWEDDAU 

Yr argymhellion / penderfyniadau allweddol sydd eu hangen:
Mae'r Polisi Rheoli Straen yn un o'r polisïau iechyd a diogelwch hanesyddol sydd ar waith ac 
mae wedi cael ei adolygu'n ddiweddar. Mae'r enw wedi cael ei newid i gynnwys Rheoli Iechyd 
Meddwl yn y Gweithle ac mae'r polisi wedi cael ei grynhoi er mwyn integreiddio'r polisi a'r 
canllawiau a chynnwys 'canllawiau cam wrth gam' i reolwyr ymdrin â sefyllfaoedd penodol. Yn 
ogystal mae astudiaethau achos enghreifftiol wedi cael eu cynnwys ar gyfer rheoli materion 
iechyd meddwl a straen yn y gweithle. Bu ymgynghori helaeth â'r holl randdeiliaid ynghylch y 
polisi hwn.

 Mae'r Polisi Ysmygu yn un o'r polisïau iechyd a diogelwch hanesyddol sydd ar waith ac mae 
wedi cael ei adolygu a'i grynhoi'n ddiweddar ac mae'r polisi a'r canllawiau wedi cael eu 
hintegreiddio er mwyn sicrhau bod y ddogfen yn haws ei defnyddio. Bu ymgynghori helaeth 
â'r holl randdeiliaid ynghylch y polisi hwn.

Mae'r Polisi Camddefnyddio Alcohol a Sylweddau yn un o'r polisïau iechyd a diogelwch 
hanesyddol sydd ar waith ac yn ddiweddar mae wedi cael ei adolygu a'i grynhoi, felly mae'r 
polisi a'r canllawiau wedi cael eu hintegreiddio er mwyn sicrhau bod y ddogfen yn haws ei 
defnyddio ac mae 'canllawiau cam wrth gam' i reolwyr ymdrin â sefyllfaoedd wedi cael eu 
cynnwys. Bu ymgynghori helaeth â'r holl randdeiliaid ynghylch y polisi hwn.

Y rhesymau: 
Er mwyn i'r Bwrdd Gweithredol gymeradwyo’r tri pholisi uchod sydd wedi cael eu diwygio. 
Angen ymgynghori â'r Pwyllgor Craffu perthnasol NAC OES

Angen i’r Bwrdd Gweithredol wneud penderfyniad         OES 

Angen i’r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad NAC OES

YR AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:- 

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth
Rheoli Pobl a Pherfformiad
Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth
Paul R Thomas
Awdur yr Adroddiad
Heidi Font

Swydd

Prif Weithredwr Cynorthwyol 
(Rheoli Pobl a Pherfformiad)

Rheolwr Iechyd a Gwaith 

Rhif Ffôn:
01267 246123
Cyfeiriad e-bost:
PRThomas@sirgar.gov.uk

01267 246060
HFont@sirgar.gov.uk

Tudalen 185

Eitem Rhif  10

mailto:PRThomas@carmarthenshire.gov.uk
mailto:HFont@carmarthenshire.gov.uk


EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
EXECUTIVE BOARD
23RD JANUARY 2017

Revised Stress Management Policy, Smoking Policy and Alcohol and 
Substance Misuse Policy 

Introduction

The Stress Management policy is one of the historical health and safety policies in place, 
and was a very detailed document outlining the responsibilities of managers and the ways to 
manage stress. The policy was then reviewed in 2014 and divided into the main policy and 
guidance for ease of use. Further review of the policy following feedback has meant the policy 
has been renamed to incorporate Mental Health in the Workplace and the policy and 
guidance have been reintegrated and made more user friendly. Also following consultation 
with stake holders, further case studies have been added to deal with mental health issues. 

Summary of the main changes

The policy has been renamed to ‘Management of Mental Health in the Workplace’ which 
covers both stress and mental health issues.

The new policy layout is as follows:

 Contents page with links to specific parts the policy and guidance
 Purpose
 Definitions 
 Statement
 Scope of the policy
 Arrangements at schools
 Supporting documents 
 Ensuring equality of treatment
 Guidance comprising of:

o Types of Mental Illness the long term effects of stress
o Managing Mental Ill Health and Stress
o Individual Stress Assessment 
o Self help and support services
o Case Studies 

The Alcohol and Substance Misuse policy is one of the historical health and safety policies 
in place and outlined the responsibilities of all within the authority regarding misuse of drugs 
and alcohol and information for managers on how to deal with issues and procedures for 
intervention. The revised version of the policy is now integrated with the guidance for ease of 
use, with ‘how to step by step guidance’ on dealing with situations for managers. 

Summary of the main changes

The policy has been revised and includes the :

Tudalen 186



 Contents page with links to specific parts the policy and guidance
 Definitions 
 Carmarthenshire County Council’s duty of care
 Exemptions
 Scope of the policy
 Arrangements at schools
 Supporting documentation
 Ensuring Equality of Treatment
 Guidance which comprises of: 

o How to Step by Step Guides 
o Guidance for managers – Disciplinary Action
o Further Support

The Smoking policy is one of the historical health and safety policies in place to support the 
The Smoke-free Premises etc. (Wales) Regulations 2007. The revised version of the policy 
is now integrated with the guidance for ease of use. 

Summary of the main changes

The new policy layout is as follows:

 Contents page with links to specific parts the policy and guidance
 Carmarthenshire County Council’s responsibilities 
 Exemptions 
 Scope of the policy
 Arrangements at schools
 Supporting documents 
 Ensuring equality of treatment
 Guidance comprising of:

o Smoking rooms in Residential and Respite care 
o Visiting Residential Premises in the Community 
o Non-Residential Social Care Premises 
o FAQ
o Further advice, guidance and support

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED ? NO

Tudalen 187



IMPLICATIONS

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this 
report :

Signed:  Paul R Thomas  Assistant Chief Executive (People Management and Performance)                                  

Policy, Crime 
& Disorder 
and 
Equalities

Legal Finance ICT Risk 
Management 
Issues 

Staffing 
Implications

Physical 
Assets  

YES YES YES NO YES YES NO

1. Policy, Crime & Disorder and Equalities
The guidance supports the strategic aim of Making Better Use of Resources

2. Legal  
The Health and Safety at Work at 1974 and the Management of Health and Safety at Work 
Regulation 1999 and other relevant approved codes of practices and regulations.

3 Finance  
The cost implications for any prosecution, including legal costs and fines and possible personal 
injury claim or claims for compensation. Also sickness absence, lost time and replacements 
costs.

4. ICT 
None 

5. Risk Management Issues
Insurance, management of any PI or other claims, identification and management of risk 

6. Physical Assets  
None 

7. Staffing Implications
Competent health and safety advice in order to minimise risk and to ensure the authority 
complies with its duties.

Tudalen 188



CONSULTATIONS

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below

Signed:   Paul R Thomas  Assistant Chief Executive (People Management and Performance)                                                                                                                                                

1. Scrutiny Committee
N/A

2.Local Member(s)  
N/A

3.Community / Town Council 
N/A

4.Relevant Partners  
N/A

5.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations  
Consultation with managers will commence once Executive Board have endorsed the draft 
policy (TUs have been consulted)

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information

List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

N/A

Title of Document File Ref No. Locations that the papers are available for public inspection 

Tudalen 189



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Appendix 1

Management of Mental Health 
in the Workplace Policy

This document should be used in conjunction with the
Corporate Health and Safety Policy

Managers have a responsibility to ensure that ALL employees have access 
to this document.

Tudalen 191

http://intranet/media/247000/corporate-health-and-safety-policy-may-16.pdf


Title: Stress Management Author: COHSU Owner: Paul Thomas

Status: Policy Issue Date: Sept 2016 Review Date: Sept 2019 Version: 1 Page 1 of 13

Please hold the Ctrl button and click on the relevant heading in this contents table 
to take you to your required section of the document:

CONTENTS PAGE

MANAGEMENT OF MENTAL HEALTH IN THE WORKPLACE POLICY 2

GUIDANCE NOTE 1
TYPES OF MENTAL ILL HEALTH

4

GUIDANCE NOTE 2
MANAGING MENTAL ILL HEALTH AND STRESS

6

GUIDANCE NOTE 3
INDIVIDUAL STRESS ASSESSMENT

10

GUIDANCE NOTE 4
FURTHER SUPPORT

11

GUIDANCE NOTE 5
CASE STUDIES

12

Tudalen 192



Title: Stress Management Author: COHSU Owner: Paul Thomas

Status: Policy Issue Date: Sept 2016 Review Date: Sept 2019 Version: 1 Page 2 of 13

Management of Mental Health in the Workplace Policy

Purpose
The purpose of the policy is to provide information on mental health and highlight the effects of stress and 
how to manage it in the workplace. The Council has a duty of care to ensure that no employee is knowingly 
subjected to an unreasonable level of work related stress, which could be detrimental to his or her health – 
physically and psychologically. It is therefore a key consideration for the Council, in terms of employee 
health and safety, sickness absence management, morale of employees and employee relations that stress 
in the workplace is managed effectively. This policy will assist Managers / Supervisors to recognise that 
stress can seriously impair employees’ ability to contribute fully to the needs of the Council and will aid in 
the recognition and management of stress in the workplace. 

Definitions
Mental Health – Mental health is a state of wellbeing in which the individual realises his or her own 
abilities, can cope with the normal stresses of life, can work productively and fruitfully and is able to make a 
contribution to his or her own community. 1 in 4 people can experience common mental health problems – 
harmful levels of stress, anxiety, depression.  (World Health Organisation)

Stress -  “the adverse reaction people have to excessive pressure or other types of demand placed on 
them” (Health & Safety Executive)  This makes an important distinction between pressure, which can be a 
positive state if managed correctly, and stress which can be detrimental to health. These demands may 
arise from home or work, or both and can lead to both physical and psychological problems. Stress is now 
widely recognised as a major cause of employee ill health and sickness absence and is often linked to 
musculoskeletal disorders.

Statement
Carmarthenshire County Council is committed to taking all reasonably practicable steps to ensure the 
health, safety and wellbeing of anyone potentially adversely affected by our business as defined under the 
Health and Safety at Work Act 1974, section 2 and the Management of Health and Safety at Work 
Regulations 1999.  This policy is related and supplementary to our general health and safety policy, and our 
commitment to promote good health amongst our employees. 

The Council is committed to promoting a culture in which stress is not seen as a sign of weakness, and that 
employees can speak freely about stress and seek help. The council has signed the Time to Change 
organisational pledge which shows our commitment to the campaign to end the stigma and discrimination 
faced by people with mental health problems. All employees will be treated equally with regards to 
sickness absence management whether they are ill with a mental health or with a physical problem.  

The Council aims to create an environment where the risk of workplace stress is minimised and 
preventative action is taken to reduce the likelihood of ill health. This will be achieved by:

 Confirming the Authority’s commitment to management of mental health in the workplace 
 Developing a consistent approach to managing workplace stress 
 Increasing employees’ awareness and understanding of mental health and stress 
 Providing guidance and support for Managers/Supervisors and employees to identify the signs and 

symptoms of stress and mental ill health
 Providing support for managers to undertake risk assessments, implement control measures and 

reduce the likelihood of stress and the impact it has on physical and mental health

Tudalen 193

http://www.timetochangewales.org.uk/en/


Title: Stress Management Author: COHSU Owner: Paul Thomas

Status: Policy Issue Date: Sept 2016 Review Date: Sept 2019 Version: 1 Page 3 of 13

 Promoting the general wellbeing of all employees 
 Providing a supportive framework for employees who may be suffering from stress  and mental ill 

health

Scope of the Policy
This policy will apply to all employees of Carmarthenshire County Council and members.

Responsibilities 
All line managers have a responsibility under this this policy for managing mental health in the workplace 
and managers should be able to recognise mental health problems in themselves.

People Management will have responsibility for promoting and monitoring the effectiveness of this policy 
and guidance. The People Management Division will ensure that the proactive approach to management is 
encouraged through timely advice from the Occupational Health Service, Health and Safety Department, 
and Learning and Development Team, and the provision of timely and accurate data and professional HR 
advice.

Wider responsibility for the policy rests with Directors, Heads of Service and all senior managers. They are 
responsible for ensuring that this Policy and accompanying guidance is effectively communicated ensuring 
that all cases of stress related issues are managed sensitively and consistently. Senior managers will be 
responsible for commissioning additional support for managers as appropriate and practicable, and 
ensuring that managers have adequate training and supervision to carry out their duties. 

Arrangements at Schools 
Governing Bodies of all schools are encouraged to adopt this policy, with a recommendation that schools 
may wish to develop appropriate wording to include pupils or signpost to the appropriate policy or 
guidelines for pupils.

Supporting Documentation
Supporting information, guidance and documentation will be available to assist with the management and 
implementation of this policy.

Ensuring Equality of Treatment
This policy must be applied consistently to all employees irrespective of race, colour, ethnic or national 
origins (including citizenship), language, disability, religion, belief or non-belief, age, sex, gender 
reassignment, sexual orientation, parental or marital status, pregnancy or maternity.

If you have any equality and diversity concerns in relation to the application of this policy and procedure, 
please contact a member of the HR Team who will, if necessary, ensure the policy/procedure is reviewed 
accordingly.

If you require this information in an alternative format please contact People Management on (01267) 
246184 or Ext. 6184.

Tudalen 194



Title: Stress Management Author: COHSU Owner: Paul Thomas

Status: Policy Issue Date: Sept 2016 Review Date: Sept 2019 Version: 1 Page 4 of 13

Guidance Note 1
Types of mental ill health 

The most common diagnosable mental health conditions are briefly described below (Mindful employer)

Depression 
Clinical depression is sometimes described as mild, moderate or severe. Symptoms include low mood and 
lack of energy. Motivation can be affected and people may experience thoughts of life not being worth living, 
which in extreme cases can lead to suicidal behaviour. 

Anxiety 
Anxiety becomes a problem when feelings of tension and fear prevent a person from carrying out everyday 
tasks. In extreme cases people may suffer panic attacks or phobias. Obsessive Compulsive Disorder (OCD) is 
a form of anxiety where people have recurrent, intrusive thoughts, which they may feel ‘forced’ to act on 
(e.g. fears of contamination leading to repetitive hand washing). 

Psychosis  
Psychosis is a term used when a person appears to lose touch with reality. Schizophrenia is the most common 
form but is not a ‘split personality’. People may hear, see or believe things that aren’t real to others (e.g. 
hearing voices, thinking that others are ‘out to get them’). If the illness becomes chronic (long term) the 
person may withdraw from the outside world and neglect themselves. 

Bi-Polar Disorder
Both these terms are used to describe this condition where a person may ‘swing’ between episodes of 
extreme low mood and depressive symptoms to being ‘high’ or elated. During a manic episode a person may 
have high energy levels, grand or unrealistic ideas and become reckless (e.g. taking risks, overspending). 
People may go through the mood cycles at different rates and times. 

Personality Disorder 
These are a range of long-term, inflexible attitudes and behaviours which make it difficult for people to 
maintain relationships and co-operate with others. People may find it difficult to control their emotions or 
behaviours or register their impact on others. There are up to ten different categories, including paranoid, 
antisocial and dependent. 

Eating Disorders 
These are extreme ways of controlling food intake and weight gain and can also be associated with other 
psychological problems, such as depression, anxiety, low self-esteem, alcohol misuse, and self-harm.  People 
with anorexia nervosa severely restrict their calorie intake, while those with bulimia nervosa may binge eat. 
Both conditions may lead to people using other techniques to lose weight including vomiting, use of laxatives 
and excessive exercising. 

Self-Harm and Suicide 
People may hurt themselves deliberately in order to deal with problems and emotions. Methods might 
include self-neglect, cutting, burning or overdosing. Suicidal behaviour may occur when a person feels they 
have no other options. It may be a cry for help, a mistake or a deliberate act. 

Tudalen 195

http://www.nhs.uk/conditions/depression/Pages/Introduction.aspx
http://www.nhs.uk/conditions/anxiety/pages/introduction.aspx
http://www.nhs.uk/conditions/Alcohol-misuse/Pages/Introduction.aspx
http://www.nhs.uk/conditions/Self-injury/Pages/Introduction.aspx


Title: Stress Management Author: COHSU Owner: Paul Thomas

Status: Policy Issue Date: Sept 2016 Review Date: Sept 2019 Version: 1 Page 5 of 13

Drug and Alcohol Misuse 
Harmful use of drugs and/or alcohol may be caused by, or lead to mental health problems. People may 
become addicted to substances which become the main focus of their lives. Withdrawing from them can be 
traumatic or even dangerous without professional help.

Stress (vs pressure)
For some, the link between stress and mental ill health may be a new one. We all need and, to a degree, 
thrive on pressure: it gives us energy, helps with performance and inspires confidence. But excessive pressure 
can lead to stress. And when stress becomes harmful – perhaps due to too much (or too little) work, 
inadequate training to do the job, poor working relationships, family and personal pressures or other factors 
– this can lead to other mental health issues such as anxiety and depression. 
Stress may become a problem when a person feels they don’t have the resources to cope with the 
demands placed on them. Symptoms may be emotional (e.g. irritability, tearfulness) and physical (aches 
and pains, high blood pressure etc.). The person may find it difficult to make decisions or perform tasks and 
may be unable to attend work.

Long Term Effects of Stress 
If symptoms of stress are ignored over a long period of time, they can lead to serious deterioration of 
physical and psychological health. The sooner they are managed the sooner the effects will be minimised. 
Individuals may suffer: 

 Hypertension 
 Coronary heart disease, heart attack, stroke 
 Stomach pains, diarrhoea, peptic ulcers 
 Diabetes 
 Effects on functioning of major organs 
 Lower resistance to infective agents/tumour growth 
 Worsening of existing conditions such as asthma, dermatitis, rheumatoid arthritis 
 Chronic fatigue 
 Effects on reproductive system, fertility problems 
 Increased risk of miscarriages 
 Increased risk of low birth weight babies 
 Musculoskeletal disorders
 Mental ill health

Tudalen 196



Title: Stress Management Author: COHSU Owner: Paul Thomas

Status: Policy Issue Date: Sept 2016 Review Date: Sept 2019 Version: 1 Page 6 of 13

Guidance Note 2
Managing Mental Ill Health and Stress

MANAGING AN EMPLOYEE WITH MENTAL ILL HEALTH 
 Have an open, honest and practical conversation with the person about how their mental health 

condition impacts their work and what adjustments can be made.
 Ask the individual what they need – they are often the best experts of managing their condition.
 Focus on what the person can do – not what they can’t.
 Tailor adjustments to the specific needs and abilities of the individual – be creative.
 Be flexible – as some mental health conditions can be episodic. It may be more helpful to agree 

adjustments that can be implemented as and when required and revoked when not.
 Agree the adjustments which are appropriate for the organisation and the individual.
 Be realistic about what you can offer. If you are unsure, consult Human Resources or the 

Occupational Health Centre for guidance.
 Regularly review the adjustments to ensure they are working and are still appropriate.
 With the permission of the individual communicate the adjustments to other team members to 

alleviate perceptions of favourable treatment.
 Consider the wider organisational context in which the adjustments are being made and whether 

or not they can be offered to all staff. 
 Always take advice (as above) where you’re not sure what to do.

Practical examples of workplace adjustments

Being flexible and creative is important when considering solutions. Below are examples which could act as 
prompts for line managers and employees exploring these issues together.

Working hours or patterns
 Take a flexible approach to start/finish times and/or shift patterns
 Allow use of paid or unpaid leave for medical appointments
 Phase the return to work, e.g. offering temporary part-time hours
 Equal amount of break time, but in shorter, more frequent periods
 Allow someone to arrange their annual leave, with their consent so that is spaced regularly 

throughout the year
 Allow the possibility to work from home at times
 Temporary reallocation of some tasks

Physical environment
 Minimise noise – e.g. providing private office/room dividers/partitions, reducing pitch or volume of 

telephone ring tones
 Provide a quiet space for breaks away from the main workspace
 Offer a reserved parking space
 Allow for increased personal space
 Move workstation – to ensure for example that someone does not have their back to the door.

Support with workload
 Increase frequency of supervision
 Support someone to prioritise their work
 Allow the individual to focus on a specific piece of work
 Consider job sharing

Tudalen 197



Title: Stress Management Author: COHSU Owner: Paul Thomas

Status: Policy Issue Date: Sept 2016 Review Date: Sept 2019 Version: 1 Page 7 of 13

Support from others
 Provide a job coach
 Provide a buddy or mentor
 Provide mediation if there are difficulties between colleagues

POSSIBLE SOURCES OF STRESS IN THE WORKPLACE 
There are many causes of pressure, some of which are very personal. Sometimes pressures at home can 
have a significant impact on the pressures in the workplace. However certain aspects of the workplace can 
be perceived as the cause of stress, although not all individuals find these stressful. The list below contains 
potential areas of internal and external stressors. This is not an exhaustive list: 

 Nature of the job 
 Work organisation / workload 
 Work environment 
 Degree of control over the job 
 Contractual arrangements 
 Support and training 
 Culture 
 Work relationships 
 Organisational change 
 Management 
 Individual 

IMPACT OF LIFESTYLE STRESS AND WORK 
Many of the stresses people experience can often be due to lifestyle changes as well as work related 
pressures, for example: 

 Financial or relationship problems 
 Ill health
 Family changes such as birth, death, marriage or divorce 
 A conflict with family demands e.g. childcare, teenage children, ageing parents 
 Change in living conditions (such as moving house) 
 Long distance commuting 
 Not enough opportunity for social contact while at work, difficulty in coping with change 
 Not confident in dealing with interpersonal problems 

PREVENTION
The following points below form part of good people management:

 Communicate regularly with employees - face to face communication is usually better so that 
employees can be encouraged to give feedback 

 Encourage employees to talk to you at an early stage if they feel they cannot cope or if they are not clear 
about priorities or the nature of the task to be undertaken

 Talk to employees regularly about what needs to be done – listen to their feedback about problems or 
pressures they are under and their difficulties in getting the work done and agree a course of action for 
tackling any problems

Tudalen 198



Title: Stress Management Author: COHSU Owner: Paul Thomas

Status: Policy Issue Date: Sept 2016 Review Date: Sept 2019 Version: 1 Page 8 of 13

 Consult with employees about any changes and discuss whether there are any new training needs; it is 
important these training needs are met, undertaken and reviewed 

 If people feel “under loaded”, think about giving them more responsibility, but make sure they are 
adequately trained 

 Try to give warning of urgent or important jobs, prioritise tasks, and cut out unnecessary work. 
 Support employees during change 
 Carry out regular development reviews where we would encourage using the Individual Stress 

Assessment
 Provide feedback on work performance, behavioural issues and impact on others 
 Ensure shift work systems are agreed with employees and that the work is fairly shared out 
 Avoid taking work home 
 Ensure employees take sufficient breaks 
 Encourage employees to take their annual leave entitlement and their meal breaks
 Encourage a positive ‘work-life balance’ 
 Promote the Occupational Health Centre and health promotion initiatives 
 Provide as much support as possible (e.g. Flexible working and Work Life Balance initiatives) 
 Consideration of different work life balance initiatives i.e. job sharing, reduced hours, home working etc. 
 Create a culture where members of the team trust each other and can be themselves at work 
 Managers need to be aware of their behaviour and its effect on others and be prepared to adapt

RECOGNITION AND SUPPORT
Reason 1 - Through observation you become aware that the employee may be showing signs and 
symptoms of stress; or

Reason 2 – The employee has stated they are suffering from stress or presented with a fit note stating 
‘stress’ or a ‘stress related issues’. Some examples of wording you may find on a fit note that indicate stress 
are, Stress – work related or non-work related; Anxiety; Depression; ND or Nervous Debility; Fatigue; 
Bereavement 

Support should be provided to help an employee maintain work or return to work from sickness absence. 

 Speak to the employee in a confidential setting to assess the reasons for stress. This will aid in 
planning next steps. 

 If issues are possibly work related encourage and assist the employee to complete the Individual 
Stress Assessment (see Guidance Note 3) and discuss the outcomes and agree an action plan to 
overcome and deal with any relevant issues 

 If issues are non-work related encourage the employee to read and complete the self help guide 
and worksheet found in Self Help Information

 Offer the contact number for Stress Control Training if applicable

 Access the NHS Direct - 0845 46 47 link to search local support services in the employee’s area (click 
on ‘Health and Wellbeing tab)
 Offer the contact numbers for any Crisis Team  if appropriate
 Try to accommodate adjustments within the workplace (e.g. temporarily change in working hours, 

change to role)
 Phased return to work (following sickness absence)
 Have regular one to one meetings

Tudalen 199

http://intranet/our-people/occupational-health/stress/
http://intranet/our-people/occupational-health/stress/
http://intranet/our-people/occupational-health/stress/self-help-and-support/
http://brian/worklife/Document%20Library/Occupational%20Health/Stress/Self%20Help%20Information/Stress%20Control%20Training%20Leaflet.pdf
http://www.nhsdirect.wales.nhs.uk/localservices/searchlocalservices.aspx
http://brian/worklife/Document%20Library/Occupational%20Health/Stress/Wellbeing%20Services/Crisis%20Information%20National%20Help%20and%20Information%20Lines.pdf


Title: Stress Management Author: COHSU Owner: Paul Thomas

Status: Policy Issue Date: Sept 2016 Review Date: Sept 2019 Version: 1 Page 9 of 13

 Ask if employee has been to their own GP if applicable 
 Manager can contact Occupational Health and/or HR for advice if required

If further support is required a referral can be made to Occupational Health.  It may also be appropriate to 
refer to HR guidance relating to disability information and reasonable adjustments (insert link) 

Further advice and guidance can be obtained from the HR team and our appropriate HR Performance 
Management Policies/Procedures (e.g. sickness absence, capability procedures etc.).

LEARNING & DEVELOPMENT
In addition to current L&D programmes for managers and staff, the Authority has developed programmes 
to support managers and employees in the management of stress and mental health.

These include:

 workshops for managers
 workshops for teams in areas where stress is prevalent
 on line modules to help staff understand and manage the causes of stress
 on line modules on mental health awareness and personal resilience (link here)

Please contact your Learning & Development Advisor on 01267 246180 for further information.

RECORD KEEPING 
It is important that records be kept of all relevant actions. Records must be accurate, deal with the facts 
and points of evidence, rather than feelings or conjecture and maintain individual confidentiality. 
Unqualified opinions and judgements must be avoided. Records must include any incident reports, risk 
assessments, sickness records and preventative action undertaken.

Tudalen 200

http://intranet/our-people/occupational-health/request-a-referral/
http://intranet/our-people/hr/
http://intranet/our-people/hr/


Title: Stress Management Author: COHSU Owner: Paul Thomas

Status: Policy Issue Date: Sept 2016 Review Date: Sept 2019 Version: 1 Page 10 of 13

Guidance Note 3
Individual Stress Assessment

WHEN TO USE THE INDIVIDUAL STRESS ASSESSMENT 
A stress risk assessment is an ongoing process and must be used appropriately and as often as is necessary 
in determining levels of stress, i.e..... 

 whenever a situation arises to warrant its use (reactively), 
 following a sickness absence, 
 when presenting signs of, or having perceived increase in stress level,
 proactively at supervision/appraisal sessions (this should be done at least on an annual basis),
 the manager should complete the individual stress assessment questionnaire with the employee if 

possible, as issues can be highlighted and actioned at that point. 

Following completion of the Individual Stress Assessment:
 If no problems are identified, the process ends here. However the manager will continue to 

monitor using the supervision/appraisal/performance management procedures or as required. 
 If problems are identified, the manager and employee continues with the assessment process. 
 The manager may seek advice from Human Resources if required. 
 The manager may need to refer the employee to the Occupational Health Centre.

Managers may identify or suspect that stress may be a problem in their team or individuals themselves or 
they may have the issues of stress brought to their attention by employees directly or via trade union 
representatives or other managers. Once the manager is ‘on notice’ regards stress related issues they have 
a legal duty to intervene and manage the situation positively. 

LIMITATIONS 
These questionnaires are only tools to assist managers. They are not guaranteed to identify all individuals 
with stress or all the causes of stress. They will help demonstrate if stress is a problem and help identify 
possible causes of stress. The individual stress risk assessment will help to identify the root causes and 
possible control measures. 

Tudalen 201



Title: Stress Management Author: COHSU Owner: Paul Thomas

Status: Policy Issue Date: Sept 2016 Review Date: Sept 2019 Version: 1 Page 11 of 13

Guidance Note 4
Further Support and Self Help

SELF-HELP INFORMATION 

 livinglifetothefull - a free self-help website which measures your levels of stress and mood, and 
provides suitable workbooks. 

 Moodgym – Free self-help website
 Self-help books can be obtained from your local library

FURTHER SUPPORT CAN BE OBTAINED FROM

 Your GP 
 Occupational Health -  01267 246060 
 Stress management programme (request this service through your manager, HR or liaison officer or 

contact Occupational Health on the above number for further information about how this service may 
benefit you). 

 NHS Direct - 0845 46 47 – Search local support services in your area (select Health & Wellbeing tab)
 NHS Stress Control Training  - Free 6 week course
 Your Union Representative

Tudalen 202

http://www.livinglifetothefull.com/
https://moodgym.anu.edu.au/welcome/new/splash
http://www.nhsdirect.wales.nhs.uk/localservices/searchlocalservices.aspx
http://intranet/our-people/occupational-health/stress/self-help-and-support/


Title: Stress Management Author: COHSU Owner: Paul Thomas

Status: Policy Issue Date: Sept 2016 Review Date: Sept 2019 Version: 1 Page 12 of 13

Guidance Note 5
Case Studies

All case studies are based on fictional characters. 

CASE STUDY 1 – No Management Input
A scenario is that of John (a fictitious example) who has been noticeably quieter in the office over the last 
couple of weeks; normally John is quite outgoing in the office, he is often heard, chatting to his colleagues 
about work issues, he has a helpful curiosity about processes in the office and is always looking to improve 
his efficiency, he is a reliable member of the team. 

His manager notices that John has been off over the last six weeks with odd days here and there with cold 
like symptoms, stomach upset and a migraine, this is unusual for John but his manager dismisses it as an 
anomaly and does not speak to John about it.

2 weeks later, out of the blue John contacts his manager to say that his GP has signed him off work with 
stress and he will be off work for 2 weeks. Just as John’s fit note is due to expire the manager receives 
another fit note for another 2 weeks, the manager is too busy to contact John and he thinks that by ringing 
John I will ‘stress him out more, he needs time to get over it’. After a month John attends a sickness 
absence review with his manager, he feels too unwell to go back to work, and the GP has issued a fit note 
for 1 month. 

Outcome of no management input 
6 months later, John is still off work and he is feeling that he can’t return to his job, he feels isolated, he 
hasn’t had any regular contact with work and he is considering handing in his notice.

NB: refer to Sickness Absence Policy regarding contact with an employee while off work ill and regarding 
positive outcomes when keeping in contact – see Case Study 2. 

CASE STUDY 2 – Management Involvement 
A scenario is that of John (a fictitious example) who has been noticeably quieter in the office over the last 
couple of weeks; normally John is quite outgoing in the office, he is often heard, chatting to his colleagues 
about work issues, he has a helpful curiosity about processes in the office and is always looking to improve 
his efficiency, he is a reliable member of the team. 

His manager notices that John has been off over the last six weeks with odd days here and there with cold 
like symptoms, stomach upset and a migraine, and this is unusual for John. John’s manager arranges to 
meet with John, for an informal meeting, and the following discussion takes place.

Manager “John, I have noticed that you seem a bit quieter in the office lately and you have had a few short 
illnesses over the last few weeks, I just wanted to check that everything is ok for you at the moment or if I 
could be of any help in any way?”

John “Well; things aren’t too good for me at the moment, my mother is unwell and I am having to visit her 
every night after work, and I am finding the increase in workload for the current project difficult to manage”

Manager “Ok John, I am sorry to hear your mum is unwell at the moment, I can imagine that must be 
putting some extra strain on you and your family. I would like to understand more how things are for you in 
work so I can see if there is anything further I can help you with. I will give you the individual stress risk 

Tudalen 203



Title: Stress Management Author: COHSU Owner: Paul Thomas

Status: Policy Issue Date: Sept 2016 Review Date: Sept 2019 Version: 1 Page 13 of 13

assessment to complete and then we can have a look to see if this flags up any areas where further support 
maybe required” 

John completed the individual stress risk assessment and his manager reviewed this with him 2 days later. 
The manager was able to see that John was unsure about what was expected of him on this current project 
and appeared to be setting himself unrealistic goals. John and his manager had a discussion about the 
project and discussed some realistic goals that John felt he could achieve over the next fortnight, and they 
agreed to meet again in 2 weeks to review these goals. The manager also told John about occupational 
health information on the intranet which has links and information about managing stress, the manager 
recommended that John makes time to complete the resilience online module; Manager “John; this has 
some really helpful tips on how we can look after ourselves when we have a lot going on in our lives, I would 
like you to make some time to look at this” 

Outcome following Manager Involvement 
John remained in work and had more regular meetings with his manager, in time John’s mother’s health 
improved and John felt more in control of his work and the manager noticed John returned to his previous 
level of productivity.

CASE STUDY 3 – Sarah’s Story 

Sarah is 40 years old and works as a social worker for a local authority, managing a case load of clients. She 
has suffered from anxiety and depression in the past. She recently told her manager that she is feeling very 
anxious and has been suffering from panic attacks. She has been finding it hard to concentrate on writing 
client reports when she is back in the busy, open-plan office and has difficulty prioritising her workload. 
Sarah has been to see her GP and is now receiving therapy from the practice’s counsellor.

There is no capacity within the team for Sarah’s caseload to be reduced but her manager suggests that they 
increase her monthly supervisions to weekly to discuss client cases and help Sarah to prioritise her 
workload. Sarah’s manager also reminds her that she can book a quiet room for a couple of days a week so 
that she can concentrate on report writing – an option available to all employees. As Sarah already has a 
flexitime agreement, her manager agrees for her to come into work later on the day of her therapy. Sarah 
and her manager agree to review these adjustments in a couple of weeks’ time to see if they are working.

CASE STUDY 4 – Jeremy’s Story 

Jeremy is 35 years old and works as an IT Support Technician for the Local Authority. He has bipolar 
disorder and has been hospitalised in the past. He has been off work with depression for eight weeks and 
has kept in contact with his manager over this time. Knowing that Jeremy was considering a return to work 
his manager referred him to Occupational Health for advice on what support he may need to return to the 
workplace. Jeremy attends a back to work meeting with his manager to agree adjustments.

The Occupational Health Physician suggests that Jeremy returns to work on a phased return, gradually 
building up his hours to full time over 4 weeks. He also suggests that Jeremy introduces his work tasks 
slowly, concentrating on desk work in the first few weeks and gradually reintroducing customer query 
facing work which is more demanding. Although Jeremy is feeling a lot better his medication makes him 
drowsy in the mornings which means that he is unsafe to drive. As his home is not well served by public 

Tudalen 204



Title: Stress Management Author: COHSU Owner: Paul Thomas

Status: Policy Issue Date: Sept 2016 Review Date: Sept 2019 Version: 1 Page 14 of 13

transport his manager suggests that he applies to Access to Work to enquire about help with transport for 
work. They agree the adjustments in writing and a provisional date for Jeremy to return to work.

Case Study – Mr Jones’s Story 

Mr Jones has been off work for 3 weeks with depression which he feels has been triggered by a conflict 
with a colleague in the workplace. Mr Jones feels hopeless about ever being able to return to work. He 
attended his first sickness absence review meeting with his union representative, also present was his 
manager and a representative from human resources (HR). Part way through the meeting Mr Jones 
discloses that he “just can’t see the point in going on with life”. 

His manager asks the HR Advisor and the union representative to leave the room so he can speak privately 
to Mr Jones. His manager asks Mr Jones questions with regards how long he has been feeling like his, and if 
he has felt like this before. Mr Jones states he had similar feelings in the past but not to this extent. His 
manager asks him if there is anyone at home who could take him to his GP or to A&E for support and 
advice. His manager also asks Mr Jones if he would like a referral to Occupational Health (OH) for further 
support. Mr Jones agrees to the referral to OH and lets his manager phone his sister who says she can 
collect Mr Jones in 20 minutes. His manager continues to sit with Mr Jones letting him talk openly about 
how he feels until his sister arrives. 

One Mr Jones’ has left with his sister his manager explains what has happened to the HR advisor and union 
representative, documents everything from the discussion with Mr Jones and completes a referral to OH. 
Later that day the manager contacts Mr Jones’ sister for an update on how he is and informs her he has 
completed the OH referral. His sister explains that Mr Jones was assessed in A&E and will receive support 
from the crisis intervention team for a minimum of 2 weeks and his medication will be increased. 

At a follow up sickness absence meeting Mr Jones’ states his depression was starting to improve and his 
outlook on the future was more positive.

Tudalen 205



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Appendix 2

SMOKE FREE 
(WORKPLACE AND PREMISES)

POLICY

This document should be used in conjunction with the
Corporate Health and Safety Policy

Managers have a responsibility to ensure that ALL employees have access 
to this document.

Tudalen 207

http://intranet/media/247000/corporate-health-and-safety-policy-may-16.pdf


Appendix 2

Title: Smoke Free (Workplace and Premises) Author: CHSU Owner: Paul Thomas
Status: Policy Issue Date: Sept 2016 Review Date: Sept 2019 Version: 4 Page 1 of 9

Please hold the Ctrl button and click on the relevant heading in this contents table 
to take you to your required section of the document:

CONTENTS PAGE

SMOKE FREE (WORKPLACE AND PREMISES) POLICY 2

GUIDANCE NOTE 1
PROVIDING A DESIGNATED SMOKING ROOM IN RESIDENTIAL AND 
RESPITE CARE PREMISES

4

GUIDANCE NOTE 2
VISITING RESIDENTIAL PREMISES IN THE COMMUNITY

6

GUIDANCE NOTE 3
NON-RESIDENTIAL SOCIAL CARE PREMISES

7

GUIDANCE NOTE 4
FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS

8

GUIDANCE NOTE 5
FURTHER ADVICE, GUIDANCE AND SUPPORT

9

Tudalen 208



Title: Smoke Free (Workplace and Premises) Author: CHSU Owner: Paul Thomas
Status: Policy Issue Date: Sept 2016 Review Date: Sept 2019 Version: 3 Page 2 of 9

Smoke Free (Workplace and Premises) Policy
Carmarthenshire County Council will: 

 Encourage employees, members and service users to stop smoking, and provide practical help and 
support via our Occupational Health Centre and the Stop Smoking Wales Service. 

 Prohibit smoking and use of E-cigarettes: 

o in all enclosed and substantially enclosed workplaces and premises owned or occupied by the 
County Council, including offices, schools, communal areas of sheltered housing schemes, rest 
rooms, canteens, theatres, libraries, community facilities, public toilets, museums, kiosks, markets, 
restaurants, cafes, members rooms, sports and leisure facilities, bus stations and shelters, day 
centres, and commercial premises leased or hired to third parties, etc.

o in all enclosed and substantially enclosed premises used to provide the services or activities of the 
County Council, including those owned, operated by or shared with others, such as offices, 
day/lunch clubs, conference centres and training venues, etc.

o in all vehicles used for work purposes or the provision of services including vans, buses, mobile 
libraries, and cars (including own cars during business time). Employees and others (e.g. volunteers, 
contractors) using vehicles in connection with the provision of services shall ensure the vehicles are 
smoke-free whilst they are used for these purposes.   

o within the grounds of premises owned or occupied by the County Council, including car parks 
associated with our administrative and commercial buildings, gardens, playgrounds, sports grounds 
and other external areas, etc. 

 Not provide facilities for smokers, such as shelters or smoking rooms, either inside or outside, including 
doorways and immediate vicinities of any Council premises (except for the exemptions detailed below).

 All employees should not smoke during working time with the requirements of the smoking policy. 

 E-cigarettes must not be charged in any Carmarthenshire County Council premises, including vehicles.

 Provide signage:
o at all entrances to our premises, including at entrances to grounds, which informs everyone that 

they are smoke free and that smoking is prohibited. This signage shall comply with the 
requirements of the Smoke-free Premises etc. (Wales) Regulations 2007, and any associated 
guidance.

o in all of our vehicles, including those leased or hired to others, which informs everyone that they 
are smoke free and smoking is prohibited. This signage shall comply with the requirements of the 
Smoke-free Premises etc. (Wales) Regulations 2007, and any associated guidance.   

o Prohibit the selling or promoting of tobacco products in premises owned or occupied by the County 
Council.

o Cooperate with other employers, contractors or voluntary organisations to ensure compliance with 
this policy and any risks associated with second hand tobacco smoke are minimised.

Tudalen 209



Title: Smoke Free (Workplace and Premises) Author: CHSU Owner: Paul Thomas
Status: Policy Issue Date: Sept 2016 Review Date: Sept 2019 Version: 3 Page 3 of 9

 Act as an exemplar employer and role model for other employers within Carmarthenshire in relation to 
non-smoking and the provision of smoke free workplaces.

 Periodically monitor, review and improve (when necessary) the delivery of this policy to ensure that it 
remains effective, and that we continue to comply with associated legal requirements and/or relevant 
management standards.

Exemptions: 
1. Designated smoking rooms or external smoking areas will be permitted in adult residential care and 

respite homes, and designated external smoking areas will be permitted in social care establishments 
providing day care services to the elderly or vulnerable.

2. Within flats and domiciliary areas of Sheltered Housing and Council Housing Premises – ALL communal 
and external areas of these premises fall within the scope of the policy.

For the purposes of this Policy ‘E - Cigarettes’ (which contain nicotine) shall be regarded as cigarettes.

Scope of the Policy
This policy will apply to all establishments and all employees of Carmarthenshire County Council, volunteers 
acting on our behalf, contractors, visitors, agency workers and members of public who are accessing or using 
premises owned or occupied by Carmarthenshire County Council.

Arrangements at Schools 
Governing Bodies of all schools are encouraged to adopt this policy, with a recommendation that schools 
may wish to develop appropriate wording to include pupils or signpost to the appropriate policy or guidelines 
for pupils. School management teams must ensure that our premises always remain smoke free, including 
outside normal school hours when the facilities may be hired to third parties. 

Supporting Documentation
Supporting information, guidance and documentation will be available to assist with the management and 
implementation of this policy.

Ensuring Equality of Treatment
This policy must be applied consistently to all employees irrespective of race, colour, ethnic or national 
origins (including citizenship), language, disability, religion, belief or non-belief, age, sex, gender 
reassignment, sexual orientation, parental or marital status, pregnancy or maternity.

If you have any equality and diversity concerns in relation to the application of this policy and procedure, 
please contact a member of the HR Team who will, if necessary, ensure the policy/procedure is reviewed 
accordingly.

If you require this information in an alternative format please contact People Management on (01267) 
246184 or Ext. 6184.

Tudalen 210



Title: Smoke Free (Workplace and Premises) Author: CHSU Owner: Paul Thomas
Status: Policy Issue Date: Sept 2016 Review Date: Sept 2019 Version: 3 Page 4 of 9

GUIDANCE NOTE 1
Providing a Designated Smoking Room in Residential and Respite Care Premises

The Smoke-free Premises etc. (Wales) Regulations 2007 makes an exemption for adult residential 
care homes, and allows smoking within designated rooms, subject to conditions. 

*Care home manager should be contacted to discuss local arrangements.

If it is decided to designate a specific room in which residents can smoke, then:

 the room must be suitable for the purpose,  

 the room must be clearly marked as a room in which smoking is permitted,

 the door to the room should be fire resistant and fitted with a self-closing device which ensures 
the door remains closed,

 the room must be provided with suitable and sufficient mechanical ventilation, which vents to 
the outside of the building (and not immediately beneath or next to a window). Technical 
advice upon ventilation systems and their functionality shall be available from Property 
Services, via Property Helpdesk.

 a safe and suitable means of collecting and disposing of waste associated with smoking must be 
provided in the room, along with a procedure for the handling of this waste which manages the 
risk of fires occurring,

 the room should be provided with the minimum amount of furniture and the following must be 
ensured:

o all fabrics and furnishings shall comply with the Furniture and Furnishings (Fire Safety) 
Regulations 1988, relevant standards and be appropriately marked.

o the room must not contain any items that would increase the risk of fire e.g. potted 
plants (real or artificial).

 an effective means of observing and supervising residents in the room should be provided, such 
as vision panels in either the door or the adjoining walls. The glazing used in these vision panels 
should be fire resistant (e.g. Georgian wired glass).

Such rooms are intended for the use of residents only, not for staff or visitors. The exemption for 
designated smoking rooms was made in recognition that they are residential premises, and thereby 
the homes of smoking residents. 

Staff should not normally be required to work in these designated smoking rooms. If they have to 
enter these rooms, their time of exposure to second-hand smoke must be kept to a minimum. Staff 
with pre-existing conditions exacerbated by second-hand smoke (e.g. asthma) or employees who 
are pregnant should not be asked to enter them at all.

Tudalen 211

mailto:PropertyHelpdesk@carmarthenshire.gov.uk


Title: Smoke Free (Workplace and Premises) Author: CHSU Owner: Paul Thomas
Status: Policy Issue Date: Sept 2016 Review Date: Sept 2019 Version: 3 Page 5 of 9

Residents shall have access to and be provided with advice, guidance and support if they wish to 
stop smoking.  This advice, guidance and support is available through the Stop Smoking Wales 
service (see further support guidance for more information).

External designated smoking areas may be provided in residential and respite care homes. These 
external smoking areas must: 

 be discreetly positioned (i.e. not near doorways and entrances and windows), 

 not be sited close to buildings into which in second-hand smoke could enter via windows, doors 
or similar,

 not be enclosed or substantially enclosed, 

 be provided with a safe & effective means of collecting smoking related litter, including stubbing 
out bins, 

These outside facilities may be used by residents and may also be used by employees where they 
are not provided with official breaks to leave the site to smoke or where leaving the site would 
seriously compromise the level of supervision or care provided to residents. This would most likely 
be an issue at evening or night time, where fewer staff are often employed within the care home. 

The use of E-cigarettes is prohibited in all Carmarthenshire County Council premises and vehicles due to the 
fire hazard and associated risks with the charging of E-cigarettes. Where residents use an E-cigarette then 
arrangements should be made with family or friends for the re-charging of the device off site.

A risk assessment should be carried out for residents who wish to use cigarettes. This will determine 
whether smoking equipment (e.g. lighters) needs to be held by staff and requested by residents 
when they wish to smoke. 

Return to Contents

Tudalen 212



Title: Smoke Free (Workplace and Premises) Author: CHSU Owner: Paul Thomas
Status: Policy Issue Date: Sept 2016 Review Date: Sept 2019 Version: 3 Page 6 of 9

GUIDANCE NOTE 2
Visiting Residential Premises in the Community

Many employees, contractors & volunteers (e.g. social workers, domiciliary care workers, housing 
officers or maintenance staff) will need to enter a person’s home to provide a service, and may be 
exposed to second hand smoke if the person being visited or others at that address are smokers. 
Private homes are not covered by smoke free law, so there are no legal restrictions upon residents 
smoking in their own home.  

In order to reduce the risk to employees, the following steps should be taken:

 Identify the homes visited by employees that are occupied by smokers.

 It is our duty to protect our employees and others delivering a service on our behalf, from 
second hand smoke. Once identified, the occupants will be advised, in writing, in line with 
the smoke free premises regulation 2007, for their cooperation in refraining from smoking 
an hour before staff arrival and for the duration of their visit.

 When services are being arranged via telephone, the occupants will be instructed verbally of 
the requirement to refrain from smoking in their home for an hour prior to the scheduled 
visit taking place and for the duration of the visit.

 Employees should inform their Manager/Supervisor of any concerns or problems with 
occupants smoking during the visit. Employees with pre-existing conditions exacerbated by 
second-hand smoke should inform their Manager/Supervisor immediately so that suitable 
arrangements can be made.

Where an occupant continues to smoke in the presence of our employees, the following steps 
should be taken:

 Occupants should be politely reminded of the requirements of our smoke free policy.

 If the occupant continues to smoke, employees may withdraw from the premises, informing 
their Manager/Supervisor of their actions and completing relevant paperwork e.g. 
‘Walkaway Form’ / ‘Concerns Log’. 

 The Manager/Supervisor must verbally discuss and follow up in writing with the occupant 
the requirement to refrain from smoking during a visit.

 If the occupant refuses to comply then procedures associated with the withdrawal of our 
services may be adopted. 

Return to Contents

Tudalen 213



Title: Smoke Free (Workplace and Premises) Author: CHSU Owner: Paul Thomas
Status: Policy Issue Date: Sept 2016 Review Date: Sept 2019 Version: 3 Page 7 of 9

GUIDANCE NOTE 3
Non-Residential Social Care Premises

Enclosed & substantially enclosed areas of day centres or similar social activities must be fully 
smoke free, and may not designate or use rooms for smoking within the premises.

It is recognised that it may not be appropriate or safe to ask some service users, particularly those 
that are elderly or vulnerable, to leave the site entirely, including the external grounds and car parks 
etc., if they wish to smoke. We will therefore allow, if needed, external designated smoking areas in 
social care establishments providing a service to these persons (e.g. day centres). These external 
smoking areas must: 

 be discreetly positioned (i.e. not near doorways and entrances), 

 not be sited close to buildings into which in second-hand smoke could enter via windows, doors 
or similar,

 not be enclosed or substantially enclosed, 

 be provided with a safe & effective means of collecting smoking related litter, including stubbing 
out bins and emptying and cleaning of bins.  

Carmarthenshire County Council does not provide facilities for smokers, including service users, 
such as external smoking shelters. 

Service users must be informed of the requirements of our smoke free policy, and the local 
arrangements at each particular establishment. 

The use of E-cigarettes is prohibited in all Carmarthenshire County Council premises and vehicles due to the 
fire hazard and associated risks with the charging of E-cigarettes. Where service users use an E-cigarette 
then arrangements should be made with family or friends for the re-charging of the device off site.

A risk assessment should be carried out for service users who wish to use cigarettes. This will 
determine whether smoking equipment (e.g. lighters) needs to be held by staff and requested by 
service users when they wish to smoke. 

Return to Contents

Tudalen 214



Title: Smoke Free (Workplace and Premises) Author: CHSU Owner: Paul Thomas
Status: Policy Issue Date: Sept 2016 Review Date: Sept 2019 Version: 3 Page 8 of 9

GUIDANCE NOTE 4
Frequently Asked Questions

1. Am I entitled to smoking breaks?
Employees who wish to smoke may only do so in their own time. Council employees who wish to 
smoke can do so either in official breaks or when they clock out or via the flexitime scheme. 
Managers should ensure that this practice does not adversely affect service delivery, and that 
employees cooperate with them towards this objective.

2. Does the Smoke Free (Workplaces and Premises) Policy apply to homeworking?
The smoke free laws don’t apply to domestic premises. However, where a room at an 
employee’s home is used solely for work purposes the room will be required to be smoke free. 

All employees must comply with their employer’s policies & procedures whilst at work, including 
when they work at home. 

3. Should I include information on the Smoke Free (Workplaces and Premises) Policy when 
recruiting staff?
Job advertisements, information provided to prospective applicants & induction sessions for new 
employees (e.g. corporate welcome, site specific induction and fire safety briefings) will include 
reference to the Smoke Free Policy. All advertisements shall state that “the County Council 
operates a smoke free policy”. 

All new employees will be reminded of the requirements of the smoke free policy, and be 
required to abide by it.

4. Do I need to display signage at my premises?
Signage must be displayed at all entrances to premises, at entrances to the grounds of premises 
and in all work vehicles.

5. Am I required to provide facilities for smokers?
Carmarthenshire County Council will not provide facilities for smokers other than in those 
premises exempt from the policy (see Guidance Note 1 & Guidance Note 3 for further 
information).

6. Who is responsible for enforcing the Smoke Free (Workplaces and Premises) Policy?
The success of this smoke-free policy depends upon the consideration and cooperation of all 
employees and managers, and anyone else affected by it. 

Failure by an employee to comply with this policy will result in informal action by line managers, 
followed, if persistent abuse of the rules occurs, by the implementation of the Council’s 
disciplinary policy & procedures.  

Return to Contents

Tudalen 215



Title: Smoke Free (Workplace and Premises) Author: CHSU Owner: Paul Thomas
Status: Policy Issue Date: Sept 2016 Review Date: Sept 2019 Version: 3 Page 9 of 9

GUIDANCE NOTE 5
Further Advice, Guidance & Support

You are four times more likely to quit with a support programme than going it alone. 

Occupational Health & Safety
Occupational Health can advise on the health benefits of quitting and give advice on who to 
contact or speak to about quitting smoking (see below).

General Practitioner (GP)
Your GP will give advice on the support groups below and can also advise on whether 
prescribed medication to help you quit will be suitable for you.

Stop Smoking Wales
You will be given advice and support and find out what Nicotine Replacement Therapy would 
be best for you. They hold weekly sessions across Wales and you can find a session at a time 
and venue that is suitable for you. Sessions start a few weeks before you plan to quit and help 
you to prepare for your quit date. Sessions last for six weeks and you will be assessed how you 
are managing and will be given support throughout the programme.
Contact number: 0800 085 2219

Return to Contents

Tudalen 216



Appendix 3

Title: Alcohol and Substance Misuse Author: COHSU Owner: Paul Thomas
Status: Policy Issue Date: Sept 2016 Review Date: Sept 2019 Version: 1 Page 1 of 9

ALCOHOL AND SUBSTANCE MISUSE
POLICY

This document should be used in conjunction with the
Corporate Health and Safety Policy

Managers have a responsibility to ensure that ALL employees have access to 
this document.

Tudalen 217

http://intranet/media/247000/corporate-health-and-safety-policy-may-16.pdf


Appendix 3

Title: Alcohol and Substance Misuse Author: COHSU Owner: Paul Thomas
Status: Policy Issue Date: Sept 2016 Review Date: Sept 2019 Version: 1 Page 1 of 9

Please hold the Ctrl button and click on the relevant heading in this contents table 
to take you to your required section of the document:

CONTENTS PAGE

ALCOHOL AND SUBSTANCE MISUSE POLICY 2

GUIDANCE NOTE 1
PROCEDURE - EMPLOYEE PRESENTS AT WORK UNDER THE INFLUENCE 
OF ALCOHOL OR SUBSTANCE MISUSE

4

GUIDANCE NOTE 2
SUPPORTING EMPLOYEES WHO ARE EXPERIENCING ALCOHOL OR 
SUBSTANCE MISUSE PROBLEMS

5

GUIDANCE NOTE 3
GUIDANCE FOR MANAGERS – DISCIPLINARY ACTION IN RELATION TO 
ALCOHOL AND SUBSTANCE MISUSE

6

GUIDANCE NOTE 4
FURTHER SUPPORT

8

Tudalen 218



Title: Alcohol and Substance Misuse Author: COHSU Owner: Paul Thomas
Status: Policy Issue Date: Sept 2016 Review Date: Sept 2019 Version: 1 Page 2 of 9

Alcohol and Substance Misuse Policy

Definitions

Substance misuse is defined as the habitual or intermittent use of alcohol or any drug or other substance 
which causes detriment to an individual’s health, social functioning or work performance. It can often 
impair safety of themselves or others and affect attendance, time keeping, efficiency or conduct. Misuse 
also includes the possession, use or supply of illegal drugs (controlled by the Misuses of Drugs Act, 1971). 

Carmarthenshire County Council enforces a zero tolerance to alcohol consumption and substance misuse 
within the Authority. 

Carmarthenshire County Council has a Duty of Care to its employees and will: 

 Prohibit the consumption of alcohol by our employees, agency workers, contractors and volunteers 
during working hours including lunch times. 

 Raise awareness amongst our employees of the dangers of alcohol and substance misuse and the 
potential adverse impact upon themselves, their relationships and the workplace when used 
inappropriately. 

 Ensure all employees and managers are aware of the rules regarding the use of alcohol and substances 
at work, or working whilst adversely affected by alcohol or substances. This would include prescription 
medication and over the counter medication where effects of the medication can have an impact on 
driving and using machinery. Employees should inform their managers of any adverse effects of this 
type of medication as adjustments may need to be accommodated.  

 Promote the early identification and treatment of alcohol and substance related problems and 
encourage employees adversely affected to seek advice, support and treatment for themselves, or if 
concerned for a family member or friend to seek advice and support for others. 

 Monitor employees where the use of alcohol and substances contribute to poor attendance and work 
performance, in accordance with the appropriate HR Performance Management Policies.

 Provide adequate training, information and guidance to anyone implementing this policy, in particular 
line managers and supervisors, so that they may effectively identify employees with potential problems 
associated with alcohol and substances, and effectively deal with alcohol and substance misuse in the 
workplace.

 Establish clear guidelines for dealing with misconduct associated with the use and misuse of alcohol 
and substances, using our disciplinary procedures where appropriate, and reporting illegal activities to 
the police.

 Monitor employees where the use of alcohol and substances contribute to poor attendance and work 
performance, in accordance with the appropriate HR Performance Management Policies.

 Ensure all employees seeking help for alcohol or substance related problems are provided with 
confidential and sympathetic support, treatment and rehabilitation. Confidentiality will be maintained 
by all parties concerned.

Tudalen 219



Title: Alcohol and Substance Misuse Author: COHSU Owner: Paul Thomas
Status: Policy Issue Date: Sept 2016 Review Date: Sept 2019 Version: 1 Page 3 of 9

 Discourage the unsafe use of substances and the unhealthy use of alcohol by employees, by promoting 
awareness of a healthy lifestyle. 

 Provide guidance and information on sensible drinking in the form of leaflets, health promotion and 
campaigns on a regular basis. 

Exemptions: 
1. Alcohol consumption will be permitted for residents in adult residential care and respite homes. 

2. Alcohol consumption will be permitted for residents within flats and domiciliary areas of Sheltered 
Housing and Council Housing Premises and service users in social care establishments providing day 
care services to the elderly or vulnerable.

There should be suitable and sufficient risk assessments (including the effect of alcohol use with 
medication) in place for any residents/service users who consume alcohol.

Scope of the Policy
This policy will apply to employees of Carmarthenshire County Council, volunteers acting on our behalf, 
contractors, visitors, agency workers and members of public who are accessing or using premises owned or 
occupied by Carmarthenshire County Council.

Arrangements at Schools 
Governing Bodies of all schools are encouraged to adopt this policy to include school social events, with a 
recommendation that schools may wish to develop appropriate wording to include pupils or signpost to the 
appropriate policy or guidelines for pupils. School management teams must ensure that a suitable 
agreement is adopted outside normal school hours when the facilities may be hired to third parties.

Supporting Documentation
Supporting information, guidance and documentation will be available to assist with the management and 
implementation of this policy.

Ensuring Equality of Treatment 
This policy must be applied consistently to all employees irrespective of race, colour, ethnic or national 
origins (including citizenship), language, disability, religion, belief or non-belief, age, sex, gender 
reassignment, sexual orientation, parental or marital status, pregnancy or maternity.

If you have any equality and diversity concerns in relation to the application of this policy and procedure, 
please contact a member of the HR Team who will, if necessary, ensure the policy/procedure is reviewed 
accordingly.

If you require this information in an alternative format please contact People Management & Performance 
on (01267) 246184 or Ext. 6184.

Councillors 
Councillors have a personal responsibility to all staff and members of the public to uphold the values set 
out in this policy, promote good relations and challenge inappropriate behaviour where required. 
Councillors are responsible for ensuring that they support positively, the principle of equality and diversity, 

Tudalen 220



Title: Alcohol and Substance Misuse Author: COHSU Owner: Paul Thomas
Status: Policy Issue Date: Sept 2016 Review Date: Sept 2019 Version: 1 Page 4 of 9

in undertaking their public duties and follow the Code of Conduct for Councillors and associated policies 
and procedures. 

Guidance Note 1
Procedure - Employee presents at work under the influence of Alcohol 
or Substance Misuse

1. Take employee to a private and confidential area to discuss concerns and to provide the 
employee with an opportunity to explain the background to the situation.

2. Inform employee that they cannot continue with their substantive duties on that day and that 
they will be suspended from duty, pending medical assessment and consultation with Human 
Resources.

3. Log relevant details of incident in employee’s personnel file i.e. date, time, signs, symptoms, 
behaviour, outcome and action taken.

4. Ensure that the employee has access to an appropriate form of transport in order to travel 
home safely, and that arrangements will be made to ensure their own mode of transport will 
be transported home safely for them. 

5. If the employee refuses to accept an alternative mode of transport and enters their vehicle, 
call the Police on 999 immediately.

6. Follow up in writing regarding the suspension and explain a formal meeting must be carried 
out in relation to the incident. 

7. This meeting should help to identify whether the employee may have a dependency issue and 
requires further support via referral to the Occupational Health Centre or through external 
support agencies or whether disciplinary action should be taken.

8. Relevant actions are implemented following a medical assessment and the outcome of the 
investigation.

9. Monitor and review at regular intervals.

Return to Contents

Tudalen 221



Title: Alcohol and Substance Misuse Author: COHSU Owner: Paul Thomas
Status: Policy Issue Date: Sept 2016 Review Date: Sept 2019 Version: 1 Page 5 of 9

Guidance Note 2
Supporting employees who are experiencing Alcohol or Substance 
Misuse problems

1. Take employee to a private and confidential area to discuss concerns and to provide the 
employee with an opportunity to explain the background to the situation.

2. Establish whether the employee will need time away from the workplace or is able to continue 
with their duties on that day. 

3. Offer support where relevant via external support services (e.g. Dyfed Drug and Alcohol 
Service, DAN 24/7 - Guidance Note 4) and advise employee to seek advice from their GP. A 
referral to Occupational Health must be made with regards fitness to work and if there are any 
work performance issues. Confidentiality will be maintained by all parties concerned. 

4. Log relevant details of incident in employee’s personnel file i.e. date, time, signs, symptoms, 
behaviour, outcome and action taken.

5. Where treatment is accepted, time off for external treatment is to be arranged as per the 
requirements of the Time off Policy.

6. If there are any further concerns contact Occupational Health and HR for further advice. 

Return to Contents

Tudalen 222

http://intranet/media/143151/time-off-policy.pdf


Title: Alcohol and Substance Misuse Author: COHSU Owner: Paul Thomas
Status: Policy Issue Date: Sept 2016 Review Date: Sept 2019 Version: 1 Page 6 of 9

Guidance Note 3
Guidance for Managers – Disciplinary Action in relation to Alcohol and 
Substance Misuse

 Employees should be made aware of the likely consequences if they do not accept the offer of 
support under the policy. 

 Encourage employees to seek assistance and support if experiencing problems from alcohol 
and substance misuse. 

 Immediate disciplinary action for misuse or abuse would not normally be taken against 
employees who accept help from their employer, unless other matters of discipline are 
involved. 

 Where the use or misuse of alcohol and substances by an employee contributes to poor work 
performance or attendance, despite any support provided by the Occupational Health Centre 
or external agencies, the employee will be dealt with in accordance with our appropriate HR 
Performance Management Policies/Procedures with advice from HR Officers (e.g. sickness 
absence, capability procedures etc.).  

 Provided work performance is not affected or improves to a satisfactory level employees will 
not be subject to disciplinary action.

 Employment may be terminated in cases of alcohol and substance misuse where the 
subsequent action taken leads to loss of qualification required to carry out the job e.g. 
professional registration, driving licence. 

 The HR Performance Management Policies should be referred to in conjunction with this 
Policy. In all cases where the Authority's disciplinary/sickness or capability procedure is used in 
relation with alcohol/substance misuse, the person concerned will be offered appropriate help 
at each stage. 

Example where Disciplinary Action applies

Disciplinary action may arise as a direct or indirect consequence of alcohol or substance use for 
employees who: 

 Report for work under the influence of alcohol and substances, which impairs their ability to 
safely perform normal work duties. 

 Possess, use and sell substances at work. 

 Misuse prescribed medicines at work. 

Tudalen 223

http://intranet/our-people/hr/
http://intranet/our-people/hr/


Title: Alcohol and Substance Misuse Author: COHSU Owner: Paul Thomas
Status: Policy Issue Date: Sept 2016 Review Date: Sept 2019 Version: 1 Page 7 of 9

 Have consumed alcohol whilst in a safety critical role (e.g. being in charge of a vehicle, 
operating hazardous machinery or mobile plant, handling or using, including disposal, of any 
substance hazardous to health, working in, on or near water, supervising children and 
vulnerable adults). 

 Have been abusive to members of the public/service users as a consequence of alcohol use. 

 Have deliberately flouted legitimate instructions not to consume alcohol or substances at 
work. 

 Have issues of conduct arising from isolated incidences of alcoholic indulgence or substance 
use. 

The above are some examples but this is not intended as an exhaustive list.

If an employee is believed to be buying and selling substances, or in possession of unlawful 
substances during working time, the police will be notified by the Head of Service or delegated 
Officer.

Return to Contents

Tudalen 224



Title: Alcohol and Substance Misuse Author: COHSU Owner: Paul Thomas
Status: Policy Issue Date: Sept 2016 Review Date: Sept 2019 Version: 1 Page 8 of 9

Guidance Note 4
Further Support

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH
The importance of employee confidentiality throughout the process of managing this policy 
cannot be over emphasized. Employees with a misuse or abuse problem should have no fears 
about seeking advice and help to affect a recovery. The manager should give them assistance 
willingly and in complete confidence. Both Occupational Health and managers can signpost an 
employee to the substance misuse services below for advice and guidance. 

The confidential nature of any records or correspondence is subject to the statutory protection of 
the Data Protection Act 1998, the Access to Medical Reports Act 1988, the Access to Medical 
Records Act 1990 and the Access to Health Records Act 1990. 

Click here to access the Occupational Health e-referral

EQUALITY ACT 2010
Addiction to, or dependency on, alcohol or any other substance is specifically excluded from the 
scope of the Act unless the addiction was originally the result of the administration of medically 
prescribed substances or other medical treatment. Nevertheless, employees with impairments 
that are the result of an addiction, for example, liver damage caused by alcohol, will still be 
covered by the Act. 

Therefore, employees who have a recognised alcohol or other related disease may be considered 
to be disabled under the Act. If that is the case the Council’s policy on disability will apply and 
managers should seek advice from their equal opportunities or Human Resources officer before 
proceeding with any reasonable adjustments. 

OTHER SOURCES OF HELP:

Catalyst – Turning Point Cymru

Over 18’s: 
Call the Substance Misuse Team on: 01554 744377

Under 18’s: 
Please call Choices on: 01554 755779 or text: 07896 248911

They will be able to offer you confidential advice on the telephone and an appointment with a 
worker if you wish to discuss your problems and get you the help you need.

Tudalen 225

http://intranet/our-people/occupational-health/request-a-referral/


Title: Alcohol and Substance Misuse Author: COHSU Owner: Paul Thomas
Status: Policy Issue Date: Sept 2016 Review Date: Sept 2019 Version: 1 Page 9 of 9

There are lots of online resources which give advice and information about alcohol, including some 
self-help resources. Here are some useful places to look:

 NHS Direct Alcohol Information 
 Alcohol Concern Information 
 Dan 247 

Advice for parents

Please call Choices on: 01554 755779 or text: 07896 248911.
They will be able to offer you confidential advice on the telephone and an appointment with a 
worker if you wish to discuss your problems and get you the help you need. Or refer to online help 
links above.

OUT OF HOURS

DAN 24/7 – Wales Drug and Alcohol Helpline
The Wales Substance & Alcohol Helpline, also known as DAN 24/7 is available to people who live in 
Wales. Our helpline is open 24 hours a day, 365 days of the year. 

Outside of office hours call the all Wales Drug & Alcohol Helpline free on: 0808 808 2234

Dyfed Drug and Alcohol Service (DDAS)
Dyfed Drug and Alcohol Service provides a substance and alcohol advisory service across mid and 
west Wales, covering Carmarthenshire, Ceredigion and Pembrokeshire. 
Contact Number: 03303 639997 

Alcoholics Anonymous 
AA is concerned solely with the personal recovery and continued sobriety of individual alcoholics 
who turn to the Fellowship for help.
National Helpline no: 0845 769 7555

Employees who do not reside in Carmarthenshire 
Contact the Substance Misuse Team on 01554 744377 and you will be pointed in the right 
direction for support services in your area. 

Return to Contents

Tudalen 226

http://www.nhsdirect.wales.nhs.uk/LifestyleWellbeing/Alcohol/
http://www.alcoholconcern.org.uk/concerned-about-alcohol/how-much
http://www.dan247.org.uk/


Y BWRDD GWEITHREDOL
23AIN O IONAWR 2017

Adroddiad Monitro Cyllideb Refeniw y Cyngor 
Yr Argymhellion / Penderfyniadau Allweddol Sydd Eu Hangen:
Sicrhau bod y bwrdd yn derbyn yr adroddiad Monitro Cyllideb ac yn ystyried y sefyllfa 
cyllidebol.

Bod y Prif Swyddogion a’r Penaethiaid Gwasanaeth yn adolygu eu sefyllfaoedd gyllidebol yn 
feirniadol ac yn rhoi ar waith gweithrediadau priodol er mwyn cado o fewn yr adnoddau a 
ddosbarthwyd.

Y Rhesymau: 
I ddarparu’r newyddion i’r Bwrdd Gweithredol ynglyn a sefyllfa diweddaraf cyllideb 2016/17, ar 
31ain Hydref 2016.

Ymgynghorwyd â'r pwyllgor craffu perthnasol AMHERTHNASOL                                           
Angen i’r Bwrdd Gweithredol wneud penderfyniad OES 
Angen i’r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad NAC OES
YR AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:- Cyng. David 
Jenkins

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth: 
Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol

Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth:
Owen Bowen

Awdur yr Adroddiad:
Owen Bowen

Swyddi:

Pennaeth Gwasanaethau 
Ariannol 

Rhif ffôn: 01267 224886
Cyfeiriadau E-bost:

Obowen@sirgar.gov.uk

Tudalen 227

Eitem Rhif  11



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Executive Board

23rd January 2017

Council’s Revenue Budget Monitoring Report

The revenue budget monitoring reports for the period to 31st October 2016 are attached and 
indicate that:

COUNCIL FUND REVENUE ACCOUNT( Appendix A)
Overall, the monitoring report forecasts an end of year overspend of £1,357k on the 
Authority’s net revenue budget with an overspend at departmental level of £2,833k.

Chief Executive’s Department
The Chief Executive Department is anticipating an overspend at year end of £348k. In relation 
to the application of Standby, part year savings have already been identified and work is 
ongoing with the TIC teams in relation to delivering the full efficiencies identified.

The Regeneration, Policy and Property Division is anticipating an underspend of £31k at year 
end. There is an anticipated overspend on coroners of £49k and a £41k cost associated with 
implementing individual electoral registration. There are also  overspends of £24k within the 
Regeneration Business Unit due to a prior efficiency associated with selling the premises at 
Nant Y Ci not taking place and Un Sir Gar of £54k due to a shortfall in income. The Policy 
division is expecting to overspend by £103k due to an unfunded post and an unachievable 
income target. There is also an unachieved efficiency within marketing and media whilst an 
ongoing service realignment is reviewed of £33k. These overspends are offset by £327k of 
staff vacancies in the division and a net underspend of £23k in the Property division due to 
increased rental income from commercial properties and industrial premises.

The Admin & Law division is expecting a £68k underspend despite a Local Duplicating Centre 
overspend of £31k due to the decrease in printing across the authority and the corresponding 
income generation potential being lost. This is largely offset by staff vacancies of £98k.

The People Management & Performance Division is underspent by £96k. This is due to £77k 
of vacant posts in year along with a saving on Business Support Supplies & Services costs of 
£31k.

Tudalen 228



Department for Education and Children
The Department for Education and Children is projecting a net overspend of £1,780k at year 
end.

The main adverse budget variations relate to: new school based EVR and redundancy costs 
£968k; increasing age profile (15-25 year olds) of LAC requiring more costly support for 
longer £257k; increase in Special Guardianship Orders to keep children with their families 
£166k, rurality impact on Fostering staff & client travel £91k; School Modernisation pressures 
relating to short term transport for pupils from closed schools £70k, property decommissioning 
and cost of sales £152k (which includes £135k NNDR); Respite Units not achieving 
contribution from LHB £139k; increase in legal fees relating to care proceedings £120k; 
increased Out of County residential care placements £103k and increased referrals during out 
of hours £50k.

These are partially offset by under-spends across the department in: staff vacancies, 
secondments and maximising use of grant funding -£201k and the reduction of an Out of 
County educational placement -£135k. 

Corporate Services
The Corporate Services Department is anticipating an underspend at year end of £328k.
Both the Financial Services and the Audit, Risk and Procurement Divisions are anticipating  
underspends due largely to vacant posts of £230k and £54k respectively .
ICT is anticipating an overspend of £70k due to long term sickness cover.
There is also an anticipated underspend of £47k on audit fees due to a reduction in the 
number of grants being audited, along with a £34k underspend on subscriptions, £22k on 
Rent Allowances and  £11k  on our bank charges.

Department for Communities
The Department for Communities is forecasting an overspend of £493k for the year.

The Older People / Physical Disabilities division is forecasting an overspend of £321k. Whilst 
spend has reduced it is not currently meeting targets set last year for efficiency savings for 
Residential Care and Day Services which are projecting overspends of £718k and £169k 
respectively. The overspend is offset by staff vacancies of £566k. It is early in the financial 
year to be clear about the year - end position and the financial impact of demand, reviews of 
packages of care and income levels. 

The Learning Disability / Mental Health Division and Support Services has a projected 
overspend of £71k. This is due to increased Direct Payments packages of £120k, a reduction 
in grant receivable for Workchoice £140k,  and the non-achievement of efficiency savings re 
Grants to Voluntary organisations £90k offset by the impact of the Accommodation and 
Efficiency strategy in reducing the costs of individual placements and staff vacancies £279k. 

The Housing Services and Public Protection Division is forecasting coming in on budget. 

The Leisure Services Division is forecasting an overspend of £100k mainly due to 
underachievement of income £52k and delay in implementing mobile library services £48k.

Tudalen 229



Environment
The department is anticipating an overspend of £540k at year end which will be met from its 
departmental reserves. 

The Highways and Transport division is anticipating an £80k overspend for the year overall. 
Within the division there is a variance of £48k relating to a managed pool car efficiency 
exercise not being fully achieved. There is also a £44k overspend on Nant y Ci park and ride 
facility following a decision to withdraw funding. School Transport is expecting to be £51k 
overspent based on an assessment of demand. Streetworks is expecting to overspend by 
£20k due to a currently undelivered efficiency. This is offset by an underspend of £42k in 
Parking Services where income figures are currently predicted to exceed budgeted figures 
and £46k of vacant posts.

The Property Division is anticipating an overall overspend of £162k. An on-going review of 
Building Maintenance expenditure and income will hopefully reduce the forecasted overspend 
by the year-end.

The Waste and Environmental division is anticipating an overspend of £124k at year end. This 
is due to an £81k overspend on cleansing where a proposed efficiency has not been met due 
to sustained demand on the service. There is also a £70k overspend on green waste due to 
purchase of wheelie bins prior to start of the service in 2017.This is offset by a £27k 
underspend on ground maintenance as a result of ongoing efficiency drives in the section.
 
The Business Support & Performance division is overspent by £128k mainly due to the admin 
review not being implemented to date so the proposed efficiencies have yet to be realised 
along with temporary additional pay costs to support implementation of the business support 
review.

The Planning Division expects to be overspent by £46k. This relates to £210k variance on 
Development Management due to a drop in planning fee income.This is offset by £117k of 
vacant posts and also two posts being charged out to projects as a direct cost resulting in a 
£48k underspend.

Capital Charges 
Reduced borrowing/interest savings, offset by Direct Revenue Financing provision.

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT ( Appendix B) 

The HRA is forecasting an underspend of £129k.

Supervision and Management costs are forecasted to be underspent by -£23k primarily due to 
lower staffing costs -£73k through vacancies ,premises costs -£26k and staff travelling -£11k  
offset by increased spend on supplies and services £44k and reduction in rechargeable 
salaries £44k.

There is a forecasted underspend on Capital Financing costs -£214k due to a reduction in the 
MRP payment and interest payments.

Reduction in the provision required for debt write-offs , based on arrears levels and forecast 

Tudalen 230



movement in arrears to year end -£354k

Additional income from forecast HRA balances and other income -£27k

Rental income is forecasted to be -£207k higher due to lower level of Void loss. It is 
anticipated that there will also be an increase in Service charge income of -£80k.

Based on current activity data repairs and maintenance is predicted to be £275k over budget 
primarily on voids to ensure properties are available to rent as quickly as possible.
There has also been an additional direct revenue contribution of £500k to fund the capital 
programme for major void works.

Lists of the main variances are attached to this report.

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? YES

IMPLICATIONS

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this 
report :

Signed:       Owen Bowen                                                           Head of Financial Services                           

Policy, Crime 
& Disorder 
and 
Equalities

Legal Finance ICT Risk 
Management 
Issues 

Staffing 
Implications

Physical 
Assets  

NONE NONE YES NONE NONE NONE NONE 

1. Finance
Council Fund
Overall, the Authority is forecasting an overspend of £1,357k. 

HRA
The HRA is forecasting that it will be £129k under its approved budget.

Tudalen 231



CONSULTATIONS

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below

Signed:      Owen Bowen                                                           Head of Financial Services                                                

1. Scrutiny Committee – Not applicable

2.Local Member(s)  – Not applicable

3.Community / Town Council – Not applicable

4.Relevant Partners – Not applicable

5.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations – Not applicable

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information

List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW     

Title of Document File Ref No. Locations that the papers are available for public inspection 

2016/17 Budget Corporate Services Department, County Hall, 
Carmarthen

Tudalen 232



APPENDIX A

Head of Service & Designation Telephone No

O Bowen, Head of Financial Services 01267 224886

Table 1

Oct 16 Aug 16

Department

Controllable Controllable Net Non Total Controllable Controllable Net Non Total

Expenditure Income Controllable Net Expenditure Income Controllable Net

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Chief Executive 17,988 -6,248 1,777 13,517 19,091 -7,002 1,777 13,865 348 514

Education & Children 177,292 -39,154 24,187 162,326 179,365 -39,446 24,187 164,106 1,780 1,550

Corporate Services 82,042 -51,509 -8,350 22,183 83,819 -53,613 -8,350 21,855 -328 -263 

Communities 127,246 -47,825 11,572 90,994 128,449 -48,535 11,572 91,486 493 788

Environment 126,569 -87,390 8,321 47,500 124,365 -84,645 8,321 48,040 540 386

Departmental Expenditure 531,138 -232,125 37,507 336,519 535,088 -233,242 37,507 339,353 2,833 2,975

Capital Charges/Interest -9,519 -10,619 -1,100 -750 

Pension Reserve Adjustment -5,085  -5,085 0 0

Levies and Contributions:

  Brecon Beacons National Park 138 138 0 0

  Mid & West Wales Fire & Rescue Authority 9,172 9,172 0 0

Net Expenditure 331,225 332,959 1,733 2,225

Outcome Agreement Grant 0 0 0 0

Contribution from Balances -65 -65 0 0

Transfer from Balances/Earmarked Reserves -200 -200 0 0

Transfers to/from Departmental Reserves

   - Corporate Services 0 164 164 132

   - Environment 0 -540 -540 -386 

Net Budget 330,960 332,318 1,357 1,971

Forecasted 

Variance for 

Year

Forecasted for year to 31 March 2017

Working Budget Forecasted Forecasted 

Variance for 

Year

O Bowen, Head of Financial Services Corporate Services

COUNCIL'S BUDGET MONITORING REPORT 2016/17 as at 31st October 2016

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE SERVICES

PRELIMINARY EXECUTIVE BOARD - 19th December 2016

Author & Designation Directorate

T
udalen 233



Oct 16 Aug 16

Division Expenditure Income

Net non-

controllable Net Expenditure Income

Net non-

controllable Net

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Chief Executive -473 0 -329 -802 69 0 -329 -260 542 542

People Management & Performance 3,677 -1,058 -2,251 368 3,764 -1,240 -2,251 273 -96 -114 

Admin and Law 4,000 -591 1,565 4,974 3,893 -552 1,565 4,906 -68 -7 

Customer Focus and Policy 4,132 -942 -2,266 924 4,116 -1,052 -2,266 798 -126 -45 

Statutory Services 763 -2 152 913 829 -1 152 980 67 78

Property 1,103 -1,168 791 727 1,142 -1,235 791 698 -28 5

Regeneration 4,786 -2,487 4,115 6,414 5,278 -2,922 4,115 6,471 57 55

GRAND TOTAL 17,988 -6,248 1,777 13,517 19,091 -7,002 1,777 13,865 348 514

Chief Executive Department 

Budget Monitoring as at 31st October 2016

Working Budget Forecasted Forecasted 

Variance for 

Year

Forecasted 

Variance for 

Year

T
udalen 234



Oct 16 Aug 16

Division

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re

In
c
o

m
e

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re

In
c
o

m
e

F
o

re
c
a
s
te

d
 

V
a
ria

n
c
e
 fo

r

Y
e
a
r Notes

F
o

re
c
a
s
te

d
 

V
a
ria

n
c
e
 fo

r

Y
e
a
r

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Chief Executive

Corporate Savings Target -809 0 -262 0 547

Part year savings have already been identified in relation to the application of 

Standby, and work is ongoing with the TIC teams in relation to delivering the full 

efficiencies identified. 547

People Management & Performance

Business Support 199 -1 168 -1 -31 Savings on Supplies & Services -33 

Personnel Management 903 -199 880 -204 -28 Vacant Posts - realignment in progress -34 

Fitness For Work 607 -343 610 -395 -49 Vacant posts and savings on supplies and services -59 

Admin and Law

Democratic 1,660 0 1,635 -0 -25 Vacant member positions during year -0 

Corporate Serv-Democratic 486 0 431 0 -55 Part year vacant posts 0

Corporate Serv-Administration 188 -0 170 0 -18 Maternity leave and reduced spend on supplies and services -17 

Local Duplicating Centre 16 -53 3 -9 31

Income generation potential curtailed following introduction of printer rationalisation 

programme and directive to reduce printing in general 31

Regeneration ,Policy and Property

Customer Focus and Policy

Communications 16 0 2 0 -14 Reduced spend on supplies and services -14 

Press 93 -7 209 -90 33 Efficiency yet to be realised. On going service realignment 25

Direct Communications 530 -268 397 -111 24

Lack of income generation on graphics as graphic designer post is currently vacant.  

Post not being filled as service currently being realigned/restructured. -0 

Corporate Serv-Translation 493 -15 325 -18 -171 Vacant posts -2 

Performance Management 558 -19 516 -22 -45 Vacant post -64 

Chief Executive-Policy 516 -63 579 -24 103 Income target not achievable and unfunded post 11

Customer Services Centres 528 -222 508 -222 -19 Part year vacancies -0 

Contact Centre 562 -59 517 -59 -45 Part year vacancies -1 

Statutory Services

Registration Of Electors 152 -2 192 -1 41 Additional cost of individual electoral registration 20

Coroners 279 0 328 0 49 Additional storage costs and anticipated increase in Coroners salary 89

Electoral Services - Staff 262 0 238 0 -23 Vacant post -34 

Chief Executive Department - Budget Monitoring as at 31st October 2016

Main Variances

Working Budget Forecasted

T
udalen 235



Oct 16 Aug 16

Division

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re

In
c
o

m
e

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re

In
c
o

m
e

F
o

re
c
a
s
te

d
 

V
a
ria

n
c
e
 fo

r

Y
e
a
r Notes

F
o

re
c
a
s
te

d
 

V
a
ria

n
c
e
 fo

r

Y
e
a
r

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Chief Executive Department - Budget Monitoring as at 31st October 2016

Main Variances

Working Budget Forecasted

Property

Industrial Premises - JV's 40 -125 87 -189 -17 Anticipated surplus income 35

Commercial Property - Chief 

Executives 38 -324 39 -358 -34 Additional rental income from a property recently aquired 0

Provision Markets 522 -597 542 -588 28 Shortfall in lettings income -27 

Regeneration

Physical Regeneration 451 0 428 0 -23 Underspend mainly due to staff vacancies -45 

Regen Core & Policy Performance 0 0 10 0 10 Increased staffing costs 10

Regeneration Business Support Unit 384 -107 379 -78 24

Efficiency saving identified for 14/15 in relation to premises costs at Nant Y Ci, with 

the intention of selling the property. However, property still hasn't been sold so 

ongoing overspend shown as a result. 29

UN Sir Gar 167 -128 178 -86 54 Overspend mainly due to projected non-achievement of income target. 52

Business Services 308 0 289 0 -19 Planned reduction in expenditure to partly offset overspend within Un Sir Gar above. -4 

Other Variances 19 0

Grand Total 348 514

T
udalen 236



Oct 16 Aug 16

Division Expenditure Income

Net non-

controllable Net Expenditure Income

Net non-

controllable Net

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Director & Strategic Management 681 0 -149 532 726 -56 -149 521 -11 -6 

Education Services Division 118,283 -1,949 19,650 135,984 119,465 -2,168 19,650 136,947 963 1,034

Strategic Development 9,172 -7,193 1,118 3,097 9,233 -7,307 1,118 3,045 -52 -58 

School Improvement 15,583 -13,270 518 2,830 15,666 -13,368 518 2,815 -15 0

Learner Programmes 11,019 -10,128 617 1,508 10,744 -9,823 617 1,538 30 0

Children's Services 22,554 -6,613 2,433 18,373 23,530 -6,724 2,433 19,239 866 580

GRAND TOTAL 177,292 -39,154 24,187 162,326 179,365 -39,446 24,187 164,106 1,780 1,550

 Department for Education & Children

Budget Monitoring as at 31st October 2016

Working Budget Forecasted Forecasted 

Variance for 

Year

Forecasted 

Variance for 

Year

T
udalen 237



Oct 16 Aug 16

Division

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re

In
c
o

m
e

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re

In
c
o

m
e

F
o

re
c
a
s
te

d
 

V
a
ria

n
c
e
 fo

r

Y
e
a
r Notes

F
o

re
c
a
s
te

d
 

V
a
ria

n
c
e
 fo

r

Y
e
a
r

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Director & Strategic Management

Director & Management Team 681 0 726 -56 -11 Part year vacant post -6 

Education Services Division

School Redundancy & EVR 1,612 0 2,580 0 968

Budget utilised on existing commitments. Current year school redundancies agreed 

in excess of £900k. A cross-departmental team is drawing together different strands 

of work with the aim of reducing costs. 845

School Modernisation 88 -5 314 -9 222

Short term transport for pupils from closed schools £70k, property decommissioning 

and cost of sales £152k (which includes £135k NNDR) 302

Early Years Non-Maintained Provision 473 0 462 0 -10 

Reduction in demand for 10 hours free education for 3 year olds in non maintained 

settings.  0

Additional Education Needs 3,134 -1,536 2,984 -1,520 -135 

Termination of Out of County placement & reduction in tri-partite funding -£212k.  

Additional statementing yr 6 transition £246k. Inclusion manager and ALN  specialist 

teacher -£169k vacancies whilst structure is reviewed. -59 

Education Other Than At School 

(EOTAS) 1,985 -376 2,062 -471 -17 

Staff vacancies at Rhydygors Day Centre -£136k offset by increase in cost of home 

tutors £104k including supply cover. Reduction in money recouped re excluded 

pupils £15k 5

Educational Psychology 926 -20 1,001 -152 -58 Vacant post -£38k, additional recharge income -£20k -64 

Strategic Development

Information & Improvement 450 -35 487 -117 -45 Part-year vacant post, 2 employees not at the top of grade and maternity leave. -47 

School Improvement

School Effectiveness Support 

Services 525 -267 506 -263 -15 Savings in supplies and services (Efficiency in 2017/18) 0

Learner Programmes

Music Services for Schools 1,329 -1,316 1,347 -1,301 33 A number of schools late in agreeing SLA's and reducing their requirement 0

Children's Services

Commissioning and Social Work 6,059 -19 6,156 -46 70

Secondment and part year vacancy savings -£50k, offset by Legal costs £120k.  

These have increased due to a high number of cases and one awaiting a high court 

hearing. 97

Department for Education & Children - Budget Monitoring as at 31st October 2016

Main Variances

Working Budget Forecasted

T
udalen 238



Oct 16 Aug 16

Division

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re

In
c
o

m
e

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re

In
c
o

m
e

F
o

re
c
a
s
te

d
 

V
a
ria

n
c
e
 fo

r

Y
e
a
r Notes

F
o

re
c
a
s
te

d
 

V
a
ria

n
c
e
 fo

r

Y
e
a
r

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Department for Education & Children - Budget Monitoring as at 31st October 2016

Main Variances

Working Budget Forecasted

Corporate Parenting & Leaving Care 975 -246 1,271 -285 257

Increasing age profile of Looked After Children (LAC) resulting in more costly support 

for longer - impact of When I'm Ready & Social Care Well Being Act on 15 to 25 year 

olds. This is an ongoing growth area. In addition we are funding more young people 

in university and one young person at Wellbeck College costing £42k. Previous 

returns included an assumption that Supporting People income would be received. 

Further discussion is planned with Communities Dept who manage the grant. 47

Fostering Services & Support 3,593 0 3,866 -15 257

The taxi's budget faces ongoing pressure £67k due to the high number of placement 

moves, some away from school areas. The Fostering Support Team have increased 

transport costs due to carers being in rural areas, boarding out payments and 

residence orders £220k.  Included in this figure are costs for an extension that will 

enable a child to stay in their own home £10k. This is offset by a part year vacancy in 

the Fostering Recruitment Team -£30k. 217

Adoption Services 497 -55 611 -134 35

Additional staff resource to reduce the number of placements needing to be 

purchased at greater cost, which reduces budget pressure in other areas. The 

service is currently negotiating an agreement with 3 other Local Authorities, which 

includes cost sharing. 33

Out of County Placements (CS) 722 -53 772 0 103

The service is having to make more use of independent fostering agencies, that are 

more expensive, due to a lack of in-house foster placements. There are two 

additional young people now being accommodated in external residential care due to 

their complex needs, as they cannot be cared for in foster care as they require 24 

hour support. 0

Respite Units 919 -151 907 0 139

Planned additional contribution from the LHB is unlikely to be achieved in 2016-17 

£150k netted off with salary savings -£11k 129

Garreglwyd residential 

Accommodation 530 -156 598 -199 25 Additional staffing costs to cover periods of sickness 55

Family Aide Services 220 0 187 -4 -37 Employees not on the top of their grade and part year vacancy -34 

Out of Hours Service 262 -64 311 -64 50

Referrals fluctuate depending on activity.  Service currently under review by the TIC 

team 60

Children's Services Mgt & Support 

(incl Care First) 969 -76 1,000 -146 -40 Part year vacant posts -£31k, supplies and services -£9k. 0

Other Variances -12 -30 

Grand Total 1,780 1,550

T
udalen 239



Oct 16 Aug 16

Division Expenditure Income

Net non-

controllable Net Expenditure Income

Net non-

controllable Net

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Financial Services 7,591 -3,390 -3,252 949 7,341 -3,370 -3,252 719 -230 -199 

Audit Risk & Procurement 1,074 -28 -1,003 44 1,019 -27 -1,003 -10 -54 -35 

ICT 4,516 -807 -3,716 -7 4,584 -805 -3,716 63 70 70

Performance & Development 184 0 -245 -60 186 -1 -245 -60 0 1

Other Services 68,677 -47,284 -136 21,257 70,690 -49,411 -136 21,143 -114 -99 

GRAND TOTAL 82,042 -51,509 -8,350 22,183 83,819 -53,613 -8,350 21,855 -328 -263 

Corporate Services Department 

Budget Monitoring as at 31st October 2016

Working Budget Forecasted Forecasted 

Variance for 

Year

Forecasted 

Variance for 

Year

T
udalen 240



Oct 16 Aug 16

Division

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re

In
c
o

m
e

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re

In
c
o

m
e

F
o

re
c
a
s
te

d
 

V
a
ria

n
c
e
 fo

r

Y
e
a
r Notes

F
o

re
c
a
s
te

d
 

V
a
ria

n
c
e
 fo

r

Y
e
a
r

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Financial Services

Chief Officer 331 -42 309 -42 -21 Reduction in supplies and services -10 

Accountancy 1,703 -295 1,659 -351 -101 Vacant posts -98 

Housing Benefits Admin 1,448 -781 1,367 -751 -51 

Underspend as a result of posts being temporarily vacant due to continual and 

significant staff movement within Benefits Section -51 

Revenues 810 -140 795 -140 -16 

Minor underspends on supplies and services within 4 different services areas in 

Revenue Services Unit -16 

Benefits Fraud 52 0 41 0 -12 Reduction in supplies and services -8 

Grants and Technical 275 -94 231 -64 -14 Part year vacant posts 0

Audit Risk & Procurement

Audit 604 -20 547 -19 -55 Part year vacant post -38 

ICT

Information Technology 3,443 -446 3,540 -473 70 Sickness cover for Head of IT 70

Other Services

Audit Fees 364 -84 317 -84 -47 Reduction in grant audit fees -47 

Bank Charges 61 0 50 0 -11 Savings from bank tender in 2013/14 -11 

Rent Allowances 47,077 -47,090 49,177 -49,212 -22 

This relates to 3 benefit payment types where the overall expenditure is c£63m per 

annum. Minor fluctuations due to caseload changes, changes in scheme, etc., have 

significant cash implications but are difficult to predict. -16 

Miscellaneous Services 6,067 -110 6,038 -115 -34 Reduction in Subscriptions -25 

Other Variances -14 -13 

Grand Total -328 -263 

Corporate Services Department - Budget Monitoring as at 31st October 2016

Main Variances

Working Budget Forecasted

T
udalen 241



Oct 16 Aug 16

Division Expenditure Income

Net non-

controllable Net Expenditure Income

Net non-

controllable Net

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Adult Services

Older People 50,291 -17,689 3,092 35,694 51,532 -18,370 3,092 36,254 560 884

Physical Disabilities 5,989 -748 92 5,333 5,773 -771 92 5,094 -239 -339 

Learning Disabilities 31,176 -8,483 1,349 24,043 31,111 -8,197 1,349 24,264 221 383

Mental Health 9,038 -3,322 130 5,847 8,952 -3,250 130 5,831 -15 -173 

Support 4,948 -1,702 846 4,092 5,355 -2,244 846 3,957 -135 -67 

Public Protection & CF Housing

Public Protection 3,075 -604 673 3,144 3,049 -587 673 3,135 -9 -10 

Council Fund Housing 8,890 -8,297 541 1,134 9,146 -8,543 541 1,144 9 10

Leisure & Recreation

Leisure & Recreation 13,839 -6,981 4,849 11,707 13,531 -6,573 4,849 11,807 100 100

GRAND TOTAL 127,246 -47,825 11,572 90,994 128,449 -48,535 11,572 91,486 493 788

Department for Communities

Budget Monitoring as at 31st October 2016

Working Budget Forecasted Forecasted 

Variance for 

Year

Forecasted 

Variance for 

Year

T
udalen 242



Oct 16 Aug 16

Division

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re

In
c
o

m
e

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re

In
c
o

m
e

F
o

re
c
a
s
te

d
 

V
a
ria

n
c
e
 fo

r

Y
e
a
r Notes

F
o

re
c
a
s
te

d
 

V
a
ria

n
c
e
 fo

r

Y
e
a
r

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Adult Services

Older People

Older People - Commissioning 2,855 -10 2,875 -91 -61 Staff vacancies -32 

Older People - LA Homes 6,932 -3,852 6,886 -3,841 -34 Supplies & Services -21 

Older People - Private/ Vol Homes 17,537 -8,954 18,593 -9,246 764 Efficiency slippage and additional placements 695

Older People - Extra Care 719 0 870 0 151 Lower than anticipated saving from contract renegotiations 152

Older People - Direct Payments 614 0 687 0 73 Increase in packages 82

Older People - Grants 268 0 237 0 -31 Reduced grant payments -31 

Older People - Ssmss 1,063 -228 929 -275 -180 Staff vacancies, reduced spend on supplies & services and additional income -69 

Older People - Careline 1,060 -1,165 1,308 -1,518 -104 Additional staffing & other costs offset by additional income -134 

Older People - Enablement 2,405 -800 2,139 -725 -191 Staff vacancies -338 

Older People - Day Services 1,123 -76 1,285 -72 167 Efficiencies slippage £150k, staff vacancies and additional private day care provision 167

Physical Disabilities

Phys Dis - Commissioning & OT 

Services 600 -79 519 -79 -81 Staff vacancies -73 

Phys Dis - Private/Vol Homes 561 -111 515 -111 -46 Reduction in packages -42 

Phys Dis - Group Homes/Supported 

Living 1,358 -116 1,309 -116 -50 Reduction in packages -77 

Phys Dis - Direct Payments 1,831 0 1,809 0 -22 Reduction in packages -72 

Learning Disabilities

Learn Dis - Employment & Training 2,416 -903 2,374 -721 140 Reduction in grant for Workchoice programme. 125

Learn Dis - Private/Vol Homes 10,047 -3,157 10,006 -3,032 84 Increase in packages -12 

Learn Dis - Direct Payments 1,275 0 1,388 0 112 Inflationary fee uplift 170

Learn Dis -  Group Homes/Supported 

Living 6,295 -1,068 6,327 -1,068 32 Increase in packages 27

Learn Dis - Adult Respite Care 932 -812 865 -812 -67 Staff vacancy -28 

Learn Dis - Day Services 3,067 -267 3,031 -261 -29 Reduction in packages of care 59

Learn Dis - Transition Service 502 0 451 0 -52 Staff vacancies -34 

Department for Communities - Budget Monitoring as at 31st October 2016

Main Variances

Working Budget Forecasted

T
udalen 243



Oct 16 Aug 16

Division

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re

In
c
o

m
e

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re

In
c
o

m
e

F
o

re
c
a
s
te

d
 

V
a
ria

n
c
e
 fo

r

Y
e
a
r Notes

F
o

re
c
a
s
te

d
 

V
a
ria

n
c
e
 fo

r

Y
e
a
r

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Department for Communities - Budget Monitoring as at 31st October 2016

Main Variances

Working Budget Forecasted

Learn Dis - Community Support 2,150 -137 2,015 -137 -136 Reduction in packages -29 

Learn Dis - Grants 156 0 246 0 90 Efficiency slippage 92

Learn Dis - Adult Placement/Shared 

Lives 2,766 -2,139 2,837 -2,166 43 Increase in packages 0

Mental Health

M Health - Commissioning 837 -69 798 -69 -39 Staff vacancies 5

M Health -  Private/Vol Homes 6,268 -2,874 6,295 -2,892 9 Inflationary fee uplift partly offset by reduced placements -116 

M Health - Group Homes/Supported 

Living 474 -128 436 -128 -38 Reduction in placement costs -35 

M Health - Community Support 673 -98 658 0 83 Increase in packages 3

M Health - Substance Misuse Team 338 -142 323 -152 -25 Staff vacancy -24 

Support

Departmental Support 1,986 -71 1,926 -94 -83 Reduced spend on supplies & services -58 

Performance, Analysis & Systems 198 0 170 0 -28 Staff vacancy & maternity leave -25 

Adult Safeguarding & Commissioning 

Team 1,256 -64 1,209 -64 -47 Staff vacancy 1

Other Variances - Adult Services -10 360

Public Protection

PP Management support 68 -7 65 -13 -9 

General underspend in supplies and services to cover the underachievement of 

licence fee income in Public Health -11 

Air Pollution 95 -32 94 -19 12 Forecast underachievement of licence fee income 7

Dog Wardens 92 -11 103 -4 18

Income generated by recovery of stray dogs has decreased in light of the fact that 

many stray dogs have been returned directly to owner. There will be additional 

income generated through a pilot scheme -3 

Other Variances - Public Protection -30 Small underspends across a number of service areas -3 

Council Fund Housing

T
udalen 244



Oct 16 Aug 16

Division

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re

In
c
o

m
e

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re

In
c
o

m
e

F
o

re
c
a
s
te

d
 

V
a
ria

n
c
e
 fo

r

Y
e
a
r Notes

F
o

re
c
a
s
te

d
 

V
a
ria

n
c
e
 fo

r

Y
e
a
r

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Department for Communities - Budget Monitoring as at 31st October 2016

Main Variances

Working Budget Forecasted

Homelessness 167 -63 133 -64 -35 

Underspend in Homelessness prevention payments due to the payments currently 

covered under grant scheme - Transitional Funding.  Underspend covering 

overspend elsewhere in Housing Options and Advice -1 

Temporary Accommodation 279 -185 276 -158 25

Underachievement of Housing Benefit income due to income support issues with 16-

17 years olds 11

Penybryn Traveller Site 126 -119 139 -121 11

Overspend due to pressures around tenants affected by the Benefit cap and ability to 

pay plot fees 10

Other Variances - Council Fund Housing 9 -9 

Leisure & Recreation

Burry Port Harbour 130 -181 142 -130 62 Projected shortfall in income from mooring fees £39k and staff costs £23k 43

Carmarthen Leisure Centre 1,207 -1,131 1,200 -1,060 64 Projected income shortfall 43

Sport & Leisure East 209 -64 194 -65 -16 Part year vacancy -16 

Sport & Leisure General 643 -50 649 -95 -39 One off income projected during 16-17 -86 

Pembrey Country Park 528 -581 581 -546 89 Projected income shortfall £36k, forecast overspend in Premises costs £53k 68

Community Libraries 215 -7 188 -10 -30 

Minor underspends in Staff and premises costs across a number of the Community 

Libraries -6 

Mobile Library 120 0 168 0 48

Delay in delivery of new mobile library vehicles resulting in only part year effect of 

efficiencies being met 48

Museums General 180 0 132 0 -47 Part year vacancies -45 

Leisure Management 278 0 265 -0 -13 Numerous minor underspends -11 

Other Variance - Leisure & Recreation -19 60

Grand Total 493 788

T
udalen 245



Oct 16 Aug 16

Division Expenditure Income

Net non-

controllable Net Expenditure Income

Net non-

controllable Net

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Business Support & Performance 849 0 -739 110 1,025 -48 -739 237 128 121

Waste & Environmental Services 23,948 -8,300 1,536 17,184 22,915 -7,143 1,536 17,308 124 53

Highways & Transportation 57,146 -38,999 8,706 26,853 57,399 -39,172 8,706 26,934 80 10

Property 40,498 -37,557 -1,738 1,203 39,078 -35,976 -1,738 1,364 162 172

Planning 4,128 -2,533 555 2,150 3,948 -2,307 555 2,197 46 31

GRAND TOTAL 126,569 -87,390 8,321 47,500 124,365 -84,645 8,321 48,040 540 386

Environment Department 

Budget Monitoring as at 31st October 2016

Working Budget Forecasted Forecasted 

Variance for 

Year

Forecasted 

Variance for 

Year

T
udalen 246



Oct 16 Aug 16

Division

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re

In
c
o

m
e

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re

In
c
o

m
e

F
o

re
c
a
s
te

d
 

V
a
ria

n
c
e
 fo

r

Y
e
a
r Notes

F
o

re
c
a
s
te

d
 

V
a
ria

n
c
e
 fo

r

Y
e
a
r

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Business Support & Performance

Departmental - Policy 596 0 750 -40 114

Severance efficiencies not fully delivered; short-term additional pay costs to support 

the implementation of the Business Support review. 105

Waste & Environmental Services

Cleansing Service 1,886 -52 1,968 -53 81

Previously identified efficiencies (labour and plant) have not been met due to the 

sustained demands on the cleansing service. 91

Green Waste Collection 0 0 70 0 70 Purchase of Wheelie bins prior to start of service 3.4.17 0

Grounds Maintenance Service 4,820 -3,431 3,904 -2,543 -27 

Grounds - Effect of ongoing efficiency savings within the grounds maintenance 

service -33 

Highways & Transportation

Passenger Transport 3,960 -2,517 4,614 -3,123 48 Managed pool car efficiency not fully achieved 100

School Transport 9,885 -1,073 9,956 -1,093 51

Estimated overspend based on an assessment of demand. A number of routes have 

also been re tendered. 26

Car Parks 1,635 -3,156 1,466 -3,028 -42 More prudent estimate of car parks income. -124 

Nant y Ci Park & Ride 1 0 75 -30 44

Members decision to withdraw the service/funding in 15/16 - the modified service is 

currently being trialled with the Local Health Board to generate additional revenue to 

cover the shortfall. 44

Street Works and Highway Adoptions 390 -334 407 -332 20

Severance in 15/16 not delivered (14k) cost of hosted streetworks sysetm (4k) 

Housing SLA budget frozen (2k) 13

Public Rights Of Way 235 -11 201 -11 -34 

£34k underspend due to vacant posts 'Countryside Access Manager'  Recruitment 

process now underway -34 

Property 

Building Maintenance Operational 25,105 -28,226 22,976 -25,913 184

On-going review of Building Maintenance expenditure and income will hopefully 

reduce the forecasted overspend by the year-end’. 202

Industrial Premises 344 -1,260 325 -1,269 -29 

Forecast based on current occupancy levels which are very high and could reduce 

during the year. -32 

County Farms 70 -308 47 -310 -25 Entitlements reduced and rent increases implemented -25 

Environment Department - Budget Monitoring as at 31st October 2016

Main Variances

Working Budget Forecasted

T
udalen 247



Oct 16 Aug 16

Division

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re

In
c
o

m
e

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re

In
c
o

m
e

F
o

re
c
a
s
te

d
 

V
a
ria

n
c
e
 fo

r

Y
e
a
r Notes

F
o

re
c
a
s
te

d
 

V
a
ria

n
c
e
 fo

r

Y
e
a
r

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Environment Department - Budget Monitoring as at 31st October 2016

Main Variances

Working Budget Forecasted

Planning

Building Control - Other 205 0 183 0 -21 Underspend as a result of staff vacancies. -22 

Minerals 254 -107 257 -158 -48 Underspend mainly due to charging out of staff to projects as a 'direct cost'. -48 

Policy-Development Planning 457 -21 367 -27 -95 Underspend mainly as a result of vacant posts. -67 

Development Management 1,475 -1,252 1,349 -915 210 Overspend due to projected non-achievement of planning fee income target. 187

Other Variances 40 3

Grand Total 540 386

T
udalen 248



Appendix B

Oct 2016 Aug 2016

F
o

re
c

a
s

te
d

 

V
a

ria
n

c
e

 fo
r

Y
e

a
r Notes

F
o

re
c

a
s

te
d

 

V
a

ria
n

c
e

 fo
r

Y
e

a
r

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Expenditure

Repairs & Maintenance

Responsive 1,634 1,688 54 72

Minor Works 2,450 2,640 190 281

Voids 2,171 2,379 208 0

Servicing 1,583 1,500 -83 -83 

Drains & Sewers 235 141 -94 -62 

Grounds 715 715 -0 0

Unadopted Roads 100 100 0 0

Supervision & Management

Employee 3,805 3,733 -73 Underspend due to vacant posts -31 

Premises 1,277 1,250 -26 

Forecast underspend in electric/gas -£44k netted off by overspend in Water charges at 

sheltered schemes £14k and other £4k 43

Transport 66 55 -11 Savings on staff travelling expenses -7 

Supplies 889 933 44

Forecast underspends on printing -£8k, Admin, Operational & Office Equip -£10k, 

Stationery -£4k, Compensation -£20k, Services rendered by other Providers -£5k, 

Computer software -£16k and other -£1k Offset by an overspend in Legal and 

Professional fees £50k, Misc expenses £38k, Projects and Activities £11k and 

Subscriptions £9k. -53 

Recharges 1,156 1,200 44

Underachievement of rechargeable income from capitalised salaries - vacant post part 

year 20

Provision for Bad Debt 678 324 -354 

Provision for bad debt adjustment includes an estimate for write offs based on current 

data available -385 

Capital Financing Cost 13,981 13,767 -214 Reduction in MRP payment £-86k and interest in existing and buy-out debt £-128k -191 

Central Support Charges 1,603 1,603 0 0

DRF 406 906 500

Number of major voids continues to be high. Additional expenditure incurred to ensure 

efficient turnaround of empty properties. This will be partly funded by direct revenue 

financing of £500k. 0

Total Expenditure 32,750 32,934 184 -395 

Housing Revenue Account - Budget Monitoring as at 31st October 2016

W
o

rk
in

g
 

B
u

d
g

e
t

F
o

re
c

a
s

te
d

 

A
c

tu
a

l

Anticipated expenditure based on profiled spend to date

T
udalen 249



Appendix B

Oct 2016 Aug 2016

F
o

re
c

a
s

te
d

 

V
a

ria
n

c
e

 fo
r

Y
e

a
r Notes

F
o

re
c

a
s

te
d

 

V
a

ria
n

c
e

 fo
r

Y
e

a
r

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Housing Revenue Account - Budget Monitoring as at 31st October 2016

W
o

rk
in

g
 

B
u

d
g

e
t

F
o

re
c

a
s

te
d

 

A
c

tu
a

l

Income

Rents -36,061 -36,267 -207 Void loss prediction of 2.41% in current budget with a forecast loss of 2.05% -155 

Service Charges -659 -739 -80 Forecast overachievement of service charge income -79 

Supporting People -135 -135 0 0

Mortgage Interest -3 -3 0 0

Interest on Cash Balances -46 -49 -3 
Increase in opening balance due to increased reserves in 2015/16 of £2M , offset by reduction 

in interest rate forecast. -11 

Other Income -735 -759 -24 An additional £14k commission on water rates and £10k other income -26 

Total Income -37,638 -37,952 -314 -272 

Net Expenditure -4,888 -5,017 -129 -667 

HRA Reserve £'000

Balance b/f 1/4/16 9,121

Budgeted movement in year 4,888

Variance for the year 129

Balance c/f  31/3/17 14,138

T
udalen 250



 
Y BWRDD GWEITHREDOL 

23AIN IONAWR 2017

 Diweddaru Rhaglen Gyfalaf 2016-17
Y Pwrpas:  I adrodd y trosglwyddiadau arian a’r amrywiant cyllidebol yn y rhaglen gyfalaf.

YR ARGYMHELLION / PENDERFYNIADAU ALLWEDDOL SYDD EU 
HANGEN:
I dderbyn yr adroddiad diweddaraf ar y rhaglen gyfalaf a bod y trosglwyddiadau arian yn cael 
ei gymeradwyo.

Y RHESYMAU: 
I ddarparu’r newyddion i’r Bwrdd Gweithredol ynglyn a sefyllfa gyllideb ddiweddaraf y rhaglen 
gyfalaf 2016/17, ar 31ain Hydref 2016.

Ymgynghorwyd â'r pwyllgor craffu perthnasol - Amherthnasol 
Angen i’r Bwrdd Gweithredol wneud penderfyniad OES 
Angen i’r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad NAC OES

YR AELOD O’R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL SY’N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:- Cyng. David Jenkins

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth: 
Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol
Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth:
Owen Bowen

Awdur yr Adroddiad: 
Owen Bowen

Swydd: 
Pennaeth Dros Dro y 
Gwasanaethau Ariannol

Rhif ffôn: 01267 224886
Cyfeiriad E-bost:
OBowen@sirgar.gov.uk 

Tudalen 251

Eitem Rhif  12



 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
EXECUTIVE BOARD 
23rd January 2017

This report provides members with an update on the Capital programme spend against budget 
for 2016/17 as at the 31st October 2016.  

Member Approved Virement

Public Housing

Voids to Achieve the CHS – To support the increase expenditure within the Voids budget. 
Virement transfer of £582k from Housing Development Programme to Voids.

Voids to Achieve the CHS – An additional £500k budget that is funded from direct revenue 
financing to increase Voids budget to £1,382k.

Variances

Appendix A which is shown departmentally, shows a forecasted net spend of £53,414k 
compared with a working net budget of £69,095k giving a £-15,681k variance. The variance will 
be slipped into future years, as the funding will be required to ensure that the schemes are 
completed.

Appendix B details the main variances within each department.

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED ? YES 

Tudalen 252



IMPLICATIONS

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this 
report :

Signed:             O. Bowen                                                      Head of Financial Services                          

Policy, Crime 
& Disorder 
and 
Equalities

Legal Finance ICT Risk 
Management 
Issues 

Staffing 
Implications

Physical 
Assets  

NONE NONE YES NONE  NONE NONE YES 

Finance  
The capital programme shows an under spend of £-15.681m, which will be incorporated into the 
2017/18 capital programme.

Physical Assets  
The capital programme will have an impact on the physical assets of the Authority.

Tudalen 253



CONSULTATIONS

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below

Signed:         O. Bowen                                                         Head of  Financial Services                                              

1. Scrutiny Committee
Relevant Scrutiny Committees will be consulted.
2.Local Member(s)  N/A
3.Community / Town Council N/A
4.Relevant Partners  N/A
5.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations  N/A
Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

             THERE ARE NONE

Title of Document File Ref No. Locations that the papers are available for public inspection 

2016-17 Capital 
Programme

Corporate Services Dept, County Hall, Carmarthen

Tudalen 254



Appendx A

Working Budget Forecasted

DEPARTMENT

Expenditure 

£'000

Income        

£'000

Net             

£'000

Expenditure 

£'000

Income        

£'000

Net             

£'000

Variance for 

Year £'000

COMMUNITIES

 - Public Housing 16,566 -6,025 10,541 15,039 -6,025 9,014 -1,527

 - Private Housing 3,229 -361 2,868 3,229 -361 2,868 0

 - Social Care 2,565 0 2,565 756 0 756 -1,809

 - Leisure 3,872 -1,050 2,822 558 -53 505 -2,317

ENVIRONMENT 27,375 -5,189 22,186 25,945 -5,063 20,882 -1,304

EDUCATION & CHILDREN 25,183 -9,976 15,207 20,127 -9,976 10,151 -5,056

CORPORATE SERVICES 1,882 -72 1,810 1,732 -72 1,660 -150

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

 - Regeneration 17,076 -5,980 11,096 8,849 -1,271 7,578 -3,518

TOTAL 97,748 -28,653 69,095 76,235 -22,821 53,414 -15,681

Capital Programme 2016/17

Capital Budget Monitoring - Report for October 2016

T
udalen 255



M
ae'r dudalen hon yn w

ag yn fw
riadol



Appenx B

Working Budget Forecasted

DEPARTMENT/SCHEMES

E
x

p
e

n
d

itu
re

 

£
'0

0
0

In
c

o
m

e
        

£
'0

0
0

N
e

t             

£
'0

0
0

E
x

p
e

n
d

itu
re

 

£
'0

0
0

In
c

o
m

e
        

£
'0

0
0

N
e

t             

£
'0

0
0

COMMUNITIES

 - Public Housing 16,566 -6,025 10,541 15,039 -6,025 9,014 -1,527

Fuel Switch - Gas Infrastructure 248 0 248 1 0 1 -247
Delays with British Gas on installation of pipeline. It is anticipated that 

this will be completed during 2017/18

Voids To Achieve The CHS (VOI) 1,382 0 1,382 1,482 0 1,482 100

Number of major voids continues to be high. Additional expenditure 

incurred to ensure efficient turn around of empty properties.  Partly 

funded through additional direct revenue contributions of £500k

Rendering and External Works (EXP & EXI) 1,692 0 1,692 1,100 0 1,100 -592 Budget being re-profiled to reflect current delivery

Internal Refurbishment (PKB) 2,733 0 2,733 3,433 0 3,433 700
Opportunity taken to bring previously declined works up to CHS+, 

primarily when they become vacant

Environmental Works Project (EWP) 350 0 350 250 0 250 -100
Owing to the number of projects identified being fewer than in previous 

years

Adaptions For The Disabled 946 0 946 1,326 0 1,326 380 Increase in demand and additional large scale adaptations

Housing Development Programme (New builds & Stock 

Increase Programme)

6,498 0 6,498 4,745 0 4,745 -1,753 We are projected to meet our 2016/17 target of an additional 160 

affordable homes by end of March 2017 by delivering a wide variety of 

solutions. As an example, the Stock Increase programme has been 

hugely successful with £3.9m being spent to purchase 37 homes. 

Significant preparatory work has been carried out on other solutions, 

particularly Council New Build, to ensure the underspend is utilised fully, 

along with planned investment, in 2017/18

Other Projects with Minor Variances 2,717 -6,025 -3,308 2,702 -6,025 -3,323 -15

 - Private Housing 3,229 -361 2,868 3,229 -361 2,868 0

 - Social Care 2,565 0 2,565 756 0 756 -1,809

Learning Disabilities Accomodation Developments 228 0 228 0 0 0 -228 Options are being considered for the location of future learning disability 

provision as part of a TIC review of the service

Carmarthen Area Extra Care 577 0 577 345 0 345 -232 Contingencies included in contract not fully utilised - final sum yet to be 

agreed - Savings identified

Ammanford / Llandybie Extra Care 260 0 260 161 0 161 -99 Contingencies included in contract not fully utilised - final sum yet to be 

agreed - Savings identified

Extra Care - Llanelli Area 1,500 0 1,500 250 0 250 -1,250 Options/Appraisals being considered for potential scheme

Capital Programme 2016/17

Capital Budget Monitoring - Report for October 2016 - Main Variances

Comment

V
a

ria
n

c
e

 fo
r 

Y
e

a
r £

'0
0

0

T
udalen 257



Appenx B

Working Budget Forecasted

DEPARTMENT/SCHEMES

E
x

p
e

n
d

itu
re

 

£
'0

0
0

In
c

o
m

e
        

£
'0

0
0

N
e

t             

£
'0

0
0

E
x

p
e

n
d

itu
re

 

£
'0

0
0

In
c

o
m

e
        

£
'0

0
0

N
e

t             

£
'0

0
0

Capital Programme 2016/17

Capital Budget Monitoring - Report for October 2016 - Main Variances

Comment

V
a

ria
n

c
e

 fo
r 

Y
e

a
r £

'0
0

0

 - Leisure 3,872 -1,050 2,822 558 -53 505 -2,317

Countryside Recreation & Access 676 -300 376 156 -52 104 -272 Due to monies being retained to match fund

Carmarthen Museum - Abergwili 750 0 750 30 0 30 -720 £250k planned match funding for 2017/18 for Tywi Gateway. Remainder 

planned match funding for HLF bid.

Carmarthenshire Archives Relocation 250 0 250 50 0 50 -200 Design development 2016/17 with construction timetable to follow. Likely 

slippage to 2017/18

Carmarthen Park Velodrome 286 0 286 70 0 70 -216 Currently surface testing. Tenders Dec'16, works scheduled for Summer 

2017. Fees and consultancy works only this year

Burry Port Harbour Dredging 400 0 400 85 0 85 -315 An options appraisal on potential dredge solutions is currently being is 

currently worked up by consultants and a report is due to be presented to 

Community Scrutiny in January 2017. Works to be completed in 2017/18, 

fees expected in relation to continued consultancy works

Closed Circuit Track 500 0 500 23 0 23 -477 Some initial fees for testing and consultancy works will be incurred this 

financial year. Final site selection for the facility will require political 

endorsement.

Pembrey Country Park - Strategic Infrastructure 

Development

1,000 -750 250 134 -1 133 -117 Works to the play area in 16/17. Remaining spend on new toilet and 

shower block is likely to be carried out in 17/18

Other Projects with Minor Variances 10 0 10 10 0 10 0

ENVIRONMENT 27,375 -5,189 22,186 25,945 -5,063 20,882 -1,304

Murray Street Car Park, Llanelli - Exp 149 0 149 75 0 75 -74 Expenditure profile being planned in accordance with whole of life care 

plan

Solar Panels Project 1,500 0 1,500 900 0 900 -600 Due to local Grid capacity constraints plus structural issues. A further 

phase of the project is to be explored to potentially incorporate solar 

panels with battery storage

Pantyglyn Retaining Wall, Llanybydder (Principal Road 

A485)

400 0 400 20 0 20 -380 Delay in progressing scheme due to need to undertake advanced 

clearing works prior to detailed surveys

Other OutBuildings Improvements - Farms 70 0 70 0 0 0 -70 Delay in design & procurement of works due to lack of available resource 

- buildings will be occupied over winter months.

East Gate -Contribution to Consultants' Fees 351 0 351 163 0 163 -188 Delay at procurement and design stage - works to be completed early 

17/18

Other Projects with Minor Variances 24,905 -5,189 19,716 24,787 -5,063 19,724 8

T
udalen 258



Appenx B

Working Budget Forecasted

DEPARTMENT/SCHEMES

E
x

p
e

n
d

itu
re

 

£
'0

0
0

In
c

o
m

e
        

£
'0

0
0

N
e

t             

£
'0

0
0

E
x

p
e

n
d

itu
re

 

£
'0

0
0

In
c

o
m

e
        

£
'0

0
0

N
e

t             

£
'0

0
0

Capital Programme 2016/17

Capital Budget Monitoring - Report for October 2016 - Main Variances

Comment

V
a

ria
n

c
e

 fo
r 

Y
e

a
r £

'0
0

0

EDUCATION & CHILDREN 25,183 -9,976 15,207 20,127 -9,976 10,151 -5,056

Education DDA Act Works 131 0 131 350 0 350 219 Number of DDA requests higher than anticipated (Statutory function)

Ffwrnes - New Two Form Entry School 943 0 943 190 0 190 -753 Savings on project based on budget

Dinefwr Project - Dyffryn Aman 323 0 323 167 0 167 -156 Re-Profile of budget required

Dinefwr Project - Ysgol Bro Dinefwr 1,256 0 1,256 964 0 964 -292 Re-Profile of budget required

Ysgol Pen Rhos CP School - New Two Form Entry 

(Formerly Seaside)

3,333 0 3,333 2,750 0 2,750 -583 Welsh Government delay with approval of Business Case

Llangadog - Major Redevelopment 2,041 0 2,041 214 0 214 -1,827 Delay due to change in brief for the Cwm Tywi Area

Ysgol Trimsaran - New School Building 3,924 0 3,924 2,600 0 2,600 -1,324 Works on site delayed due to tender process with contractor

Ysgol Y Strade - Phase 1 202 0 202 372 0 372 170 Additional roof works

Llandeilo Primary - Band A 107 0 107 50 0 50 -57 Scheme delayed in programme - slippage, no impact on overall scheme 

cost

Ammanford Primary Band A 99 0 99 20 0 20 -79 Scheme delayed in programme - slippage, no impact on overall scheme 

cost

Parc Y Tywyn Band A 3,526 0 3,526 1,500 0 1,500 -2,026 Due to original projection of spend being optimistic - re-profile required

Llanelli Vocational Village 484 0 484 1,224 0 1,224 740 Additional works funded by school

Laugharne VCP Works 237 0 237 30 0 30 -207 Design works ongoing

Pontyberem CP - Refurbishment/Re-configuration 400 0 400 200 0 200 -200 Design costs in year lower than anticipated - no impact on overall 

scheme cost

Rhys Prichard Relocation 0 0 0 100 0 100 100 New scheme introduced into MEP Programme

St John Lloyd 405 0 405 1,400 0 1,400 995 Business Case completed and approved ahead of schedule, works 

progressing well

Ysgol Dewi Sant - Band A 223 0 223 313 0 313 90 Initial site selection and design works being carried out ahead of 

schedule

Other Projects with Minor Variances 7,549 -9,976 -2,427 7,683 -9,976 -2,293 134

T
udalen 259



Appenx B

Working Budget Forecasted

DEPARTMENT/SCHEMES

E
x

p
e

n
d

itu
re

 

£
'0

0
0

In
c

o
m

e
        

£
'0

0
0

N
e

t             

£
'0

0
0

E
x

p
e

n
d

itu
re

 

£
'0

0
0

In
c

o
m

e
        

£
'0

0
0

N
e

t             

£
'0

0
0

Capital Programme 2016/17

Capital Budget Monitoring - Report for October 2016 - Main Variances

Comment

V
a

ria
n

c
e

 fo
r 

Y
e

a
r £

'0
0

0

CORPORATE SERVICES 1,882 -72 1,810 1,732 -72 1,660 -150

IT Strategy Developments 1,805 0 1,805 1,655 0 1,655 -150 Various projects on hold pending review of collaboration opportunities

Other Projects with Minor Variances 77 -72 5 77 -72 5 0

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

 - Regeneration 17,076 -5,980 11,096 8,849 -1,271 7,578 -3,518

Rural Enterprise Fund 2,000 -1,000 1,000 500 -250 250 -750 Funds committed at stage 1, some projects will commence construction 

in 2016/17 majority in 17/18

Transformation Commercial Property Development Fund 3,330 -1,830 1,500 0 0 0 -1,500 Fully committed at stage 1 but project delivery will be in 2017-18

Ammanford Town Centre Regeneration 447 0 447 189 0 189 -258 Budget re-profiled to support the Ammanford masterplan including 

Property Development Grant

Cross Hands East Enabling Fund 850 0 850 0 0 0 -850 Subject to scheme approval and linked to anticipated WG funding 

package (Property Development Fund).  We currently await further 

confirmation from WG

Margaret St - Retaining Wall & Road Widening 230 0 230 70 0 70 -160 Works on retaining wall in 16/17 is subject to legal agreement with 

proposed developer. Road widening works to be carried out in 17/18

Other Projects with Minor Variances 10,219 -3,150 7,069 8,090 -1,021 7,069 0

TOTAL 97,748 -28,653 69,095 76,235 -22,821 53,414 -15,681

T
udalen 260



Document is Restricted

Tudalen 261

Eitem Rhif  15
Yn rhinwedd  paragraff(s) 14 o Rhan 4 o Atodlen 12A% o ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972 fel y'i diwygiwyd gan 
Orchymyn Llywodraeth Leol (Mynediad at Wybodaeth) (Amrywio) (Cymru) 2007



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Document is Restricted

Tudalen 269

Yn rhinwedd  paragraff(s) 14 o Rhan 4 o Atodlen 12A% o ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972 fel y'i diwygiwyd gan 
Orchymyn Llywodraeth Leol (Mynediad at Wybodaeth) (Amrywio) (Cymru) 2007



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Document is Restricted

Tudalen 279

Eitem Rhif  16
Yn rhinwedd  paragraff(s) 14 o Rhan 4 o Atodlen 12A% o ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972 fel y'i diwygiwyd gan 
Orchymyn Llywodraeth Leol (Mynediad at Wybodaeth) (Amrywio) (Cymru) 2007



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Document is Restricted

Tudalen 285

Yn rhinwedd  paragraff(s) 14 o Rhan 4 o Atodlen 12A% o ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972 fel y'i diwygiwyd gan 
Orchymyn Llywodraeth Leol (Mynediad at Wybodaeth) (Amrywio) (Cymru) 2007



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol


	Agenda
	3 LLOFNODI FEL COFNOD CYWIR COFNODION CYFARFOD Y BWRDD GWEITHREDOL A GYNHALWYD AR Y 22AIN RHAGFYR, 2016
	6 BARGEN DDINESIG BAE ABERTAWE
	Adroddiad

	7 CYNLLUN STRATEGOL Y GYMRAEG MEWN ADDYSG (CSYGMA) 2017-2020
	Adroddiad
	Atodiad

	8 MODEL GWEITHDREFN GALLUOGRWYDD AR GYFER ATHRAWON A PENAETHIAID
	Adroddiad

	9 MODEL POLISI CYFLOGAU ATHRAWON 2016/2017
	Adroddiad

	10 FERSIYNAU DIWYGIEDIG O'R POLISI RHEOLI STRAEN, Y POLISI YSMYGU A'R POLISI CAMDDEFNYDDIO ALCOHOL A SYLWEDDAU
	Atodiad 1
	Atodiad 2
	Atodiad 3

	11 ADRODDIAD MONITRO CYLLIDEB REFENIW Y CYNGOR
	Atodiad B
	Atodiad B

	12 DIWEDDARU RHAGLEN GYFALAF 2016-17
	Atodiad B
	Atodiad B

	15 STRATEGAETH DERBYNIADAU CYFALAF 5 MLYNEDD (2015 - 2020) - ADRODDIAD CYNNYDD
	Atodiad

	16 GWERTHU HEN GARTREF GOFAL PRESWYL TEGFAN, RHYDAMAN
	Atodiad


